
Document Number: 2538278 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY 
HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, JUNE 24, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

 
Watch Livestream at cnv.org/LiveStreaming 

View complete Agenda Package at cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 
 

The City of North Vancouver respectfully acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the traditional 
and unceded territories of the Skwxwú7mesh (Squamish) and Səl̓ílwətaɬ (Tsleil-Waututh) Nations. 

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, June 24, 2024 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, June 17, 2024 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 

CONSENT AGENDA

Items *3, *4 and *5 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be considered separately 
or in one motion.  
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 

*3 “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) 

REPORTS 

*4. Report Required under Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes 
Amendment Act, 2008

*5. 2023 Statement of Financial Information 
 
PUBLIC MEETING – 2023 Annual Municipal Report 

REPORT 

6. 2023 Annual Municipal Report 

DELEGATION 

Erin Behncke, Ned Booker, Kevin Dickie, Rosemary Langford, Natalia Izzo 
Manzano, Sasha McGrenera, Luke Saville, Ryker Zilkey, North Shore Young Civic 
Forum – Revitalizing North Vancouver’s Community through Public Spaces  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 2 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
7. Murray Mollard, Executive Director, North Shore Community Resources  

– North Shore Young Civic Forum 
 

PRESENTATION 
 

Community Wellbeing Strategy – Manager, City Planning and Design 
 
REPORTS 
 
8. City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy 
 
9. City of North Vancouver Accessibility Plan 
 
10. Rezoning Application: 457 West 14th Street (QKD Construction Ltd.) 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
11. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9033” (QKD 

Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) 
 
REPORT 
 
12. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St. Georges Avenue (Domus Projects Limited) 
 
BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
13. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055” (Domus 

Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) 
 
14. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. 

Georges Avenue, CD-764, Rental Housing Commitments) 
 
REPORTS 
 
15. 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
 
16. Statutory Right of Way in Favour of BC Hydro over City-Owned Leasehold Lands 

at 1866 Rufus Drive 
 
17. 2024 Appropriations #2 
 
18. Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
19. “Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032” 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 3 
 
REPORT 
 
20. Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
21. “Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061” 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 4

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, June 24, 2024

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, June 17, 2024

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 

The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, 
No. 8500.”  The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 2 
minutes, with the number of speakers set at 5 persons.  Speakers’ comments will be audio recorded, 
as well as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record. 

Speakers may only speak on the same matter once in a 3-month period. 

Speakers during the Public Input Period are permitted to join the meeting in person in the Council 
Chamber or electronically via Webex.  There are 2 ways to sign up to speak during the Public Input 
Period. 

1) IN PERSON:  Speakers who choose to participate in person must sign the speaker list located
outside the Council Chamber between 5:30 and 5:50pm on the day of the Council meeting.

2) ELECTRONICALLY VIA WEBEX:  Speakers who choose to participate electronically must pre-
register by 12:00 noon on the day of the Council meeting by completing the online form at
cnv.org/PublicInputPeriod, or by phoning 604-990-4234.  These pre-registrants will receive
instructions by email or phone on the afternoon before the Council meeting.

If a speaker has written material to accompany their comments, the material must be sent to the 
Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the Council Meeting. 

The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for comment only and places the speaker’s concern 
on record, without the expectation of a response from Council.  Speakers must comply with the 
General Rules of Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and 
may not speak with respect to items as listed in section 12.25(2), including Zoning Bylaws for which a 
Public Hearing will not be held or is prohibited under section 464 of the Local Government Act. 

Speakers are requested not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public 
Hearing/Public Meeting or to Public Hearings, Public Meetings and Committee meetings when those 
matters are scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, as an opportunity for public input is provided 
when the particular item comes forward for discussion. 

Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by their surname”.  Councillors 
should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 5 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *3, *4 and *5 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be considered separately 
or in one motion. 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 THAT the recommendations within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION  
 
*3 “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, Amendment 

Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) be adopted, signed 
by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal.  

 
REPORTS 
 
*4. Report Required under Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes 

Amendment Act, 2008 – File: 05-1610-01-0001/2023 
 
 Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 12, 2024 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled “Report Required under Local Government (Green Communities) Statute 
Amendment Act, 2008”: 
 
THAT the report be received and filed. 

 
*5. 2023 Statement of Financial Information – File: 05-1880-20-0008/2023 
 
 Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 12, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled “2023 Statement of Financial Information”: 
 
THAT the Statement of Financial Information for the year ended December 31, 
2023, be approved and forwarded to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs. 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 6 
 
PUBLIC MEETING – 2023 Annual Municipal Report  
 
Chair:  Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 
Purpose: To provide an opportunity for Council and the public to make comments on 

the 2023 Annual Municipal Report. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Staff presentation  

Public comments – 5 minutes per speaker 

Questions and comments from Council 

Motion to conclude the Public Meeting 
 
REPORT 
 
6. 2023 Annual Municipal Report – File: 01-0640-20-0001/2023 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 12, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 

entitled, “2023 Annual Municipal Report”: 
 
 THAT the 2023 Annual Municipal Report be approved. 
 
DELEGATION 
 

Erin Behncke, Ned Booker, Kevin Dickie, Rosemary Langford, Natalia Izzo 
Manzano, Sasha McGrenera, Luke Saville, Ryker Zilkey, North Shore Young 
Civic Forum 
 
Re: Revitalizing North Vancouver’s Community through Public Spaces  

 
Item 7 refers. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
7. Murray Mollard, Executive Director, North Shore Community Resources,  

June 11, 2024 – File: 01-0230-01-0001/2024 
 
 Re: North Shore Young Civic Forum 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT the correspondence from Murray Mollard, Executive Director, North Shore 
Community Resources, dated June 11, 2024, regarding the “North Shore Young 
Civic Forum ”, be received for information and with thanks. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 7 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Community Wellbeing Strategy – Manager, City Planning and Design 
 
 Item 8 refers. 
 
REPORTS 
 
8. City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy  

– File: 10-5080-20-0003/1 
 

Report: Manager, City Planning and Design, June 12, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, City Planning and Design, dated June 
12, 2024, entitled “City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy”: 
 
THAT the City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy be endorsed; 
 
THAT staff report back to Council with updates regarding progress and priority 
projects outlined in the Community Wellbeing Strategy, starting 2025; 
 
AND THAT Sḵwx̱wú7mesh Úxwumixw (Squamish Nation), səlilwətaɬ (Tsleil-
Waututh Nation), multiple agencies and community members that contributed 
input, information and expertise to the plan be thanked for their contributions and 
provided with a copy of the Community Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
9. City of North Vancouver Accessibility Plan – File: 07-2830-01-0001/2024 
 

Report: Leader, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, June 12, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Leader, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, dated 
June 12, 2024, entitled “CNV Accessibility Plan”: 
 
THAT the work to begin development of the CNV Accessibility Plan be approved.  

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 8 
 
REPORTS – Continued  
 
10. Rezoning Application: 457 West 14th Street (QKD Construction Ltd.)  
 – File: 08-3400-20-0092/1 
 
 Report: Planner 2, June 5, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated June 5, 2024, entitled “Rezoning 
Application: 457 West 14th Street (QKD Construction Ltd.)”: 
 
THAT the application submitted by QKD Construction Ltd., to rezone the property 
located at 457 West 14th Street from a One-Unit Residential 1 (RS-1) Zone to a 
One-Unit Residential 2 (RS-2) Zone, be considered with no Public Hearing being 
held, in accordance with the Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public hearing 
prohibited];  
 
AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024 No. 9033” 
(QKD Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) be considered for first, 
second and third readings with no Public Hearing held, in accordance with the 
Local Government Act, Section 464(3) [public hearing prohibited]. 
 
Item 11 refers. 
 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
11. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9033” (QKD 

Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9033” (QKD 
Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) be given first and second readings; 
 
AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9033” 
(QKD Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) be given third reading. 

 
No Public Hearing held. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 9 
 
REPORT 
 
12. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St. Georges Avenue (Domus Projects Ltd.)  
 – File: 08-3400-20-0088/1  
 
 Report: Planner 3, June 5, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 3, dated June 5, 2024, entitled “Zoning 
Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St. Georges Avenue (Domus Projects Ltd.)”: 
 
THAT the application submitted by Domus Projects Ltd., to rezone the property 
located at 1612 St. Georges Avenue from a RM-1 Zone to a Comprehensive 
Development Zone, be considered; 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055” 
(Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) be considered for first, 
second and third readings with no Public Hearing held, in accordance with the 
Local Government Act, Section 464(3) [public hearing prohibited]; 
 
THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 
St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) be considered for first, second and third readings;  
 
AND THAT the community benefits listed in the report section “Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits” be secured through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff. 

 
Items 13 and 14 refer. 

 
BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
13. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055” (Domus 

Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055” 
(Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) be given first and 
second readings; 
 
AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055” 
(Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) be given third reading. 

 
No Public Hearing held. 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 10 
 
BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS – Continued 
 
14. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. 

Georges Avenue, CD-764, Rental Housing Commitments)  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 
St. Georges Avenue, CD-764, Rental Housing Commitments) be given first and 
second readings; 
 
AND THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 
1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764, Rental Housing Commitments) be given third 
reading. 
 

REPORTS 
 
15. 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations  

– File: 05-1850-20-0005/2024 
 
Report: Community Planner, Planning (Urban Regeneration and Analytics), 

June 12, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
PURSUANT to the report of the Community Planner, Planning (Urban 
Regeneration and Analytics), dated June 12, 2024, entitled “2024 Round One 
Community Grant Recommendations”: 
 
THAT the Round One 2024 Community Grants be awarded to the list of 
organizations as proposed in the report, in the total amount of $198,300, with 
funds allocated from the 2024 Community Grants budget; 
 
AND THAT the funded and non-funded grants be listed in the Minutes, in full. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 11 
 
REPORTS – Continued  
 
16. Statutory Right of Way in Favour of BC Hydro over City-Owned Leasehold Lands 

at 1866 Rufus Drive – File: 02-0870-01-0001/2024 
 
 Report: Manager, Real Estate, June 3, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Real Estate, dated June 3, 2024, 

entitled “Statutory Right of Way in Favour of BC Hydro over City-Owned 
Leasehold Lands at 1866 Rufus Drive”: 

 
 THAT staff be authorized to negotiate a statutory right of way agreement with BC 

Hydro to secure the delivery and provision of hydroelectric services to properties 
located at or near 1866 Rufus Drive, and allow such agreement to be registered 
on the lands, as required; 

 
 AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to execute the 

statutory right of way, as described in the report. 
 
17. 2024 Appropriations #2 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2024 
 
 Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 12, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled “2024 Appropriations #2”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2413) an amount of $4,907,676 be appropriated 
from the General Capital Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 
Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2414) an amount of $1,145,000 be appropriated 
from the Civic Amenity Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2415) an amount of $2,047,943 be appropriated 
from the Civic Amenity Harry Jerome Reserve for the purpose of funding the 
2024-2028 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2416) an amount of $2,521,422 be appropriated 
from the Tax Sale Land Interest Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 
Capital Plan; 

 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2417) an amount of $320,000 be appropriated 
from the Infrastructure Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 

Continued… 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 12 

REPORTS – Continued  

17. 2024 Appropriations #2 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2024 – Continued

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2418) an amount of $80,000 be appropriated from
the Heritage Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan;

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2420) an amount of $935,000 be appropriated
from the Engineering Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital
Plan;

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2421) an amount of $3,952 be appropriated from
the Justice Building Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital
Plan;

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2422) an amount of $43 be appropriated from the
General Equipment Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital
Plan;

AND THAT should any of the amounts remain unexpended as at December 31,
2027, the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the respective
reserves.

18. Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032
– File: 05-1760-01-0001/2024

Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 12, 2024 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled “Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032”: 

THAT “Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032” be considered; 

AND THAT the Chief Financial Officer and City Solicitor be authorized to execute 
all loan documentation required to establish a Temporary Borrowing facility with 
the Municipal Finance Authority of B.C., as contemplated in Bylaw No. 9032. 

Item 19 refers. 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 

19. “Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032”

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT “Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032” be given first and
second readings;

AND THAT “Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032” be given third
reading.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 24, 2024 Page 13 

REPORT 

20. Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund – File:  05-1705-01-0001/2024

Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 12, 2024

RECOMMENDATION:
PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 

entitled “Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund”:

THAT “Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061” be 
considered.

Item 21 refers.

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 

21. “Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061”

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT “Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061” be given first 
and second readings;

AND THAT “Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061” be given 
third reading.

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 

The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for 
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular 
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the 
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes. 

COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

NOTICES OF MOTION 

ADJOURN 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Document Number: 2537657 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY 
HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2024 

 
 
PRESENT 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor S. Shahriari 
Councillor T. Valente 
 (joined at 6:01 pm) 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
P. DeJong, Acting Corporate Officer 
J. Peters, Manager, Legislative and Election Services 
L. Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 
D. Van Heerden, Manager, Financial Planning 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
K. Magnusson, Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment 
D. Hutch, Deputy Director, Parks and Public Spaces 
C. Lesmeister, Park Planner 
S. Galloway, Director, Planning and Development 
J. Draper, Deputy Director, Planning and Development 
M. Friesen, Manager, Planning (Urban Regeneration and Analytics) 
R. de St. Croix, Manager, Planning (City Design and Planning) 
T. Ryce, Chief Building Official 
M. Chan, Director, Real Estate, Facilities and Economic Development 
S. Smith, Manager, Economic Development 
B. Lin, Economic and Business Development Coordinator 
G. Schalk, Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 
E. Doran, Director, People, Culture and Transformation 
A. Gibbs, Sr. Manager, Communications and Engagement 
L. Gillies, Deputy Director, Project Management and Delivery, LEC 
H. van Gelderen, Legislative Services Advisor 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, June 17, 2024 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/1 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 
2. Special Council Meeting Minutes, May 27, 2024 

R2024-06-17/2 
 

3. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, May 27, 2024 
R2024-06-17/3 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

Councillor Valente joined the meeting at 6:01 pm. 

PROCLAMATION 

Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamation: 

National Indigenous Peoples Day – June 21, 2024 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 

• Robb Webb, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the right to free speech and freedom
of expression.

• Laurie Parkinson, North Vancouver, spoke in favour of Item 7 – Climate and
Environment Strategy.

CONSENT AGENDA 

Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 

THAT Item 4 be removed from the Consent Agenda and the remaining 
recommendations listed within the Consent Agenda be approved. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

START OF CONSENT AGENDA 

CORRESPONDENCE 

5 Doug Campbell, Chair, E-Comm Board of Directors, E-Comm 9-1-1, May 29, 2024 
– File: 01-0230-20-0016/2024

Re: E-Comm 9-1-1 Annual General Meeting and Special General Meeting 

Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 

THAT the correspondence from Doug Campbell, Chair, E-Comm Board of Directors, 
E-Comm 9-1-1, dated May 29, 2024, regarding the “E-Comm 9-1-1 Annual General
Meeting and Special General Meeting”, be received for information;

THAT Greg Schalk, Public Safety Director and Fire Chief, be appointed to serve as the 
City of North Vancouver’s designate to attend E-Comm’s Annual General Meeting, 
being held on June 20, 2024, for the purpose of voting on member resolutions and 
advancing the Governance Review Report; 

AND THAT Greg Schalk, Public Safety Director and Fire Chief, be appointed to serve 
as the City of North Vancouver’s designate to attend E-Comm’s Special General 
Meeting, being held on September 26, 2024, for the purpose of voting on member 
resolutions regarding the Governance Review Report. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY CONSENT) 
R2024-06-17/5 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 
4. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, May 31, 2024 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2024 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 

THAT the correspondence from Metro Vancouver, dated May 31, 2024, regarding the 
“Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/4 

 
DELEGATION 
 

Shannon Henderson, President, Orange Shirt Society, Anna McKenzie, Governance 
and Policy Director, Castlemain, and Daniel Milner, Communications Specialist, 
Castlemain 

 
Re: Every Child Matters Crosswalk 

 
Anna McKenzie and Daniel Milner, Castlemain, provided a PowerPoint presentation 
regarding the “Every Child Matters Crosswalk” and responded to questions from Council. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
6. Shannon Henderson, President, Orange Shirt Society, May 29, 2024  

– File: 01-0230-01-0001/2024 
 
 Re: Every Child Matters Crosswalk 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 

 
THAT the correspondence from Shannon Henderson, President, Orange Shirt Society, 
dated May 29, 2024, regarding the “Every Child Matters Crosswalk”, be received for 
information and with thanks; 
 
AND THAT a letter be sent to the Orange Shirt Society supporting the installation of an 
Every Child Matters Crosswalk in the City at the intersection of Forbes Avenue and 
West 6th Street. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/6 

 
PRESENTATION 
 

Climate and Environment Strategy – Planning Manager 
 
The Planning Manager and Deputy Director, Planning and Development, provided a 
PowerPoint presentation regarding the “Climate and Environment Strategy” and responded to 
questions from Council. 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

REPORTS 

7. Climate and Environment Strategy – File: 11-5280-20-0008/1

Report: Planning Manager, June 5, 2024

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planning Manager, dated June 5, 2024, entitled 
“Climate and Environment Strategy”: 

THAT the City of North Vancouver Climate and Environment Strategy be endorsed; 

THAT staff collect relevant environmental data and report on environmental outcomes; 

THAT members of the Climate and Environment Task Force be thanked for their 
significant contributions; 

Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

THAT the motion be amended to add the following clause: 

“AND THAT implementation targets and metrics be updated as information becomes 
available to support ongoing reporting and communication with the public.” 

Amendment motion, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Main motion, as amended, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/7 

8. 2024-2028 Revised Financial Plan – File: 05-1715-20-0020/2024

Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 5, 2024 

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 5, 2024, entitled 
“2024-2028 Revised Financial Plan”: 

THAT the amendments to the 2024-2028 Financial Plan, for new projects identified to 
be funded by the Housing Accelerator Fund, be endorsed; 

THAT the amendments to the 2024-2028 Financial Plan, for emerging priority projects 
to be funded by the General Reserve Fund and Civic Amenity Fund, be endorsed, 
except for the CNV community newsletter costs of $250,000; 

THAT an amount of $150,000 be allocated to new Project “Community Needs 
Assessment” using the Provision for External Contributions for the purpose of funding 
the 2024-2028 Financial Plan; 

AND THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) be considered. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Continued… 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

REPORTS – Continued 
 
8. 2024-2028 Revised Financial Plan – File: 05-1715-20-0020/2024 – Continued 
 
 Report: Chief Financial Officer, June 5, 2024 
 
The vote on the following motion was taken separately: 
 

THAT the CNV community newsletter costs of $250,000 be funded by the General 
Reserve Fund; 

CARRIED 
R2024-06-17/8 

 
Councillor Back and Councillor Shahriari are recorded as voting in opposition to the motion. 
 
BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
9. “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, Amendment Bylaw, 

2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) be given first and second readings; 

 
AND THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial Plan) be given third reading. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/9 

 
10. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9030” (Transit Oriented 

Area Parking Amendment) 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9030” (Transit 
Oriented Area Parking Amendment) be given first and second readings; 

 
AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9030” 
(Transit Oriented Area Parking Amendment) be given third reading. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

R2024-06-17/10 
 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
11. “Transit Oriented Area Designation Bylaw, 2024, No. 9029” 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Transit Oriented Area Designation Bylaw, 2024, No. 9029” be adopted, signed 
by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/11 

 
12. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9030” (Transit Oriented 

Area Parking Amendment) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9030” (Transit 
Oriented Area Parking Amendment) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate 
Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/12 

 
REPORTS 
 
13. Authorization to Sign Information Sharing Agreement on Short-Term Rentals  

– File: 13-6750-10-0001/1 
 

Report: Manager, Economic Development, June 6, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Economic Development, dated June 6, 
2024, entitled “Authorization to Sign Information Sharing Agreement on Short-Term 
Rentals”: 

 
THAT Council authorize the City to enter into an Information Sharing Agreement under 
the Short-Term Rental Accommodations Act with His Majesty the King in Right of the 
Province of British Columbia, represented by the Minister of Housing; 

 
AND THAT the Manager, Economic Development, be authorized to sign the 
Information Sharing Agreement and any related documentation necessary to give 
effect to this motion. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-06-17/13 

 
Councillor Valente recused himself at 8:21 pm, declaring a potential conflict of interest due to 
the proximity of his residence to Streetcar Brewing in respect of Item 14 – “Streetcar Brewing 
Corporation – Application for Change of Liquor Service Hours”. 
 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

REPORTS – Continued 

14. Streetcar Brewing Corporation – Application for Change of Liquor Service Hours
– File: 09-4320-50-0002/2024

Report: Manager, Economic Development, June 5, 2024 

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Back 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Economic Development, dated June 5, 
2024, entitled “Streetcar Brewing Corporation – Application for Change of Liquor 
Service Hours”: 

THAT the City of North Vancouver undertakes a public consultation process with 
respect to the application from Streetcar Brewing Corporation for extending current 
closing hours to 12:00 am, Sunday to Thursday, and 2:00 am, Friday to Saturday, for 
liquor service in the lounge area; 

AND THAT staff be directed to report back to Council with the results of the public 
consultation and seek direction for this application. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
(by remaining members present) 

R2024-06-17/14 

Councillor Valente returned to the meeting at 8:23 pm. 

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 

Nil. 

COUNCIL INQUIRIES 

15. Signage in the City for Vulnerable Road Users – File: 01-0220-01-0001/2024

Inquiry by Councillor Valente

Councillor Valente inquired of Mayor Buchanan regarding the recent updates made by the 
Province to protect vulnerable road users and what the City’s plans are for the rollout of 
signage in the community that reflects the Province’s updates.  Mayor Buchanan advised that 
this matter has been forwarded to staff for a report back to Council. 

R2024-06-17/15 

COUNCIL REPORTS 

Councillor Valente reported on and invited Council and staff to an informal Mobility Drinks 
Networking Mixer event scheduled for June 30, 2024 at 2:00 pm. 

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

Nil. 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Councillor Shahriari advised of his intention to bring forward a Notice of Motion at a future 
Regular Council meeting regarding the “Proliferation of Currency Exchanges in the City of 
North Vancouver”. 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant to the 
Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(i) [legal advice], 90(1)(k) [proposed service] and 
90(2)(b) [intergovernmental relations], and where required, Council considers that the 
matters could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the City if they were 
held in public. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, at 8:25 pm and 
reconvened at 9:41 pm. 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT the following items from the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session), of June 
17, 2024, be ratified: 
 

16. Community Safety Advisory Committee – File: 14-7000-01-0001/2024 
 

Report: Public Safety Director and Fire Chief, June 5, 2024 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Public Safety Director and Fire Chief, dated June 5, 
2024, entitled “Community Safety Advisory Committee”: 

 
THAT staff be directed to implement a Community Safety Advisory Committee and 
bring forward Terms of Reference for Council’s consideration; 

 
AND THAT the report of the Public Safety Director and Fire Chief, dated June 5, 2024, 
entitled “Community Safety Advisory Committee”, remain in the Closed session. 

 
R2024-06-17/16 

 
17.  Metro Vancouver – North Shore Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 – File: 01-0400-60-0006/2024 
 

Verbal Report: Mayor Buchanan, June 17, 2024 
 

THAT the Mayor be authorized to file a formal complaint to Metro Vancouver about the 
North Shore Wastewater Treatment Plant process and costs; 
 
AND THAT City of North Vancouver Council calls for an independent public review of 
the North Shore Wastewater Treatment Plant process and costs. 

R2024-06-17/17 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 9 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Back 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:44 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Acting Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024 Document: 2524341-v4 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9024 

Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 

to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024” (Revised Financial 
Plan). 

 
2. Schedule “A” attached hereto is the Financial Plan of the Corporation of the City of North 

Vancouver for the period commencing January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2028. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 17th day of June, 2024. 

READ a second time on the 17th day of June, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the 17th day of June, 
2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 

  



SCHEDULE “A” TO BYLAW NO. 9024 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FINANCIAL PLAN 

FOR THE YEARS 2024 – 2028 
 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024 Document: 2524341-v4 

 (1) 2024 – 2028 Financial Plan ($000’s) 
 

For years ended December 31 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Revenue
Property Value Tax 80,951 83,576 86,276 89,053 91,910
Levies (Storm and Eco) 5,565 6,847 8,333 8,811 9,269
Revenue from Fees and Services 55,255 59,442 64,313 69,592 73,083
Revenue from Other Sources 8,837 8,708 8,749 8,790 4,181

150,608 158,573 167,671 176,247 178,443

Transfers
Collections for Other Governments 59,940 61,139 62,362 63,609 64,881
Transfer from Reserves 146,115 82,278 60,408 70,151 58,894
External Contributions 23,045 5,718 4,045 2,632 3,362
Transfer from Capital Assets 19,500 19,890 165,288 20,694 21,108

248,600 169,025 292,103 157,086 148,245

Total Revenues 399,208 327,598 459,774 333,333 326,688

Expenditures
Operating Expenses
General Government 30,261 31,017 31,792 32,587 33,402

Transportation and Transit 10,753 11,022 11,298 11,580 11,870
Health, Social Services, Housing 8,133 8,336 8,544 8,758 8,977
Development Services 9,329 9,562 9,801 10,046 10,297
Protective Services 34,978 35,852 36,748 37,667 38,609
Parks, Recreation and Culture 29,836 30,582 31,347 32,131 32,934
Water 13,170 20,553 21,412 22,199 22,955
Sewer 14,643 26,306 30,539 34,174 36,593
Solid Waste 4,242 4,298 4,408 4,521 4,638

155,345 177,528 185,889 193,663 200,275

Capital Expenditures 149,552 48,292 27,352 36,590 27,050

Transfers
Collections for Other Governments 59,940 61,139 62,362 63,609 64,881

Equity 19,281 19,404 19,889 20,386 20,896
Reserves 13,092 15,829 47,710 15,490 9,991
Debt Servicing 1,998 5,406 116,573 3,595 3,595

94,311 101,778 246,534 103,080 99,363

Total Expenditures 399,208 327,598 459,774 333,333 326,688



SCHEDULE “A” TO BYLAW NO. 9024 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FINANCIAL PLAN 

FOR THE YEARS 2024 – 2028 
 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024 Document: 2524341-v4 

 
(2) Revenue Proportions by Funding Source 
      (Excluding Transfers) 
 

 
 
Background: Property Taxes are CNV’s major source of revenue. CNV’s reliance on property 
tax as a source of revenue has increased gradually over the past several years. This trend is 
partially due to the lack of access to other types of revenues.  Where feasible, CNV charges user 
fees for services, however this is not possible for many services. The 2024 – 2028 Financial Plan 
projects the percentage of revenue coming from property taxes to decrease gradually, due to the 
assumptions in place surrounding growth of revenue from Fees and Services, particularly within 
Utilities where rate increases need to account for significant future costs from Metro Vancouver. 
 
Policy: The City will continue to look for ways to reduce the overall percentage of revenue that 
comes from property tax, by pursuing alternate revenue sources, and remains committed to 
charging user fees for services where feasible. 
 
 
(3) Distribution of Property Taxes among the Property Classes 
  
 

Property Class and Description Tax Allocation % 
2023 2024 

1 Residential 56.68% 57.29% 
2 Utilities 0.45% 0.43% 
4 Major Industry 11.32% 11.11% 
5 Light Industry 0.94% 0.95% 
6 Business And Other 30.57% 30.18% 
8 Recreation/Non-Profit 0.04% 0.04% 

 
 
Background: Council adopted a Long Term Property Tax Strategy to shift taxes from the 
Business and Other and Light Industry tax classes to the Residential tax class. The goal of this 
strategy was to move CNV’s tax rates and tax rate ratios to a competitive position within the Metro 
Vancouver Region, while maintaining principles of fairness and equity.  As CNV’s tax rates and 
tax rate ratios are now competitive within the region, Council endorsed an across the board tax 
rate increase for 2024.   
  
Policy: CNV will continue to distribute property taxes among the various property classes to keep 
tax rates and tax rate ratios competitive within the Metro Vancouver Region, while maintaining 
the principles of fairness and equity. 
 
 
 

($000's)
2024 % 2025 % 2026 % 2027 % 2028 %

Property Value Tax 80,951        54 83,576           53 86,276         51 89,053         51 91,910          52
Levies (Storm and Eco) 5,565          4 6,847             4 8,333           5 8,811           5 9,269            5
Revenue from Fees and Services 55,255        36 59,442           38 64,313         39 69,592         39 73,083          41
Revenue from Other Sources 8,837          6 8,708             5 8,749           5 8,790           5 4,181            2

Total Revenues 150,608      100 158,573         100 167,671       100 176,246       100 178,443        100



SCHEDULE “A” TO BYLAW NO. 9024 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FINANCIAL PLAN 

FOR THE YEARS 2024 – 2028 
 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9024 Document: 2524341-v4 

(4) Use of Permissive Tax Exemptions 
 
Background: Council currently allows Permissive Tax Exemptions to organizations within the 
City, in accordance with authority provided under the Community Charter. The Community 
Charter shows various types of institutions as eligible, including religious institutions, providers of 
social housing, and not for profit societies and service organizations.  
  
Policy: CNV has adopted a policy that includes a set of criteria for approving Permissive Tax 
Exemptions.  This criteria links taxation exemptions to desired community needs and outcomes. 
Applications are also assessed on whether or not uses are available to a significant portion of 
community residents, if there is ongoing involvement of community volunteers, if benefiting 
organizations have competent management, and if funding comes from multiple sources. Council 
also carefully considers the total amount of Permissive Tax Exemptions granted each year when 
reviewing the annual Property Tax Exemption bylaw, giving consideration to the equity of shifting 
the exempted tax burden to other property owners in the City. 
  
All existing Permissive Tax Exemptions are reviewed each year and staff continue to work with 
all organizations who receive a Permissive Tax Exemption to ensure that their services align with 
Council’s strategy plan. 
 

 
 



To: 

From: 

Department 
Manager 

CAO 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

REPORT 

Subject: REPORT REQUIRED UNDER LOCAL GOVERNMENT (GREEN 
COMMUNITIES) STATUTES AMENDMENT ACT, 2008 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 05-1610-01 -0001/2023 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled "Report Required Under the Local Government (Green Communities) 
Statute Amendment Act, 2008": 

THAT this report be received and filed. 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of th is report is to provide Council with financial information required under 
the Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes Amendment Act, 2008. 

BACKGROUND 

In April of 2008, the Province passed the Local Government (Green Communities) 
Statutes Amendment Act ,2008 (the "Act"). This Act amended a number of sections of 
the Local Government Act ("LGA") relating to expenditures on development cost charge 
works, parking space construction, and alternative transportation initiatives, and added 
some additional reporting requirements. 

This report addresses those reporting requirements. 

Document Number: 2531819 Vl 



REPORT: Report Required Under Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes Amendment Act, 2008 
Date: June 12, 2024 

DISCUSSION 

Development Cost Charges 

Local Government Act Section 937.01 requires: 

(1) Before June 30 in each year, a local government must prepare and consider a 
report in accordance with this section respecting the previous year. 

(2) The report must include the following, reported for each purpose under 
subsections (2) and (2. 1) of section 933 for which the local government imposes 
the development cost charge in the applicable year: 

(a) the amount of development cost charges received; 

(b) the expenditures from the development cost charge reserve funds; 

(c) the balance in the development cost charge reserve funds at the start and at 
the end of the applicable year; 

(d) any waivers and reductions under section 933.1 (2) . 

Development Cost Charges Bylaw, 2016, No. 8471 was adopted by Council July 25th, 
2016. The bylaw provides a structured DCC program to assist in funding the cost of 
expanding and upgrading transportation infrastructure, park/parkland development, as 
well as funding the impacts of growth on the City's water, sanitary sewer and drainage 
utilities. 

DCC Reserves 

Transportation Parks Water Sanitary Drainage 

Opening Balance, January 1, 2023 $ 2,283.020 $ 16,762,189 $ 984,578 $ 940,603 $ 853,236 
Interest Earned 169,890 1,213,072 83,135 79,772 72,041 
Contributions 1,649,841 1,626,076 532,949 520,822 459,765 
Loan Repayment to Parks DCC (750,000) 750,000 . . . 
Expenditures (294,162) (121,472) - - . 
Ending Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 3,058,589 $ 20,229,865 $ 1,600,662 $ 1,641,197 $ 1,386,041 

The transportation DCC program includes projects principally focused on required multi
mode transportation such as bicycle routes, bridges, sidewalks etc. The Parks DCC 
program includes acquisition of parkland and prescribed park works that include 
development of parks, trails, and greenways throughout the City. Internal borrowing 
from the Parks DCC in 2018-20 as authorized in previous Financial Plans was repaid by 
the Transportation DCC for $750,000 in 2023. CNV also has three DCC programs for 
Water, Sanitary and Drainage utilities that fund the expansion of existing utility 
infrastructure to accommodate new growth. 

Page 2 of 4 



REPORT: Report Required Under Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes Amendment Act, 2008 
Date: June 12, 2024 

DCC Reductions or Waivers 

The Act amended the LGA to provide a municipality the ability to pass a bylaw allowing 
waivers or reductions of DCC's to certain categories of development, including: 

a) not for profit rental housing, including supportive living housing; 
b) for-profit affordable rental housing; 
c) a subdivision of small lots that is designed to result in low greenhouse gas 

emissions; 
d) a development that is designed to result in a low environmental impact. 

CNV provides a 100% waiver of DCC's for not-for-profit rental housing. CNV does not 
provide a waiver related to other types of eligible development. No DCC's were waived 
in 2023. 

Parking-in-lieu Payments and Alternative Transportation 

Local Government Act Section 906(9) requires: 

A local government must prepare and consider a report respecting the previous year in 
relation to the reserve funds required under this section (Parking Fund and Alternative 
Transportation Fund) including the following information separately for each of the 
purposes established under this subsection: 

a) the amounts received in the applicable year; 
b) the expenditures from the reserve funds in the applicable year; 
c) the balance in the reserve funds at the start and at the end of the applicable 

year; and 
d) the projected timeline for future projects to be funded from the reserve funds 

Parking Reserve 

Parking Reserve 2023 
Opening Balance $ 5,743 
Interest 392 
Expenditure -
Closing Balance $ 6,135 

CNV's parking reserve has two funding sources. One is from payments-in-lieu of parking 
space construction, which are allowed by legislation in certain cases to meet City zoning 
requirements for parking, by providing payment instead of off-street parking space 
construction. The second source is from a portion of parking revenues from 1988-2003 
to fund parking-related projects. Since 2003 all parking revenues have been treated as 
general operating revenue. The remainder of this reserve is expected to be fully 
exhausted funding parking initiatives for the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre. 

Page 3 of 4 



REPORT: Report Required Under Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes Amendment Act, 2008 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Sustainable Transportation Reserve 

Local Government Act Section 906(7) allows the creation of a Reserve to fund 
"transportation infrastructure that supports walking, bicycling, public transit, or other 
alternative forms of transportation". At the March 10, 2008 Finance Committee meeting, 
Council directed that such a fund be established, and that an amount equivalent to 0.25% 
of a tax point, or $87,500, be added to the Project Plan to support alternative 
transportation projects. There is therefore an annual contribution of $87,500 to the 
Sustainable Transportation Reserve Fund. 

Sustainable Transportation Reserve 2023 
Opening Balance $ 190,707 
Interest 14,335 
Contributions 87,500 
Expenditure (48,395) 
Closing Balance $ 244,147 

Annually, the balance of this reserve is substantially budgeted to various projects that 
support CNV's Transit Improvement Program - a program to study, design, and 
implement transit priority interventions like bus lanes, signal priority and bus bulbs as 
well as accessibility upgrades to improve access to transit. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The financial implications are covered in the body of the report. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

This report supports the Corporate Business Plan Outcome to be "An Open & Engaged 
Organization". 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 4 of4 



. 

Department � CAO 

Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

REPORT 

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

From: Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

SUBJECT: 2023 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 05-1880-20-0008/2023 

The fol/owing Is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12th, 2024, 
entitled, "2023 Statement of Financial Information": 

THAT the Statement of Financial Information for the year ended December 31, 
2023 be approved and forwarded to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Statement of Financial 
Information for the year ended December 31, 2023 (Doc# 2535335)

BACKGROUND: 

The Financial Information Act ("FIA") and Regulation requires municipalities to prepare 
a Statement of Financial Information ("SOFI") approved by Council and the 
municipality's Financial Officer and make it publically available. The Ministry of 
Municipal Affairs also annually requests a copy as permitted by the FIA. The FIA 
requires that the SOFI be completed and made available as per above no later than 
June 30th each year. 

Document Number: 2532107 Vl 



REPORT: 2023 Statement of Financial Information ("SOFI'') 
Date: June 12, 2024 

The SOFI must include the following items: 
1. A management report that explains the roles and responsibilities of Council (i.e. 

providing financial oversight), of management (i.e. preparing the financial 
information in the report), and CNV's auditors (i.e. expressing an opinion on 
whether or not CNV's financial statements are fairly presented) 

2. Information on CNV's assets, liabilities, operations, debts, guarantees, and 
indemnity agreements 

3. Council remuneration and expenses 
4. Employee remuneration over $75,000 and related expenses during the year 
5. Payments to suppliers over $25,000 during the year 

Section 168 of the Community Charter also specifies that, at least once a year, 
Council's remuneration, expenses, benefits, and any outside services contracts with a 
member of Council must be disclosed. CNV's SOFI report is prepared to meet this 
requirement. 

DISCUSSION: 

A SOFI report for 2023 has been prepared for Council consideration (Attachment 1). 
In this report, the management report and financial information sections (items 1 and 2) 
are consistent with the Statement of Management Responsibility, financial schedules, 
and notes included in CNV's 2023 Consolidated Financial Statements accepted by 
Council at its regular meeting on May 6, 2024. Further explanation of items 3, 4, and 5 
is provided below. 

Remuneration and Expenses 

This section includes the remuneration paid to each Council member, and each 
employee where payments were greater than $75,000. The consolidated total of 
remuneration paid to employees whose annual remuneration is $75,000 or less is also 
provided . 

The definition of remuneration is broad and includes any form of salary, wages, 
bonuses, gratuities, and taxable benefits paid during the year. However, as per the 
SOFI guidelines, exclusions include anything payable under a severance agreement 
and the employer's portion of contributions to registered pension and superannuation 
plans, extended health plans and dental plans. New for this year's report is disclosure 
of one-time inflationary support and prior-year retro payments that followed the 
negotiation of those payments as part of collective bargaining agreements in 2023. 

Expenses include amounts not included in remuneration, for example travel , 
memberships, tuition, relocation, vehicle leases, or other similar amounts. As per the 
SOFI guidelines, exclusions include benefits of a general nature applicable to all 
employees pursuant to an agreement such as medical, dental, counselling, insurance 
and similar plans. 

The Financial Information Act and Regulations require disclosure of summary 
information on severance agreements with non-union employees for which payment 

Page 2 of 3 



REPORT: 2023 Statement of Financial Information ("SOFI") 
Date: June 12, 2024 

commenced during the fiscal year. The required disclosure includes the number of 
months of compensation paid, which protects the confidential nature of these types of 
agreements. 

This section also reconciles the amounts reported in the SOFI (which are reported on a 
cash basis) to the amounts reported in CNV's audited financial statements (recorded as 
per Public Sector Accounting Standards on an accruals basis) to provide readers with 
additional confidence in the SOFI report. 

Suppliers of Goods and Services 

This section lists the names of suppliers paid by CNV during the year for the supply of 
goods or services with an aggregate amount over $25,000 and the consolidated total 
paid to suppliers with an aggregate amount equal to $25,000 or less. This section also 
includes a separate schedule of grants and contributions. Finally, this section 
reconciles the amounts reported in the SOFI (which are reported on a cash basis) to the 
amounts reported in CNV's audited financial statements (recorded as per Public Sector 
Accounting Standards on an accruals basis) to provide readers with additional 
confidence in the SOFI report. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

CNV staff prepare the SOFI, so there are no additional operating or capital costs 
incurred in its preparation. 

INTERDEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Mayor and Council , as well as members of CNV's Leadership Team, had an opportunity 
to review their expenses before the draft report was completed. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, ORP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

CNV's SOFI supports the Corporate Business Plan Corporate Outcome to be "An Open 
& Engaged Organization". 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 3 of 3 



STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2023

sfriesen
FreeText
Attachment 1 �



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Management Report and Statement of Financial Information Approval 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 
FIR Schedule 1, Sections 9 (2), (3) & 9 (4) 

The Financial Statements contained in this Statement of Financial Information under the 
Financial Information Act have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and the integrity and objectivity of these 
statements are management’s responsibility. Management is also responsible for the 
preparation of the Statement of Financial Information and ensuring this information is 
consistent with the financial statements. 

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal 
controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced. 

The Mayor and Council are responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its 
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal controls. Council annually reviews and 
approves the consolidated financial statements and the statement of financial 
information. 

CNV’s internal auditor has the responsibility for assessing the management systems and 
practices of CNV. 

CNV’s external auditors, BDO Canada LLP, conduct an independent examination, in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, and express their 
opinion on the financial statements. Their examination does not relate to the other 
schedules and statements required by the Act. Their examination includes a review and 
evaluation of CNV’s system of internal control and appropriate tests and procedures to 
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are presently fairly. 

As authorized by the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 9(2), I 
approve all the statements and schedules included in this Statement of Financial 
Information, produced under the Financial Information Act. 

_____________________________ 
Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 
June 12, 2024 



Page No. 

1-

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

City of North Vancouver 
Statement of Financial Information 

Table of Contents 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 202  

Schedules of Remuneration and Expenses 

Suppliers of Goods and Services 

Schedule of Debts 

Schedule of Guarantee an  Indemnity Agreements 

Schedule of Severance Agreements 

Council Approval of the Statement of Financial Information 



The Corporation of the City of
North Vancouver
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

1



Statement of Management Responsibility

The Council of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver (“CNV”) has delegated the responsibility 
for the integrity and objectivity of the financial information contained in the consolidated financial 
statements to the management of CNV. The consolidated financial statements which, in part, are 
based on informed judgments and estimates, have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards, which have been applied on a basis consistent with that
of the preceding year.

To assist in carrying out their responsibility, management maintains an accounting system and internal 
controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed and recorded in accordance
with authorization, and that financial records are reliable for preparation of financial statements.

The Mayor and Council oversee management's responsibilities for the financial reporting and internal 
control systems. Council annually reviews and accepts the consolidated financial statements.

CNV’s independent auditors, BDO Canada LLP, are engaged to express an opinion as to whether CNV's

consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of CNV
as at December 31, 2023, and the results of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

The consolidated financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared within 
reasonable limits of materiality and in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Larry Sawrenko

Chief Financial Officer

May 6, 2024

2



Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Mayor and Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
and its controlled entities (the “City”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position 
as at December 31, 2023 and the consolidated statement of operations, the consolidated statement of 
changes in net financial assets and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2023, and its consolidated 
results of operations, its changes in consolidated net financial assets, its consolidated cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the City in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.  

Unaudited Information 

We have not audited, reviewed, or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the 
Schedules A and B of the City's consolidated financial statements. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

3

Tel:   604 688 5421
Fax:  604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
Unit 1100 – Royal Centre
1055 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC   V6E 3P3 Canada



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the City’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the City or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the City’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the City’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the City to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the City to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the City audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

4

IBDO 



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, British Columbia 
May 8, 2024 

5

IBDO 

BDO~LLP 



2023 2022
Restated (note 16)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
     Cash and cash equivalents 237,385$  201,296$  
     Investments (note 3) 62,054 96,217 
     Investment in Lonsdale Energy Corp. (note 4) 4,829 4,826 
     Due from other governments 7,731 5,087 
     Accounts receivable 8,773 10,242 
     Loan to Lonsdale Energy Corp. (note 5) 26,623 26,653 
     Interest receivable 7,182 6,990 

354,577 351,311 

LIABILITIES
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 30,356 22,199 
     Deferred revenue 38,961 37,607 
     Deferred lease revenue (note 13) 48,911 49,421 
     Deferred development cost charges 27,815 21,824 
     Employee future benefits (note 6) 8,334 8,496 
     Advances and other liabilities 12,650 10,188 

 Asset retirement obligations (note 8) 2,742 2,649 
169,769 152,384 

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 184,808 198,927 

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
     Tangible capital assets (note 7) 528,021 479,130 
     Inventories 978 948 
     Prepaid expenses 3,316 2,754 

532,315 482,832 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (note 9) 717,123$  681,759$  

Commitments and contingencies (note 10)

Chief Financial Officer
Larry Sawrenko

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statementsp y g

6



2023            
Budget 2023 2022

(notes 2(i) and 15) Restated (note 16)

REVENUE
Property value tax (note 10 (a)) 75,705$  76,274$  72,159$  
Other levies 4,143 4,188 4,002 
Licences and permits 5,436 7,898 7,165 
Fines and fees 5,876 6,854 6,236 
Rent 2,696 3,873 3,689 
Interest, dividends and penalties 4,759 15,156 8,075 
Sale of services 36,079 36,819 33,908 
Rebate and recoveries 85 203 165 
Grants and other 8,280 28,099 13,199 
Developer contributions and other transfers 308 5,948 40,907 
Gain (Loss) on disposition of assets 746 (1,143) 
Lonsdale Energy Corp. income (note 4) 3 213 

143,367 186,061 188,575 

EXPENSES
General government 25,523 28,197 26,326 
Transportation and transit 7,774 10,749 10,771 
Health, social services and housing 3,069 2,984 2,796 
Development services 8,760 9,604 7,716 
Protective services 31,676 32,844 28,248 
Parks, recreation and culture 35,811 37,143 34,396 
Water utilities 12,053 12,378 11,724 
Sewer utilities 12,514 13,054 12,201 
Solid waste 4,098 3,744 3,254 

Total expenses (note 12) 141,278 150,697 137,432 

Annual surplus 2,089 35,364 51,143 

Accumulated surplus beginning of year 681,759 681,759 630,616 

Accumulated surplus end of year 683,848$               717,123$               681,759$  

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
Year ended December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

7



2023
Budget 2023 2022

(notes 2(i) and 15) Restated (note 16)

     Annual surplus 2,089$  35,364$  51,143$  

     Acquisition of tangible capital assets (76,443) (63,940) (35,674) 
     Non-cash developer contributed assets - (2,094) (1,540) 
     Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 1,029 120 
     Depreciation of tangible capital assets 17,700 16,860 17,975 
     Loss on disposition of tangible capital assets - (746) 1,143 

(58,743) (48,891) (17,976) 

     Acquisition of inventories - (1,336) (1,173) 
     Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (3,356) (3,741) 
     Use of inventories - 1,306 971 
     Use of prepaid expenses - 2,794 2,531 

- (592) (1,412) 

     Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (56,654) (14,119) 31,755 

     Net financial assets, beginning of year 198,927 198,927 167,172 

     Net financial assets, end of year 142,273$  184,808$  198,927$  

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
Year ended December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

8



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver

2023 2022
Restated (note 16)

Cash provided by (used for):

Operating Transactions
     Annual surplus 35,364$  51,143$  
     Items not involving cash:
          Depreciation expense 16,860 17,975 

Accretion expense 93 89 
          Gain (Loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets (746) 1,143 
          Non-cash developer contributed assets (2,094) (1,540) 
          Lonsdale Energy Corp. income (3) (213) 
     Changes in non-cash operating items:
          Increase in due from other governments (2,644) (1,125) 
          Decrease in accounts receivable 1,469 1,229 
          Change in loan to Lonsdale Energy Corp. 30 390 
          Decrease (increase) in interest receivable (192) 1,730 
          Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,157 (481) 
          Increase in deferred revenue 1,354 3,349 
          Decrease in deferred lease revenue (510) (509) 
          Increase (decrease) in deferred development cost charges 5,991 (248) 
          Increase (decrease) in accrued employee future benefits (162) 110 
          Increase in advances and other liabilities 2,462 111 
          Increase in inventories (30) (202) 
          Increase in prepaid expenses (562) (1,210) 

64,837 71,741 
Capital Transactions
          Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (63,940) (35,674) 
          Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 1,029 120 

(62,911) (35,554) 
Investing Transactions
          Decrease in investments 34,163 40,423 

34,163 40,423 

Financing Transactions
          Repayment of long-term debt - (237) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,089 76,373 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 201,296 124,923 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 237,385$              201,296$  

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year ended December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

9



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

1. OPERATIONS

The City of North Vancouver (“CNV”) was incorporated in 1907 and operates under the provisions of the Community Charter 
and the Local Government Act of British Columbia.  The City’s principal activity is the provision of local government services to 
residents of the incorporated area.  These services include administrative, protective, transportation, environmental, 
recreational, water and sanitary services. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of CNV have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards, as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”). The significant accounting policies are summarized 
below:  

(a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all the funds of CNV, the accounts of the North Vancouver City 
Library, which is controlled by CNV, CNV’s 33.94% proportionate share of the operations of the North Vancouver Recreation 
Commission, and CNV’s 50% proportionate share of the operations of the North Vancouver Museum and Archives Commission. 
CNV’s investment in Lonsdale Energy Corporation (“LEC”), a wholly owned government business enterprise, is accounted for 
using the modified equity method.  

CNV has an agreement with the District of North Vancouver in the operation and management of the North Vancouver Recreation 
Commission, and CNV includes its proportionate share in CNV’s consolidated financial statements. The current agreement 
specifies that the operating costs shall be paid 33.94% (2022 – 33.94%) by CNV and 66.06% (2022 – 66.06%) by the District of 
North Vancouver.  Each municipality is responsible for its own facilities and pays 100% of all capital costs relating to 
improvement, expansion and replacement of buildings or facility equipment. 

CNV also has an agreement with the District of North Vancouver in the operation and management of the North Vancouver 
Museum and Archives Commission, and CNV includes its proportionate share in CNV’s consolidated financial statements. The 
current agreement specifies that the operating costs shall be paid 50% (2022 – 50%) by CNV and 50% (2022 – 50%) by the 
District of North Vancouver. Each municipality is responsible for its own facilities and pays 100% of all capital costs relating to 
improvement, expansion and replacement of buildings or facility equipment.  

(b) Basis of Accounting

Revenue is recorded on an accrual basis and recognized when earned.  Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and 
measurable as a result of the receipt of goods and services. 

10



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 
 
2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(c) Revenue Recognition  
  
Taxes are recognized as revenue in the year that the taxes are authorized, the taxable event occurs and they are considered 
collectible. Through the British Columbia Assessments appeal process, taxes may be adjusted by way of supplementary roll 
adjustments. The effects of these adjustments on taxes are recognized at the time they are awarded.  Levies imposed for 
Regional District services and other taxing authorities are not included.  
 
Lease revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
  
Charges for sewer, water and solid waste usage are recorded as user fees. Connection fees revenues are recognized when the 
connection has been established. 
  
Sale of service and other revenue are recognized on an accrual basis. 
 
(d) Deferred Revenue 
 
Deferred revenue consists of prepaid property taxes, prepaid business licenses, and fees paid in advance for services yet to be 
provided.  
 
(e) Deferred Lease Revenue 
 
Deferred lease revenue consists of funds collected in advance of rental periods for long-term prepaid leases, which will be 
recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  
 
(f) Deferred Development Cost Charges 
 
Development cost charges collected to pay for future capital projects are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when 
the capital costs for which they were collected are incurred. 
 
(g) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid pooled high interest savings accounts with the Municipal Finance 
Authority. 
 
(h) Investments 
 
Investments include bank issued notes and bonds and Provincial bonds and debentures maturing after December 31, 2023 and 
are valued at the lower of cost or market value.  Securities are recorded at their cost and written down to reflect losses in value 
that are other than temporary. 
 
(i) Budget Figures 
 
The budget figures are based on the five year financial plan adopted on April 24th, 2023.   

11



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Government Transfers

Unrestricted government transfers are recognized as revenue in the year that the transfer is authorized by the issuing 
government and any eligibility criteria have been met.  Restricted government transfers, in the way of grants or other transfers, 
are recognized as revenue in the year in which any stipulations that create liabilities are met. 

(k) Employee Future Benefits

CNV and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan.  As this plan is a multi-employer plan, contributions 
are expensed as incurred. 

Sick leave and post-employment benefits also accrue to CNV’s employees.  The liabilities related to these benefits are actuarially 
determined based on services and best estimates of retirement ages and expected future salary and wage increases.  The 
liabilities under these benefits plans are accrued based on projected benefits as the employees render services necessary to 
earn the future benefits. 

(l) Long-term Debt

Long-term debt is recorded in the consolidated financial statements net of sinking fund payments and adjustments. 

(m) Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of services.  They may 
have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of business. 

(i) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost less residual value of the tangible capital assets, 
excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Land improvements Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 10 – 100 years 
Parks  Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 10 – 75 years 
Buildings Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 10 – 100 years 
Machinery & equipment Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 3 – 25 years 
Vehicles Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 6 – 25 years 
Infrastructure Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 7 – 100 years 
Library materials Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 2 – 5 years 
Work in progress Not amortized until put into use 

12



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Non-Financial Assets (continued)

(ii) Contributions of Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets received as contributions or transfers from developers are recorded at their estimated fair value 
at the date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(iii) Works of Art and Historic Assets

CNV and the Museum and Archives Commission manages and controls various works of art and non-operational 
historic assets, including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at City sites and public display areas. 

Works of art and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these consolidated financial statements. 

(iv) Natural Resources

Horticultural assets such as treed areas, grassy areas and gardens are not recognized as assets in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

(v) Interest Capitalization

CNV does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible capital asset. 

(vi) Leased Tangible Capital Assets

Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as 
leased tangible capital assets.  All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the payments are charged 
to expenses as incurred. 

(vii) Inventories

Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of weighted average cost and replacement cost. 

(n) Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Areas requiring 
significant estimation are post-employment benefits, compensated absences and termination benefits, estimated useful life of 
tangible capital assets, asset retirement obligations and measurement of contingent liabilities. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 

13



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Segment Disclosure

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for which it is appropriate to separately 
report financial information related to expenses. See note 12. 

(p) Contaminated Sites

A liability for contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use or an unexpected event has occurred and the 
following criteria are met: 

i) an environmental standard exists;
ii) contamination exceeds the environmental standard;
iii) CNV is directly responsible or accepts responsibility;
iv) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
v) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, maintenance and 
monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site. 

(q) Asset Retirement Obligations

On January 1, 2023, CNV adopted public sector accounting standard 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations. This new accounting 
standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets. The 
standard was adopted on the modified retrospective basis at the date of adoption. 

A liability is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date: 
i) there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset;
ii) the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred;
iii) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
iv) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The resulting costs have been capitalized into the carrying amount of the related tangible capital assets and are being amortized 
on the same basis as the related tangible capital asset. Assumptions used in the calculations are reviewed annually. 

14



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Financial Instruments

CNV adopted public sector accounting standard 3450, Financial Instruments, effective January 1, 2023, on a prospective basis. 
Financial instruments classification is determined upon inception and financial instruments are not reclassified into another 
measurement category for the duration of the period they are held.  Financial assets and financial liabilities, other than hedges, 
equity instruments quoted in an active market, and financial instruments designated at fair value, are measured at cost or 
amortized cost upon inception and subsequent to initial recognition.  Cash and cash equivalents are measured at cost. Accounts 
receivable, investments, other receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method to determine interest revenue or expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the 
period it is earned.  Valuation allowances are made when collection is in doubt. Investments include bank issued notes and 
bonds and provincial bonds and debentures maturing after the current year.    Investments are adjusted for any amortization of 
premiums or discounts.  Sales and purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date.  Transaction costs related to the 
acquisition of investments are included in the carrying value of the related investments.  

All financial assets recorded at cost or amortized cost are tested annually for impairment.  When financial assets are impaired, 
impairment losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.  A financial liability or its part is de-recognized 
when it is extinguished. 

3. INVESTMENTS

The fair value of investments at December 31, 2023 is $65,962,000 (2022 - $98,214,000). CNV’s investment portfolio consists 
of Provincial and Canadian bank bonds with a cost of $62,054,000 (2022 - $96,217,000).   

Financial instruments maturing between January 2024 to December 2024 range in yield from 2.10% to 3.13% (2023 – 1.05% to 
3.11%). Investments maturing from January 2025 to May 2031 range in yield from 1.30% to 7.52%. 

15



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

4. INVESTMENT IN LONSDALE ENERGY CORPORATION (“LEC”)

CNV owns all the issued and outstanding shares of LEC, which was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (British 
Columbia) on July 7, 2003. LEC operates a district energy system providing hydronic energy to residential, institutional and 
commercial buildings in the City of North Vancouver. 

Summarized financial information relating to LEC is as follows: 

2023 2022
Cash and accounts receivable $        4,050 $      3,002 
Plant and equipment  40,969  38,420 
Other assets    732    767 
Total assets $      45,751  $       42,189 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $        3,678   $      2,895 
Deferred contributions    8,621     7,815 
Debt  28,623  26,653 
Total Liabilities $      40,922  $       37,363 

Shareholder’s equity $        4,829  $      4,826 

Total revenue $        9,713 $      9,702 
Total expenses    9,710    9,489 
Net income $        3 $         213 

Included in CNV’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is “Investment in Lonsdale Energy Corp.” in the amount of 
$4,829,000 (2022 - $4,826,000) and a loan receivable in the amount of $26,623,000 (note 5(a)) (2022 – $26,653,000). Also, 
included in accounts receivable in CNV’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are receivables from LEC in the amount 
of $1,067,000 (2022 - $1,122,000). 

16



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

5. LOAN TO LONSDALE ENERGY CORPORATION

The loan receivable balance of $26,623,000 (2022 - $26,653,000) consists of the following interest bearing promissory notes: 

On August 1, 2018, CNV converted amounts due from LEC whereby LEC issued a 5 year promissory note to CNV in the amount 
of $33,661,966. On July 15, 2019 and November 17, 2021, CNV’s Council authorized LEC to borrow an additional $1,681,000 
and $290,000 respectively. On August 1, 2023, a five-year demand term loan was issued by CNV to borrow a maximum of 
$35,632,966. This promissory note replaced and nullified all previous promissory notes issued by CNV to LEC. The loan matures 
on August 1, 2028 and bears interest at 3.51% per annum. As at December 31, 2023 an amount of $26,622,804 remains due 
to CNV. During the year, LEC drew $1,050,000 (2022 - $630,000) from this promissory note. After considering the principal 
payments of $4,369,162 made to date, the remaining funding available to LEC under the terms of the agreement is $4,641,000, 
which LEC expects to draw on for future asset construction.  

Interest revenue of $798,000 (2022 - $704,000) and dividend revenue of $45,900 (2022 - $53,900) has been included in the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

At the maturity date of the loan to LEC, CNV may, at its discretion, extend the terms of the loan in whole or in part or LEC may 
repay the loan in whole or in part using either internal or external financing. 

6. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

(a) Sick and Severance

Employees of CNV are entitled to payments related to unused sick leave and severance upon retirement or resignation after ten 
years of service. The amount recorded for these benefits is based on an actuarial valuation done by an independent firm of 
actuaries using a projected benefit actuarial valuation method pro-rated on services. The most recent actuarial valuation of 
CNV’s future benefits was completed as at December 31, 2023. 

17



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

6. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)

(a) Sick and Severance (continued)

Information regarding CNV’s obligations for these benefits, including 100% of the North Vancouver City Library and its 
proportionate share of the North Vancouver Recreation Commission and North Vancouver Museum and Archives Commission, 
is as follows: 

2023 2022 
Benefit obligation - beginning of the year $      6,944   $      7,906 
Add:    Current service costs 597 731 

  Interest on accrued benefit obligation 322 206 
  Actuarial loss (gain) 1,023 (1,115) 

Less:   Benefits paid (928) (784) 
Benefit obligation - end of the year $      7,958   $      6,944 
Add:    Unamortized actuarial gain 376 1,552 
Benefit liability - end of the year $      8,334   $      8,496 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring CNV’s accrued benefit liability are as follows: 

2023  2022

Discount rates 4.10% 4.50% 

Future inflation rates 4.5% for 2024 and 2.5% thereafter 2.00% 

Compensation increases, net of 
inflation 

0.00% to 0.50% 2.58% to 4.63% 

The unamortized actuarial gain is amortized over a period equal to the employees’ average remaining service lifetime of eleven 
years for CNV (2022 - 11 years). 

(b) Council Retirement Stipend

Starting 2005, Council Members are entitled to a retirement stipend based on 9.31% of the individual’s total indemnity received 
subsequent to 2002. These amounts are accrued as earned and recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

18



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

7. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

(a) Work in Progress

Work in progress having a cost of $118,468,000 (2022 - $71,212,000) has not been amortized.  Amortization of these assets 
will commence when the asset is in service. 

(b) Developer Contributed Tangible Capital Assets and Other Transfers

Developer contributed tangible capital assets and other transfers of $2,094,000 (2022 - $1,540,000) have been recognized 
during the year.   

2023 Land Land 
Improvements Parks Buildings Machinery & 

 Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure Library 
Materials

Work
 in Progress Total

Costs
Balance beginning of year 46,229$       82,411$      57,695$      149,468$       26,101$       12,718$    277,033$       955$     71,212$      723,822$       

Additions and Adjustments - 12 5,387   3,352  753   3,314    5,726  233   47,256  66,033   
Disposals - - -  -   - 1,528 101  228   - 1,857

Balance end of year 46,229$       82,423$      63,082$      152,820$       26,854$       14,504$    282,658$       960$     118,468$       787,998$       

Accumulated Amortization
Balance beginning of year -$     21,509$     20,113$      77,363$       19,476$       6,309$      99,444$      478$     -$     244,692$       

Amortization and Adjustments - 2,201 2,158   4,496  1,531   917    5,343  214   - 16,860 
Disposals - - -  -   - 1,287 60  228   - 1,575

Balance end of year -$    23,710$     22,271$      81,859$       21,007$       5,939$      104,727$       464$     -$    259,977$       

Net Book Value 46,229$       58,713$      40,811$      70,961$       5,847$      8,565$      177,931$       496$     118,468$       528,021$       

2022 Land Land 
Improvements Parks Buildings

(restated)
Machinery & 
 Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure Library 

Materials
Work

 in Progress Total

Cost
Balance beginning of year 44,909$       82,368$      55,657$      149,690$       24,018$       12,585$    250,762$       942$     71,357$      692,288$       

 Adjustment relating to recognition of 
Asset Retirement Obligation (note 8) 

339  
339   

Balance beginning of year, restated 44,909$       82,368$      55,657$      150,029$       24,018$       12,585$    250,762$       942$     71,357$      692,627$       
Additions 1,320  50   3,160   121  3,243   1,474    27,773   218   (145) 37,214 
Disposals - 7  1,122   682  1,160   1,341    1,502  205   - 6,019

Balance end of year 46,229$       82,411$      57,695$      149,468$       26,101$       12,718$    277,033$       955$     71,212$      723,822$       

Accumulated Amortization
Balance beginning of year -$     19,083$     19,281$      72,475$       18,134$       6,611$      95,150$      467$     -$     231,201$       

 Adjustment relating to recognition of 
Asset Retirement Obligation (note 8) 

272  
272   

Balance beginning of year, restated -$     19,083$     19,281$      72,747$       18,134$       6,611$      95,150$      467$     -$     231,473$       
Amortization expense - 2,433 1,918   4,976  2,502   760    5,170  216   - 17,975 
Disposals - 7  1,086   360  1,160   1,062    876  205   - 4,756

Balance end of year -$     21,509$     20,113$      77,363$       19,476$       6,309$      99,444$      478$     -$     244,692$       

Net Book Value 46,229$       60,902$      37,582$      72,105$       6,625$      6,409$      177,589$       477$     71,212$      479,130$       

19



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

8. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

CNV owns several buildings known to have asset retirement obligations at their retirement.  Estimated costs have been 
discounted to the present value using a discount rate of 3.5% per annum. 

The transition and recognition of asset retirement obligations involved a change to the buildings tangible capital assets and the 
restatement of prior year figures (see note 16). 

Balances of the asset retirement obligation are as follows: 

2023 Balance at December 
31, 2023 

Balance beginning of year  $     2,649 
Accretion expense  93 

Balance end of year  $     2,742 

2022 Balance at December 
31, 2022 

Balance beginning of year  $       -
Adjustment relating to recognition of 

Asset Retirement Obligation    2,560 
Opening balance, restated  $     2,560 

Accretion expense  89 
Balance end of year  $     2,649 

20



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

9.  ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2023 2022

Restated (note 16) 
General funds – general, water and sewer & drainage (a) $        64,868  $        55,002   
Reserve fund (b) 99,206  124,527 
Capital fund (c)  553,049  502,230 
Accumulated surplus, end of year $      717,123  $      681,759 

(a) General funds – general, water and sewer
2023 2022 

Appropriated: 
  General fund $        23,071 $        21,867 
  Water fund 7,105 4,112 
  Sewer & Drainage fund 14,220 14,049 

Unappropriated:
  General fund 11,688  9,094 
  Water fund 4,212 3,478 
  Sewer & Drainage fund 3,743 690   

General funds – COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant 829 1,712 
$        64,868   $        55,002 

(b) Reserve Funds 

Balance Contributions Earnings Expenditures Balance
December 31, 2022 & Transfers December 31, 2023

Machinery and Equipment
  Engineering 3,220$       -$    291$     868$          2,643$      
  Fire 367   233     42      214      428    
  General 52     -    7    38    21   
  Computer 96     38    5    96    43   

Building 141   -    -   67    74   
Local Improvements 802   1      54      2   855    
Affordable Housing 10,626     509     618    3,605   8,148    
Tax Sale Lands 35,066     - 2,515 796      36,785      
Waterworks 4,935    -    336    - 5,271 
Parking 6    -    -   -     6     
Civic Amenity 64,256     10,435   6,455    53,599    27,547      
Justice Administration Accommodation 72     -    -   16    56   
Streets DCC -  1,041 3    1,044   -   
Parks DCC -      121  -   121      -   
Lower Lonsdale Amenity 8    -    -   8   -   
Lower Lonsdale Legacy 2,672    -    179    88    2,763    
Infrastructure 831   -    638    55    1,414    
Public Art 635   85    45      36    729    
Sustainable Transportation 190   88    14      48    244    
Carbon Fund 552   301     45      80    818    
Growing Communities Fund -  10,986 375    - 11,361  
Total 124,527$      23,838$       11,622$       60,781$        99,206$        

21



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

9. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (continued)

(c) Capital Fund
2023 2022 

Restated (note 16) 
Invested in tangible capital assets $      525,280 $      476,481 
Appropriated capital funds 27,769 25,749 

$      553,049 $      502,230 

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Property Taxes

CNV is obliged to levy, collect and remit property taxes on behalf of, and to finance the arrears of property taxes of, other bodies 
as follows: 

2023 2022 

Tax collected  $     133,575    $     127,265 

Less collections for and remittances to other bodies: 
Provincial Government - Schools $       42,797   $       41,153 
Greater Vancouver Regional District 2,187 2,029 
Greater Vancouver Transportation Authority 10,214 9,878 
British Columbia Assessment Authority 1,595 1,538 
Municipal Finance Authority 8 8 
BIA Lower Lonsdale Society 500 500 

$      57,301   $      55,106 

Property Value Tax $      76,274   $      72,159   

(b) Pension Liability

CNV and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan). The board of trustees, 
representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the plan, including investment of assets and 
administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a 
formula. As at December 31, 2022, the plan has about 240,000 active members and approximately 124,000 retired members. 
Active members include approximately 43,000 contributors from local governments. 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of plan funding. 
The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s 
calculated contribution rate is based on the entry age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and 
employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan.  This rate may be adjusted for the 
amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 

22



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b) Pension Liability (continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated a $3,761 million funding 
surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  CNV paid $5,143,000 (2022 - $4,851,000) for employer 
contributions to the plan in fiscal 2023.  The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2024. 

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made during the fiscal 
year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for 
the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual 
employers participating in the plan.   

(c) Contingent Liabilities

CNV is currently engaged in or party to certain legal actions, assessment appeals and other existing conditions involving 
uncertainty, which may result in material loss. A reasonable estimate of these future liabilities has been made where possible 
and is recorded in the financial statements as a liability. Where the outcomes or amounts or losses are uncertain, management 
has determined that there are no potential material amounts involved. 

(d) E-Comm

CNV is a member of Emergency Communications for British Columbia, Incorporated (“E-Comm”), an organization comprised 
predominately of member municipalities, for the purpose of providing emergency dispatch services.  CNV is represented on the 
board and as a class “A” shareholder has voting rights should the organization want to incur additional debt. 

The E-Comm facility was constructed using debt as a financing mechanism and members are liable for a proportionate share of 
that debt. This debt is repaid by members through annual fees charged by E-Comm.  Should E-Comm dissolve, the members 
would be liable for a proportionate share of any residual debt.  Alternatively, should members choose to opt out of E-Comm, 
they would be liable for a proportionate share of debt at the time of withdrawal.   

CNV holds 2 class “A” shares and one class “B” share. 

(e) Contractual Obligations

As at December 31, 2023 CNV had entered into various construction contracts for a total outstanding value of $140,300,000. 

11. TRUST FUNDS

Certain assets have been conveyed or assigned to CNV to be administered as directed by an agreement or statute. CNV holds 
the assets for the benefit of, and stands in a fiduciary relationship to, the beneficiary. The Cemetery Trust Fund, totaling 
$3,810,000 (2022 - $3,648,000), which is administered by CNV, has not been included with CNV’s accounts. 

23



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

12. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

CNV is a diversified municipal government entity in the Province of British Columbia that provides a wide range of services to 
its citizens.  Certain functional areas have been combined and separately disclosed in the segmented information.  The segments 
and the services they provide are as follows: 

General Government 
General Government provides the administrative and legislative services that support the various sectors of CNV.  Functions 
include financial planning and reporting, economic development and legislative services. 

Transportation and Transit 
The Transportation and Transit division aims to provide enhanced access to public transit, safe pedestrian and cyclist routes, 
accessible transportation for people with limited mobility and maintain existing infrastructure.  These goals are achieved through 
street design, traffic signals and signs, street lighting and road maintenance activities. 

Health, Social Services and Housing 
Health, Social Services and Housing encompasses a wide variety of City funded initiatives aimed at supporting the social 
structure and sustainability of the community.  Included are cemetery operations, youth and family support services, seniors 
programs and homeless prevention initiatives. 

Development Services 
Development Services’ focus is community planning, which includes land use guidelines, the management of City owned lands, 
heritage planning and development of CNV’s official community plan. 

Protective Services 
Protective Services is comprised of the North Vancouver RCMP detachment, the North Vancouver City Fire Department and 
bylaw enforcement.  The North Vancouver RCMP detachment plays an integral role in the protection of North Vancouver 
residents and their property through crime prevention and detection, emergency response and victim services.  The North  
Vancouver City Fire Department is responsible for providing fire suppression service, fire prevention services and fire safety 
education.  Bylaw Services is responsible for the enforcement and education of the City’s bylaws and conflict resolution. 

Parks, Recreation and Culture 
Parks, Recreation and Culture provides access to recreation facilities, the operation and maintenance of CNV’s many parks and 
trails, the North Vancouver City Library and CNV’s participation in the North Vancouver Museum and Archives and the North 
Vancouver Recreation and Culture Commission. 

Water Utilities 
The Water Utility, in conjunction with Metro Vancouver, provides safe, clean, reliable water to the residents and businesses of 
the City of North Vancouver.   

Sewer & Drainage Utilities 
The Sewer & Drainage Utility collects waste water and transports it to trunk water mains and wastewater treatment plants 
operated by Metro Vancouver.  In addition to the collection of wastewater, the Sewer Utility also manages CNV’s 150km storm 
drainage system which diverts rainfall runoff with an emphasis on flood prevention. 

24



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 
 

 

12.   SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Solid Waste 
The Solid Waste Utility provides curbside garbage, recycling and yard trimmings collection to the residents of the City of North 
Vancouver. 
 
The Consolidated Statement of Operations by segment and services is as follows: 
 

 
 
13.  DEFERRED LEASE REVENUE 
 
In 2020, CNV entered into an agreement for the Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands for a lease term of 99 years.  Included in 
deferred revenue is $48,911,000 (2022 - $49,421,000) in relation to this lease. 
 
14.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
CNV has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. CNV has 
identified its major risks and ensures that management monitors and controls them.  
 
(a) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to CNV if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations. Such risks arise principally from accounts receivable made up of property tax and utilities and other non-property 
tax related balances. 
 
For property tax and utility balances, outstanding amounts are transferred to the property tax account associated with the 
invoiced real property at the end of each fiscal year and form all or part of the tax arrears for the property. CNV is required by 
the Local Government Act to conduct an annual tax sale by offering for sale by public auction each parcel of real property on 
which taxes are delinquent. Registered charge holders have the full right to redeem the property. To redeem the property, the 
charge holder must remit the full upset price, plus interest on the purchase price at a rate set by the Province, within one year 
of the tax sale. 
 
For other account receivable balances, CNV maintains allowances for potential credit losses, with results to date within CNV’s 
expectations. In making estimates in respect of the allowance for doubtful accounts, current economic conditions, historical 
information, reasons for the accounts being past due, and operational nature of invoices are all considered in the determination  

Revenues Wages & Benefits Goods & Supplies Services Amortization Capitalized Total
Annual Surplus 

(Deficit)

General government 113,398$                 20,268$              5,298$                4,508$                4,052$                (5,929)$               28,197$              85,201$              
Transportation and transit 6,863                       3,494                  838                     10,387                3,784                  (7,754)                 10,749                (3,886)                 
Health, social services and housing 469                          473                     90                       2,419                  2                         -                      2,984                  (2,515)                 
Development services 10,654                     7,115                  36                       2,453                  -                      -                      9,604                  1,050                  
Protective services 2,272                       21,081                918                     10,194                826                     (175)                    32,844                (30,572)               
Parks, recreation and culture 13,054                     18,783                1,805                  56,558                6,450                  (46,453)               37,143                (24,089)               
Water utilities 16,663                     2,047                  8,887                  1,864                  827                     (1,247)                 12,378                4,285                  
Sewer utilities 19,163                     2,087                  454                     11,682                979                     (2,148)                 13,054                6,109                  
Solid waste 3,525                       1,900                  81                       1,723                  40                       -                      3,744                  (219)                    
2023 186,061$                 77,248$              18,407$              101,788$            16,960$              (63,706)$             150,697$            35,364$              

2022 (Restated) 188,575$                 68,358$              17,660$              68,797$              18,062$              (35,445)$             137,432$            51,143$              

Expenses

25



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

of when to record allowances for past due accounts. The same factors are considered when determining whether to write off 
amounts charged to the allowance account against amounts receivable.  

(b) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. The objective 
of market risk management is to control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return on risk, 
The market risks to which CNV is exposed are foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. 

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments, or future cash flows associated with 
the instruments, will fluctuate in Canadian dollar value due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The functional currency of CNV is the Canadian dollar. CNV receives some US dollar payments and incurs some US 
dollar operating and capital costs. These US dollar transactions represent an insignificant volume and value of total 
overall transactions, resulting in minimal risk.  

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in the market interest rates. CNV manages such risk by adoption of an investment policy and adherence to 
this policy and the Community Charter. Investments are in pooled funds with the Municipal Finance Authority in a 
diversified portfolio in accordance with CNV’s investment policy, which include preservation of capital, minimization of 
default and interest rate risk, sufficient liquidity to meet operating and capital requirements, and generation of a stable 
return on investments. Investments include GICs and High Interest Savings Accounts not subject to market fluctuations. 
It is management’s opinion that CNV is not exposed to significant market risk arising from its financial instruments.  

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that CNV will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. For its accounts 
payables, CNV manages liquidity risk by holding assets that can be readily converted into cash and by continually monitoring 
actual and forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing and financing activities to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to CNV’s reputation. 

26



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

15. BUDGET FIGURES

The budget figures presented in these consolidated financial statements include 100% of the North Vancouver City Library and 
CNV’s proportionate share of the North Vancouver Recreation Commission and North Vancouver Museum and Archives 
Commission. The financial plan was approved by Council as the Financial Plan for the Years 2023 to 2027 Bylaw, 2023, No. 
8962 April 24th, 2023. The table below reconciles the approved budget to the budget figures reported. 

Financial Plan 
Bylaw 

Revenue per Statement of Operations $     143,367 
Less: 

Budget adjustments for consolidation (137)  
Transfers from reserve (2,894)  
Interagency funds (6,573) 

(9,604) 
Revenue per Financial Plan Bylaw $     133,763 

Expenses per Statement of Operations 141,278 
Adjustments: 

Decrease for capital expenditures (7,918) 
Increase for non-capital projects 2,748 
Budget adjustments for consolidation  5,123 
Decrease for interagency payments (6,573) 

(6,620) 
Expenses per Financial Plan Bylaw  $     134,658 

Deficit for the year (895) 

Reserves and capital: 
Capital expenditures (76,443) 
Depreciation 17,700 
Equity (19,525) 
Transfers from reserves 50,444 
External contributions 28,719 

Annual budgeted surplus per Financial Plan Bylaw $     -

27



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

16. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

On January 1, 2023, CNV adopted public sector accounting standard 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations.  This new accounting 
standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets.  The 
standard was adopted on the modified retrospective basis at the date of adoption. 

The impact of the prior period adjustment on the December 31, 2022 comparative amounts is as follows: 

As Previously 
Reported 

Increase / 
(Decrease) As Restated 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
Asset retirement obligation liability $         - $        2,649  $     2,649 
Tangible capital assets - cost 723,483  339 723,822  
Tangible capital assets - accumulated amortization 244,414  278 244,692  
Accumulated surplus 684,347 (2,588) 681,759 

Consolidated Statement of Operations 
General government expense  26,231  95  26,326  
Annual surplus 51,238  (95) 51,143  
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 633,109 (2,493) 630,616 
Accumulated surplus, end of year  684,347  (2,588) 681,759  

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 
Annual surplus 51,238 (95) 51,143 
Depreciation of tangible capital assets 17,969 6 17,975 
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets 31,844 (89) 31,755 
Net financial assets, beginning of year 169,732 (2,560) 167,172 
Net financial assets, end of year 201,576 (2,649) 198,927 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Annual surplus 51,238 (95) 51,143 
Depreciation expense 17,969 6 17,975 
Accretion expense - 89 89 

Note 9 - Accumulated Surplus 
(c) Capital fund 504,818 (2,588) 502,230 
Invested in tangible capital assets 479,069 (2,588) 476,481 

17. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.  These reclassifications 
had no effect on the reported results of operations. 

28



29



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Schedule A & B - Unaudited  
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

Schedule A: COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant 
2023 

2022 Grant Funding Balance  $      1,712  
Grant Expenditures: 
    Business Continuity    (128) 
    Community Resiliency & Recovery    (223) 
    City Services    (521) 
    Response & Emerging Issues   (11) 
2023 Grant Funding Balance, December 31, 2023  $     829  

Schedule B: Growing Communities Fund 
2023 

2023 Grant Funding Balance $       10,986 
Interest Earned 375 
Grant Expenditures - 
2023 Grant Funding Balance, December 31, 2023  $       11,361 

30



Elected Official Position  Remuneration Benefits1  Car Allowance Expenses
Buchanan, Linda Mayor 134,449$  4,513$  9,552$  3,557$  
Back, Holly Councillor 48,173 - - 8,680 
Bell, Don Councillor 48,173 - - 11,115 
Girard, Angela Councillor 48,173 2,948 - 2,961 
McIlroy, Jessica Councillor 48,173 2,948 - 7,214 
Valente, Antonio Councillor 48,173 2,948 - 3,553 
Shahriari, Shervin Councillor 48,173 2,948 - 6,851 
Total 423,487$  16,305$              9,552$  43,931$              

1. Includes taxable benefits and the employer's portion of CPP.

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses to Elected Officials

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (a)

31



Last Name First Initial Job Description Remuneration One-Time Payments Expenses

Adams P Litter Collector 72,618$             5,031$  71$
Aitchison G Equipment Operator 3 72,629 4,110 69
Allen J Senior Project Engineer LEC 116,752             4,804 1,440              
Anderson T Assist Supervisor-Operations 89,066 5,725 415
Apolonia E Records Supervisor-RCMP 77,758 4,866 562
Apperley M Firefighter 101,055             - - 
Ashley J Firefighter 124,331             - 150
Askraba G Project Coordinator 99,968 7,053 789
Aylsworth D Physical Plant Maint. Worker 1 75,057 5,007 154
Barber S Maintenance Worker-Utilities 85,698 5,200 2,013              
Barker E Administrative Coordinator II 79,497 5,134 - 
Basi R Manager-Development Planning 140,189             2,705 763
Beaupre L Irrigation Systems Worker 94,809 6,088 766
Bell W Formsetter-Concrete Finisher 77,717 5,572 474
Bennett S Tree Worker 90,143 5,764 870
Bergstrom L Budget Analyst II 88,223 2,747 950
Black C Building Inspector-Min Structs 73,571 1,409 3,066              
Blackburn F Trades 2-Mechanic 92,816 6,518 292
Boland F Truck Driver-Swamper 2 71,561 3,914 - 
Borland J Records Mgmt and Privacy Coord 136,667             4,644 - 
Bosa S Firefighter 108,044             - 21
Bot M Project Manager 139,156             4,720 756
Bovill J Firefighter 128,441             - 1,110
Bowman B Section Manager-Streets/Fleet 134,448             4,680 1,051
Bradbury B Custodial Guard 72,711 4,850 110
Braithwaite J Supervisor-Develop Servicing 112,572             6,080 - 
Brauser S Labourer 3 75,180 4,619 3,136              
Bridge K Project Engineer-EIT LEC 81,083 4,223 110
Brini A Truck Driver 3 81,467 5,475 81
Brown S Disability & Wellness Spec 122,634             4,648 133
Brown J Truck Driver-Swamper 2 73,134 5,121 - 
Browne R GIS Coordinator 105,186             7,511 - 
Brownlow D Fire Prevention Inspector 78,628 4,347 202
Buckham C Ppl & Culture Business Partner 120,940             3,355 973
Budgell J Supervisor-Operations 113,853             7,357 4,142              
Bulaqui V Network Specialist 90,617 6,159 2,090              
Burak R Firefighter 129,426             - - 
Burgess B Firefighter 111,315             - 1,950
Byron V Truck Driver-Swamper 2 72,586 5,116 - 
Callow K Community Planner 113,081             8,003 670
Cameron J Section Manager-Site Operation 79,343 1,833 - 
Campo E Pipefitter-Layer 71,419 5,075 340
Cann C Firefighter 85,101 - 5,107
Carter S Insurance & Risk Analyst 80,817 2,558 3,322
Chan K Manager-Information Technology 164,545             4,983 7,452
Chan C Communications Operator 2 89,614 4,667 - 
Chiang P Manager-Application Services 136,931             3,816 3,276
Chong L Senior Building Inspector 116,059             7,370 1,730
Choquette C Paralegal/Administrative Asst 90,246 1,990 - 
Chow E Planner 2 113,818             7,679 1,229
Chu D RCMP Computer Sys Specialist 95,558 6,786 - 
Chu K RCMP Computer Sys Specialist 95,417 6,760 4
Clarke J Project Manager-Shipyards 123,314             1,244 413
Cohan J Communications Operator 2 106,918             6,722 - 
Congdon J Auto & Controls Special LEC 120,243             4,553 110
Cook J Firefighter 75,920 - 459
Cooper D Supervisor-Operations 108,743             4,498 112
Corcoran R Firefighter 97,657 - - 
Croft J Firefighter 94,870 - 4,656
Cullen R Firefighter 110,748             - -
Cumming B Court Liaison Officer 112,174             6,835 - 
Curtin M Firefighter 114,121             - 3,110

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) & (c)

32



Last Name First Initial Job Description Remuneration One-Time Payments Expenses

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) & (c)

D'Aguiar C Trades 2-Gardener 91,887 6,480 71
Dale A Assistant to the CAO 98,736 4,419 3,843              
D'Angelo N Digital Communications Coord 72,011 4,581 - 
Danks G Captain-Preplan & Comm 127,118             - 6,605
Danks M Assistant Fire Chief 92,024 1,505 2,269
De La Cruz Polanco J Communications Operator 3 114,132             6,346 - 
De Oliveira Nogueira S Communications Operator 2 104,823             4,236 1,409
de Roy Van Zuydewijn J Dep Fire Chief-Ops & Support 75,463 1,693 276
de St. Croix R Manager-Long Range & Com Plan 141,889             4,785 1,337
Deas M Assist Supervisor-Operations 82,077 5,441 567
Dees M Formsetter-Concrete Finisher 73,710 5,218 - 
Dempster A Planning Assistant 85,318 3,830 1,222              
Di Spirito D Captain 101,686             - - 
Dickson S Lieutenant 125,828             - - 
Doran E Director-People & Culture 154,132             - 747
Draper J Deputy Director-Plan & Dev 150,693             5,194 416
Duffy P Manager-Bylaws 144,100             4,829 1,173              
Dyer S Bylaw Enforcement Officer 2 85,919 6,134 182
Easton S Lieutenant 124,513             - - 
Easton A Captain 118,641             - 750
Eghtesadi S Supervisor-Develop Servicing 95,019 5,735 3,034
Elliott E Manager-Transportation 157,052             2,082 1,483
Elliott G Senior Systems Analyst 114,215             7,468 - 
Emann D Equipment Operator 1 70,897 5,103 667
Fabert U Manager - Engineering LEC 155,179             4,943 698
Farrally M Firefighter 131,742             - 1,317
Fazeli F Planning Assistant 74,602 2,903 1,424
Felber L Occ Health & Safety Specialist 88,810 4,643 1,058
Filizzola Pinheiro Chagas P Development Technician 2 88,906 5,274 411
Finlayson A Technical Services Specialist 112,440             7,700 4,408
Foldi D Senior Project Manager 142,623             4,829 831
Fox R Firefighter 108,209             - 297
Franco S Communications Operator 1 72,476 4,884 156
Freigang M Plumbing and Gas Inspector 118,078             6,978 1,571              
Friesen M Manager-Environmental Sustain 141,278             4,726 4,219              
Friestadt D Survey Technician 2 80,868 5,720 - 
Fujiwara J Systems Analyst 98,012 6,247 - 
Fuller S Assist Supervisor-Operations 108,169             6,321 360
Galloway S Director-Planning & Developmnt 128,050             - 313
Garcha A Planning Assistant 79,856 5,417 1,189
Garden S Firefighter 109,313             - 530
Gercsak T Plumbing and Gas Inspector 111,992             6,847 1,392
Gilan J Transportation Technologist 97,382 6,483 - 
Gilfoil R Trades 2-Mechanic 98,780 6,931 244
Gill R Utility Worker-Painting&Carp 95,411 6,029 334
Gillespie T Firefighter 114,778             - 470
Gillies L Deputy Dir-Proj Mgmt & Del-LEC 157,436             4,863 4,358
Graham K Corporate Officer 180,485             5,237 247
Granger H City Solicitor 204,973             5,450 3,455
Green B Transportation Engineer 136,875             4,641 2,042
Green K Firefighter 112,226             - 377
Grewal H Crisis Intervention Worker 81,839 608 12
Grundza E Formsetter-Concrete Finisher 77,446 5,375 118
Guerra Mendoza V Budget Analyst I 88,196 230 - 
Guolo C Firefighter 95,936 - 90
Hall J Manager-Public Realm Infrstrct 147,801             4,821 1,233
Hallaway M Firefighter 121,157             - - 
Harrison A Captain-Training 118,470             - 597
Harrison M Communications Operator 3 109,461             6,999 - 
Hawkshaw D Captain 126,887             - - 
Head J Reader-RCMP 83,500 6,022 - 
Herman L Coordinator-Community Dev 100,331             6,571 29

33



Last Name First Initial Job Description Remuneration One-Time Payments Expenses

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) & (c)

Hickey P Utility Trades-Painting&Carp 93,833 6,186 90
Hofilena G Database Admin/Sr Systems Anls 122,503             8,089 - 
Holm M Manager-Engineering Design 143,575             4,851 1,090              
Howard R Section Manager-Facilities Ops 137,869             4,788 - 
Huang J GIS Applications Developer 101,932             6,838 - 
Huckell T Committee Clerk-Secretary 88,362 4,835 - 
Hudson J Ppl & Culture Business Partner 123,988             4,656 1,005              
Husk C Filming and Events Coordinator 78,699 5,611 344
Hutch D Deputy Dir-Parks&Public Spaces 180,504             - 5,056
Hutton P License Inspector 69,845 4,986 1,245
Iglesias G Payroll Technician 90,025 5,424 552
Jacobi M Storekeeper-Buyer 1 83,663 5,954 268
Jacobs J Firefighter 92,322 - 1,257
Johal B Bylaw Enforcement Officer 2 85,122 6,052 86
Johnson B Revenue Accountant 125,082             7,631 206
Kahanizaree O Development Technician 2 87,432 5,440 1,322
Kelsch L Assist Supervisor-Operations 109,091             6,671 787
Kelso M Captain 147,569             - 502
Kemp B PRIME Records Specialist 71,454 5,057 - 
Kilmartin T Firefighter 107,972             - - 
Kilner J Communications Coordinator 74,674 - 795
King P Assist Supervisor-Operations 96,088 5,835 258
Klochnyk J Manager-Public Works 162,627             4,987 2,258              
Kowalski A Accounting & Office Admin LEC 73,987 4,139 103
Kral L Project Eng-Civil Works LEC 136,567             4,783 2,235              
Kuzmanovski K Section Manager-Traffic Eng 118,952             4,815 470
Kwaterska M Manager-Shipyards & Waterfront 140,547             4,713 398
Lam D Manager-Accounting 115,341             6,949 10,611            
Lanigan M Project Manager 76,228 1,225 78
Larson L Administrative Coordinator II 77,562 5,026 - 
Latham S Communications Operator 2 87,540 4,049 - 
Laut S Caretaker-Cemeteries 71,442 5,078 90
Lawry L Manager-Business Operations 90,658 - 401
Leggo C Equipment Operator 4A 80,395 5,420 118
Lemanski C Firefighter 126,179             - - 
Lentsch T Assistant Fire Chief 174,107             - 3,168
Lesku J Disclosure Reviewer 71,257 4,487 135
Lesmeister C Planner 2 109,336             7,330 3,087
Lewis E Labourer 2 72,626 4,830 90
Lightfoot B Manager-Real Estate 147,711             4,802 1,397
Lin Y Economic & Business Develop Co 103,627             2,710 321
Lindgren C Planner 2 103,477             6,772 424
Lindsay S Supervisor-Operations 105,605             7,328 608
Low W Trades 2-Mechanic 98,855 6,763 377
Macaulay M Supervisory Survey Technlgist 87,903 5,943 106
Macdonald E Planner 2 108,196             1,924 632
Macdonald C Graphic Artist 88,088 6,285 221
MacInnis D Design Technician 84,353 5,970 - 
Mackay M Lieutenant 128,742             - 1,350
Mackoff de Miranda Z Director Museum 86,607 - 3,381
Magnusson K City Engineer 219,552             5,430 1,139
Maillie D Captain 126,544             - - 
Malagoli F Crisis Intervention Worker 84,617 4,904 - 
Manarovici P Controller 155,037             1,882 8,564              
Mannarino M Truck Driver 3 73,023 5,097 18
Mara C Planner 1 84,635 6,759 - 
Marshall J Firefighter 92,223 - - 
Martin T Survey Technician 2 74,672 5,085 - 
Mason W Supervisor-Operations 115,483             6,880 1,862              
Mathew N Plan Checker 1 88,056 5,880 1,545              
Mathews R Assistant CBO-Permits 125,553             4,574 793
McAllister J Supervisor-Operations 138,610             8,542 157

34



Last Name First Initial Job Description Remuneration One-Time Payments Expenses

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) & (c)

McBride M Labourer 2 70,976 3,932 166
McCarthy L Chief Administrative Officer 333,058             6,588 3,837              
McCorkindale T Research & Communications Spec 106,279             4,488 282
McCutcheon J Firefighter 110,894             - 800
McEachern K Executive Asst-Mayor's Office 103,618             4,448 1,115
McGee A Fire Prevention Inspector 120,744             - 1,160
McGeean K Parking Bylaw Enforcement Off 72,805 5,187 272
McLean C Manager-RCMP Civ Ops Ops Sup 121,411             5,360 26
McNaughton G Assist Supervisor-Operations 75,409 5,554 265
Menzel M Planner 3 103,972             7,092 379
Michaud J Fire Prevention Inspector 117,234             - 3,133
Miles C Design Technician 115,586             5,988 411
Mitchell S Communications Operator 3 137,030             6,249 - 
Moen M Events Coord & Community Liais 77,751 1,878 181
Moore J Firefighter 106,392             - - 
Morley B Truck Driver-Swamper 2 72,519 5,087 67
Mudge R Treasury Analyst 90,399 623 979
Mulleder L Planner 1 91,883 5,832 1,695              
Naab K Development Technician 2 133,748             4,680 883
Nacorda J Building Maintenance Coordintr 87,904 6,133 - 
Negenman A Environmental Coordinator 96,625 5,889 270
Nelson L Firefighter 121,344             - - 
Newbery B Firefighter 110,028             - - 
Nichols C Manager-People & Culture 167,801             5,085 867
No N Manager-RCMP Civ Ops Admin Sup 114,151             5,575 1,199              
Nobert D Operations Maintenance Worker 80,045 3,253 322
Nyvall J Design Technician 84,353 5,852 820
Oliver J Trades 2-Gardener 94,448 6,601 363
Orr L Deputy Director-Com&Part Engmt 156,117             1,708 853
Owens D Dep Fire Chief-Prev & Pub Sfty 182,497             5,187 4,595              
Pacheco J Fire Prevention Off-Lieutenant 130,170             - 29
Parker R Supervisor-Operations 103,310             7,163 1,092
Payne A Dep Fire Chief-Ops & Support 171,111             5,031 975
Payne T Firefighter 77,970 - - 
Pearce B Deputy Chief Admin Officer 242,983             5,880 496
Pelletier K Planner 1 88,485 4,425 1,586              
Pensato G Benefits, Admin & Systems Spec 79,946 4,247 - 
Perens B Supervisor-Crisis Intervention 85,661 5,466 577
Perkovic T Crime Analyst Assistant 71,675 5,057 1,011              
Peters S Manager-Client & Tech Serv 141,584             4,789 1,652              
Peters J Assistant City Clerk 106,844             4,412 16
Phagoora R Labourer 2 71,171 4,804 364
Pichler E Firefighter 100,110             - 50
Piechota K Senior Building Inspector 119,711             7,040 1,125
Pollock B Plumbing and Gas Inspector 109,662             6,870 1,380
Polman J Captain 146,231             - 750
Pope D Project Manager 101,574             4,238 270
Posnikoff D Labourer 3 76,041 3,446 1,513              
Price D Utility Trades-Waterworks 95,120 6,113 - 
Priestley D Section Manager-Parks Ops 153,748             4,861 1,906              
Pugh J Bylaw Enforcement Officer 2 71,687 4,753 1,376              
Raham K Business Analyst 79,690 5,254 - 
Rasmussen D Electrical Inspector 105,107             6,759 221
Ravenhill A Labourer 3 98,545 5,334 3,476              
Reece M Communications Operator 3 110,273             6,279 - 
Reiss S Buyer 104,081             7,286 845
Reynolds N Firefighter 84,316 - 236
Ring D Trades 2-Mechanic 101,562             6,801 500
Roberts A Firefighter 119,766             - 2,216
Robertson J Sr. Manager-Comms & Engmt 154,146             - 530
Rohan C Supervisor-Garage 111,596             7,585 2,239
Rohan M Truck Driver-Swamper 2 72,271 2,823 150

35



Last Name First Initial Job Description Remuneration One-Time Payments Expenses

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) & (c)

Rommel M Planner 1 91,502 2,369 1,207              
Rosalin J Physical Plant Maint. Worker 1 79,869 5,653 164
Ross J Equipment Operator 4A 76,947 4,143 - 
Rothfels E Utilities Engineer 116,646             4,334 454
Roy J Manager-Civic Facilities 154,946             4,948 22
Rozairo G Technical Services Specialist 112,518             7,634 6,689              
Ryce T Chief Building Official 163,692             5,050 5,147              
Sadgrove S Manager-Payroll 142,901             4,743 1,325              
Sahih C Project Coordinator 91,958 - 172
Santarossa G Communications Operator 2 90,451 4,383 60
Sasaki S GIS Technician 70,645 5,489 - 
Savage R Engineering Technician 87,224 5,275 3,231              
Sawrenko L Chief Financial Officer 229,107             5,603 3,526              
Schalk G Public Safety Dir & Fire Chief 228,118             5,676 2,264              
Schell C Firefighter 95,364 - 1,539
Schurmann K Traffic Engineering Technician 79,122 5,489 276
Sedun S Firefighter 117,239             - - 
Sellars J Systems Architect 125,094             8,221 556
Shaughnessy M Lieutenant 131,186             - 470
Sheel J Captain 130,866             - 530
Sherwood D Truck Driver 3 80,145 6,080 96
Shipley M Planner 1 94,564 6,476 2,363
Shyry L Environmental Technician 90,017 5,980 2,869
Siddoo L Payroll Coordinator 118,129             6,264 102
Simmonds J PRIME Reviewer 76,196 4,446 - 
Singh R Equipment Operator 4A 90,898 5,714 198
Sister S Project Manager 137,774             3,928 1,400              
Skene R Deputy Director-Strat & Co Srv 193,915             5,317 421
Smith S Manager-Economic Development 145,445             4,784 3,198              
Smith C Utility Trades-Waterworks 95,843 5,846 416
Smith J Landscape Technician 74,868 2,023 1,446              
So E Ppl & Culture Business Partner 123,787             4,653 1,593              
Sorenson K Community Police Office Coord 70,143 4,927 536
Spitale J Public Space & Events Assist 89,759 5,969 41
Staehling A Technical Services Specialist 105,023             7,427 - 
Stefas T Pipefitter-Layer 79,248 5,387 301
Stevens C Manager-Strategic Initiatives 126,161             1,431 - 
Stevenson M Captain-Planning & Development 129,134             - 1,339
Steward I Property Services Coordinator 99,718 7,053 1,661
Stringer J Forensic Video Technician 77,562 5,444 - 
Strubin C Firefighter 114,152             - - 
Svancara J Budget Analyst II 93,794 6,530 1,200              
Tang B Firefighter 121,986             - 2,739
Tang J Budget Analyst I 73,724 5,028 - 
Tang E Assistant Plan Checker 1 71,439 4,575 1,887
Tasaka J Events Coord & Community Liais 75,396 2,398 56
Taylor K Planner 1 90,546 4,061 1,210
Taylor D Bylaw Enforcement Supervisor 81,941 5,425 160
Thompson C Sr Manager-Police Support Svs 104,585             - 499
Todoruk C Truck Driver 2 85,035 5,485 812
Townsend T Firefighter 110,684             - - 
Tremblay S Transportation Planner 78,139 - 127
Trinkl M Supervisor-Operations 143,342             8,960 200
Trinkl G Supervisor-Operations 96,781 6,841 198
Underhill B Planner 2 108,463             7,351 1,143              
Unrau S Supervisor-Member Support 72,149 4,862 755
Urbani J Emergency Vehicle Technician 106,576             - 1,334
Uuraslahti N PRIME Reviewer 73,982 4,348 - 
van Born S Captain 121,225             - 1,283
van der Heijden B Planner 1 95,423 6,330 15
van Heerden D Manager-Financial Plan & Anlys 160,480             4,963 1,200              
Van Nes T Supervisor-Operations 98,922 6,093 202

36



Last Name First Initial Job Description Remuneration One-Time Payments Expenses

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) & (c)

Vanderhoek M Firefighter 114,221             -                                -                  
Vanderhoek S Firefighter 106,837             -                                -                  
Vanier J Fire Prevention Inspector 104,475             -                                1,601              
Vaughan R Manager, Civic Engagement 125,759             4,575                            6,888              
Veng K Chief Executive Officer-LEC 227,755             5,672                            1,466              
Vilstrup N Deputy Dir-Proj Dev & Impl-LEC 176,670             2,971                            1,879              
Vogrig R Firefighter 96,089               -                                458                 
Wagner E GIS Technician 86,049               5,489                            -                  
Ward A Firefighter 125,588             -                                -                  
Wardell M Manager-Development Services 72,679               2,402                            704                 
Warman B Equipment Operator 1 75,563               5,506                            245                 
Washington S Firefighter 115,595             -                                2,248              
Waugh M Firefighter 109,722             -                                -                  
Whiteley L Labourer 3 73,187               4,857                            69                   
Wicks A Ppl & Culture Business Partner 102,465             -                                449                 
Wilkinson B Park Attendant 79,255               5,036                            90                   
Williams M Firefighter 109,075             -                                -                  
Willock B Deputy Dir-Infrastructure Mgmt 187,193             4,931                            854                 
Wilson S Communications & Engmt Spec 91,830               6,481                            17                   
Wilson C User Analyst 85,768               5,719                            -                  
Winterhalder L Electronic Disclosure Clerk 77,018               4,715                            -                  
Wong T User Analyst 83,698               6,111                            -                  
Wood S Manager-Finance LEC 147,086             4,798                            6,751              
Woolhouse C Communications & Engmt Spec 86,556               3,369                            -                  
Yoo S Technical Services Specialist 101,496             1,496                            -                  
Yu C Systems Analyst 92,306               6,152                            935                 
Zander S Manager-Purchasing 138,164             4,783                            2,428              
Zandieh G Project Manager 123,632             4,402                            1,135              
Zhang E Budget Analyst II 93,543               6,481                            2,022              
Zhang H Client Services Specialist 90,352               6,102                            1,652              
Zhang E Financial Analyst 82,042               5,926                            6,915              
Total of employees over $75,000 36,745,507        1,377,328                     332,489          

Total of employees under $75,000 14,021,148        866,816                        65,848            

Total remuneration and expenses 50,766,655$      2,244,144$                   398,337$        

37



FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (a) - Remuneration paid to elected officials 423,487$         
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (b) and 6 (2) (c) - Employee Remuneration       53,010,79
Total City of North Vancouver remuneration per Statement of Financial Information       53,434,28

Reconciling items 23,813,830      

Wages and benefits expenses per consolidated financial statements note 12 $    77,248,11

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Reconciliation between total remuneration and consolidated financial statements

FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (2) (d)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

The reconciling items/variance between the Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses and the Wages and Benefits expense reported on 
the consolidated financial statements of the City of North Vancouver are due to various factors including:

The Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses is based on actual cash payments made during the fiscal year (including payouts of
vacation, gratuity, and overtime banks) whereas the consolidated financial statement figure is determined on an accrual basis

t excludes the North Vancouver City Library and CNV's share of the North Vancouver Recreation Commission

excludes benefits paid on behalf of employees that are neither taxable to the employee nor paid directly to the employee.
Examples include extended health plans and dental plans.

38



Supplier Amount

ACCELLION USA LLC 58,309$
ACCURATE MATERIALS TESTING LTD 67,180
AECOM CANADA LTD. 273,668
AINSWORTH INC 50,713
ALL ROADS CONSTRUCTION LTD 58,372
AMAZON 53,751
AMERICAN PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVS. 124,242
ANCAN MARKETING 27,961
ANDREW SHERET LTD 130,323
AON REED STENHOUSE INC 1,029,362
APLIN & MARTIN CONSULTANTS LTD 194,161
APPLE 25,233
ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING (B.C.) LTD. 28,934
ASSOCIATED FIRE SAFETY 101,492
ATS TRAFFIC LTD 67,172
AVENUE MACHINERY CORP 77,831
B&B EXCAVATION & SHORING LTD 1,843,745
B.A. BLACKTOP INFRASTRUCTURE INC. 1,792,321
BA BLACKTOP LTD 1,574,440
BARTLETT TREE EXPERTS 60,566
BC HYDRO 1,591,277
BC LIBRARIES COOPERATIVE 54,399
BC MUNICIPAL SAFETY ASSOCIATION 33,945
BDO CANADA LLP 86,955
BERRYMAN, STEPHANIE 41,125
BEST 30,952
BLACKBURN YOUNG OFFICE SOLUTIONS 107,049
BLU POOL SUPPLY LTD. 42,270
BOABC 27,184
BRAVEHEART VENTURES 34,684
BROOKS CORNING COMPANY 80,186
BURRARD MECHANICAL LTD 27,954
CAM CLARK FORD LINCOLN 28,892
CANADA MATS 26,729
CANADA POST CORPORATION 39,587
CANADIAN LINEN AND UNIFORM SERVICE 36,496
CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 55,348
CARSCADDEN STOKES MCDONALD ARCHITECTS 303,113
CBR PHOTOGRAPHY 26,455
CDW CANADA CORP. 401,766
CENTRAL SQUARE TECHNOLOGIES 50,844

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (a) and (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

39



Supplier Amount

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (a) and (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

CHARTER TELECOM INC 179,882                     
CITY GREEN SOLUTIONS SOCIETY 33,378                       
CITY OF COQUITLAM 84,402                       
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 83,034                       
CITY OF SURREY 222,701                     
CITY OF VANCOUVER 54,790                       
COASTAL TRAINING CONSULTANTS LTD 26,000                       
COBRA ELECTRIC SERVICES LTD. 745,383                     
COMMERCIAL EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT CO 58,372                       
COMMERCIAL TRUCK EQUIPMENT-SURREY 38,744                       
COMMISSIONAIRES BC 180,545                     
COMMUNITY FIRE PREVENTION 82,608                       
COMPLETE UTILITY CONTRACTORS LTD 586,575                     
CONCENTRIC CONSULTING INC 72,733                       
COQUITLAM CONCRETE (1993) LTD 39,562                       
CORNERSTONE PLANNING GROUP 36,975                       
CREATE VANCOUVER SOCIETY 32,920                       
CREATIVE DOOR SERVICES LTD 30,289                       
CREATIVE TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS LTD 30,270                       
CROWN CONTRACTING LTD. 2,420,134                  
CUBEX EQUIPMENT-HEAD OFFICE 81,096                       
DARKHORSE EMERGENCY CORP 55,145                       
DELTA SIERRA CONSTRUCTION & MILLWORK LTD 237,768                     
DIAMOND HEAD CONSULTING LTD 111,330                     
DIBA MANAGEMENT CORP 90,523                       
DINESEN NURSERIES LTD. 43,152                       
DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 959,897                     
DISTRICT OF WEST VANCOUVER 33,295                       
DLA PIPER (CANADA) LLP 67,759                       
DMD AND ASSOCIATES LTD 59,696                       
DRC MECHANICAL 46,794                       
DRIVE PRODUCTS INC 35,615                       
DS TACTICAL LTD. 25,778                       
EBP US INC. 35,000                       
ECOAST ELECTRIC LTD 35,807                       
E-COMM 202,165                     
ECONOLITE CANADA INC. 63,159                       
E-CUBED MEDIA SYNTHESIS 29,830                       
EMCO CORPORATION 127,680                     
ENVYROZONE 48,469                       
ESRI CANADA LTD 73,819                       

40



Supplier Amount

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (a) and (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

EUROVIA BC INC 37,863
EXECUTIVE AIR CONDITIONING & 111,800
FASKEN MARTINEAU DUMOULIN LLP 25,492
FEDERATION OF CANADIAN MUNICIPALITIES 27,200
FIRST PEAK CONTRACTING LTD 71,134
FLOCOR INC. 119,887
FORTIS BC ENERGY INC. 94,478
FRASER VALLEY EQUIPMENT LTD. 44,731
FRASERWAY PREKAST LTD 39,748
FRED SURRIDGE LTD 40,089
GAGNON VENTURES INC 149,972
GEOPACIFIC CONSULTANTS LTD. 56,429
GFL ENVIRONMENTAL INC 39,854
GLACIER MEDIA GROUP 60,241
GOLDILOX SECURITY 25,019
GRAFFITI BE GONE INC. 42,980
GREATER VANCOUVER SEWERAGE AND DRAINAGE DISTRICT 9,247,996
GREATER VANCOUVER WATER DISTRICT 7,577,753
GUILD YULE LLP 28,934
HABITAT SYSTEMS INC 210,757
HARBOUR WEST CONSULTING INC. 45,084
HAYCO EQUIPMENT LTD. 29,244
HCMA ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN 1,149,529
HEADWATER MANAGEMENT LTD. 80,035
HEIDELBERG MATERIALS 108,655
HERITAGE OFFICE FURNISHINGS LTD 36,102
HIGHLAND GREEN CLEANING 33,520
HOMEWOOD HEALTH INC 42,693
ICONIX WATERWORKS LP 40,525
INDIGENOUS CORPORATE TRAINING 27,879
INFINITE ROAD MARKING LTD 137,068
INFOR (CANADA), LTD. 339,320
INNOVATIVE TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS INC. 45,846
ISL ENGINEERING & LAND SERVICES LTD. 293,840
ISLAND KEY COMPUTER LTD 206,403
IVANTI INC 30,408
JIFFY JOHN RENTALS LTD 62,373
JIM WILES AND SON LTD 218,513
KAL TIRE 58,109
KERR WOOD LEIDAL ASSOCIATES LTD 57,313
KMBR ARCHITECTS PLANNERS INC 33,172

41



Supplier Amount

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (a) and (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

KONE INC 51,001
KRAUS TRUCKING 117,740
LAFARGE CANADA INC 2,872,557
LANESAFE TRAFFIC CONTROL 280,001
LGI-INDUSTRIAL & CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES 54,708
LIBERTY CONTRACT MANAGEMENT INC 1,690,069
LIBRARY BOUND INC 208,823
LIDSTONE & COMPANY 108,961
LONG VIEW SYSTEMS 95,027
LONSDALE ENERGY CORP 305,195
LOOKOUT HOUSING AND HEALTH SOCIETY 38,900
MAGLIN SITE FURNITURE INC. 33,388
MAIL-O-MATIC SERVICES LTD 33,181
MAINROAD MAINTENANCE PRODUCTS 157,349
MAKE PROJECTS LTD 325,824
MANCORP INDUSTRIAL SALES LTD 31,844
MAR-TECH UNDERGROUND SERVICES LTD 31,250
MCELHANNEY LTD 79,400
MCRAE'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LTD 540,954
METRO MOTORS LTD 729,312
MICROSOFT CANADA INC 201,063
MINISTER OF FINANCE 72,111
MNP DIGITAL INC. 144,119
MODERN DRAINAGE 69,494
MOTIV ARCHITECTS INC. 135,899
MUNICIPAL PENSION PLAN 4,597,585
MUNI-CITY SERVICE INC 68,031
MURRIN CONSTRUCTION LTD 68,375
MVCC VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS CORP. 146,079
NAPA AUTO PARTS 71,198
NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP 37,071
NEW RHODES CONSTRUCTION INC. 535,307
NORTH SHORE ALLIANCE CHURCH 38,986
NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY RESOURCES 33,545
NORTH SHORE KIA 44,913
NORTH VANCOUVER COMMUNITY ARTS COUNCIL 37,506
NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT CANADA LLP 285,087
NOVACOM BUILDING PARTNERS LTD. 99,782
ODWAK & SONS 38,115
OPEN TEXT CORPORATION 127,341
ORACLE CANADA ULC 203,481

42



Supplier Amount

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (a) and (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

OVERDRIVE, INC. 181,782
PACIFIC BLUE CROSS 1,738,846
PACIFIC FLOW CONTROL LTD. 36,033
PARKWORKS SOLUTIONS CORP 47,288
PASSPORT LABS, INC 110,441
PAUL DAVIS GREAT VANCOUVER 27,548
PAYPAL WESTERNCANA 25,194
PBX ENGINEERING LTD. 37,635
PFM EXECUTIVE SEARCH 48,037
PINCHIN LTD. 61,930
PINNACLE INT'L REALTY GROUP II INC. 68,536
PINTON FORREST & MADDEN GROUP INC. 51,836
POWERWRIGHT SERVICES INC 46,619
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 27,752
PROLINK SECURITY SYSTEMS 32,536
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 1,458,027
QUESTICA SOFTWARE INC 56,338
R.A. MALATEST & ASSOCIATES LTD 93,994
R.D.M. ENTERPRISES LTD. 1,818,384
RADIUS INDUSTRIAL WORKS INC. 82,151
RECEIVER GENERAL FOR CANADA 15,023,397
RF BINNIE AND ASSOCIATES LTD 197,199
RFS CANADA 51,555
RICOH CANADA INC 44,804
ROBERT HALF CANADA 159,708
ROCK SOLID TECHNOLOGY, INC 28,565
ROLLINS MACHINERY LTD 567,878
ROPER GREYELL 41,859
ROYAL BANK OF CANADA 172,639
SAINAS CONSULT INC. 25,375
SAMURAI EXPRESS TRUCKING 104,375
SCOOBY'S DOG WASTE REMOVAL SERVICE LTD. 136,004
SEGUIN, LEANNE 28,319
SERVICES FLO INC. 30,196
SHAW CABLESYSTEMS GP 115,144
SHAW TELECOM GP 30,051
SHERINE INDUSTRIES LTD 26,404
SIMON FRASER UNIVERSITY 27,000
SIRSIDYNIX (CANADA) INC. 123,914
SITECORE CANADA INC 38,007
SLATER VECCHIO LLP, IN TRUST 50,000

43



Supplier Amount

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (a) and (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

SMITH BROS & WILSON BC LTD 28,859,935
SOFTCHOICE LP. 77,327
SOLIDCAD 27,649
SPECIMEN TREES 38,962
SPUR COMMUNICATIONS INC. 236,179
STANDARD BUILDING SUPPLY 86,263
STAPLES 57,920
STEPHEN IRVING COMMUNICATIONS 45,180
STRATA PLAN EPS6231 112,084
SUNCOR ENERGY PRODUCTS PARTNERSHIPS 619,539
SUPER SAVE DISPOSAL INC 89,365
TATRAS CONTRACTING GROUP 254,600
TECH LOGIC CORP 31,195
TELUS COMMUNICATIONS INC 259,844
TELUS MOBILITY 164,945
THE SALVATION ARMY NORTH SHOR 38,200
THE SHIPYARDS DEVELOPMENT LTD. 181,146
TIMBERLINE TREE SERVICE LTD. 80,825
TOMKO SPORTS SYSTEMS INC. 29,142
TRANSITION CONSTRUCTION INC. 37,912
TRIPLE THREE TRADING LTD 52,278
TRUEPOINT SOLUTIONS, LLC 109,190
TUPPER LANDSCAPING INC 43,000
ULINE 63,998
URBAN SAWING AND SCANNING CO LTD 42,314
URBAN STRATEGIES INC. 223,567
URBAN SYSTEMS LTD. 366,085
VANPORT ENTERPRISES LTD 28,659
W.K. WILLIAMS CONSULTING SERVICES 47,540
WESTERN INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL LTD. 303,362
WESTERRA EQUIPMENT LP 121,345
WESTLAND INSURANCE GROUP LTD. 248,810
WOOD WYANT CANADA INC. 99,673
WORKER'S COMPENSATION BOARD 1,574,236
YEOMEN PROPERTY MAINTENANCE & RENOVATION 41,857
YOUNG ANDERSON BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS 162,840
Total payments over $25,000 112,168,886              

Total payments $25,000 or less 5,806,926

Total payments 117,975,812$            

44



Organization Amount

Capilano Community Services Society 91,054$  
District of North Vancouver 44,871 
District of West Vancouver 55,323 
Family Services of the North Shore 56,573 
Hollyburn Community Services Society 377,500 
Lookout Housing and Health Society 142,216 
Navy League Of Canada 73,500 
North Shore Community Resources 60,315 
North Shore Emergency Management Office 290,156 
North Shore Neighbourhood House 1,038,900             
North Shore Rescue Team Society 38,602 
North Shore Restorative Justice Society 44,635 
North Shore Womens' Centre 44,753 
School District No.44 113,800 
Silver Harbour Centre Society 179,504 
Squamish Nation 404,431 
The Salvation Army North Shore 38,200 
Tsleil-Waututh Nation 107,452 
Total grants or contributions over $25,000 3,201,785             

Total grants or contributions less than $25,000 255,168 

Total grants or contributions 3,456,953$           

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Grants & Contributions

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (2) (b)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

45



FIR Schedule 1, Section 7(1)(a) & (b) - Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services 117,975,812$  
FIR Schedule 1, Section 7(2)(b) - Grants and Contributions 3,456,953 
Total payments per Statement of Financial Information 1 121,432,765 

Remuneration and related expenses reconciliation items 55,537,782 

Related parties reconciliation items 21,592,586 

Recoveries reconciliation items (8,726,655) 

Non-financial asset reconciliation items (39,139,807) 

Total expenses per Consolidated Statement of Operations 150,696,671$  

1 The schedule of payments to suppliers is a "cash basis" listing. This will vary from the expenditures in the 
consolidated

The reconciling items between the Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services and the total expenses reported on the 
consolidated financial statements of the City of North Vancouver are due to various factors including:

The remuneration and related expenses reconciliation items are based on actual cash payments made during the
fiscal year (including payouts of vacation, gratuity, and overtime banks) whereas the consolidated financial
statement figure is determined on an accrual basis and includes payments to major agencies.

Related parties transactions include those from agencies that are included in the consolidated audited financial
statements.

Recoveries reconciliation items are recoveries from partner agencies that reduce the total amount of expenses
recognized in the consolidated audited financial statements.

Non-financial asset reconciliation items are changes to tangible capital assets, prepaid expenses and other non-
cash transactions.

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Schedule of Suppliers of Goods and Services

Reconciliation between payments to suppliers and consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

FIR Schedule 1, Section 7 (1) (c)

46



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Schedule of Debts 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 
FIR Schedule 1, Section 4 (4) 

A Schedule of Debts has not been prepared because the City of North 
Vancouver does not have any long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 
2023. 

47



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 
FIR Schedule 1, Section 5 (4) 

A Schedule of Guarantees and Indemnity Agreements has not been prepared 
because the City of North Vancouver has not given any guarantees or 
indemnities under the Guarantees and Indemnities Regulation. 

48



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Statement of Severance Agreements 

For the year ended December 31, 202  
FIR Schedule 1, Section 6 (7) (a) & (b) 

There were 3 severance agreements under which payment commenced between The 
Corporation of the City of North Vancouver and its non-unionized employees during 
fiscal year 2023. 

These agreements represent from 0.2 to 8.9 months of compensation.

The agreements were determined based on base salary. 

4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



6/18/2024

1

2023 Annual Municipal Report
June 24, 2024

Background

• CNV’s Annual Municipal Report (“AMR”) is to be completed by June 
30th each year 

2

• The AMR must specific items, including:
– Audited annual financial statements for the 

previous year
– An update on progress made towards delivering 

future initiatives included in the last AMR
– A statement of plans for the upcoming 

reporting period



6/18/2024

2

Background
• New information has been added to CNV’s 2023 AMR to bring it 

more in line with Government Finance Officers Association best 
practice guidance included in its "Canadian Award for Financial 
Reporting Reviewers Checklist“, including”
– Community demographic and statistical information such as dwelling types, 

new construction permit volumes and number of businesses
– 2023 top corporate taxpayers
– A transmittal letter from the Chief Financial Officer

3

• This presentation highlights key 
2023 accomplishments included 
in the 2023 AMR that advance 
Council’s Strategic Priorities

4

A Resilient City leads the way in the climate action and acts as a 
steward of the environment for future generations 

Accomplished 2023:

• State of the Urban Forest 
Report completed

• Climate & Environment 
Strategy drafted

• LEC 
• 15% of heat sales from low 

carbon energy
• Additional commercial 

financing arranged



6/18/2024

3

5

A Vibrant City is where dynamic public spaces and places provide opportunities 
for connection and enable residents to engage with their community, and 

celebrate their culture and history

Accomplished 2023:

• Shipyards programming
• Over 160 summer activations held
• Over 50,000 visitors to the Skate Plaza
• RFEOI for Shipyards Operations Plan 

and Business Model complete

• Dog Friendly Plan
• Draft plan created

6

A City for People is welcoming, inclusive, safe and accessible and 
supports the health and well-being of all

Accomplished 2023:

• Advanced the HJCRC program
• HJCRC/SH construction 

proceeding
• North Vancouver Lawn Bowling 

Facility completed

• Commenced the Mahon 
Childcare and Fieldhouse project

• Adopt North Shore Poverty 
Reduction Strategy

• Signed a Protocol agreement 
with Sḵwx̱wú7mesh



6/18/2024

4

7

A Connected City provides active and sustainable ways for people and 
goods to move to, from, and within the City safely and efficiently

Accomplished 2023:

• Improved access to transit and
active transportation infrastructure
• Esplanade Complete St

completed
• Bus Service Reliability Project

(Cotton/Low Level Rd/Kennard)
completed

• NS Bus Rapid Transit line
prioritized

8

A Prosperous City supports a diverse economy by creating an environment 
where new and existing businesses can grow and thrive

Accomplished 2023:

• Launched Central Lonsdale
avenue as a “Great Street”
project:
• Baseline assessment complete
• Great Street examples

developed
• Project Manager engaged

• Economic Strategy completed
• Council endorsed in 2024



6/18/2024

5

9

Thank You



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



r 

Department 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

2023 ANNUAL MUNICIPAL REPORT 

REPORT 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 01 -0640-20-0001/2023 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 5, 2024, 
entitled "2023 Annual Municipal Report": 

THAT the 2023 Annual Municipal Report be approved. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. 2023 Annual Municipal Report (CityDocs # 2536677) 

BACKGROUND 

The Community Charter requires that municipalities prepare an Annual Municipal 
Report ("AMR") prior to June 30 of each year. Section 98(2) of the Community Charter 
states the content to be included in the AMR, including: 

• Audited annual financial statements for the previous year; 
• Information on municipal services, operations, objectives/measures for the 

previous year; 
• A statement of future municipal objectives/measures; 
• Permissive tax exemptions provided by Council; and 
• Any declarations of Council disqualifications made in the previous year. 

Document Number: 2358087 Vl 



REPORT: 2023 Annual Municipal Report 
Date: June 5, 2024 

DISCUSSION 

The 2023 AMR (Attachment 1) meets the requirements of the Community Charter and 
also includes information to provide readers with additional insight and transparency 
into CNV's activities and performance. New information has also been included in the 
2023 AMR to bring CNV's 2023 AMR more in line with the best practice guidance 
provide by the Government Finance Officers Association as noted in its "Canadian 
Award for Financial Reporting Reviewers Checklist". The key new items for the 2023 
AMR include: 

• Community demographic and statistical information such as dwelling types, new 
construction permit volumes and number of businesses 

• 2023 top corporate taxpayers 
• A transmittal letter from the Chief Financial Officer 

CNV's 2023 AMR was posted on its website on June 7th, 2024 with an on-line form to 
capture public comments. Public Notice for the 2023 AMR was published in the North 
Shore News on June 12th and 19th , 2024. 

CNV received minimal public comments on the 2022 AMR when it was published. In an 
effort to increase awareness of the public comment period moving forward, Staff have 
undertaken increased promotion in 2023 to try to encourage feedback. These efforts 
include: 

• Taking a holistic approach to the report itself by providing context and a more 
robust narrative, including detailed reporting of results; 

• Packaging the report in an easy to read and fresh design, to reflect the vibrancy 
and diversity of the City; 

• Updating the website content and improving the online comment forms for user 
ease; 

• Incorporating paid social media advertisements to increase awareness in 
addition to increased organic social media efforts including introducing lnstagram 
into the mix; 

• Published articles in two issues of City e-newsletter; and 
• Developing a poster for Gateway to draw attention to the hard copy available for 

review, with comment forms. 

A summary of public input received will be shared with Council on Monday, June 27th. 

The AMR will again be promoted pending adoption by Council and aspects of the report 
will be utilized throughout the remaining part of the year for education and awareness 
purposes. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Production of the 2023 AMR is funded within CNV's approved operating budget. 

Page 2 of 3 



REPORT: 2023 Annual Municipal Report 
Date: June 5, 2024 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

The AMR is prepared by CNV's Finance Department, as well as its Communications 
and Engagement and Strategic Initiatives Divisions, in collaboration with all CNV 
departments and shared services agencies. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

CNV's AMR supports the Corporate Business Plan Corporate Outcome to be "An Open 
& Engaged Organization." 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 3 of 3 



����������	���
���������������������

�

3456�89�@8A5B�CDEF8GHIA�P�QA454RB�38SGTU4D

sfriesen
FreeText
Attachment 1�



���������	
���
����
��
�����
������� 
����!
"���#�
$���	� 
%�����&
'�(&&�)
"�0��� 
��&
1�	���
$���	�

234564789@AB
D2EFG9HAB
IGPHQRS
GRT
AUVHV4UPGW
DXAV@HVỲ GFPFPB
IGPHQRS

ab
dbefbghipqqr
sgtuvwqbxyb
h�sh
wb
q��b
sux
wvdt
vu
h�b
hdsx�h�vusq
sux
pugbxbx


hbdd�hvd�be
vi
h�b
��w��w���be�
���ps��e��
sux
e�q�qw�hs�
��eqb�q�asphph��
�sh�vue�


��b
��hr
vi
�vdh�
csugvp�bd
�e
gv���hhbx
hv
dbgvug�q�sh�vu
w�h�
h�beb
�sh�vuee
w�v


�s�b
q��bx
vu
h�beb
qsuxe
e�ugb
h��b
���b�vd�sq�



����������	���
���������������������

 !"#$!"%�'(�)0"�12)(�34�53!)0�6$7839@"!�A27$78"�$7%�BC8"�34�)0"�D"#9)(�102"4�E%F272G)!$)2@"�BC8"�D"#$!)F"7)GH

IPPQIR�TUVWTX�Ỳ Ya
bcde�gh�igpdq�rstugvwxp�y��pcdc�q�bg�v��cs

��������������������������ab�cd����c

efghijklgmif� n

opqprstuvw�xyuz�{|}uy�~tv�|���r�|v|v� �

�ts}��u�vrt�� �

�yppstv�w�xyuz�s�p���tpx���ztvtwsy|st�p���rpy� �

�u�vrt���sy|sp�tr���|v������������ �

�uy�uy|sp���wtvpww���|v������ �

������rruz��tw�zpvsw� �

~uu�tv����p|��su������ ��

�ts}��sy�rs�yp� ��

�p�|yszpvs���py�tp�w� ��

�|ysvpy���pvrtpw� ��

����������������c����b�

~psspy�xyuz�s�p����� ��

�tv|vrt|���s|spzpvs��twr�wwtuv�|v���v|�}wtw� ���

��}p|y�op�pv�pw� }��u�yrp�� �¡

��}p|y�¢£�pvwp� }���vrstuv� ���

��}p|y�¢£�pvwp� }�� ¤prs�� ��

��}p|y���y���w�¥��rr�z��|sp����y���w�� ��

��}p|y����tstuvw�su�¦|v�t �p��|�ts|���wwpsw�� ��

��}p|y�¦|£pw§�{|¤uy�~p�tpw�¥��s�py��u��prstuvw� ���

��}p|y��wwpwwp���pvpy|��¦|£| �p�̈|��pw�� ��

������ytvrt�|���uy�uy|sp�¦|£�|}pyw� ��

������pyztwwt�p�¦|£�¢£pz�stuvw� ���

������y|vsw�oprpt�p�� ���

��}p|y��uz�|ytwuv�ux��u���|stuv�¢wstz|spw� ��

�ts}��u���|stuv� }���p��yu��� ��

©zzt�y|stuv�tv�s�p��ts}� ��

��}p|y�ªp���uvwsy�rstuv� ��

¦us|��ª�z py�ux���wtvpwwpw� �¡

��p��tv��¦}�pw� �¡

«u�wtv��¦pv�yp� �¡

�
��������¬���������b�

�s|spzpvs�ux�{|v|�pzpvs�opw�uvwt t�ts}§���tpx��tv|vrt|����rpy� ���

©v�p�pv�pvs����tsuy®w�op�uys� ��

�uvwu�t�|sp���s|spzpvs�ux��tv|vrt|���uwtstuv� ���

�uvwu�t�|sp���s|spzpvs�ux���py|stuvw� ���

�uvwu�t�|sp���s|spzpvs�ux���|v�pw�tv�ªps��tv|vrt|���wwpsw� ���

�uvwu�t�|sp���s|spzpvs�ux��|w����u�w� ���

ªuspw�su��uvwu�t�|sp���tv|vrt|���s|spzpvsw�� �¡

v̄|��tsp���r�p���pw���¥����������������������� �¡�

�pr�|y|stuv�ux��tw°�|�t±r|stuvw���������������� ��

²³́ µ¶�·̧ �¹·º²¶º²»



���������������	
	��������������������!"�#!$�%�&'#�!(&)$0

�12��3453467839�3@�712��87A�3@�#3471�&69B3CD24

�3972E7�F�'BB3G5H8I1G297I



�

�������	�
��

����������������  !���"�#$�%��&��!"������'�$(��� �(�� )�

�!�����(��(�� ��"0� $1��$� 2�

����"�������'���3�4����$0��4��! $�$'������)�"5����(!"$ 0�67�

(8!�"��9$�����"�(5'! ��$ 0�%�����@�#���!"�%�$0������((�%$�����

&�"%�")A��$ 9$ 03����$#������! $�4�� ��������)$ 0��)0���&��$�4�

@!$�)$ 0�$ �����"�0$� 2�

����"����(����B$�4�����$���)�������)$ 0�%$���'!"'�(�2�

B�! �$�C(�D�"���0$��E�� �$(�����B$�4C(�F�"���D��"3�'"$�"$�$1$ 0�%����

�!"�������)����)�"(�%� ��������$�#���#�"����� �G��&�!"�4��"(�

������'�'"�'����!"�#$($� ��&�@�$ 0�����HI�����$�(��D�����B$�4�$ �

������"�)C2�P��(��'"$�"$�$�(���  ��������#�"4�B$�4�"�($)� ��� )�

@!($ �((��% �"� �%�� )�$ �������&!�!"�2�

P��"��$(� ���$ 0���"��$�'�"�� ����� �������������&��!"�

����! $�4�@��$��'�4($���3�(��$��3���� ��$�3��"�� #$"� �� ���2�

P�����" ���"���@�!������B$�4��&�F�"���Q� ��!#�"3�'���(��#$($���!"�

%�@($������� #2�"02

�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"(

)0�234567�87�98@0AB6C�BD�BE�FBD4�GH35D�3IABD3P30D�D45D�Q�RH3E30D�D43�STSU�V00@56�

W@0BABR56�X3R8HD�78H�D43�9BDY�87�̀8HD4�a50A8@b3Hc�VE�W5Y8HC�Q�5P�d36BG4D3d�

D8�E45H3�D43�5AA8PR6BE4P30DE�50d�bBEB80�234B0d�D43�ef356D4B3ED�gP566�9BDY�B0�

D43�h8H6dci�)b3H�D43�R5ED�Y35HC�F3�45b3�FBD03EE3d�H3P5Hp5263�5A4B3b3P30DE�

B0�b5HB8@E�5ER3ADE�87�ABDY�6B73C�7H8P�E@ED5B05263�d3b368RP30D�B0BDB5DBb3E�D8�

qrstruqv�uxyy�r����qr�t�qyqr����x��ty����sq�q���uuq��q���q�qu��x���

A8PPBDP30D�D8�AH35DB0G�5�6Bb5263C�B0A6@EBb3C�50d�D4HBbB0G�ABDY�78H�566c

�r��s����q�x�����x��������rv�vq�t��qv��r���s����r�x�x���u������quxrxy�u���x��s��

�r��t����u���q�tv�truqyqr����qr���xryqr�t����q�t�v�s���q�x�����trv��xu�t��

RH8GH5PEc�VddBDB80566YC�F3�FB66�4BG46BG4D�p3Y�RH8b3ADEC�R5HD03HE4BREC�50d�3b30DE�

�st��st�q�uxr���c��qv����r��utr�����x�x���ux��qu���q��q��cq�r��trv���x��q�����

Q�5P�R5HDBA@65H6Y�RH8@d�D45D�8b3H�D43�65ED�Y35HC�F3�8R303d�5�03F�50d�7@66Y�

tuuq���c�q�dx��s�etrux��q��ft�r�gx���r���tu�������ytvq����r��utr����x��q���

FBD4�D43�f5HHY�h3H8P3�98PP@0BDY�X3AH35DB80�930DH3�H3d3b368RP30DC�ED5HD3d�

WBAp3Y�WAi8@G566�98PP@0BDY�X3AH35DB80�930DH3�@RGH5d3EC�D43�7@D@H3�48P3�78H�j6BAp5�kYP05EDBAEC�50d�

2H8p3�GH8@0d�80�D43�W5480�l5Hp�94B6dA5H3�930DH3�50d�jB36d48@E3c�Q0�m8F3H�m80Ed563C�F3�2H8p3�GH8@0d�

xr��sq�������q����q�ut�q��tu�������x���qr�x���trv��sq����ty����trv���t��qv��sq�������st�q�x���sq�dx��s�nsx�q�

3̀BG428@H488d�f8@E3�H3d3b368RP30Dc�V66�87�D43E3�75AB6BDB3E�H3RH3E30D�BPR8HD50D�B0b3EDP30DE�B0�H3AH35DB80�

50d�E3HbBA3Ec�i36Bb3HB0G�A8PP@0BDY�B07H5EDH@AD@H3�D45D�E@RR8HDE�4356D4�50d�F36623B0G�87�566�R38R63�BE�5�

���x������st���x��������qq��q�qu�qv��r��sq��x�o��q�st�q�vxrq�x�q���sq��t����qt��

h43D43H�F3�5H3�A3632H5DB0G�50�3IR50EB80�87�8@H�@H250�DH33�A508RYC�RH8GH5PPB0G�D43�g4BRY5HdE�FBD4�

75PB6Yp7HB30d6Y�5ADBbBDB3EC�3IR50dB0G�5ADBb3�DH50ER8HD5DB80�8RDB80EC�8H�2@B6dB0G�03F�48P3E�78H�R38R63C�8@H�

9BDY�BE�56F5YE�688pB0G�D8�2@B6d�@R80�8@H�E@AA3EE3E�50d�5PR6B7Y�F45D�F3�68b3�528@D�8@H�A8PP@0BDYc

VE�F3�688p�25ApC�F3�56E8�688p�78HF5Hd�D8�D43�Y35H�5435d�FBD4�8RDBPBEP�50d�d3D3HPB05DB80c�q43�A456630G3E�

F3�75A3�5H3�8RR8HD@0BDB3E�78H�B008b5DB80�50d�A866528H5DB80C�dHBbB0G�@E�D8�2@B6d�5�23DD3H�7@D@H3�78H�

G303H5DB80E�D8�A8P3c

��qr�qrv�y����ruq�q���t����vq��x��q��vqr����uxyy�r�����qtvq�����x��r�qq����trv�x���vqv�ut�qv�u������t��

F48E3�A8663ADBb3�R5EEB80�50d�d3dBA5DB80�A80DB0@3�D8�E45R3�D43�9BDY�87�̀8HD4�a50A8@b3H�B0D8�5�P8d36�87�

3IA36630A3c�q8G3D43HC�63D�@E�A80DB0@3�D8�F8Hp�450d�B0�450dC�3P2H5AB0G�dBb3HEBDYC�78ED3HB0G�E@ED5B052B6BDYC�

50d�AH35DB0G�5�ABDY�D45D�F3�A50�566�23�RH8@d�D8�A566�48P3c

gB0A3H36YC

W5Y8H�mB0d5�s@A45050

9BDY�87�̀8HD4�a50A8@b3H

W5Y8H�mB0d5�s@A45050

tuvwuxyz{|}�~�������������



�

��������	
���������������	�	����������������������� �����!"	
�����#����	
������
�$%�������������&"����"	����'����	
������(�

���
�������"�����)��"�����$#�0���
����	�����	
���1"�����
�����	�2
������34(�5655#

���	
���������%�	����������%������	����"������%����"������������'����	��"	���������	����������������#����	
���"
�������������

7889@�BC�8@DEBFG@HG7I�PQFGRG8@S�BCFET@�E79�@DUED8IGR�PUGQUGDG8@�DHED�B878VD�DH8�WGDCS�PUGQUGDGXG7I�PUQIUEY@�E79�@8ÙGR8@�DHED�EU8�

V@REFFC�U8@PQ7@GBF8�E79�YEaGYGX8�Q̀8UEFF�̀EFb8�cQU�RQYYb7GDC�Y8YB8U@d

WQb7RGF�98F8IED8@�QP8UEDGQ7EF�U8@PQ7@GBGFGDC�DQ�DH8�WHG8c�e9YG7G@DUEDG̀8�fgR8US�THQ�87@bU8@�WQb7RGFh@�PUGQUGDG8@�EU8�Y8Dd

ipqr�tuvwtpx

y������������������������������b�cd��e���cd�d�����b�f��g�h����i�b�j�g���������k��d����b�������������l�������j�m���gb�n���k��������o���g�k��p



���������	
���	���������	��������� ���!��"�!!#	������$������	�"�	���



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" (

)0123�3152�671�8963@A�BCCD5E�FDC9G9H5E�I1HP26�PQ12A�5C�PHHP26DC963�RP2�PD2�

A65Q�6P�21S1G6�T5GU�PC�671�3152@A�5G79101V1C6A�5CW�6P�21WPDTE1�PD2�1QP26A�6P�

XỲabcd�dfgdhhdip�qdYabgdq�p̀�prd�Ydqbcdipq�sic�tuqbidqq�̀vidYq�̀w�̀uY�xbpy��

�� ì��prd������rb�rhb�rpq�ỳu�hh�Ydsc�st̀up�s�iu�tdY�̀w�s�tbpb̀uq�gsXbpsh�

XỲ�dgpq���siy�̀w�vrbgr�sYd�idsYbi��g̀�Xhdpb̀i�bi�prd�ydsY�p̀�g̀�d��

�rd�idv��sYYy��dỲ�d�x̀��uibpy��dgYdspb̀i�xdipYd�sic��bhadY��sYt̀uY�

�dib̀Yq���gpbabpy�xdipYd�tdgs�d�� Ỳd�psi�bthd�sq�vd�qsv�prd�g̀igYdpd�sic�

bỲi�tds�q�uicdYXbiibi��prbq�qpYugpuYd�td�bi�p̀�ps�d�qrsXd�hspd�hsqp�ydsY��

�sYcv̀ Y�bi��Xuthbg�biwYsqpYugpuYd�hb�d�XsY�q��pYsbhq��YdgYdspb̀i�gdipYdq��sic�

grbhcgsYd�gdipYdq�sYd�prd�ẁuicspb̀i�̀w�s�rdshpry�sic�Ydqbhbdip�g̀��uibpy��

�p�bq�gYbpbgsh�vd��sis�d�prdqd�sqqdpq����sbipsbibi��sic�YdXhsgbi��s�bi��

biwYsqpYugpuYd�vrbhd�shq̀�biadqpbi��bi�idv�qyqpd�q�p̀��ddp�̀uY�g̀��uibpy�q�

guYYdip�sic�wupuYd�iddcq��

�dqq�abqbthd�tup�ì�hdqq�b�X̀Ypsip�vdYd������uXcspdq�p̀�prd�xbpy�q�gbabg�

biwYsqpYugpuYd���b�XỲabi��r̀v�vd�cdhbadY�dqqdipbsh�qdYabgdq���Ỳ��dfXsicbi��

ùY�tuqbidqq�hbgdiqbi��qdYabgdq�p̀�g̀ipbiubi��p̀�qpYds�hbid�̀uY�tubhcbi��XdY�bppbi��XỲ�Ys��sic�wỲ��

HE5CC9Cb�RP2�1V12b1CG91A�E9U1�7156�101C6A�P2�SPPWA�6P�G21569Cb�5�PC1cA6PH�W1AU�RP2�5EE�9CcH12APC�dD1291A�5CW�

A1209G1Ae�f1�RPGDA1W�PC�T19Cb�VP21�H21H521We�VP21�1gG91C6e�5CW�VP21�GDA6PV12cRPGDA1Wh�

i9C5EE3e�APV1�PR�PD2�b21561A6�G75EE1Cb1A�5A�5�G963e�21b9PC�5CW�H2P09CG1�H12A9A61W�9C�f756�f5A�671�j2A6�RDEE�3152�

ẁ�̀XdYspb̀iq�X̀qpkXsicd�bg���r̀uqbi��iddcq��ghb�spd�scsXpspb̀i�sic�pYsiqX̀Ypspb̀i�Yd�sbi�XYb̀Ybpbdq�

�i�������vd�hdadYs�dc�̀uY�XsYpidYqrbXq�sic�pr̀qd�hdadYq�vd�rsad�sq�h̀gsh��̀adYi�dip�p̀�XYdXsYd�ẁY�prdqd�

GPVHE1l�G75EE1Cb1Ah�m65Q�fP2U1W�f967�GPVVDC963�5CW�61G7C9G5E�1lH126A�6P�W101EPH�RD6D21cR5G9Cb�A62561b91A�

bighucbi��r̀v�p̀�ẁqpdY�sic�dfXsic�prd�uYtsi�ẁYdqp��b�XỲad�r̀v�vd�� àd�prỲu�r�prd�xbpy�nvsh���tb�d��

2PEE�5CW�W2901oe�ADHHP26�GPVVDC963�A1209G1�P2b5C9p569PCAe�5CW�H2PVP61�9CGEDA9PCe�W9012A963�5CW�GPVVDC963�

vdhhtdbi���

q7121�9A�VDG7�VP21�6P�WP�5CW�f1�7501�5C�5VT969PDA�3152�5715Wh�rD2�752WfP2U9Cb�A65Q�f9EE�GPC69CD1�6P�T1�

�ubcdc�ty�prd�Ỳsc�sX�XỲabcdc�ty�x̀uigbh�q��pYspd�bg�shsi��sic�̀uY�g̀��bp�dip�p̀�Xuppbi��pr̀qd�vd�qdYad�

sp�prd�gdipYd�̀w�dadYyprbi��vd�c̀��

�dsiid�tgxsYpry
uvwxy�z{|w}w~����w�x����x�

�dsiid�tgxsYpry

����������������������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"(

)01�343353436�789@ABC�DEFGE1HBA�ICG@�1@A8PQGRR1R�E01�R0GF1S�TBRB8@�8U�G�TBVFG@EW�F1RBCB1@E�G@S�

XỲaXbỲca�èffcghip�qrhsb�XYh̀Yhihthgu�irb�qbssvbhgu�̀w�Ybahxbgiay��rb�ẁss̀qhgu��bp�XYh̀Yhihba��

U8A9R1S�8@�089RB@HW�1@TBF8@P1@EGC�RE1�GFSR0BQW�EFG@RQ8FEGEB8@W�1A8@8PBA�HF8�E0�G@S�TBVFG@E�Q9VCBA�

aX�eba�qhss�uchxb�irb��hip�a�b�̀Yia�̀�bY�irb�gb�i�ẁcY�pb�Yay

������������a��ba
cd�efghijklem�jnneoohkle�jdp�qejliqr�nsttgdhir�

iqji�ho�hdnlgohuem�velnsthdw�jdp�ojxey

�����z�a��{z�����
c�phue|oe�ensdstr�vqe|e�dev�
jdp�e}hoihdw�kgohdeooeo�njd�w|sv�

jdp�iq|huey

���az�b�a~������
�ejpo�iqe�vjr�hd�nlhtjie�jnihsd�jdp�ho�
j�oievj|p�sx�iqe�eduh|sdtedi�xs|�

xgig|e�wede|jihsdoy

����~~a��a������
cnihue�jdp�ogoijhdjkle�vjro�xs|�
�es�le�jdp�wsspo�is�tsue�
����������������������

�������~������
�rdjthn��gklhn�o�jneo�jdp��ljneo�iqji��|suhpe�xs|�
nsddenihsd�jdp�nelek|jihsd�sx�|eohpedio��nglig|e�

jdp�qhois|ry

��������������������������� �
¡�¢£�¤£¥¦§¢̈£©§��ª¥¦¦��̈§«�̈¬�§¢£�®̄¦°��

±²³́ µ¶·�̧¹º»¹¼½¶µ�¾·»́
¿À¿¿Á¿À¿Â



��������	
������������� !"�  �#$�"�%&�'(
�&)01�21(�304)'�4�1�
�5�6����"7����"8!$9 �@�����A!8�#$�"�(�B�'0)�(��1�CDCEF�

�0G����HI����
���P0�)'21
�P�''�G&�(��&
�2
�P��P0HQ��0�23���B���0&13�'	
�B�
�01�0R�42Q�1G�0&H�3044&1��������ST�2'����
��U42''�

������1�����V0H'(	F

�����0H)0H2���W&
�1�

�X'21��
�0&H�211&2'�23��01�)'21���2��2'�G1
��0�0&H�Ỳ��2H�a!"�"8!�$�#$�"F�b���
�&
�(�%��0&H�c�2(�H
��)�

defg�ip�qrsspti�uprvwxy�q�qitfie�xw�stxptxixeq���xye�evqrtxv��prt�pt�fvx�fixpv��fq�i�e�wfsf�xyxixeq�vee�e��ip�f��fvwe�

�0&13�'	
�
�H2��G�3�)H�0H����
�21(�(�'�B�H�0&H�30H��
�HB�3�
�21(�)H0GH24
F�

�rt�uptsptfie��rqxveqq��yfv�xq�pt�fvx�e��ftprv��uprvwxy�q�stxptxixeq�fv��i�e�uxi��q��prt�pt�fvx�fixpvfy��e�eypsgevi��pfyq��

���
����G�̀'�B�'�)H�0H����
�21(�G02'
�
&))0H��21(�G&�(������P0HQ����������(0�
��B�H��(2�F��B�H�����30&H
��0R�����1������2HI�

2�X�HR0H4213����2
&H�4�1���H24�P0HQ�P�''�%��(�B�'0)�(�
0����������321�R&H���H�4�2
&H��)�HR0H4213�I��(�1��R��2H�2
�R0H�

�4)H0B�4�1�I�2(�&
���0�3�21G�1G��1B�H014�1�
�21(�3�H3&4
�213�
�21(�301��1&���0�42Q���1R0H4�(�(�3�
�01
F�

�

cdefdeghi�jklmnill�opgn



���������	
���	���������	�������	� ��!
"���� �	���



�

��������	�
��	���������	��������������������	���	�� ��!����"�����������������##�����������	�

�	�$	���%������	���&���	�'������(���������)���	���$��	�����0�1��������	���������$���	����������

���������������������������������2324�'������(���������)���	�%���$����	�
���������&�&��	�����$����

	����$�������5���� ���
0

6�89@ABCDCE�

6�9FG9HFG�IFE�9F�DPI8Q�

6�9FG9HFG�IFE�BIGGHFG�

6�F9D�RDIPDCE�

STU�WUXY�̀a�YUb̀Uc
dedf�Xgghipq̀rTiUaSr



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ((

)�1)23�4�135673�58996@ABC
DE�GHIPQRE�S�TSUE�SVR�TEWXHE�WIYYXVQ̀a�bcEHE�cIYET�SVR�dXTQVETTET�SHE�bEee�
GHÌEẀERf�GEHTIVSe�QVUIHYS̀QIV�QT�TEWXHERf�SVR�̀cE�gQ̀a�QT�GHEGSHER�̀I�HETGIVR�
Ì�SVR�HEWIPEH�UHIY�EYEHhEVWQET�SVR�RQTST̀EHTi

p�rstusvw�ytw���y����r�w��wsv����w�u�w�sw��������u�
����������_�̀a���bàc�d�_̀�e_�f�_̀c�gc�_e�hie_je��k�l���jeie�̀m�̀ce�nàk��o�f�_̀c�p����qre_�snfpt���id�èeu���_��je��o�
qdu�̀ev���u�aid_�reie�̀v�a���qua�jw���id�èa����o�̀ce�f�_̀c�gc�_e�xav�v̀e_�yeva�ae��e�zvvevvie�̀�sxnyzt{��ur���a�j����
|}~��~�����~��|��������|���|}|�~����~����|��|�����|�����|���~���~����|}|�������~��|����|��|������|�~��������~����
��u�̀_�a�a�j�i�ue��o�_�aid�eie�̀�̀a���a��������nfp�b�v���v����̀are�k�a�r��reu�a��̀ce�f�_̀c�gc�_e�h�̀_eie��e�̀�l�dda�j�
��u�pq��e_��a�àk��_� e�̀�bàc�xav̀_a�̀��o�f�_̀c�p����qre_m�xav̀_a�̀��o�¡ev̀�p����qre_m�¢£¤¥¦¤§̈©ª«¬�¥¤®©¥̄¤�°±²�~�����
f�̀a��t���u�«³́̄ ¤́³µ¶·�şv�ea�¹¡�q̀q̀c�f�̀a��t�̀��qdu�̀e��q_�e�̀_eie�ce�̀�_evd��ve�d�����

p���wuyw�ytw��º»¼�v�½u¾wy�������yyww���������y��¿vy��s��¼us�
������Àm�̀ce�nàk�_eo_evceu�̀ce��q��a��g�oèk�n�iià̀eeÁv�̧e_iv��o�yeoe_e��e���u�
��id�èeu����av̀��o�Âek�àeiv���u�a�àa�̀arevm��v�be����v����̀_a�q̀a�j�̀��̀ce�n�iiq�àk�
¡e���ea�j�g̀_�̀ejk���������m�̧ce�nàk�ba������̀a�qe�̀��b�_Â�̀�b�_uv�ev̀���avca�j����
|��|��~������������±~�|���±��~�|�����~��~������������ÃÄÅ�����~�|������~��~�������~��
������������~��~���Æ������������|���~�|���Ç�����ÃÄÅ������|�������~�|��|��~�����~�����~��
c��av̀a����k�vqdd�_̀�nfpÁv�d��a�k�o_�ieb�_Â��

p�rstusvw�Ètw���y����rÉ��y�s�����ywvy��s��¾����Êuv��½��yw��
Èt��º�t�ËwÊw¼���wsy��¾�u�ÌwÍ������u�

������Àm�nfp��_e�̀eu�̀ce��_ar��k�l���jeie�̀��_�j_�i�Î_�ieb�_Â�̀��ev̀���avc�
��|�����Å���Ï~�|���|���������|�����Ð����}~���~������������|�~�����|���Æ|��~�|~������
aid_�reie�̀��̧ce��_e�aia��_k��_ar��k��id��̀�zvvevvie�̀�b�v�_eraveu���u�̀ce��_ar��k�
�id��̀�zvvevvie�̀�̀eid��̀ev�be_e��_e�̀eu�a������_u���e�̀��̀ce�ÎÑ���z���������m�̀ce�
�������~�������|�����~�������|�|���~�����~��Ò~��������|����}~���Ó~�~�|�|��������~�Ô�
çav�d_�j_�i�ba����e�qveu�̀��vè�e�de�̀�̀a��v����c�b�̀��d_�̀e�̀m�u��qie�̀m���u�ve�q_e�
de_v�����a�o�_i�̀a��m�bca�e�������a�j�̀ce�j�re_�ie�̀Áv�����q�̀��a�àk�̀��̀ce�dq��a��o�_�
���evv�̀��a�o�_i�̀a���

p�rs�º�w���y��½yuÕ���w�u�w�sw���¾���¿vy�Êw�Èt�wuy�rÊwsy�
z����̀are�̀c_e�̀�av����eie_je��k�ere�̀�a��bca�c����a�uarauq���bàc���be�d���d�vev����aiieua�̀e�u��je_�̀��v�oèkm�a��̀cav�
�~�|�~����������Ç���|�Ô��ÃÄ������|�|��~�����|�����|�����|�~�|�����Ö���}|�×��|~���~����������|����~Ø���~������~����~Ï�|����
e�e_�avev�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012324�367�89@A6�BCDE9FG7@�HCID�P9IQRDS�TCERQRAUV�

�

2WW9XRA7�WCS74�Y@9FD̀�a@7CbRDS�c9@�A67�D7I�dC69D�0C@b�e6RQ̀EC@7�e7DA@7�CD̀�TR7Q̀69FX7V�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0�2304526�7�8349@ABCD�
9@AAECB56�
FG�IPQRSTG�UV�SVWXỲSRG�GVRSPQVaGVb�cdGPG�TSRGP̀Sbe�S̀�PG̀IGWbGT�UVT�
WGXGfPUbGTg�UVT�WQaaYVSbe�aGafGP̀�UPG�̀YIIQPbGT�UVT�WQVVGWbGTh�

iTRUVWG�UVT�TGXSRGP�WQaaYVSbe�PGWPGUbSQVUX�UVT�UaGVSbe�pUWSXSbSG̀�SVWXYTSVqr

s�uvwwx���w������������x����w�v���������w�������w�uvw���w������w����������x�����w��
�w�̀����a���������

bc�cde�efg�hi�jkjlm�noppq�rephse�thssufvcq�wexpeocvhf�tefcpeyzv{|ep�nop}hup�zefvhp~��bxcv|vcq�tefcpe�~�xhfxpece�~cpuxcupe�

v~�xhs�{eceg�ch�o}h|e��phufg���de�xhf~cpuxcvhf�xhfcvfue~�o~�cde�o}h|e��phufg�~cpuxcupe�ofg�}uv{gvf��ef|e{h�e�ope�

ufgep�oq��tv|v{m�sexdofvxo{�ofg�e{excpvxo{�vfipo~cpuxcupe�v~�}evf��vf~co{{eg���t�nqgph�ofg�ce{exhssufvxocvhf~�vfipo~cpuxcupe�

hf��o~c�jlpg�zcpeec�v~�ufgep�oq�ofg��v{{�}e�xhs�{eceg�vf�eop{q�jkj���

s���w����v������w��v������������v�����x�
t���do~�xhs�{eceg�xhf~cpuxcvhf�hi�cde�fe��x{u}dhu~e�ihp�cde��hpcd��ofxhu|ep��o�f��h�{vf��t{u}���de�fe��ioxv{vcq�v~�o�

������������������  ¡¢�����£�¡��¤� ¡�¥��� ¤����¢�¡��¡�¥�¤¦�¤�¡������ ��� §��������¥�¤¦��¡�¥ �����̈¡��� ��©�������¥� ���¢¡�¡¤¡� �

����¢��ª¥����� «�¬¦�����¢¦�� ��¦� �¢������ ¡¥����̈¡¤¦� ¡�§�¡�¡¤�������®¡¢¡�¡¤��¡���¡�������¡ ����§¤�¢���������©��¡�¤�����

xhssufvcq�u~e~��vcd�o�xocepvf��̄vcxdefm��o~dphhs~m�{hx̄ep~�ofg�~chpo�e��

s�a��°�x�a�±���v�����������x����w�v���������w��²³�wv́��
µf�jkjlm��hp̄��ph�pe~~eg�hf�cde�pege~v�f�ofg��{offvf��ihp�cde�vs�ph|esefc~�ch�cde�

¶vx̄eq�¶x·hu�o{{�}uv{gvf����de~e�u��poge~�ope�ihxu~eg�hf�efep�q�vs�ph|esefcm�

����  ¡¢¡�¡¤���§¥���� ���¡��̧ ���¤�� � ¤�� ����§�������¤������¡¤¡����¢�¡��¡�¥��¹�¡§���¤�

ofg��efepo{�}uv{gvf��sovfcefofxe���de~e�vs�ph|esefc~��v{{�o{~h�~u��hpc�cde�u~e�hi�

cde�}uv{gvf��}q�º{vx̄o�»qsfo~cvx~�

s������w��������¼�av�����vw°�����́�vw������w��v�́�����́�����
½��¤¦���������¾¿¾À��¤¦�������¡¤¡��������®��©�¤¡������¤¦���®¡ ¤¡�¥�Á���¦�� ��� �̈����� �

|e�ecocvhf�ofg�cpee�pesh|o{~�xhssefxeg��thf~cpuxcvhf�hi�cde�fe��xdv{gxope�xefcpe�

����Á���¦�� �����¡�¡¤��¡ ������̈��«�¬¦����� ¤���¤¡���¡ � �¦�������¤��¢�����§��¤���¢��

cde�efg�hi�jkj��ofg��v{{�h�ef�eop{q�jkjÂ�

s��́�³��v���������x�Ã�����������wv���x�Ä�(ÅÆx�vw����������v�
Ç��¾¿¾À��È¤�É�§�� ��¤�������©¡ �������¤����¤¦��Ê�����¡¤��Ë���¢�¡�¥�È¤��¤�¥��¤��

thufxv{�ofg�pexev|eg�~u��hpc��Ì{of~�ope�ch��pe~efc�ch�thufxv{�ihp�xhf~vgepocvhf�hi�

Á�������§¤¡���¡���¡�̧¾¿¾Í«�Ç�§�����¤�¤¡������¤¦¡ �Î¿̧�������¤¡���§����̈¡��� ¤��¤���¤���

vf�jkj��

s��́�v�������Æ�vw°��������������³w���́�������́�Ï�́����������������Æ�������³³�w��
¼�w��������v́����¼v������Ð������w�Ð�³��³��������́��v��������Ð�³��³������������v�Æ��v����
��v�������Ð�v�́���́���́�v���v��w��°��¼��w��Ñ³�w��������³���w�x�v�́��w�������������Ò

Ç��¾¿¾À��¤¦�� ¤���¥¤¦��¡�¥�Ê�����¡¤¡� �È��©¡�� �Ó���¤�§��©¡���� �§§��¤�¤������������¡¤�«�ÊÔÕ��� ��̈��ª���¤���É���

of�efdofxeg�~dh�ep��ph�pos�ofg�iupcdep�~u��hpc�cde�zh{ucvhf~��o|v�ochp~�Ìph�pos��t����hp̄eg��vcd�cde�Ìph|vfxe�ch�

 �§§��¤��� ¡���¤ ��¡ §������¢����Á��«�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0�23456�8�94@6A�BA4@C�D4EC@6F�GC3HI6P4Q�B6@86CRF
ST�VWXỲ�abacd�efgThỲ�ipfWqrp�qsr�tXuq�vfwrXqx�yrpghqYfT��qXiqr�x��fX�qsr��fXqs��sfXr��e����fX�rp��Yqs�qsr��YuqXYhq�f���ruq�

�����������ab��cdea�d�a��f�g��ab������������ab��hijkljmnopqr�shtmuovqrw�uxy�qz{v{jz|u}�s~q{pv{��um|m|rw��u|v�xq�a������a��

ab��ea��a�����g�a�����de�ab������ad��e�g��d��a��e�����������������ab��g��ab��b����g�d�b����b�������e������������e������

a��e�����a�f���e�����d�����a��f������a���dab�dee��e�����d���f����b��ed����f�������ed������e�����ab�����ada�����f�����d��e�

�b���a��d���a������ee�e���d��e�

0��Q3C@68�C�8��H554@6PEC��HQ3PQR�@CEPC��64�8�PRQ�8����4@���4���H554@6PEC�4@�I4��HQP6F�
�8�C3��HQ3PQR��I4��HQP6F�R@8Q6���I4@C��HQ3PQR��5C@�P��PEC�68��C�C�56P4Q��8Q3�
QH�C@4H��46AC@�R@8Q6���6A86�6AC��P6F�5@4EP3C���P6A�855@45@P86C��6@86CRPC���4��CI6PEC��
8Q3�5@P4@P6PC��

 ��¡¢¡£����������ad���¤���d���¥��d���¥¤¦���e�dee�������������e��a��a���e���������� ��¡¢¡§��ab�������de�a��������a��ab��

���d���������d���f���������������������ad��e�a��̈����d���



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()0102�455647�89@A8B��C��DEFG�IP�QIRFS�TUQDIVTWR

X�̀abbc̀ dce�f�X̀ c̀gghipc�
qrsstuvwx
y�������������������������������������������������������������������������̀�
abccdaedf�gcf�hcedijgedf�eb�dcgkld�emd�ngod�gcf�dpahdce�qbrdqdce�bo�sdbsld�
����t��������u������������������t���������v��������������w

x�yz{|}�~�}������|�}��}���z�~���}������z��y�|�{z������z���z�z���|�}��}��~���|}{�
��z��������z���|{�����(���|}�|}{���z�����z���}��~z�����|���{z��z|{����������

���������� �¡¢�£�¤�¥¦§§̈�¥¦£©�©�¤¡ ��¢¦���� �¥��ª� ���«��¬¡£����¥�®�̄£©���̄£¢°¡£±²�̄£©�¤¡§§�ª�¬�� �� ��� �£©�����̄¢��

¡£�³́³µ¶����������� �¡¢�̄£ ¡�¡�̄ �©� ��¢ ̄� ���£¢ �¦� ¡�£�§̄ ��³́³µ�����̄�§̈�³́³·²�̄£©�¤¡§§� ̄±��̄����̧¡ª  ̄�§̈�¹́�ª�£ �¢�

 ����ª�§� �¶�����®̄¢̄£�º°�¦ � ��¬���̄¢¢�¤¡§§����¬¡©��̄£�¡ª��� ̄£ ���££�� ¡�£�»� ¤��£�§��̄§���ªª¦£¡ ¡�¢²�̄�¢̄¥��

 �̄£¢��� ̄ ¡�£���¦ ��¥�����©�¢ �¡̄£¢�̄£©��̈�§¡¢ ¢²�̄¢�¤�§§�̄¢�̄�¢̄¥����¦ ��¥���ª £̄̈�§��̄§�¢ ¦©�£ ¢¶

x�¼½����z���z�~�½¾�����}��¿�¾z����¾�����À�������Á�z���|}���|��|��������|�}��Â����{�����
��z�~|���

Ã£�³́³Ä²�®ÅÆ�»¦¡§ �ª¡¢¢¡£Ç�§¡£±¢�¡£� ���®¡ ̈È¢�¢¡©�¤̄§±�̄£©�ª�»¡§¡ ̈�£� ¤��±¢¶�É�¬��̄§�¢¡©�¤̄§±¢²�ª�»¡§¡ ̈�§̄£�¢²���©�¢ �¡̄£�

ÊËÌÍÍÎÏÐÍÑ�ÒÏÓ�ÔËÒÕÊ�ÍÎÐÏÒÖÍ�×ØËØ�ÎÙÚÖØÙØÏÔØÓ�ÒÏÓ�ÊÌÙÚÖØÔØÓ�ÔÌ�ÎÙÚËÌÛØ�ÍÒÜØÔÝÞ

x�¼½��z½z}��ß��z�����¾�Â�z�à��|�|���¿����z{������(���z������}�
�������|�z����z�~|���|}���|��ß�z����z����z���}{�Âz�½�

��¡¢�¤��±��̄¢�¡£�§¦©�©�¢�ª���¥� ���¥�§§�¤¡£Ç�¡£¡ ¡̄ ¡¬�¢²�¡£�§¦©¡£Ç��«§̄££¡£Ç�¥����̄�¡©�

 �̄£¢¡ ��̧�̄£¢¡�£���£�̄£�¡£Ç��̧¡¢ ¡£Ç� �̄£¢¡ �¢��¬¡������¬¡�¤¡£Ç��̄�±¡£Ç���§¡�¡�¢�̄£©�

��̄� ¡��¢����£ ¡£¦�¦¢�¢̄¥��̄£©�̄� ¡¬��¢����§� �̄¬�§��§̄££¡£Ç²��©¬̄£�¡£Ç�¢�̄��©�ª�»¡§¡ ̈�

£̄©�ª¡���ª�»¡§¡ ̈��� ¡�£¢¶�

��̈� ����£©��¥�³́³Ä²� �����̄£¢°¡£±�¥¦£©�©�¦¢�É��¬¡�����§¡̄»¡§¡ ̈������� �̄ �

®�  �£	°�¤�°�¬�§���̄©	
�££̄�©�¡£ ��¢�� ¡�£�¤̄¢���ª�§� �©��£� ¡ª��̄£©�

�£�»¦©Ç� ¶���¡¢������� �¡£�§¦©�©�̄���ª�§�̧���©�¢¡Ç£��¥� ���¡£ ��¢�� ¡�£� ��

���̄ ��̄���£ ¡£¦�¦¢��̄¢ »�¦£©�»¦¢�§̄£��̄£©��̄¢ »�¦£©�ª�»¡§¡ ̈�§̄£�¶�

������Å�� ��É�����¦¢��̄�¡©���̄£¢¡ ������� � ���¦Ç����̄£¢°¡£±�¤̄¢�

ÚËÎÌËÎÔÎ�ØÓ�Ô�ËÌÐ��Ô�Ø��ËÒÏÍ�ÎÏ�����ÝØÒË�ÜÏÓÎÏÐ�ÍÔËÒÔØÐÝÞ�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()



��

������	
�������
���
���� �!"��#$%&'��(#!��(�")!"�! ��0'% !1"�!12��3�'"'14�!12�4'0��#�5#&��")��
5##5 "$1'"6�"5�4!")� 7�4 58�!12��511��"�") 5$4)�#5('"'0���3#� '�1��(9�

@�BCDECFG�IGC�PQRSTICEU�VWXR�DQE�YGC�̀GabcXEdeF�VEQSEXUUaRS
fg�ipiqr�stu�vwxy�������������������w����y�����wg��w��fg���������wx�vwg�����g����w���yyw������������wyx�g��w������������

����̀��a�bcde�fgh�ai�a�bh�jb�k��lijdm�cnc�hohbb�cp�oqbk�qd�lcd�dhcmh�b�jo�mrocpjs�i�lco�adcsh�pctjoq�com�hs�o�pjs�

mhuhd�aphok�jo�vwxyb�a��zhsk�k��c�kjsidckh�co�cq�hhm�libjohbb�p�mhd�com�a��q�cppjoq�mj�hskj�o�����kgh��iki�h����kgh�vjkryb�

{gjarc�mb�cphojkr�c�hcbe

@�|C}CWQb�VGXFC�~�QD�IGC�|QST�EaCRdWc�VWXR
fg�ipiqr���������y��g�����v��������g�����g����g��vwxy����wg��fg�ipi�r�������g��v�y����

a�hbhokjoq�kgh�adco�k��v�iosjd�����s�objmh�ckj�o��njkg�cskj�o�jkhpb�lhjoq�jpadhphokhm�

kgh�hc�kh�e



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

01�314567183190@@A�
63BC71B5D@3�E788F159A
GH�PQRSHTS�RUQ�HVWXQRVYHVS̀a�̀bbHSbc�̀ddQHbb�TaXY S̀H�TèVfH�SeQRUfe�PRaXTXHb�
V̀d�̀TSXRVbc�̀Vd�bSH̀dXag�QHdUTH�SeH�XYP̀TS�Rh�YUVXTXP̀a�RPHQ̀SXRVb�RV�SeH�
V̀SUQ̀a�HVWXQRVYHVSi
�

p�rstuv�xy�����ty��v�����
����������������_��̀�_�ab�cdef_�f�fb�cdggbhf�f�ai�ja_e�kbhl�_�̀����_��̀�fi��abmmd�jfn�obh�fi��̀�p�ebgm��f�bo�fi��qrstu�

vwrxyz�{|tu}�������~������_�fjajg_f�c�̀�p�ebgj���_��_afjb��ge_��fi_f�_ej��c�fb�fi��v�utu��t|�{|tu�_�̀�ah�_fj���m�fhjac�_�̀�_�

hinfim�bo�h�gbhfj���fb��bd�aje�b��_aij�p�m��fc�_�_j�cf�fi��ge_�}

p�rstuv������v����s�����yt����v��vy�v�����(�����y�������
���������_�h�pjc�̀�̀h_of�bo�fi�����������������������������������k_c�gh�c��f�̀�fb��bd�aje}�����fi���abmm��a�̀�

��� ��¡��¢�£¤¢¥�¦¤§̈¢�© ¢¤ª�̈«�¬��®̄°�¢¥��±� ²�³²¤¡ ¢�� �́�µ�¶¤§ª�¡��¢�·¢§ ¢��̧�£¤²²�¹��¹§ªº�¥¢�»ª§£ §́�¢ª�³ªº�¼¤²«�³©½�

kjee�_ecb�̀�p�ebg�_��_afjb��ge_��_ej���̀�kjfi�fi��v�utu��t|�{|tu�_�̀�ah�_f��m�fhjac�_�̀�hinfim�bo�h�gbhfj���fb��bd�aje�b��

_aij�p�m��fc�_�_j�cf�fi��cfh_f��n}

p��¾uutyv�¿t��s�������y����tyuty�v�t��������Àty�Á�Â�y�t��Ã�v�t�
¬��®Ä°�Åª�̈  ́²��µ��§�̧�³ª§Æª§ ¢¤ª��́�²¤¶�§�́� �Æ§�̈��¢ ¢¤ª��¢ª�³©½�̈¢ Ç�ª��¢¥��¹���±¢̈�ª»�Åµ³È̈�́¤̈¢§¤¼¢����§�̧�̧̈ ¢̈�¡°�

¤¢̈�ÉÊÉ�§�́º¼¢¤ª���ª ²̈� �́��ª ²̈�¢ª�¹º¤²́� £ §���̈ �̈ �́ �́¤¡¤�¤̈¥�§�̈¤̈¢ �¼�«�·¢ Ç� ²̈ª�̈ºÆÆª§¢�́�Åµ³�¤��¢¥�����ª¢¤ ¢¤ª��

ª»� ���£�±� �¼¤���» ¼¤²¤¢̧� �́°�¤��®̄°�³©½�£¤²²�¼ª�¢¤�º��¢ª�̈ºÆÆª§¢�Åµ³È̈�̈�£�§�£ ̈¢��¥� ¢�§�¼ª¶�§̧�Æ² �¢�¼ª�̈¢§º¼¢¤ª�� �́�

abbh̀j�_fjb��kjfi�iǹhb�kbhlc�j��fi��_h�_}��



��������	��
��	�������
�������� ���!"#$%���!�&��$%�'(!")$�"# �01����2"#�3"0��#"!�&"�"&�0(�0��
���0�&0�"# ��#1"#&��01��!��4%�5��!�"# �60�!�0(��5�01��&�776#�0(8�
�

9�ABCDECFG�IEDP�DPG�QGRGSBTUGCD�VTTSEWXDEBC�ỲBWGaa�bGREGI�XCc�
eUTSGUGCDXDEBC

fg�ipiqr�sg�tuvwu�xt�y���tux�x�w��w�w�t��wgx�����s��xstg��ut�wyy��w�sw�r������uw��uwv����t�ugw������sg���ut�wyy��gv�

�̀abc�dà�efg�haijbklkmn�opmqr̀ast�uvw�rlsk�abmrmà�r�ukbsolcrbc�ck�op̀rca�cja�gox̀�y�s�kb�rb̀�zayalkp{abc�ukbcqkl�

|����}�|��x�w�wgv�t~�ipi�r������gxs�s��xwy�uw�t��wgvsg���txwgxs���yt~x��uw��gv�v�x���utxt�t�y�xt�y���tux�x�w�gw�����r�

�kb�bm��rb̀�xo�l̀�bm�paq{�c��bcamqrc�kbs��rs��all�rs�ik{placa�cja�op̀rca�k��cja�gox̀�y�s�kb�ukbcqkl��nlr��rb̀�rsski�rcà�

yxuwwx�yx�gv�uvy}

9�VWWGaa�eUT̀BRGUGCDa�DB�AED���XSS��CSECG�XCc�eC�TG̀aBC��G̀REWGa�
fg�ipiqr�����~�����uwt�wgwv�x�w��qx���gv���x���xuwwx�wgxu�g�wy�xt����t��vsuw�x����wyy�xt��sx������}������uw�xwv���tgw�yxt��

às���kq�rll��b�paqskb��oaq�as�rb̀�saqy�ias�rc�kba�lkirc�kbt�uvw�rlsk��{pqkyà��b�paqskb�riiass�ck�ukobi�l�ujr{xaqs�kb�

�t�g�s��gs��xy}��g�sgw�ywu�s�w�s��ut�w�wgxy�sg���vwv�yt~x��uw�y�yxw�y����u�vwyr�sgxw�u�xstg��wx�wwg�y�yxw�yr�w�w�xutgs��

vt���wgx�y���syystg��ut�wyywy��gv���v�xwy�xt�~tu�y}

9��CcG̀DX�G��BCEC����SXI��TcXDG
eb�������gcr��ik{placà�poxl�i�abmrma{abc�rb̀�r�xasc�pqric�ias�qay�a���kq�ba���kb�bm�rb̀�̀ayalkp{abc�paq{�c�ckklst�

�n�{�̀�������cjan�rbc�i�prca�pqaprq�bm�rb̀�̀al�yaq�bm�ck�ukobi�l�ba���kb�bm�rb̀�̀ayalkp{abc�paq{�c�xnlr�s�rb̀�̀as�mb�

��svw�sgwy}



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0�2345673485�94@@8ABCD
EF�FHIPQRSTF�S�URPVUFRPQV�SHW�XYR̀àHT�FIPHPbc�dc�SXXRSIX̀HT�HFe�dQV̀HFVVFV�
SHW�VQUUPRX̀HT�Ff̀VX̀HT�dQV̀HFVVFVg�
�

h�pqrqstu�w�xswy��t���qy��ws��ty��wsq��t��y�wy�q�����q�������ws�w��s���������wy��������t���
wy���t��q���ws�����r���

à�bcbde�fghi�hij�ijkl�mnop�jqhjnark�jqljnhse�tuv�wnjrhjx�r�yrsjkgaj�rssjsspjah�om�tjahnrk�zoasxrkj�{|ja}je�figwi�gawk}xjx�

rark~sgs�om��woppjnwgrk�rax�njsgxjahgrk�woplosghgoa��l}ykgw�njrkp�rax�rpjaghgjs��hnraslonhrhgoa�rax�poygkgh~��̀a�bcb�e�ra�����

fgkk�yj�gss}jx�ho�ja�r�j�jqhjnark�jqljnhgsj�ho�woax}wh�jqhjasg|j�l}ykgw�ja�r�jpjahe�lnjlrnj�r�woplnjijasg|j�norxprl�rax�

o|jnrkk�shnjjhswrlj�xjsg�a�mon�hij�rnjr��̀a�bcbde�r�sh}x~�oa�yjsh�lnrwhgwjs�frs�woplkjhjx�rax�lnjsjahjx�ho�to}awgk���}axs�

mnop�hij��nofga��topp}aghgjs��}ax�ir|j�yjja�rkkowrhjx�ho�hij�lno�jwh��{�xjxgwrhjx��no�jwh��rar�jn�irs�yjja�ignjx�

h���tu��wy���tyt�������w�q����)���qw��xswy��
à�bcb�e�jqhjasg|j�njsjrnwi�rax�ja�r�jpjah�fghi�hij�y}sgajss�wopp}agh~�rax�

lrnhajns�frs�woplkjhjx�y~�jqhjnark�woas}khrahs�ho��rhijn�xrhr�rax�gasg�ihs�ho�

y}gkx�hij��hnrhj�~�mnrpjfon����}ykgw�gal}h�frs�sokgwghjx�hino}�i�ra�olja��zjh�s��rk���

wrplrg�a�lnopohjx�hino}�i�sowgrk�pjxgr�rax�ohijn�l}ykgw�o}hnjrwi�wiraajks��{�

hrn�jhjx�s}n|j~�frs�rkso�gss}jx�ho�tgh~��}sgajss�zgwjawj�iokxjns�ga�hij�s}ppjn�om�

bcb�e�figwi�mow}sjx�oa�gxjahgm~ga���j~�wirkkja�js�rax�ollonh}aghgjs�mon�kowrk�y}sgajss�

�nofhi�rax�lnosljngh~e�rs�fjkk�rs��rhijnga��mjjxyrw��oa�tgh~�sjn|gwjs�lno|gxjx�ho�

hij�y}sgajss�wopp}agh~���jjxyrw��mnop�tuv�hjrps�rax�sjwhon�mow}sjx�y}sgajss�

�������� ����¡¢�£���¡¤¥¡�£¦¡�� £¦� §�� ¥¢�������¡¢�£ ̈£©̈���©£¦©¥�£¦¡�¢� ª£�«£� £¡�§¬�

figwi�frs�hija�lnjsjahjx�ho�to}awgk�ga�}k~�bcbd���gawj�hijae�xgsw}ssgoas�fjnj�ijkx�

�©£¦��¡��¡�¡¥£ £©®¡���ª�£¦¡�̄��©¥¡���̈�°°�¥©£§�£���¡®©¡��£¦¡�¤¥ ±��£� £¡�§²�³¦¡�¤¥ ±�

shnrhj�~�frs�rxolhjx�y~�to}awgk�ga�jrnk~�bcb��

h�́t�q�y�µq���q�¶·��yq������qy��y��x�t�q����t�́w�q�����w��q��
�t��¶·��yq��q��wy��̧y��r��·ws���t���w����́w�y�w�y�wy���¹uwy��
��q���¶·��yq��

º¥�»¼»½¬� �¥¡��°�¢¡±�ª���̄��©¥¡���±©̈¡¥̈¡� ��±©̈ £©�¥��� ��̄¡©¥��¢¡®¡±��¡¢�£��¡£¦¡���©£¦� �°�¢¡�¥©¾¡¢�¿��©¥¡���À©̈¡¥̈¡�

�~krf���ij�gplno|jpjahs�rnj�gahjaxjx�ho�pr�j�gh�jrsgjn�mon�y}sgajss�ofajns�ho�woplkjhj�hij�y}sgajss�kgwjasga��lnowjss��

�okkofga��r�lnow}njpjah�lnowjsse�r�woahnrwh�frs�rkso�gss}jx�ho�y}gkx�r�xgnjwhon~�mon�kowrk�y}sgajssjs�ho�mrwgkghrhj�l}ykgw�

rfrnjajss�ome�rax�rwwjss�ho�kowrk�y}sgajssjs�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"((



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0�23450667�894@AB43C69�
A8D0B3E0F3AB
GH�PQH�P�RHPSHQ�TU�VQWXWYTÙ�YQPUaVPQHUY�bacPR�adaYPTUPeTRTYf�PUS�PccWdUYPeTRTYfg
�

i�qrstuvwv�y��vw������vsv�w��u��������r���v��u�v�w�������w���w��v���v�v�����������v��
��wv���_��̀�v����̀��r�̀�a

bc�dedfg�hij�kclmnoplmq�rssml�tpcpnmumcl�vwpcckcn�xrtvy�kclz�kls�p{{oz|mq�}lkwkl~��}qnmls�lz�sm�}om�wzcn�lmou�omskwkmc�m�

��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ¡¢������

����������������� ¡¢������£��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������¤����������¤�����

pcq�{wp~noz}cqs¥

i��st�r¦v�w§v�̈�������u��u���������©u���ª����vsv�w���r�v����r��_�̀�vw����wr���r¦�̀v�
�r�v�«ttr�w���w�v���r��w§v�qrss���w¬�wr��§��v�w§v����̀v�����̀��r��w�r���v��wr����r�s�
�v����r���

bc�dedfg�l®m�̄°±²±³°²́�µ́²±�¶ps�ku{oz|mq�¶kl®�p�{}�wk�w~�·p�kcn�qz�}umcl�l®pl�¶ps�sku{wm�pcq�mps~�lz�ompq¥�̧®m�{}�wk��kc{}l�

{mokzq�¶ps�m¹lmcqmq�pcq�¶ps��zwslmomq��~�p�sz�kpw�umqkp��pu{pknc¥�hij�om�mk|mq�z|mo�fe�¶okllmc�oms{zcsmsg�¶®k�®�¶mom�

�������º��������������������������������������

i�qr�w���v�wr�ỳ¦���v�w§v��v¦vurtsv�w�r����»v��̈�������u�̈��sv�r�¼�w§�w��st�r¦v��
w§v��vuv¦���v���vu��©�u�w¬���̀�½�svu��v���r��w§v�q�w¬¾��̈�������u��vtr�w������̀���ttr�w��
¿��u�w¬�̈�������u��v����r�À��¼���

�ÁÂ��������������������£������Ã��������º�������Ä���������£������������£�������Ã�������������� ������������������������

£�����������������Ä���������¤����������������������������������������������¤�����������������������������������¤��������

om{zolkcn�pcq�|pokpc�m�om|km¶�smsskzcs�¶mom�omslo}�l}omq�kc�dedf�lz�ku{oz|m�omwm|pc�m�z·�kc·zouplkzc�{omsmclmq¥�r�cm¶�

¤���������������Ã������������£����������������Å�������������������������������������������Æ������������£��Ã�������Ç������

 ����������¤������������������������������������������������������Ã�������������������Å� ������¡���������È������

i�qrstuvwv���qr��ru�̀�wv̀�̈vv�_¬u���wr��st�r¦v�w§v����©�u�w¬�r�����̀�½����t��v��¬�
_v§��̀��w§v�q�w¬�r��»r�w§����r�¦v�¾��̈vv�

 ����ÁÂ���������������Ã������������º���£������������������������������������������������������Ã��������������É����

���������¤�������Ã�Ê���������������������������������������������������Ë�Ã����������¤���������������������������Å�����������

Ìm�zuumcqplkzcs�·zo�·mms�pcq��®ponms�¶mom�qm|mwz{mq�pcq�p{{oz|mq��~�hz}c�kw�kc�wplm�dedf¥�̧®ks�¶zoÍ�mcp�wmq�l®m�

{oz{zsmq�dedÎ�lp¹�oplm�lz��m�wz¶mo�l®pc�¶®pl�kl�¶z}wq�®p|m�zl®mo¶ksm��mmc¥�bc�ÏÎ�dedfg�l®m�cm¹l�{®psm�z·�l®m�{ozÐm�lg�lz�

qm|mwz{�z·�p�hzcszwkqplmq�Ñmms�pcq�h®ponms�Ò~wp¶g�¶ps�}cqmo¶p~¥��



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

01�3451�6�5170758�
39701@A0B@31
CD�FGD�FHIPQDRS�FTU�HVTWPWIDTIRS�DTXFXPTX�VYG�GDWPUDTIW�FTU�WIF̀DaVRUDGW�YWPTX�F�
QFGPDIS�Vb�cRFIbVGdW�VT�ePIS�cGVfDHIWg�cGVXGFdWg�WDGQPHDW�FTU�PTbGFWIGYHIYGDh
�

i�qrstuvwv�y��u��������vsv�w����sv�r��
����������_̀ �a�bcbad�efgh�gha�ijkkl�fgm��ngco��c�d��jl�ifp�gj�f�qjrk�j��hje�gha�qrckaejrs�efpp�trjufda�ij�nfnga�im�eha��

a�bcbf�b�efgh�gha�ijkkl�fgm��f�iracna�jttjrgl�fgfan�qjr�tlvpfi�tcrgfiftcgfj��c�d�awlft�ngco�efgh�gha�gjjpn�gham��aad�gj�vlfpd�

xyz{�|{}�~�y�z���zx���x���{��|yy�z|�������{���y��������|�y�z��������yz����|��|��z�}��~����}��z��zx{�~����{��y�~{��������

�x�������z{�x��|�~z{��~����|���y�|����~���|}�~�z����z��~������|{}��z��x{~��������������������{}�z�������������z|��~���z�

�z�y����������z��x{~����{�|����{����|���z���|{}�y����{��~���z��zx{�~���z���z{�~}��|�~z{�

i�q�v�wv��r��sv�w�������vsr���u��yru����
����������_̀ �trana�gad�c�qrckaejrs�gj�blfda�gha��j�lka�gn�c�d��akjrfcpn��jpfim�gj��jl�ifp�������� ��ngco�c�gfiftcga�

��yz��~{���|����z��zx{�~���~��������z�y�����}�|���yz�~����z���z{�~}��|�~z{�

i�qrssv��v�¡r���r���vsr���u�¢r��£��w�s��r¢��u��¤w�y¥¦§(
����������_̀ �ratjrgad�gj��jl�ifp�j��pjicgfj��napaigfj��irfgarfc�����acrpm���� ��c�nfga�qjr�gha�kakjrfcp�ecn�c��jl�iad��̈gco�

|����z��~{��z{�����}��~�{�|{}�~�y����{�|�~z{��~������������~{���z��~�����~{������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0�23345607895�@�
23AA0B3607895�36C0D8E0783D
FG�IPQR�ISTU�V�ISWG�QVXYG�P̀�aVQTXGQb�TP�cPXTSXdVeef�SgaQPhG�TUG�WGeShGQf�P̀�aQPYQVgbi
bGQhScGb�VXW�SX̀QVbTQdcTdQG�ISTUSX�TUG�pSTfq�
�

r�tuvuwxy�u�y��������x���������������_��̀ �a���b�c̀d�a���edfaghi
jk�lmno�pqpr�stu�vw�xyz{|�}w�~�������|�����~��w|����~}���������}����������|��}������������������� ¡�������¢¡£¤¥

r�t���¦��u������xu�§�̈u��©�xª¦�§�«uvy�¦��¬̈¦��¦�̈��®̄ā�®fd°�b±�̄�ā²³d̀f̀f�i�edfagh
jk�pqpŕ�stu�µ¶so�·m̧ ¹̧ºsu»�¼·nu¶n½¾¿msmst�À¿s¶¹kÁ·�¾tuo½¿t½¾¶Âtuk�µ¿k¹u�Ãu·s¶Ä¿nÅ

r�t�Æ�vu�u�Ç�È�xÆy�¦���ÉuÊ̈��v�§Ë�Ìy¬�ux�Ívy�
Î�Ï ¡��Ð��¡��������Ñ£¤��¡¤Ò���Ñ �¢����Ï ÐÐ�Ó Ñ���Ô£�£¡¢�¢£�£¡��ÕÑ Ï£�����������ÖÒ���¤Ñ�×��ØÔ£�Ù£�Ñ�Ñ �¤��Õ�����¤£Ô£Ð Õ£¤¥

r�txuy�u�y�«u¬�uÊ�È�v�t�ÆÆ��¦Êy�¦���Í�v¦ÊË
Úk�ÚÂs¹Ûuº�ÜÝ́�pqpŕ�stu�Þu·̧uÂsßmn�µ¹ààmk¶Â¿s¶¹k��¹n¶Âo��¿·�¿̧ º̧¹Äu»�Ûo�µ¹mkÂ¶nÅ���»us¿¶nu»�̧º¹Âu··�ß¹º�¶à ņuàuks¿s¶¹ḱ�
ºuÂ¹º»·�à¿k¿�uàuks�¿k»�sº¿¶k¶k���¿·�Â¹à ņusu»�Ûuß¹ºu�ou¿º�uk»Å

r��¬�ywv¦¬̈�y�t���Ê¦v�t��u��È�t����Ê�
Úk��uÂuàÛuº��́�pqpŕ�µ¹mkÂ¶n�¿̧ º̧¹Äu»�stu�µ¹mkÂ¶n�µ¹»u�¹ß�µ¹k»mÂsÅ�¼tu�µ¹»u�¹ß�µ¹k»mÂs�·us·�¹ms�·t¿ºu»�u�̧uÂs¿s¶¹k·�
ß¹º�Â¹k»mÂs�¿k»�Ûut¿Ä¶¹º�s¹�uk·mºu�st¿s�stu�»ms¶u·�¿k»�¹Ûn¶�¿s¶¹k·�¹ß�µ¹mkÂ¶n�¿ºu�̧uºß¹ºàu»��¶st�stu�t¶�tu·s�ust¶Â¿n�
·s¿k»¿º»·Å

r��¬�ywv¦¬̈����ux�yv�t�ÆÆ��¦�Ë��yÈu�Ë�t�ÆÆ¦��uu
��»º¿ßs�¼uºà·�¹ß�ÞußuºukÂu�¿k»�·m̧ ¹̧ºs¶k��ºu̧¹ºs�t¿Äu�Ûuuk�Â¹à ņusu»�ß¹º�stu�k¹�½s¶snu»�µ¹ààmk¶so��¿ßuso��»Ä¶·¹ºo�
µ¹àà¶ssuuÅ

0���	
���36C0D8E0783D
FG�VQG�QGcPYXS�GW�Vb�V�TPai�SXXPhVTShG�GgaePfGQ�IUGQG�TUGQG�Sb�V�IGee�GbTV�eSbUGW
cdeTdQG�P̀�eGVQXSXY�VXW�cPXTSXdPdb�SgaQPhGgGXTq
�

r�txuy�u�y�Íu��vu�Ívy��È�x��̈u��x§y�¦�y�¦�������v¦§����x�Íu��vu�ty�yÊ¦�Ë�y���ty�yw¦v¦�¦u¬�
¦�̈���xy�u§¦Ê�y���t�x��xy�u�Íx¦�x¦�¦u¬������¬�xu�u�yxu���¦�u��wË�t���Ê¦v�¬���xy�u§¦Ê�
Ívy�

��£��£ ÕÐ£��¡¤������������	

�
����	�������	���
���������	��	������������������
���������	�������������������������	�
��
������������ �!"�#�$�"���%%�" &�'�(��� �"���)�*��������+��,��������#���'�"�-

r��u�uv���y��5��7�9���7�ux;7�9�y���=�>v�;7����xy?u@�xA������7v��y��=�>v�;7�u�t�??��7�9�
C�x�yvv�t7�9�Du;7�u��;�y�����y��

 F!������
����	�
������	
�"	���
	�������
��
������	
��������	�
���#$��%�	���������
������������&� �������#��	���
���

'�����
�����
���$G���H��#�������H�	
���
������
���	�������	����	������I�	��	
�����	����	��
����������������#$����	������

�� ��,,"�J� ��%�&���,����,"&�"&�&���K(�����K�'&��&�'��!��*##�"�LMLN-�O��"��!��"P�QR(�$&���,"�%�� �K(�&#,��#���&�'���(�

	����
�����
��S����
�������	
�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0123�56�789�1@7A52B�17�789�@A73�BC12�5D9E�1�2FGH9E�56�391EBI�P89�65QQ5RA2S�1E9�1TTA7A521Q�
1@7A52B�1TT9T�75�789�(U(V�R5EWCQ12�7817�1QAS2�RA78�789�X5F2@AQYB�B7E179SA@�CEA5EA7A9B�12T�

X̀ aYB�5ES12Ab17A52�CEA5EA7A9BI�

dedf�hiip�qrstu

t�vwxy������s��hs
��������������������������̀ �abc��a��d��e�c��f���fag�f������h���fag��d��������i��

i�f��i�fag�����h��ab����f��j

k�lag�b�a�d��m��f���a�n�opqprst�uvw�xytrpypvz�xvxzxuzxqp{�zs�uwquv|p�}p|sv|xrxuzxsv�

z~uz��xrr�{�tts�z�����{��pruzxsv{~xt{��xz~�z~p����������������������������������������

��������������������� ��

k��dh����m�f�̀��������h������l̀���e�̀ �a��n�¡�xrw�vp��|��¢�rpz�ws�v{�xv�t�xs�xz£�u�pu{�

zs�t�sqxwp�¢u��xp�¤¥�pp�u||p{{�zs�{~sttxv¦§�z�uv{xz§�{|~ssr{�uvw�~s{txzur{�

k�̈�d��ab�©��g��m�����n�ª«¬¬®̄�°±̄±²�±³±¬́µ�̄¶³°·�±³°�̧¶̧±¶�±�¹«º·»³¼�½°·�

¾̧«¶̄�̄¿±̄�°·®¶»À·�®º¶¶³̄�±³°�̧¶«Á®̄°�¿«º·»³¼�³°·�±·�¶Âº»¶°�̄¿¶«º¼¿�

rp¦x{ruzxsv�¢£�z~p�Ã�sqxv|p�s¥�¡�

t��sÄwhwsÅx�vwxy
��m������a���������fg���i���f���a����̀f���f����a�fag�f����f��f�����f�g�����i��

�ae���à �a�������d�d���b�a��f���a�j�

k�Æ���̀ �Çf����Èfafb�̀ �a�n�Év|r�wp�ys�p��uxv�¦u�wpv{��xz~xv�{z�ppz{|utp{

k�Ê�e�ab�Ë�������b�f̀ n�Ãruvzxv¦�s¥�vp��{z�ppz�z�pp{

t�v�ÅÅsvxsu�vwxy
����aa����g���������e�g���f���e��fag��d��f�afh����f��������������fag�b��g��

ÌÍ�ÎÍÏÐ�ÌÍÑ�ÒÓÍÎÑ�ÔÕÖ�×ØÌÙØÕ�ÌÙÐ�ÚØÌÛ�ÜÔÒÐÌÛ�ÔÕÖ�ÐÝÞØÐÕÌßÛà

k�È�h������©������n��svzxv�p�wprxqp�£�s¥�z~p�Ã�xs�xz£��s¢xrxz£��pz�s���¥s|�{xv¦�sv�

xv|�pu{xv¦�z~p�v�y¢p��ys¢xrxz£�ruvp{��xv��xrsypzp�{�§�u{��prr�u{�t�sqxwxv¦�ys�p�

pw�|uzxsv§�|syy�vx|uzxsv�uvw�pv¦u¦pypvz�u�s�vw�z~py

k�Ê�a�gf���̈�bi�f���e���f���È�h������l̀���e�̀ �a��n��srru¢s�uzp��xz~��xvx{z�£�

«���¶±³·̧«¶̄±̄»«³����³�¶±·̄¶º®̄º¶�̄«�°·»¼³�»� ¶̧«��³̄·�̄«�±®®··»À»¬»̄́�±³°�

|sy¥s�z�¥s��tpwp{z�xuv{§�|£|rx{z{�uvw��~ppr|~ux���{p�{��{xv¦�z~p��x¦~�u£�	�sqp�tu{{�

uz�
sv{wurp



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0�2345673485�9@AB
C�EFGHIPFGQH�RSTU�HQIIGFTH�V�WSXPFHP�PYG̀GaU�bU�YFPVTS̀c�V̀�

P̀XSFG̀aP̀T�dePFP�̀Pd�V̀W�PfSHTS̀c�bQHS̀PHHPH�YV̀�cFGd�V̀W�TeFSXPg

h�iPVpTe�V̀W�qSrP�sYSP̀YPH�RpQHTPFt�vwxy������x����xyw����y������������

�x������yw����x����xy�x�������x���y��xy�������y�w��x�

h�sTFVTPcSY�qV̀W�sTPdVFWHeSI��GWPpt�̀abacde�f�cghi�dj�ifklai�fmnoghgigdp�

���x���yw��wxy�����qrs�t��tx���x������w��t������yuwxvx��t�xy�ut�w������x����

�wv�y�x���x������x������yw���x���w���t�x�wx�

0�yz{|}~A�9@AB
C��SbFV̀T�RSTU�SH�dePFP�WÙVaSY�IQbpSY�HIVYPH�V̀W�IpVYPH�

IFGXSWP�GIIGFTQ̀ STSPH�rGF�YG̀ P̀YTSG̀�V̀W�P̀VbpP�FPHSWP̀TH�TG�P̀cVcP�

dSTe�TePSF�YGaaQ̀ STU��V̀W�YPpPbFVTP�TePSF�YQpTQFP�V̀W�eSHTGFUg

h�RSTU�dSWP�EVF�H�RGaIFPeP̀HSXP�EpV̀��IWVTPt�vy�����x���x�yx��

q��t�x�xy��vx����y��������������x�����x�����xy������x����t��������xxy�����

����x����x��x����y���������x���yw�y���������x�������x�����x������y����yxxw��

�yw�wx�x���yx���x������x�v����y��yw��x�v��x��xvx������w��x��������x���t�����

�yvx���xy���yw�wx�����y�����y������yw�t������xy���x�

h��S̀cH��Spp��Vp��EVF���VHTPF�EpV̀t�q���xy�x���y��������y������x�

��y���x���������������y������w������y��������x����w�����wx����x����y��

yx���w������w�wxvx��tx�

0��z��0����
|��2���z{���
�|�0�z�0�z��

���������������������� �¡��¢�¡���£�����¡�¤£¥���£¦£¡����§���¡̈�
V̀W�VYYGQ̀ TVbSpSTUg

h��PU�EPFrGFaV̀YP�©̀WSYVTGFHt�ªxvx��t�yx���x��tx������y�x��yw������������

q��y���«�������x����t�������x�¬�

h��GF��EpV̀ S̀̀ct�xv��x���x�®̄°±̄°²³́�µ¶·̧¹́··�º»²¹��yw������t��yy�y��

¼abacde½api�ekdmahhah�id�g½ekdba�gpialkfigdp�¾gi¿�Àpfpmgfc�ecfppgpl�fp¼�

tx�t�x�t��yy�y�

h�ÁRRH�V̀W�CRRHt�Âe¼fia�ÃÄÅÆh�iddch�jdk�Àpfpmgpl�lkd¾i¿�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0�2345678�
9@A0BCD0EC9B

FG�IPG�PGQRSTUVGW�IX�I�YR̀a�UTTRbIYUbG�Gc d̀ReGP�fgGPG�YgGPG�UX�I�

fGddhGXYIidUXgGW�QpdYpPG�Rq�̀GPqRPcITQGa�IQQRpTYIiUdUYea�dGIPTUTS�ITW�

QRTYUTpRpX�Uc P̀RbGcGTYr
�

s�tpXUTGXX�up̀ R̀PY�v�wPITXqRPcIYURTx��������������������������������������

����abc�d��ec��bf�g�ec���c�afhhc���gc��e�fcfa�edh�cijdj��ak�c�l��em��ec��

njijochdj��k�dcnj��em��ec����n�gfa�cdj��aj�iegj

s�pGIWGPXgÙ�qGbGdR̀cGTY�rPIcGfRPsx�tu���u����������v����������

w�x����u����y��u����z��������{��u������������v����������������x�����|�����

c�l��em��ec�

0B�9}~B���~BA0A~��
9@A0BCD0EC9B

FG�IPG�IQYUbGde�ITW�QRTXUXYGTYde�GTSISUTS�RpP�PGXUWGTYXa�̀IPYTGPXgÙX�

ITW�UTYGPGXY�gRdWGPX�RT��UYe�̀PR�GQYXa�̀PRSPIcXa�XGPbUQGX�ITW�Xp̀ R̀PYXr�

FG�IPG�QRccUYYGW�YR�̀PRbUWUTS�YUcGdea�YPITX̀IPGTYa�IQQGXXUidG�

UTqRPcIYURT�YR�YgG�̀pidUQ�IiRpY��UYe�̀RdUQUGX�ITW�XGPbUQGXr�
�

s�uYPIYGSUQ��RccpTUQIYURTXx���x�������u����u�����������������������������

���x�������|���{���{���������������uu������������������

0��99}~@0EC�~���
�9��0�9@0EC�~�

9@A0BCD0EC9B
FG�fRPs�fUYg�I�fUWG�PITSG�Rq�̀IPYTGPX�YR�QRTYUTpIdde�Uc P̀RbG�YgG�
WGdUbGPe�Rq�̀PRSPIcXa�XGPbUQGX�ITW�UTqPIXYPpQYpPG�fUYgUT�YgG��UYe�Rq��RPYg�
�ITQRpbGP

���Rc d̀GYG��TqRPcIYURT�wGQgTRdRSe��IXYGP��dITx�t������������������|��

�����������u�����������������x����������������������������|���������z�����

s��XYIidUXg���YGPTId��RccpTUYe�uIqGYe��WbUXRPe��RccUYYGGx���������

�������|�����u���|� �|������������������|��������������������u�������¡�����

�������������uu�����



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0123�567806879

@ABCD�F�GCHIGPQ

GRPST�AU@PIPVWDAWPXS�CTTPGS

Y àbc�efgh�̀ipqefpr

fqsbcY g̀fbq�
gpetqbubih
q̀v�v̀ g̀wxy��x����y���������x�����������y���x����x������̀�

abcd�efghij
klbcfmnb�o�plbc�qglcr

stuufe
r̀spgh

v�uwxyz{

v�s|}~�b�~}y�|��{���r����}�

v�s|}~�s}~�~��|�����s��x|��
��ry�~�w

v�s�x|�~�r����}��r~}�|�~{

���l�h�knbh�
klbcfmnb

spbsup���
etugtcp

v�s~��x~���e�x��}~�r~}�|�~{

v�b}�y�|�y�|��yx�v~�~x���~��

v�v|�~}{|�w��p��|�w���f��x�{|���

�hb�hbh��chbfc
kc��m��q��

bssfep�bs�gtp�
vpstgh�è b

v�r�}y�~�|��f�|�|y�|�~{

v�e|�|��v~�~x���~���

v�u~�|{xy�|�~�r~}�|�~{�

v�e�����|�y�|��{�
�����p��y�~�~���

��hbb��eh�bc�jn
���x�����y���y�����x�

sfq̀ qef̀u
rpc�fepr

v�s|�y��|yx�̀������|��

v�s|�y��|yx�sxy��|�����
��̀�yxw{|{�

v�g}~y{�}w�

v�s�}��y{|���

v�c|{��Yy�y�~�~���

v�f��~}�yx�e���}�x���
��s~}��}�y��~�

v�p��~}�}|{~�r~}�|�~{

v�u�{|�~{{�u|�~�{|��

v�c~yx�p{�y�~

� hb���¡hd��¢¢n�
klbcfmnb

pqifqppcfqi��
s̀c£r���

pq�fcbqYpqg�

v�f��}y{�}����}~�sxy��|��

v�e|�|��sy�|x|�|~{�Yy�y�~�~���

v�sy}�{���s��x|��r�y�~{

v�s��x|��¤�}�{

¥�¦§̈©ª«¬�®̄®°ª±ª̄¬�²³«ª�

�ech��ahiin�h�
klbcfmnb�

v�e�����|�w�sxy��|��

v�v~�~x���~���sxy��|��

v�p��|}���~��yx�y�́�
���r�{�y|�y�|x|�w�sxy��|��

v�t��{|���sxy��|��

v�g}y�{��}�y�|���sxy��|��

��

sùqqfqi���
vp�pubsYpqg

µ¶·̧¹�º¹¶·»�¼½»·¾»¿ÀÁ�ÂÃ¿Ã¾»½»¿̧



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ((



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0123456175�9@14@A1BC
DEFG�IP�QRG�SRTGP�UVWTXTYQ̀aQTbG�DEFG̀
cde�gdhei�pqrhshtuvwuhxe�y��ev��gpy��ht�w���hsueq����wsq�ve��vut�u��ghu��g��s�h���cde�gpy�ht�w����suw��e�i�v�w���wt�e�ut��i�

ghu����evwuh�st��cde�gpy�est�vet�g��s�h��qhve�uh�s�ht�w�ueq����s�wsq�td�vu�wsq���s��uevr���v��vwue����e�uhxet�wve�hqesuh�eq�

������̀abcb�d�èaf�gbh�ijkb�j��lfm�mcbifbbf�a�nmik�jam��jb�̀�mlmopd�

DEFG�IP�QRG�qGrsQt�SRTGP�UVWTXTYQ̀aQTbG�DEFG̀
èb�gbhujp�vwx�mcbifbbf�k�ymi��aca���bcblmhkb�j�himyb�jf�fu�̀��f�j̀b��bz�{�iip�|bimkb�vmkku�ajp�}b�ib�jam��vb�jibd�

èb�gbhujp�vwx��lfm�mcbifbbf�j̀b�vajp~f��ji�jboa������vmihmi�jb��bica�bf��bh�ijkb�j��b�fuia�o�j̀b��blacbip�mn��iaja��l�

fuhhmij�fbica�bf�fu�̀��f��mihmi�jb��mkku�a��jam�f��lboafl�jacb�fbica�bf������mihmi�jb��ufa�bff�hl���a�od

�GIr�G�aXV�Ss�Qs̀G
�e���e�wsq�g��u�ve�ht�vet��sth��e�i�v�d�rws�vet��v�et���v�wsh�wuh�sw��qexe���resu�wsq����h�het�wsq��v��vwrt�t����vuhs��w�

�p��ka���a��lufacb�����̀b�lj̀p�zmi�hl��b�����zmi�nmi�bd�

�X�TXGG̀TX����à�Y�aXV��XbT̀IXWGXQ
èb���oa�bbia�o����i�f�������caim�kb�j�gbh�ijkb�j�af�ibfhm�fa�lb�nmi�mui�fjibbjf��ujalajabf��h�i�f�����mhb��fh��bfd�èb�

�bh�ijkb�j��lfm��blacbif�m��bfj��laf̀b��vmu��al�hmla�p�ibl�jb��jm��iaja��l�affubf�fu�̀��f�km�alajp���lak�jb�����b�caim�kb�jd

�TXaXFTa���G̀bTFGY
cde��hsws�e��e�wvuresu�t�rwsqwue�ht�u���v�xhqe��sws�hw��wqxh�e�wsq�t����vu�u��g��s�h���wt��e���wt��sws�hw��hsi�vrwuh�s�wsq�

lb��bif̀ah�jm�vajp��bh�ijkb�jf������ji��fh�ib�j�����u��bifj�����lb�ibhmija�o�jm�j̀b�hu�la����blacbia�o�jm��ll��lb�i��ibla��lb�

wsq�ve�exwsu��sws�hw��hsi�vrwuh�s��cde�qe�wvuresu�tuvhxet�u��twie��wvq�ghu��wtteut��rwsw�e�ude�ghu��t�vht�t�wsq���ws�i�v�ude�

ghu��t���s��uevr��t�w��t�tuwhsw�h�hu��

��aXXTX��aXV�qGbG�IrWGXQ
èb��l���a�o�����gbcblmhkb�j�gbh�ijkb�j�̀blhf�vmu��al�bfj��laf̀����mkku�ajp�cafam��zaj̀�lm�o�i��ob�om�lf�����m�yb�jacbf�

udv���d�ude�y��hw��g�rr�shu����ws��yg����cde�qe�wvuresu�t����vut����h���qexe���resu���vewuet�wsq�r�shu�vt�xwvh��t�

hl��f�����fji�jboabf�����iboul�jbf��bcblmhkb�j������m�fjiu�jam����jacajpd

�s��TF��aPGQt
èb��u�la����nbjp�gbh�ijkb�j�af��b�a��jb��jm�himjb�ja�o�hbmhlb�����himhbijp�����zmi�a�o�zaj̀�b�jbi��l�h�ij�bif�la�b��mij̀�

����mucbi�}v��������mij̀��̀mib��kbiob��p�����obkb�j���������j̀b��u�la����nbjp�gbh�ijkb�j���z̀ a�̀�a��lu�bf��mij̀�

����mucbi�vajp��aib�gbh�ijkb�j�����mui��pl�zf��acafam���b�fuia�o�j̀b��mkku�ajp~f�f�nbjp�j̀imuò�c�iamuf�himoi�kf�����

hshuhwuhxet��cdht�����w��vwuh�s�w����t�i�v�w���r�vedesthxe�w��v�w�d�u������h��twieu��t���huh�est��i�ude�ghu���i� �vud�¡ws���xev�

nbbl�fb�uib�����himjb�jb�d



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0123452�1754895@

ABCDEFGH�PCHQRS�TBQUBQFVWBC�XAPTY�
àb�defghipb�qfbrst�uerveriwxef�eyfg�ifh�evvbriwbg�i�hxgwrx�w�bfbrst�gtgwb��waiw�hbpx�brg�

abiw�we�rbgxhbfwxip�ifh��e��br�xip���xphxfsg�xf�wab�defghipb�irbi�ware�sa�i�gbrxbg�g�ipp�abiwxfs�

vpifwg��dqu�xg�yaeppt�eyfbh��t�wab�uxwt����w�evbriwbg�ig�i�gbviriwb��e�vift��̀ab�uxwt�g�repb�

xg�waiw�e��se�brfif�b�ifh�riwb�rbs�piwer�we�bfg�rb�dqu���gwe�brg�rb�bx�b�hbvbfhi�pb���pbif�

����������̀�̀a�bcd�è�������efc�g���̀�fh�ig��j̀�c��bk���e�à��k�lm��̀�f�̀���g��l�e���l��nm̀�c�

xf�bgw�bfwg�ifh�peifg�

opDHpq�r�sQtuWvHD�Bw�xBQVu�yFCtBpvHQ�XozxzysY
{mk�m��|�}e�g̀a�k��l�~�e�g������ma�e��a�ek��k��mb�me�b���e�g̀a�b������mk�m����bb���̀��k�

ifh�evbriwbg�i���gb���xf�deybr�defghipb�ifh�ir�ax�bg�xf�dtff��ippbt���������xg�se�brfbh�

�t�i�ue��xggxef�ivvexfwbh��t�wab�uxwt�ifh��xgwrx�w�e���erwa��if�e��br�ue�f�xpg���������g�

evbriwxefip�ifh��ivxwip�b�vbfgbg�irb��egw�gairbh��bwybbf�wab�uxwt�e���erwa��if�e��br�ifh�wab�

�xgwrx�w�e���erwa��if�e��br�

xBQVu��uBQH�PqHQRHCtS�oFCFRHqHCV�Xx�PoY�
�erwa��aerb�q�brsbf�t��ifisb�bfw�xg�if�xfwbr���fx�xvip�isbf�t�waiw�yer�g�xf�virwfbrgaxv�yxwa�

wab�uxwt�ifh��xgwrx�wg�e���erwa�ifh��bgw��if�e��br�we�vpif���eerhxfiwb�ifh�wbgw�b�brsbf�t�ifh�

hxgigwbr�rbgvefgb�gbr�x�bg����q��g�efsexfs�evbriwxef�xg��egw�gairbh��t�wab�warbb���fx�xvipxwxbg��

ig���e�à��̀�b����ef���c��e�fe����e�à��k������̀�b�km���e��̀��e�k���k�����k���̀����a���kh

xBQVu�yFCtBpvHQ�TWVS�AW�QFQS�XxyTAY
àb��erwa��if�e��br�uxwt�dx�rirt�g�vverwg�px�bpefs�pbirfxfs�ifh��e���fxwt�hb�bpev�bfw��t�

���è�f�le��������nm̀���b������kk����̀�l�e���̀�������̀���kh�ig���̀�e�ec�̀k�f�a�e�����c������e���l�

r̀�gwbbg�ivvexfwbh��t�ue�f�xp��̀ab�uxwt�vre�xhbg��egw�e��wab�dx�rirt�g���fhxfs����w�ge�b��e�bg�

�re��ewabr�ge�r�bg��xf�p�hxfs�wab��re�xf�xip��e�brf�bfw��

xBQVu�yFCtBpvHQ��HtQHFVWBC�FCE�TpGVpQH�Xxy�TY
�erwa��if�e��br��b�rbiwxef�ifh�u�pw�rb�evbriwbg�bpb�bf��e���fxwt�rb�rbiwxef��bfwrbg��wab��erwa�

�if�e��br�̀bffxg�ubfwrb�ifh�ubfwbffxip�̀abiwrb��ifh��ifisbg�ree��ifh��bf�b��ee�xfsg��er�

l��̀b̀�̀�k����b�k������m����e�k����k������g�bl��l��g��j̀�c������̀k�è����l�~�e�g������ma�eh�~��j�

xg�se�brfbh��t�i�ue��xggxef�ivvexfwbh��t�wab�uxwt�e���erwa��if�e��br�ifh�wab��xgwrx�w�e���erwa�

�if�e��br�ue�f�xpg�����u�g�evbriwxefip�ifh��ivxwip�b�vbfgbg�irb��egw�gairbh��bwybbf�wab�wye�

��fx�xvipxwxbg�

xBQVu�yFCtBpvHQ��BSFG�TFCFEWFC�oBpCVHE��BGWtH�X�To�Y�
àb��erwa��if�e��br��u���hbwi�a�bfw�gbr�bg�wab�uxwt�e���erwa��if�e��br�ifh�wab��xgwrx�w�e��

�erwa��if�e��br��ifh�vpitg�if�xfwbsrip�repb�xf�wab�vrewb�wxef�e���erwa��if�e��br�rbgxhbfwg�ifh�

wabxr�vrevbrwt�ware�sa��rx�b�vrb�bfwxef�ifh�hbwb�wxef��b�brsbf�t�rbgvefgb�ifh��x�wx��gbr�x�bg��

��fhxfs��er�wab��erwa��if�e��br��u���xg��egw�gairbh��bwybbf�wab�wye���fx�xvipxwxbg�

�uH�TWVS��BQ�D��WVu�qFCS�GBtFG�Up�GWt�DHtVBQ�FRHCtWHD�VB�EHGWvHQ�UQBRQFqD�FCE�DHQvWtHD�FD�UFQVCHQD 



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26

I989@I9@F8P�@AB56Q89@5A

• • • f ' • • ,,• \ J I • ... • e 1 ;•f ._ t~ •.- • 

~·- . . .·.: ::··. · ... ·: .. ·. ·. -~4 .. : ):::~·- . . · ~ - .. . .. 
r • ~ ., ' I • • ~~M• •• ••• e , ' -:-, • _ 



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012213�5367�281�9@A

BCDDE�GCHDIPQR

S�CT�UVICWIX�YR�ẀaTbY�YcI�dbYE�Re�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iIDpW�qPP̀CV�r P̀bhbUCV�

stuvwx��vw�x�t��t�w�t��t���t�t��tw�������������wt���wt������t�x�v���ab�

CPX�cde�Re�YcI�dRTT P̀bYE�dcCDYIDf�gcI�ÙDURWI�Re�YcbW�DIURDY�bW�YR�UDIWIPY�

x�t��v��vh���xt��i������h��x�xt�t�x������xv�uwvj��t�wt��tw��k�x�����ht�w�

���tw�x�����l�v��x�t�vutw�x�v�������i������h�uv��x�v��v��x�t�mvwuvw�x�v��v��

YcI�dbYE�Re�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�ndfgo�eRD�pqprf�

s�t�wtuvwx����h��t��mtuv�����������xt��i������h��x�xt�t�x���k��������h��t��

CVV�YcI�èPXW�Re�dfgw�YcI�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�dbYE�BbaDCDEw�dfgpW�UDRURDYbRPCYI�

WcCDI�Re�YcI�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�xIhDICYbRP�dRTTbWWbRP�CPX�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�

y��t���z�{w���jt��mv������v������mtuv����jt�x�t�x����|v����ht�}�twl��

dRDURDCYbRPw�C�HcRVVE~RHPIX��RiIDPTIPY�àWbPIWW�IPYIDUDbWIf�dfg�cCW�

C�DIITIPYW�HbYc�YcI��bWYDbhY�Re�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�eRD�YcI�RUIDCYbRP�Re�YcI�

fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�xIhDICYbRP�dRTTbWWbRP�CPX�YcI�fRDYc�gCPhR̀iID�r ẀÌT�

z�{w���jt�����kthh�������v�x����w��l��lwtt�t�x��vw�x�t�tvwx��u���v�jtw�smy��

XIYChcTIPYf�

�wtu�w�x�v��v��x�t��v��vh���xt��i������h��x�xt�t�x�����x�t�wt�uv�����h�x��v������lt�t�x�����������

ChhRDXCPhI�HbYc�dCPCXbCP�ÙaVbh�WIhYRD�ChhR̀PYbP��WYCPXCDXW�CW�UDIWhDbaIX�aE�YcI��̀aVbh�GIhYRD�

qhhR̀PYbP���RCDX�n�Gq�of�����dCPCXC�BB��n���o�HCW�CUURbPYIX�CW�dfgpW�bPXIUIPXIPY�C̀XbYRDW�CPX�

k���wt�uv����ht��vw�v�x�����l�wt��v���ht�����w���t�x��x�mtuv���v��vh���xt��i������h��x�xt�t�x�������

HcRVI�HIDI�eDII�eDRT�TCYIDbCV�TbWWYCYITIPY�CPX�eRD�bWẀbP��CP�C̀XbYRDpW�DIURDY�HbYc�CP�RUbPbRPf�����

t�uwt��t��x�t������h�it������x�vu���v��x��x�x�t���v��vh���xt��i������h��x�xt�t�x��uwt�t�x����wh������

�hh���xtw��h�wt�ut�x���x�t��v��vh���xt��i������h�uv��x�v��v��x�t�m�x������x��t�t��tw����������������xv��

�v��vh���xt��wt��hx��v��vutw�x�v�����x������lt������v��vh���xt���tx�i������h����tx����x���v��vh���xt��

������vk���vw�x�t��t�w�x�t��t��t��������vw����t�k�x��m��������u��h����t�xvw����v��x��l��x����w����

��kv�h��h��t�xv�x������x���x�wv�l�v�x�x�t�vwl�����x�v������mtuv��v�x���t��lt���t���vw�kvw���l�

�vhh��vw�x�jth��k�x��mtuv��������t�xt���xv�uwvj��t��v����i������h�����lt�t�x�xv�x�t�vwl�����x�v��

RiID�YcI�UCWY�EICDf�S�VRRQ�eRDHCDX�YR�hRPYbP̀bP��YcbW�hRVVCaRDCYbRP�CW�HI�hRPYbP̀I�YR�XIiIVRU�CPX�

��j���t�mtuv��i������h�uwv�t��t��xv��ttx�x�t����hht�lt������vuuvwx���x�t����t���

BCDDE�GCHDIPQR

���������������������

����� ¡�¢£¢ 



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012324135�78389@928�A1B4CBB1D2�32E�F235GB1B�

HIPQRSTUPVRI

WXY�abccbdefg�hefifpeic�qrirYsYfr�teupvuuebf�w�xficyueu�uXbvc���Y��Yi��ef�pbf�vfprebf�derX�rXY�������bfubce�irY��hefifpeic�

qrirYsYfru�ba�rXY��b��b�irebf�ba�rXY��ery�ba��b�rX��ifpbv�Y���������WXeu��Y�b�r���b�e�Yu�i��erebfic�ificyueu�efrb�����u��fifpeic�

���bcd��efg�gh�ib��hjf���ke�ghfk�dl��menj���o�fd�p��h�q��efg�bfi��dehfdh���hf�dl��re�d�s�e�t�ul��r��re�edhjf�jv�dl��wjf�jchged�g�

xhfefihec�yded�m�fd��efg�xhfefihec�yded�m�fd�zh�ib��hjf�efg�{fecs�h��e���dl�����rjf�h|hchds�jv�mefek�m�fdt

}VI~IUV~�����Q�V��

�f�����p�w���r�jk�����g�efg�ijmrc�d�g�jo������hfhdhedho���dj�egoefi��wjbfihc�������������yd�ed�khi��cef�emhg�d��ijfjmhi�

ilecc�fk���efg�jrrj�dbfhdh�����r��h�fi�g�hf�dl��whds�efg�|�jeg������ed����efijbo�����khjft�z�o�cjrm�fd�efg�ijf�d�bidhjf�

eidhohds�c�o�c����mehf�g��c�oed�g�g�ho�f�|s�lhkl�g�mefg�vj��ljb�hfkp�ijmm��ihec�g�o�cjrm�fd�efg�hfv�e�d�bidb���r�jn�id�t�ulh��

eidhohds��e��eiijmrefh�g�|s�dl��ijfdhfb�g�ilecc�fk���jv�e�dhkld�ce|jb��me�q�d�efg�ij�d���iecedhjf��vj��ijf�d�bidhjf�ij�d��efg�

pbfr�ipru��Wb�pbs�ir�pbfrefvY��YcY�irY��ef�irebf��rXY��if��ba��ifi�i�pbfrefvY��rb�efp�YiuY�sbfYri�y��bcepy�efrY�Yur��irYu��dXepX�

l�cg��d�egs�dj�dl���fg�jv������efg����bcd�g�hf��d�jfk�hfd����d���o�fb���vj��w��t�w����e��ec�j�dl����ihrh�fd�jv������hf�dl��vj�m�jv�

ef�bfefdhihred�g���j�hfk�wjmmbfhdh���xbfg���wx��k�efdp�e�jf��dhm��k�efd�v�jm�dl����johfi��jv��wp�dled��hcc��brrj�d�hfo��dm�fd��

hf�ijmmbfhds�hfv�e�d�bidb���efg�em�fhdh��t�{cdljbkl�w����e��ilecc�fk�g��hdl�mefekhfk����jb�i���hf�e�r��hjg�jv�bfi��dehfds�hf�

����p�w���g�cho���g�ij������ohi���efg�r�jk�����g�hd��hfhdhedho���efg�rceff�g�menj��ierhdec�r�jn�id�p�hficbghfk�dl��ijf�d�bidhjf�jv�

rXY�fYd��i��y��Y�bsY��bssvfery��Yp�Yirebf��Yfr�Y����������rXY�ci�gYur��fifpeic�pi�eric���b�Ypr�vf�Y�ri�Yf��y�����ef�eru�Xeurb�y��

ul��jbdcjjq�vj���������mehf��r�jmh�hfk�emhg��ijfjmhi�bfi��dehfdh��t�ul���efq�jv�wefege���ib���fdcs����d�hidho��mjf�de�s�rjchis�

eu�sb�Y�irefg�ef�irebfi�y���Yuuv�Yu�if���rb��irY��eu�fbr�r�eggY�efg�i��YpYuuebf���b�vcirebf���brX�ef��ifi�i�if��cbpiccy��pbfrefvYu�

dj�k�j�p��brrj�dhfk�jo��ecc��ijfjmhi�k�j�dlt������b���jf�dl��ljb�hfk��djiq���mehf�p�q��rhfk���fhj��kjo��fm�fd���edd�fdhjf�o��s�

vjib��g�jf�dl��g�cho��s�jv�egghdhjfec�ljb�hfkt�ul���w�kjo��fm�fd���effjbfi�g�ilefk���dj�r�johfihec�ljb�hfk�c�kh�cedhjfp�hficbghfk�

pXifgYu�rb��Y�Ycb�sYfr��fifpefg�pXi�gYu��i�Y��Yefg�db��Y��rX�bvgX��vr�ab��fbd�i���vfpY�riefry�rb�����u�i�ecery�rb�avf��pY�rief�

ierhdec�r�jn�id�t�{d�dl����khjfec�c�o�cp�hd��e����i�fdcs���o�ec�g�dled���d�j��efijbo������j�dl�ylj��� e�d��ed���u��edm�fd��cefd�

r�jn�id��jbcg�|��mbil�mj�����r�f�ho��dj�ijmrc�d��dlef�r��ohjb�cs���dhmed�gt�¡f�dl��jdl���lefgp�u�ef�¢hfq���i�fdcs�effjbfi�g�

dled��b��£erhg�u�ef�hd�dj�dl���j�dl�ylj���h��e�r�hj�hds�r�jn�idt�{cdljbkl�ib���fdcs�bfvbfg�gp�dlh��r�jn�id�jr�f��br�jrrj�dbfhdh���dj�

hmr�jo��mj|hchds�hf�dl��whds�efg��brrj�d�dl��jo��ecc��ijfjmst�

¤f�rXY�aipY�ba�Y�bc�efg�b��b�rvfereYu�if��pXiccYfgYu������Xiu�ri�Yf�urY�u�rb�siefrief�Y¥Ypre�Y�cbfg¦rY�s��fifpeic��ciffefg��

�fifpeic�sifigYsYfr��bcepeYu��if��siefrYfifpY�ba��YuY��Yu�rb�avf��pi�eric���bg�isu�if��pb�Y��vf�ciffY��Y§�Yf�erv�Yu��iu�

dYcc�iu�bfgbefg��icifpY���v�gYru��̈�Y�icc������eu�ef�i�ur�bfg��fifpeic��buerebf�if��eu�Y§�YprY��rb�pbfrefvY�rb��Y�i�cY�rb��Yce�Y��

�icvi�cY�pb�Y�uY��epYu�if��i��ifpY��bvfpec�u�����¦���©�qr�irYgep��cif�bf�i��fifpeiccy�uvuriefi�cY��iueu�dYcc�efrb�rXY�avrv�Y�

ª«�¬RIR�VS~P�S�®P~P�̄ �IP�R°�}VI~IUV~��±RVPVRI

WXeu�urirYsYfr��Y�b�ru�����u��fifpeic�if��fbf¦�fifpeic�iuuYru��cei�ecereYu��fYr��fifpeic�iuuYru�if��ippvsvcirY��uv��cvu�iu�ir�

tYpYs�Y���²���������Yr��fifpeic�iuuYru�if��ippvsvcirY��uv��cvu�i�Y��Yy�sYiuv�Yu�rXir�XYc���Y�b�r�rXY�pvsvcire�Y�es�ipr�

ba��iur�r�ifuiprebfu�if��Y�Yfru�bf�����u��fifpeic��buerebf�ir�rXY�Yf��ba�������

xhfefihec�e���d����r����fd�w�����e|hchds�dj���res�

��h�dhfk�che|hchdh���efg³j��vbfg�vbdb���r�jn�id�t�

xhfefihec�e���d��hfi��e��g�mjg��dcs�|s���t���

b����́µ�a�bs�¶�·²��̧ �ef������rb�¶�·¹�©̧ �ef�

����t�ul��mjg��d�hfi��e���hf�������e��e����bcd�

jv������������o�fb�����i��ghfk���r�f���p�

p�Yirefg�if�iffvic�uv��cvu���i�reiccy�b¥uYr��y�����

b�ek��jv�ie�l�dj�vbfg�w�����ierhdec�r�jk�emt�{��

ir�tYpYs�Y���²������������u��fifpeic�iuuYru�

pbfrefvY�rb��Y�i�YºvirY��

¢he|hchdh�����r����fd�r����fd�j|chkedhjf��e�h�hfk�

v�jm�re�d�d�ef�eidhjf��j���o�fd��dled��hcc�|��

uYrrcY��ef�rXY�avrv�Y�if���Yºve�Y�if�bvr�bd�ba�

Ypbfbsep��Yubv�pYu��»ei�ecereYu�efp�YiuY���y�¶²¼�¹̧ �b��²²�¹µ�a�bs�¶²·��¹̧ �ef������rb�¶²©́�½̧ �ef�������WXeu�efp�YiuY�eu�

mehfcs�gb��dj�hfi��e����hf�emjbfd��rese|c��dj��brrch������cedhfk�dj�dl��ijf�d�bidhjf�jv�dl��f���¾¿w£wt�z�v����g���o�fb��

ec�j�hfi��e��g�e��vbfg���������i�ho�g�dj�vbfg���g�re�ds�ijf�d�bidhjf�r�jn�id��dj�|��bfg��deq�f�hf�vbdb���s�e��t�

ÀÁÂÃÁÄÅÆÇÈÉÆ�ÃÈÇÈÉÊÉÂÈ�ÁË�ËÅÂÇÂÀÅÇÄ�ÌÁÃÅÈÅÁÂ

ÍÎÍÏ� ÍÎÍÍ� ÐÑÒÓÔÕ

Ö×ØÙØÚ×ÙÛ�ÜÝÝÞßÝ� à��������� à��������� à������

	×Ù
×Û×ß×ÞÝ� à��������� à��������� à�������

Â��Ë���������Ç����� ���������� ���������� ����������

�Ø	ÞØß
�×ÞÝ�����Þ�Ù×�����ÞØÝÞÝ� à������� à������� à����

���×ß �×Ø�!ÙØ"×
ÛÞ�#Ù�×ßÙÛ�ÜÝÝÞßÝ� à��������� à��������� à�������

Â$�%Ë���������Ç����� ��&'��'�&� �������'�� �������'

ÜÚÚ�(�ÛÙßÞ��)���Û�Ý� à��������� à��������� à�������

01!34!56789@4A9B



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45657869�6@@12@�8@�2A1�B8C1D1571�E12F115�45657869�6@@12@�65B�986E898281@G�H0IP@�512�45657869�6@@12@�62�2A1�15B�QR�STSU�
F1D1�VWXYGX̀ a�6�B17D16@1�QR�VWYGẀ �QD�bGWc�7Qde6D1B�2Q�2A1�15B�QR�STSSG�f92AQghA�986E898281@�857D16@1B�dQD1�2A65�45657869�
6@@12@�6@�B1@7D8E1B�6EQi1a�H0IP@�512�45657869�6@@12@�65B�98pg8B82q�D1d685@�D16@Q56E91G

0Q5r45657869�6@@12@�6D1�7QdeD8@1B�QR�2A1�512�EQQs�i69g1�QR�265h8E91�76e8269�6@@12@a�85i152QD81@�65B�eD1e68B�1te15@1@�65B�
uvw�y���u����v�w������y��y����v�����vw���wvu���y������u���vw���vw����������w��y�vwu�w���u���u��w��wy����vw����v��u��v��v��w����
�����u����w�yw����bcbd�yw��e�v���fuy���gwv�hu�y�i����y��b��j����w�uy��kvwwy��uy��l���uyu�w�b����w�w�m�vww����v��w��d�
5Q5r45657869�6@@12@�857D16@1B�85�STSU�Eq�VYnGò �QD�WTGUcG

f77gdg9621B�@gDe9g@�8@�2A1�B8C1D1571�E12F115�2Q269�6@@12@�65B�2Q269�986E898281@�65B�7Q5@8@2@�QR�512�45657869�6@@12@�65B�5Q5r
45657869�6@@12@G�p2�8@�65�85B8762QD�QR�45657869�A1692A�65B�D1eD1@152@�2A1�512�17Q5Qd87�D1@QgD71@�677gdg9621B�Eq�H0I�@8571�82@�
8571e28Q5G�qgD85h�STSUa�H0IP@�2Q269�677gdg9621B�@gDe9g@�857D16@1B�Eq�VUoGỲ �QD�oGSc�2Q�VbWbGẀ �6@�82�7Q5285g1@�2Q�85i1@2�
�y�����w������y��r��

st�uvwxvyz{|}~{��}|}~�~w}�v����~�|}zvwx

�������u�w�wy��vw��v�����w���uy�w���y�w��y�����
vw���v�w��uy��u������u�w����v���������uvw��
���j���w��uy����w��v��v�rwuv���yy�u��vwgwy�w��
w��ww�w��uyy�u��w��wy�w����v������vw�����y���y�
u���v��������������d�������������wv���uy���w������
@gDe9g@�QR�VoWGẀ �Eq�VWoGb̀ �QD�UTGbcG

���������

����������������

b�y�����u�w��vwgwy�w���w�vwu�w��jr�������
QD�WGUc�RDQd�VWXXG�̀ �85�STSS�2Q�VWX�GẀ �
�y���������w��w�vwu�w�����v��uv��r���w����
@8h5847652�B1i19Qe1D�7Q52D8Eg28Q5@�D1718i1B�85�
2A1�eD8QD�q16Da�FA87A�F1D1�5Q2�D1698�1B�85�STSUG�
 wgw���wv���y�v�j����y���v��uv��r����w��y���w�
��v����������y��r�u�wy��r���y�v�j����y��uy��
B15@82q�@691@�65B�¡g72g621�655g699q�B1e15B85h�
�y�����y�d��wgw����wy��u���g��r��y���w�b��r�uy��
���wv�w��y������u���v���¢gwvu�����v�����d�u�
��������w�vwu�w��y��wgw���wv���y�v�j����y��
�u��w��wv�wy�w������uvw�������w��v��v�rwuv��
£QF1i1D�2A8@�F6@�e6D28699q�QC@12�Eq�857D16@1@�2Q�
���wv�vwgwy�w�������u������wv��vuy��vwgwy�w��
QR�VWYGǹ �¤eD8d6D89q�D196285h�2Q�2A1�¥H¦�Eg2�
u�������wv��vuy��§d�����wv��y�wvw����y���w��y�
�ygw���wy���uy���ug�y���u����y�������̈�©�d�
����wv��v��wv�r��u�w��uy�����wv��wg�w����������d�
65B�857D16@1@�85�D1i15g1@�RQD�@1Di871@�QR�VSGǹ G�

������������ª«�¬��

HQ5@Q98B621B�D1i15g1@�1t711B1B�EgBh12�Eq�VYSGb̀ G�5652878e621B�D1718e2@�QR�hD652@�QR�VWnGX̀ �65B�B1i19Qe1D�7Q52D8Eg28Q5@�
uy�����wv��vuy��wv��������®���v�gw���w��ug��vuj�w�guv�uy�w��̄y�u������yd��y�wvw��d���g��wy���uy���wyu���w��vwgwy�w���wvw�
�©���������wv���uy�j���w��u��u�vw����������y��y�w��w�wgu�w���y�wvw���vu�w���h��wy�w��uy���wv�����vwgwy�w���wvw�������
����wv���uy�j���w����gwy���y��v�����y�uy���wgw����wy��u���g��r��y���w����r�

°±²³±́ µ¶·̧¹¶�³̧·̧¹º¹²̧ �±»�±¼¹½·̧µ±²³

¾¿¾À� ¾¿¾¾� ÁÂÃÄÅÆ

ÇÈÉÈÊËÈÌ�� � Í�ÎÏÐÑÒÐÎ� Í�ÎÏÏÑÓÔÓ� Í�ÕÖÑÓÎ×Ø
ÙÚÛÈÊÌÈÌ�� � Í�ÎÓÒÑÐÜÔ� Í�ÎÝÔÑ×ÝÖ� Í�ÎÝÑÖÐÓ

·ÞÞßà��³ß���ß�� �������	
� �������
�� ���������

����������������

����	
�����	 ����	 ����

������ !	#$%&�	'$(	 	)	012031		 )042506		 	)052718	

9 @��	A�BC�D	 	6276E		 627FF		 	62335	

ACG�HG�D	I	���PC D	 	126E4		 02F8F		 	02741	

QCH�D	I	Q��D	 	12F04		 42F16		 	425E4	

R�H 	 	52484		 E2F0E		 	E24F8	

SH ���D 2	TCBCU�HUD	I	��H$% C�D	 	62018		 712714		 	F2301	

V$%�	�W	V��BCG�D	 	E42308		 E42F78		 	EE283F	

R�X$ �	I	R�G�B��C�D	 	F1		 53E		 	741	

Y�$H D	I	9 @��	 	F25F3		 5F2388		 	7E2788	

T�B�%����	̀�H �CX& C�HD	I	9 @��	'�$HDW��D	 	E3F			 1286F		 	632830	

Y$CH	aA�DDb	�H	TCD��DC C�H	�W	cDD� D	 	d		 064		 	a7276Eb

A�HDU$%�	eH��f!	̀���g	SHG�P�	 	d		 E		 	57E	

hi�pq	r�s�t��	 	uvw�x�y�			 uv�yx�yv	 	uv��x���	

������������	��������	��	������

�c	de	fghijkeljm



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

01234535�

789@ABCD�F8�GHGG

IPQRPSTUVWXU�X̀aXQRXR�TQbScUX�bPRWR�dPe�SVfPceg�
WhX�acebhVRX�Pd�iPPUR�VQU�RXepTbXR�VQU�WhX�
UXaeXbTVWTPQ�Pd�WVQiTfSX�bVaTWVS�VRRXWRq�rPWVS�
X̀aXQRXR�TQ�stsu�Pd�vwxtqy��X̀bXXUXU�X̀aXQRXR�
��������������������������������������̀�a�bcdbd�
���befb�dbd�gb�b�hc��i��j��kb�������lcm����
VQU�bPSSXbWTpX�fVeiVTQTQi�VieXXnXQWRq�òaXQRX�
TQbeXVRXR�pXeX�VSRP�UeTpXQ�fq�TQbeXVRXU�acfSTb�
RVdXWq�bPRWR�eXRcSWTQi�dePn�V�QXp�rI�s�bPSSXbWTpX�
VieXXnXQWg�VR�pXSS�VR�TQbeXVRXU�teXVWXe�uVQbPcpXe�
vbgb�cwb�x�y�c��cwb�y�dm��am�c�j�z�bcmb��
uVQbPcpXe�{VWXe�|TRWeTbW�bhVeiXRq

789@ABCD�F8�}~D�CF

���d�i�jcmbj�befb�dbd����������gb�b���w�b��m�c����jwbm�����������hc��i��j�b�m��a�iibam�kb��c�wc����w�cw�bbhb�md����w�b��
a�dmd�gb�b�cid����a���bj�j�b�m����lcm����c�j�a�dm�bdacicm���d�����a��m�cambj�db�k�abd��c�j�hcmb��cid�c�j�d�ffi�bd����ai�j��w�
z�bcmb���c�a��kb��vbgb��x�y�c��cwb�y�dm��am�c�j�z�bcmb���c�a��kb���cmb��y�dm��am�a�dmd�

�����������������������������������������������������������

���d�dmcmbhb�m��d�c�hbcd��b����g�bm�b��m�b��bkb��bd��c�dbj���������gb�b�d��a�b�m�m��a�kb��dfb�j��w�����m�b��bc�����b�
RWVWXnXQW�fXiTQR�pTWh�WhX�VQQcVS�stsu�RceaScR�dePn�WhX�bPQRPSTUVWXU�RWVWXnXQW�Pd�PaXeVWTPQR�VQU�VU�cRWR�dPe�WeVQRVbWTPQR�
�bicm��w�m��m�b�ca���d�m�������mc�w��ib�acf�mci�cddbmd�c�j���� acd��m�c�dcam���d��d�a��cd�jbf�ba�cm�����cd�gbii�cd�m�b�
ca���d�m����c�j��db������kb�m���bd�c�j�f�bfc�j�befb�dbd���¡�¢d��bm�£�c�a�ci�cddbmd�jba�bcdbj�������������������j�b�m��
��w�b��fic��bj�acf�mci�befb�j�m��bd�����¤�����a�hfc�bj�m����¥������������

¦������������������������������������§�

���d�dmcmbhb�m��jb�m�£bd�g�b�b�acd��achb����h�c�j���g��m�gcd��dbj��c�j�f��k�jbd�jbmc�i����a�c�wbd����acd��c�j�acd��
b���kcib�md�d��ab�m�b�icdm��bf��m��w�fb���j����b�dmcmbhb�m��bf��md�acd��l�gd�aicdd�£bj�cd��fb�cm��w�m�c�dcam���d��acf�mci�
m�c�dcam���d����kbdm��w�m�c�dcam���d�c�j�£�c�a��w�m�c�dcam���d�

k̈b�cii���¡�¢d�acd��c�j�acd��b���kcib�md���a�bcdbj������¤�������h���������m������������cd��gcd�f��hc��i���dbj����m�b�
acf�mci�f��w�ch�©�¤����ª�c�j�gcd�fc�m�cii���«dbm������a�bcdbd����h���kbdmhb�m�cam�k�m�bd�©������ª��cd�f��m��i�����kbdmhb�md�
nVWceXU�VQU�pXeX�eXTQpXRWXU�TQWP�hTih�TQWXeXRW�RVpTQiR�VbbPcQWRq

�����¬����

�¡�¢d�d�i�j������£�c�a�ci��bd�imd�a��m���b�m���blbam�����a�i�c�j�dmc«¢d�a�hh�mhb�m�m��d���j�£�c�a�ci�hc�cwbhb�m�c�j�
f��k�jb���w���w�cjkc�abhb�m��������a�i¢d�f�����m�bd����bdb��bd�imd�cid���blbam���hh���m����c�mb���b����bhb�md�m��hc�cwb�
g�m����c��cic�abj���jwbm���chbg�����¡�¢d��ck���c�ib�£�c�a�ci�f�d�m�����d��cdbj����c�a�hh�mhb�m�m��m�bdb�w�cid�c�j�
�blbamd�bca��jbfc�mhb�m�c�j�fc�m�b��cwb�a�bd¢�a��fb�cm����c�j�fc�m�a�fcm�������£�c�a�ci�hc�cwbhb�m�

®̄®°�±²³́µ¶� ®̄®°� ®̄®®·̧�¹º�»¼½¾¿ÀºÁ¿Â

ÃÄÅÄÆÇÈ�ÃÉÊÄÆÅËÄÅÌ� �ÍÎÏÐÏÎÑ�� ÍÎÒÐÓÔÕ�� �ÍÎÖÐÑÎÖ�

×ÆÇÅØÙÉÆÌÇÌÚÉÅ�Û�×ÆÇÅØÚÌ� �ÕÐÕÕÜ�� ÓÝÐÕÜÔ�� �ÓÝÐÕÕÓ�

ÞÄÇÈÌßÐ�àÉ�ÚÇÈ�àÄÆÊÚ�ÄØ�Û�ÞÉ�ØÚÅ�� �ÑÐÝÖÔ�� ÎÐÔÒÜ�� �ÎÐÕÔÖ�

�ÄÊÄÈÉÙËÄÅÌ�àÄÆÊÚ�ÄØ� �ÒÐÕÖÝ�� ÔÐÖÝÜ�� �ÕÐÕÓÖ�

�ÆÉÌÄ�ÌÚÊÄ�àÄÆÊÚ�ÄØ� �ÑÓÐÖÕÖ�� ÑÎÐÒÜÜ�� �ÎÒÐÎÜÒ�

�ÇÆ�ØÐ��Ä�ÆÄÇÌÚÉÅ�Û���ÈÌ�ÆÄ� �ÑÏÐÒÓÓ�� ÑÕÐÓÜÑ�� �ÑÜÐÑÔÖ�

	ÇÌÄÆ�
ÌÚÈÚÌÚÄØ� �ÓÎÐÝÏÑ�� ÓÎÐÑÕÒ�� �ÓÓÐÕÎÜ�

àÄ�ÄÆ�
ÌÚÈÚÌÚÄØ� �ÓÎÐÏÓÜ�� ÓÑÐÝÏÜ�� �ÓÎÐÎÝÓ�

àÉÈÚ��	ÇØÌÄ� �ÜÐÝÔÒ�� ÑÐÕÜÜ�� �ÑÐÎÏÜ�

�¶������µ��µ�� ������®���� ����̄������ ���°���°®

�	
�	������������
���� !�"#
���	




������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012345�789@8ABC4D3C�53E39F3@�G2�@8F573

HI�QR�STUVWXRYẀ� bcbd� bcbb� bcbf� bcbc� bcfg

hipqrist�vwxyr��w�� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������

�s�ri��r��r�� ������ ������ ������ ������ �����

��_r̀_r��a�hrib�s�� ������ ������ ������ ������ �����

c�̀r��a�crr�� ������ ������ ������ ������ �����

dr̀s� ������ ������ ������ ������ �����

èsrir�s��f���gr̀g��a�hr̀wxs�r�� ������� ������ ������ ������ �����

hwxr�pi�hri��_r�� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������

drjwsr�a�dr_p�ri�r�� ���� ���� ���� ���� ��

kiẁs��a��s�ri� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������

fr�rxpqri�lp̀si�jys�p̀��a��s�ri��iẁ�iri�� ������ ������� ������ ������� �����

kw�̀�m�p��n�p̀�f��qp��s�p̀�pi�o��rs�� ���� m�����n� m���n� m���n� m���n

�p̀�gwxr�p̀riqt�lpiqr�è_pbr� �� ���� ���� ������ ���

���stuvw� x���fyz{czf� x���fyy{|}|� x���f~d{zy~� x���f|g{c|}� x���fdf{cc}

������35739D4�3�8��789@8ABC4D3C�53E39F3@�G2�@8F573

hipqrist�vwxyr��w�

hwxr��pi�hri��_r�

kiẁs��a��s�ri

èsrir�s��f���gr̀g��a�hr̀wxs�r�

��_r̀_r��a�hrib�s�

c�̀r��a�crr�

fr�rxpqri�lp̀si�jys�p̀��a��s�ri��iẁ�iri�

dr̀s

�s�ri��r��r�

kw�̀�mxp��n�p̀�f��qp��sp̀�pi�o��rs�

drjwsr�dr_p�ri�r��

�p̀gwxr�p̀riqt�lpiqr�è_pbr�

���

���

���

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

�������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������� �����¡�¢£¤¥�¦�
�����§��̈

©���������������������¡���ª�������������§�����§����������
����������������������§�«��������§�� ����§���������������
�����������������������������������§��������§�̈

CBC
28F
¬98
®�®�®

°̄±²³́µ�¶·̧¹�°º�»°²̧¼�½¾¿³°±À́²�Á·¿¾¿³́�ẤÃ¾²̧Ä ¿̧́

°̄±²³́µ�¶·̧¹�°º�»°²̧¼�½¾¿³°±À́²�Á·¿¾¿³́�ẤÃ¾²̧Ä ¿̧́

~fÅ

bcÅ

f|Å

yÅ

~Å

~Å

dÅ
bÅbÅ

fÅ
cÅ
cÅ

ÆÇÄ°±¿̧ÈÉ�¾Ȩ̂¼°±Ë¼�Ã°È·̧·À́É�²°±¿Ì�Ì°Í¿�̧°�Î́²°



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0102�4567589@A5�BC�7B8DBEFG@95G�5H458D5D�IP�CQ879FB8

RSP5@6�7B8DBEFG@95G�5H458D5D�IP�CQ879FB8

TUTV� TUTTX� TUTY� TUTU� TUỲ

abcdbefghipg�prspcdpd�thup�fcvwphdpg�bupw�itp�ehdi�
x�yphwd�hd�hsswbupg�fc�a���d��fchcvfhe��ehc���upwhee��
a����pcpwhipd�wpupc�pd�fc�prvpdd�b��prspcdpd�fc�
bwgpw�ib���cg�fid�vhsfihe�dspcgfc���pcd�wfc��
������������̀����a���̀bc

GFG
PBQ
d8Be
f�f�f

�g���hijklm�� g���hnjohn� g���hojhkk� g���hhjpmi� g���kljiki

� kpjmql� � kpjmmk� ijinn� ijokm� ijhml

� hjliq� � hjmln� hjmhq� hjmnq� hjnir

� ljnpq� � mjmkn� mjqlq� rjqpn� njoqp

� ohjiqq� � hijhqi� hijkol� hmjhhl� hmjhrl

� omjkqo� � oqjoln� opjnnr� hijpiq� opjhkp

� khjomi� � kkjmhq� kpjimk� ljmkl� ljlnq

� kojprq� � khjhpk� kkjmnm� kpjroi� ljrli

� ojmqq� � ojhrq� ojkno� ojlrk� qjhhn

stutvwx�syztvu{tu|

}vwu~�yv|w|�yu���}vwu~�|

�twx|�j��y��wx��tvz��t~����y�~�u�

�tztxy�{tu|��tvz��t~

�vy|t�|�zt��tvz��t~

�wv�~j��t�vtw|�yu�����x|�vt

�w|tv��|�x�|�t~

�t�tv��|�x�|�t~

�yx����w~|t

����������������������� ¡���¢���£�¡ ¡���¤�¥ ��¦�¡�§̈©ª«¬®�̄ª°ª�±©¬ª�¬²°³®«́�µ¬¶©�·©©®�ª©́«¬«©̧�¬́�̄¬ª«�°¹�«µ©�º³ªª©®«�±©¬ª»́�¼®¬®º¬½�́«¬«©²©®«́¾� � � �

¿���YÀUÁẦÃ� ¿���YVÃÁÄVT� ¿���YTÂÁ̀UU� ¿���YYÅÁUÅÃ� ¿���YYÅÁVÃ̀ÆÇÈÉÊ

�wv�~j��t�vtw|�yu�����x|�vt� hrË

�vy|t�|�zt��tvz��t~� hhË

stutvwx�syztvu{tu|� klË

�t�tv��|�x�|�t~� lË

�w|tv��|�x�|�t~� iË

}vwu~�yv|w|�yu���}vwu~�|� mË

�tztxy�{tu|��tvz��t~� nË

�twx|�j��y��wx��tvz��t~����y�~�u�� hË

�yx����w~|t� hË

����������������������� ¡���¢���£�¡ ¡���¤�¥ ��¦�¡�

TTÌ

ỲÌ

Ì̀

ÅÌ

ÃÌ

ÂÌ

TÌTÌ

TÀÌ

ÍÎ�ÏÐ�ÑÒÓÔÕÖÐ×ÕØ



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0102�4567589@A5�BC�7B8DBEFG@95G�5H458D5D�IP�BIQ579

RSTUV�X�YÙUabV����

deefg�i�pqrrstug

puvwtxug

yU��U��Sb��̀

���

���

���

���

���

���

���

���

àP5@6�7B8DBEFG@95G�5H458D5D�IP�BIQ579

����� ����b� ����� ����� ���c

defghij�klmn�eo�pegmq�rsthefuig�vltsthi�wixsgmyitm

defghij�klmn�eo�pegmq�rsthefuig�vltsthi�wixsgmyitm

z{U�bS�̀�������|US��S}�~̀bV��S�U��UÙ��UVbSbU��SV��S�b����b�U��~��Ùb�|US��V�àS̀��S��VbSbU}ÙbV�� � � �

���������c�� ������������ ��������c��� ������������ ����������c

����������� � ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������

������������ � ������� ������� ������� ������

������������ � ������� ������� ������� ������

������������ � ������� ������� ������� ������

RSTUV�X�YÙUabV

deefg�i�pqrrstug

puvwtxug

yU��U��Sb��̀

�����

����� ����b� ����� ����� ���c

defghij�klmn�eo�pegmq�rsthefuig�vltsthi�wixsgmyitmz{U�bS�̀�������|US��S}�~̀bV��S�U��UÙ��UVbSbU��SV��S�b����b�U��~��Ùb�|US��V�àS̀��S��VbSbU}ÙbV�� � � �

pqvrsqg

���~}~�SbU���~���~V

��������� ¡��¡¢£¡��¡����¤¥¡��¡���¦¡¥�
 §¡�£�� � §¥¡¡�̈¡�¥������££¥�¦¡�����
�©ª«��¬����¤���������®����̄ ��°� §¡�
±²³́²µ¶·́ �̧¶¹±̧�¶¹́ º̧¹»�¼½·±¾º½±�¼·¿½�
²́�ÀÁÀÁ�·Â̧½º�̧Ã½�¹¾̧Äº½·Å�¹Â�ÆÇÈÉÊËÌÍÎ

GFG
PBÏ
Ð8BÑ
Ò�Ò�Ò

àPÓÔÕ�DÖÕ×ØÖÙ�Ú�@ÛÛÖÜÖØÔÝÓÞ�DÖÕ×ØÖÙ

ßÃ½�·́ ¾́·»�±¾ºà»¾±��¾¶̧¾·̧½±�¿½à½́¿²́³�¹́�
½�½́ ±̧�²́�̧Ã½��½·ºÎ�Ç�½º�̧Ã½�»·±̧�µ�½��½·º±��Æ�È�
½�à½º²½́¶½¿�±¾ºà»¾±½±�Âº¹¼�³º·́ ±̧�·́¿�
¶¹́ º̧²Ä¾̧²¹́±��·¿¿²́³�̧¹�̧Ã½�µ́ ·́¶²·»�Ã½·»̧Ã�·́¿�
±¾±̧·²́·Ä²»²̧��¹Â�̧Ã½�Æ²̧�Î�ßÃ½�Æ¹¼¼¾́ ²̧��ÆÃ·º̧½º�
¿¹½±�́¹̧�à½º¼²̧�Æ�È�̧¹�à»·́�Ä¾¿³½̧�¿½µ¶²̧±Î

GFG
PBÏ
Ð8BÑ
Ò�Ò�Ò

����������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������

���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������

����������	
��	�

����������	
��	�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"((

)01234�677898@AB�9@�C3AD8EF2�G3H893F�6BB29B�

IPIQ� IPII� IPIS� IPIP� IPST

UVWXỲa�cdef�Vg�hVXei�pqrYVWs̀X�tdrqrỲ�ùvqXew r̀e

x���yy�PQQ� x���Q��IS�� x���TS�Sy�� x���T��S�S� x������I��

� ������ ��������� ��������� ��������� ����

� ��� ��� ��� ������ ������

� ������ ������ ���� ������ ���

� ������ ���� ������ ������� �����

� ���� ������ ������ ������ �����

� ������ ������ ������ ���� ���

� ������ ������� ������ ������ �����

� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���

� ������� �̀��a� ������� ������� ������

bcde

bcde�fghijklgldmn

ocipn

qrstesdun

vcwxsdliy�z�{|rshgldm

}lxswtln

fd~icnmirwmril

bs�iciy�vcmlisctn

�jip�sd�oijuilnn

�����

)01234�C6������6��������������C����G����GC����

IPIQ� IPII� IPIS� IPIP� IPST

UVWXỲa�cdef�Vg�hVXei�pqrYVWs̀X�tdrqrỲ�ùvqXew r̀e

x���Sy������ x���S�y�P��� x���S�P��P�� x���SQP�y�y� x���SQ����y

� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������

� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������

� ������� ������� ������� ������ �����

� ������ ������ ������ ������ �����

� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������

oijhlimy�}ctrl��c�

�cmli��mstsmy��lln

�l�li��mstsmy��lln

�jtse��cnml��mstsmy��lln

�jttlwmsjdn�~ji��mxli

�����

���� �¡�¢£¤�¥�¢ ��¦¡¤§�¡�̈ ¢¥¦¤¦©��ª¦ �¤«¦�¢�§¤�¬ª¦�¦� §�£®¡¥̄©¦�
°«¦�±«£¢� ©§²�¤«¦�®¦³�� §̄¦̄¨��́�µ� ¤«�¶�®¡�̄ª¦ �·� µ̧̧ ¶¹º²�
¤«¦���§»̄£¤��¼ ¦¦½�¾ £©¿¦�À¦¢¥�¡¦̈ ¦®¤�¢ ��¦¡¤²�£̈¢ �ª¦̈ ¦®¤§�¤��
¤«¦�Á ¦¦®�µ¦¡½¥�¡¦²�¡�̈ ¢¥¦¤£�®��́�¤«¦�±¢£ £¤�° �£¥��®©�¡�®§¤ ̄¡¤£�®�
�́�¤«¦�®¦³�µ� ¤«�¶�®¡�̄ª¦ �Â�³®�¾�³¥£®¿�¼¥̄Ã«�̄§¦��®©�Á ¦¦®§Ä

Å�Å
1�Æ
Ç��È
É�É�É

ª̧¦ �¤«¦�¢�§¤�¬ª¦�¦� §²�ÊËÌ�
�́�¤�Í¦§�¡�¥¥¦¡¤¦©�Ã�¼µ¶�
³¦ ¦��®�Ã¦«�¥́��́��¤«¦ �
�¿¦®¡£¦§��¤��́̄®©�§¦ ª£¡¦§�
§̄¡«��§�§¡«��¥§��®©�¤ �®§£¤Ä

Å�Å
1�Æ
Ç��È
É�É�É

ÎÏ�ÐÑ�ÒÓÔÕÖ×ÑØÖÙ

ÎÏ�ÐÑ�ÒÓÔÕÖ×ÑØÖÙ



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012345�47737738�93@354A�B4C4DA3�E4AF37

�� HIHP� HIHH� HIHQ� HIHI� HIQR

STUV� X���Ỳabcdabef� X���YeagcYadhY� X���Ygac̀daYce� X���dfaf̀gaf̀f� X���Ydah̀ àehi

pqrstuvqvUwx� àbiYaged� àYdfaded� bachiadg̀� baec̀aYcY� badbfagYd

y����� ����PP�Q�P��RI� ����PI�HRQ�H�P� ����H���RR�P�I� ����H���P��H�Q� ����H���H����R�

�������������a��b��b��cd�c�e��fd�g

hh�ivsqjUTk�lTUmtnuvs�SwVo� pTqts�pUVnxwsra�snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �X������eagghafYY�

vvrwnUv�snkw�ivsqjUTkx�SwVo� pTqts�pUVnxwsra�Sjxuw�pUVnxwsra�snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �Yaf̀ àèe�

yjmuTsVxtU�pUwvsUTwjtUTk�SwVo� pTqts�pUVnxwsra�Sjxuw�pUVnxwsr� �dabbiaYcg�

zTsxjkk�SwVo� pTqts�pUVnxwsr� �dagidaYff�

szppz�yvTkwr�ztsrtsTwjtU� snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �fhbàcg�

vtswu�{utsv�{wnVjtx�pTUTxvqvUw�� Sjxuw�pUVnxwsra�snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �ifiadYd�

pzsz�|�}hsTUw|�pU|�Sjvn~� snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �ih̀agbe�

����i�{utrrjUx�zvUwsv��tkVjUxx� snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �cèaidh�

�YYd��vxw��xrkTUTVv�zto�SwVo�� snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �̀ffagYb�

�tUUj�dhgi�StUxVTkv��uv��tkVjUxx�� snxjUvxx�TUV�twuvs� �̀bcagdi�

��������������������������������������������������

��������������������������������������������������

��������������y����� �����Q��P�H�����

������  ��¡���¢�£��¤¤� HIHP�¥��¤¤�y�¦�¤

§̈�©ª�«¬®̄°ª±̄²



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0102�45678998@5�ABC�5C574A8DE9

FGHIPQRISQFP� UVWXY�XWXabU

Vcdefgh�Yfcipq�rigisfch�tpuhicv� � w��xy����

Vq�����de��Viq��pq�f��fgfqdch�ic�rdcd�d� �����x��

�r�b�pgpvqd����dc��af�id�Vqgh�Yp�ifg�� ��������

rdcd�idc�afcgd��tfd�g��Vhhp�idgipc�� �������

rdgd��hg� ����y���

�abcdbefbgh�ijkcb�ljmnbdo�p�qrensbtnbu�ijkcnsv�ljmnbdo� �wxyz{�

rp��ucig��|ieicv�Yp�ifg�� �}�y���

rpq�pqdgipc�p~�rig��p~��pqg���dc�puefq� ��������

�d�i���Yfqei�fh��pqg��Y�pqf�� �x����}�

�qdgfqcd���q�fq�p~�Xdv�fh���pqg���fhg�Vfqif��}y�� �yx��x��

�iq���ui�fh�p~�rdcd�d� ��������

tp����uqc��d�i���Yfqei�fh�Yp�ifg�� �}��y��

tp���Uqicig��rdg�p�i��r�uq��� ���x}��

iorh�ijkcnsv��je��jksv��hkgdc�unda��ncnr�ngndnbc�� ��x�{��

�sdbggbmdkrg��ncr�ngndnbc���jeda����bcd��rsmjktbe��ljmnbdo� ��x�{��

�icv�h�Uf���f�aihhipcdq��Yp�ifg�� ����}��

�nursnc��jeda�lajeb�ijkcnsv�ljmnbdo� ���xz{��

|iv�g�puhf�tdq�puq�aicihgqifh� ���y���

�jschrgb��ebb���romreb�ljmnbdo� �{yx�y��

|pp�pug�X�fqvfc���Vi��Yp�ifg�����Y�Y�f�gfq� �x��}�y�

qrensbtnbu�ijkcnsv�ljmnbdo� ��x{yw�

�de��|fdvuf�p~�rdcd�d� �x����y�

�pqg��Y�pqf�V��idc�f�r�uq��� ��x���}�

�pqg��Y�pqf��fg�f��r�qihgidc�afccpcigf��qfg�qfc�r�uq��� ���}x��

�jeda�lajeb��ncr�ngndo��bcjkemb� �wxyz��

�pqg��Y�pqf�au�gi�u�guqd��Yp�ifg�� ����}���

�pqg��Y�pqf��fiv��puq�pp��tpuhf� ��x�����

�pqg���dc�puefq�r�d��fq�p~�rp��fq�f� ���x�x�

�pqg���dc�puefq�rp��ucig��Vqgh�rpuc�i�� �x������

�jeda��rsmjktbe��rus��jugnsv��gk�� ��wx�{{�

�pqg���dc�puefq�auhfu��dc��Vq��iefh�rp��ihhipc� �x�������

�jeda��rsmjktbe��jorg��rsrhnrs��bvnjs� ��wx��z�

bdqih��p~�Yg��Vvcfh�Vcv�i�dc�r�uq��� �����

bdqih��p~�Yg���p�c�U�f�Xedcvf�ihg��Vcv�i�dc�r�uq��� �x����y�

bqfhfcgdgipc�tpuhf�ru�guqd��Yp�ifg�� ����xyy�

Yd�edgipc�Vq����pqg���dc�puefq�rp��ucig��r�uq��� �x���y}�

Yi�efq�tdq�puq�rfcgqf� ��������

Yg�|fpcdq��h�Yp�ifg��p~��pqg���dc�puefq� �����}�

ld���shebu c���ld��ldb¡abs c�¢ebc�odbenrs��akema� ��x�z��

ld���shebu c�£sndbh��akema� �wxy���

Yg��X��uc��h�bdqih�� �}���x�

U�f�rdh�d�id�Yp�ifg��~pq�Yp�id���pq�icv� �x��}�x�

U�f��d��r�uq��� �����x�

�dc�puefq�rpdhgd��tfd�g��Vug�pqig�� �����x��

¤pucv��p�fc�h�r�qihgidc�Vhhp�idgipc� �������

S¥¦§̈� ���©���ª«¬®«̄̄ °

±²³́µ¶·�̧¹º»�²¼�½²́º¾�¿ÀÁµ²³Â¶́�Ã¹ÁÀÁµ¶�Ä¶ÅÀ́ºÆ¶Áº

ÇÈÉÊË�ËÉÌÊ�ÍÎÉ�ÏÐÍË�ÊÉÑÉÐÈÉÒ�ÌÓÓÔÐÑÌÍÐÕÖÒ�×ÊÕØ�ÖÕÖÙÓÊÕÚÍ�ÕÊÛÌÖÐÜÌÍÐÕÖÒ�ÍÎÌÍ�ÕÝÖ�ÔÌÖÞ�ÌÖÞ�ßàÌÔÐ×Ë�×ÕÊ�ÍÌ��É�ÉØÓÍÐÕÖ�àÖÞÉÊ�ÍÎÉ�

ÊÉßàÐÊÉØÉÖÍÒ�Õ×��ÊÕÈÐÖÑÐÌÔ�ÔÉÛÐÒÔÌÍÐÕÖ���Ö�������ÍÎÉ�×ÕÔÔÕÝÐÖÛ�ÖÕÖÙÓÊÕÚÍ�ÕÊÛÌÖÐÜÌÍÐÕÖÒ�ßàÌÔÐÚÉÞ	



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0102�456789�5@A@BC@D

EFGHIP� RPEIHSTUSFV� �WXFGVU�

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� vdgẁax�yg��iàc̀�b��ia�� �������������

�drab�̀a�� �bqsrar���yg�qs�c���cd��cb� �����������

�drab�̀a�� Yr̀ac�arap��ra�����ràs̀crc̀ga�gh�Yrbgd��gr���cdipcid�b� �c�������

deyY� fgdc����gd��dab��sc�d���gg��s�bb�yhijkl������qgdrde��iqqgdcb� �c����mm�

n�bc�da��pgag�p̀�k̀o�db̀pprc̀ga�yrar�r� �bqsrar���ygdd̀�gd�dqxdr��� �m�������

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� �̀adrde���dòp���a�rap���ac� ��cm�c���

deyY� �drab̀c̀ga�cg�f�qc�v�a�drc̀ga����� �rcr�m���

Yà̀bcde�gh���iprc̀ga�ra��y�̀s��yrd�� Yr�ga�srd��y�̀s�prd�� �r�������

deyY� sròax�sdgb�pcb� �r���m�c�

n�bc�da��pgag�p̀�k̀o�db̀pprc̀ga�yrar�r� Yr�ga���rc��srd�� �r����c��

�drab�̀a�� f�w��drtp��̀xarsb� ���������

Yà̀bc�d�gh�frcidrs���bgidp�b� ddara��gd�bcde�Yrarx���ac��cdrc�xe�ra��sias̀p��axrx���ac� ��m������

�drab�̀a�� ygccga��gr��ed̀�x����qsrp���ac�rc��eaa�yd���� ��r��m���

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� �̀adrde�hq�drc̀gab� ���������

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� Y��gd̀rs�cg������a�d�ìpc̀�b�gh�djt��s̀x�c�cmr� ���������

ey�tdcb�ygiap̀s� �qqra����tdcb�ra��yiscid����b̀s̀�ape� ����mmm�

jyey� �bqsrar���è����ra�b�� ��������

deyY� �̀d���rdc���iprc̀ga�u�vd��awgg��srd��jac�dhrp���i�s�Yrarx���ac��d�rc��acb� ��c�c���

ey�ge�dg� g�rc�si�q� �r������

�drab�̀a�� �cv�ta�d�wwb�è����gic�� �r������

ey�tdcb�ygiap̀s� fiYt�hq�drc̀gab� �r������

ey�ge�dg�� �i�y�rdx̀ax��crc̀gab� �r������

vsgars�tur̀db�yrar�r� �kj��ggs�ra��Yrc�d̀rs�k�o�sgq��ac� ��r�rm��

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� �̀adrde�ha�yrd�� �����cm�

jyey� �c�ta�d�wwb��q����gi�qb�� ��������

�d���yrar�r��gia�rc̀ga� srd���d���ssrac̀ax� �������

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� �̀adrde���rd̀ax�Yrc�d̀rsb� �m�����

Yà̀bcde�gh�Yiàp̀qrs�tur̀db� �̀adrde�ygss�pc̀gab��sdgxdr�b��ra����dòp�b� ���m���

ey�g�rsc�e�yg��iàc̀�b��gp̀�ce� �cd�axc��àax�yg��iàce�ygaa�pc̀gab�ra��c���frcidrs��aòdga��ac� �������

jyey� yg��iàce�sgs̀p̀ax�igsiac��d�sdgxdr�� �r�����

Uxyz{� � �|}~���������

��������������������������������������������������

����� ¡¢�£¤¤¥ �¦�§̈©�ª©£«¡¦�¡̈�¦¬¤¤̈©¡�£�£© �¡¢�̈§�¤©̈ª©£®¦�£«̄�¦�© °�¦�¡�£¡�±�«�²¡�¡���°̈®®¬« ¡¢�£«̄�¡£³��¡���²«£«° £¥�

±¬©̄�«�̈́ �̈§�¡£µ¤£¢�©¦¶�·«�̧¹̧º�¡���� ¡¢�©�°� �̄�¡���§̈¥¥̈» «ª�ª©£«¡�¤£¢®�«¡¦¼



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

~ -' i 



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012345�789@45AB8C�8D�EFEGH4IA8C�3BIA94I3B

PQRSTUV�XY�̀abacdSe�Qf�YadagUbch�PUSiaTUcpqSQiabTars�UcdatrdUc�rSU�uavuUS�durb�PdrdacdaTc�Yrbrwr�TUbcRc�wrdrx

y

�y

�y

�y

�y

�y

�y

�y

�y

�������������

a��bc�de�f����
ghi�ghj�khl�mhn�mho�

jnplinjnpogjqlpglorqkpilo
qipnis

tu
v
�w
x
y
z
{|
v
}
{~

klkm klkk klkgr klkl klgo

����������������������������

��

��

���

���

���

���

���

����

��

������������������� �¡�¢�£�¤¥¤¦� �¡���

§̈©�ª«¬� ®̄

°§̈°©�ª«¬� ©̄

±§̈±©�ª«¬� °²̄

²§̈²©�ª«¬� °³̄

§́̈ ©́�ª«¬� °́¯

µ§̈µ©�ª«¬� °́¯

¶§̈¶©�ª«¬� °±̄

³§̈³©�ª«¬� ®̄

®§·�ª«¬� ´̄



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

01102345067�07�59@�A05B

C�EFG�HI�PQRS�TUVQWUXRV�ỲU�PYXYWQYX�PQRQaUXV

bcdefgh�bpqprsprfs�tquqvqw�xyx��tgusds

��������������������
�QX��̀WUV�YXSHXU�abH�QV�Y
PYXYWQYX��QRQaUX�cS�cQ̀Rbd

��e���f���������
�QX��̀WUV�YXSHXU�abH�QV�H̀�abH�bYV�UgÙ�cUUX
Y��YXWUW�QhhQìYXR�H̀�Y�jÙhYXUXR�̀UVQWUXRd

��k������lm����m���nm��om���
�QX��̀WUV�YXSHXU�ÌHh�YXHRbÙ��H̀XR̀S�aQRb�Y�̀V̀Y��j�Y�U�HI�̀UVQWUX�U�QX�PYXYWYp

YXW�abH�bYV�Y�aH̀q�H̀�VR̀WS�jÙhQR�H̀�abH�bYV���YQhUW�̀UÌiUU�VRYR̀Vd

rstu�vwt�xyzv�{st�|tyuz}�
~������������������
�}�����t��w��z����
���vz�v��vwt��������v|�

���
���
����
�����

�� ¡¢£�¤¥¦�§̈ ¤©ª«¬§ª̈¤

�� ®̄®°� ®̄®®� ®̄®±� ®̄®̄� ®̄±²

³́ µ¶·̧�¹º�»·̧µ¼½¾� ¿ÀÁ� ÂÀÃ� ÂÄÅ� ÂÆÇ� ÅÁÀ

³́ µ¶·̧�¹º�È¹́¾¼ÉÊ�ËÉ¼½¾� ÇÌÇÃÁ� ÅÁÇ� ÅÂÆ� ÁÍÀ� ¿ÀÄ

Î¹É¾½̧́ Ï½¼¹É�ÐÑÒ́·� Ó���ÁÀÄÌÃÇÃ� Ó���Â¿ÄÌÇÂÀ� Ó���¿ÍÀÌÁÍÅ� Ó���ÇÃÂÌÁÆÍ� Ó���ÇÄÄÌÄÅÇ

ÔÕÖ×ØÙÚ�ÛÜÝÞ�Õß�àÕ×Ý�����ØÕÖ�Ù×��Ü���ØÙ��Ù��×Ý	Ù�Ý


������������������������������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

01234�6789@A�1B�97CD6@CC@C

EFGHIPQ�STUV�FW�XFHUY�̀abIFGcPH�dPae�fgUaUPh�iaITeTUTPg��p�fIFbFqTI�rPcPeFsqPbU�rPsaHUqPbU

t

u

v

w

x

y

�

�

���� ���� ���� ����

���������������
�����

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
a
�b

cdeffghi�jklem�noopqnonp

rs

tts

us

tts

rus

vws

vxvt vxxt

yz{|}~��y�������}�������������������������~��{�

�������
��������
�����

�����
��������
�����

���
�����

���������
����������
������

���������
�������������
��������������
����� ������¡�

���������
�������������
��������� ���
����������¡�

vxs

¢s

ws

ws

¢¢s

t s

£¤¥¦§̈©�ª«̈ ¥¬«

®̄ °® ±² ®̄

³́µ¶·̧¹�³º»º¼º½º¼·½�¾»¿»À»Á�ÂÃÂÄ�¾̧¿½µ½

ÅÆÇ ÈÉÇ

ÊË ÌÍ ÍÊ ÎÍ ÏÊÊË



����������	
�������
�����
��������
���	�������

����� �!	
�!�"��	���	 �#
	
�$��
��

"���
�����	����!�!�%���$&���'()�010'



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012134351�78�9252@34351�A3BC75BDEDFD1G

HIP�RSTUVWX�SY�̀IP�RSabSac̀WSU�SY�̀IP�RẀd�SY�eSàI�fcUVSTgPa�hiRefpq�Icr�sPXPtc̀Ps�̀IP�aPrbSUrWuWXẀd�

YSa�̀IP�WÙPtaẀd�cUs�SuvPV̀WgẀd�SY�̀IP�YWUcUVWcX�WUYSawc̀WSU�VSÙcWUPs�WU�̀IP�VSUrSXWsc̀Ps�YWUcUVWcX�

r̀c̀PwPÙr�̀S�̀IP�wcUctPwPÙ�SY�Refx�HIP�VSUrSXWsc̀Ps�YWUcUVWcX�r̀c̀PwPÙr�yIWVI��WU�bcà��caP�

ucrPs�SU�WUYSawPs�vTstwPÙr�cUs�Pr̀Wwc̀Pr��IcgP�uPPU�baPbcaPs�ud�wcUctPwPÙ�WU�cVVSascUVP�yẀI�

RcUcsWcU�bTuXWV�rPV̀Sa�cVVSTÙWUt�r̀cUscasr��yIWVI�IcgP�uPPU�cbbXWPs�SU�c�ucrWr�VSUrWr̀PÙ�yẀI�̀Ic̀

SY�̀IP�baPVPsWUt�dPcax

HS�crrWr̀�WU�VcaadWUt�ST̀�̀IPWa�aPrbSUrWuWXẀd��wcUctPwPÙ�wcWÙcWUr�cU�cVVSTÙWUt�rdr̀Pw�cUs�WÙPaUcX�

VSÙaSXr�̀S�baSgWsP�aPcrSUcuXP�crrTacUVP�̀Ic̀�̀acUrcV̀WSUr�caP�P�PVT̀Ps�cUs�aPVSasPs�WU�cVVSascUVP

yẀI�cT̀ISaW�c̀WSU��cUs�̀Ic̀�YWUcUVWcX�aPVSasr�caP�aPXWcuXP�YSa�baPbcac̀WSU�SY�YWUcUVWcX�r̀c̀PwPÙrx

HIP��cdSa�cUs�RSTUVWX�SgParPP�wcUctPwPÙ�r�aPrbSUrWuWXẀWPr�YSa�̀IP�YWUcUVWcX�aPbSàWUt�cUs�WÙPaUcX�

VSÙaSX�rdr̀Pwrx�RSTUVWX�cUUTcXXd�aPgWPyr�cUs�cVVPb̀r�̀IP�VSUrSXWsc̀Ps�YWUcUVWcX�r̀c̀PwPÙrx

Ref�r�WUsPbPUsPÙ�cTsẀSar������RcUcsc������caP�PUtctPs�̀S�P�baPrr�cU�SbWUWSU�cr�̀S�yIP̀IPa�Ref�r

VSUrSXWsc̀Ps�YWUcUVWcX�r̀c̀PwPÙr�baPrPÙ�YcWaXd�WU�cXX�wc̀PaWcX�aPrbPV̀r�̀IP�YWUcUVWcX�bSrẀWSU�SY�Ref

cr�c̀��PVPwuPa�����������cUs�̀IP�aPrTX̀r�SY�SbPac̀WSUr��VIcUtPr�WU�UP̀�YWUcUVWcX�crrP̀r�cUs�VcrI�YXSyr

YSa�̀IP�dPca�̀IPU�PUsPs�WU�cVVSascUVP�yẀI�RcUcsWcU�tPUPacXXd�cVVPb̀Ps�cTsẀWUt�r̀cUscasrx

HIP�VSUrSXWsc̀Ps�YWUcUVWcX�r̀c̀PwPÙr�IcgP��WU�wcUctPwPÙ�r�SbWUWSU��uPPU�baSbPaXd�baPbcaPs�yẀIWU�

aPcrSUcuXP�XWwẀr�SY�wc̀PaWcXẀd�cUs�WU�cVVSascUVP�yẀI�RcUcsWcU�bTuXWV�rPV̀Sa�cVVSTÙWUt�r̀cUscasrx

�

�caad��cyaPU�S

RIWPY��WUcUVWcX��YYWVPa

�cd�������E



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

�
�
�
� �
�

23456534537�9@4A7BCDE�F56BC7�
�

�
HI�PQR�STUIV�TWX�YÌWabc�Id�HQR�YIVeIVTPbIW�Id�PQR�YbPU�Id�fIVPQ�gTWaÌhRV�
�
ipqrqsr�

tR�QThR�T̀XbPRX�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPu�Id�PQR�YIVeIVTPbIW�Id�PQR�YbPU�Id�fIVPQ�gTWaÌhRV�
TWX�bPu�aIWPVIccRX�wxy�y�w���y�w����y������������������w�y�w���x������yw���y�yw�wxy��_�_�x�x���������y��x�
Tu�TP�̀RaRvaRV�bcd�efeb�TWX�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�uPTPRvRWP�Id�IeRVTPbIWud�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�uPTPRvRWP�Id�
aQTWgRu�bW�WRP�dbWTWabTc�TuuRPu�TWX�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�uPTPRvRWP�Id�aTuQ�dcIhu�dIV�PQR�URTV�PQRW�RWXRXd�
TWX�WIPRu�PI�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPud�bWac̀XbWg�T�ùvvTVU�Id�ubgWbdbaTWP�TaaÌWPbWg�
eIcbabRui��

jW�ÌV�IebWbIWd�PQR�TaaIveTWUbWg�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPu�eVRuRWP�dTbVcUd�bW�Tcc�vTPRVbTc�
VRueRaPud�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�eIubPbIW�Id�PQR�YbPU�Tu�TP�̀RaRvaRV�bcd�efebd�TWX�bPu�aIWuIcbXTPRX�
VRùcPu�Id�IeRVTPbIWud�bPu�aQTWgRu�bW�aIWuIcbXTPRX�WRP�dbWTWabTc�TuuRPud�bPu�aIWuIcbXTPRX�aTuQ�dcIhu�dIV�PQR�
URTV�PQRW�RWXRX�bW�TaaIVXTWaR�hbPQ�YTWTXbTW�èacba�uRaPIV�TaaÌWPbWg�uPTWXTVXui�

klmqm�nso�ipqrqsr�

tR�aIWX̀aPRX�ÌV�T̀XbP�bW�TaaIVXTWaR�hbPQ�YTWTXbTW�gRWRVTccU�TaaRePRX�T̀XbPbWg�uPTWXTVXui�p̀V�
�w���x��q���y�w��rx�w��y���w��y�x��������w�_r�y�w���w����qw���x�y�w�sr��y��t��uw���x��q���y�w��_���y�w�sr��y�
Id�PQR�YIWuIcbXTPRX�vbWTWabTc�wPTPRvRWPu�uRaPbIW�Id�ÌV�VReIVPi�tR�TVR�bWXReRWXRWP�Id�PQR�YbPU�bW�
TaaIVXTWaR�hbPQ�PQR�RPQbaTc�VRx̀bVRvRWPu�PQTP�TVR�VRcRhTWP�PI�ÌV�T̀XbP�Id�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�
uPTPRvRWPu�bW�YTWTXTd�TWX�hR�QThR�d̀cdbccRX�ÌV�IPQRV�RPQbaTc�VRueIWubabcbPbRu�bW�TaaIVXTWaR�hbPQ�PQRuR�
VRx̀bVRvRWPui�tR�aRcbRhR�PQTP�PQR�T̀XbP�RhbXRWaR�hR�QThR�IaPTbWRX�bu�ùddbabRWP�TWX�TeeVIeVbTPR�PI�
eVIhbXR�T�aTubu�dIV�ÌV�IebWbIWi��

yrlz{q|}{�~rnso�l|qsr�

tR�QThR�WIP�T̀XbPRXd�VRhbRhRXd�IV�IPQRVhbuR�TPPRvePRX�PI�hRVbdU�PQR�TaàVTaU�IV�aIvecRPRWRuu�Id�PQR�
waQRX̀cRu���TWX���Id�PQR�YbPU�u�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPui�
�
i|�}o�~rnso�l|qsr�

STWTgRvRWP�bu�VRueIWubacR�dIV�PQR�IPQRV�bWdIVvTPbIWi��HQR�IPQRV�bWdIVvTPbIW�aIveVbuRu�PQR�bWdIVvTPbIW�
bWac̀XRX�bW�PQR��WẀTc��ReIVP�àP�XIRu�WIP�bWac̀XR�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPu�TWX�ÌV�
�r��y��t���w���y�y�w�w�x��

p̀V�IebWbIW�IW�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPu�XIRu�WIP�aIhRV�PQR�IPQRV�bWdIVvTPbIW�TWX�hR�XI�
WIP�R�eVRuu�TWU�TuùVTWaR�aIWac̀ubIW�PQRVRIWi�

jW�aIWWRaPbIW�hbPQ�ÌV�T̀XbP�Id�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPud�ÌV�VRueIWubabcbPU�bu�PI�VRTX�PQR�
IPQRV�bWdIVvTPbIW�TWXd�bW�XIbWg�uId�aIWubXRV�hQRPQRV�PQR�IPQRV�bWdIVvTPbIW�bu�vTPRVbTccU�bWaIWubuPRWP�
hbPQ�PQR�aIWuIcbXTPRX�dbWTWabTc�uPTPRvRWPu�IV�ÌV��WIhcRXgR�IaPTbWRX�bW�PQR�T̀XbP�IV�IPQRVhbuR�TeeRTVu�
PI�aR�vTPRVbTccU�vbuuPTPRXi�jdd�aTuRX�IW�PQR�hIV��hR�QThR�eRVdIVvRXd�hR�aIWac̀XR�PQTP�PQRVR�bu�T�
vTPRVbTc�vbuuPTPRvRWP�Id�PQbu�IPQRV�bWdIVvTPbIWd�hR�TVR�VRx̀bVRX�PI�VReIVP�PQTP�dTaPi�tR�QThR�WIPQbWg�
PI�VReIVP�bW�PQbu�VRgTVXi�

�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ((

�
�
�
0123452676869612�4A�BC5CD1E159�C5F�GH421�IHCPD1F�Q69H�R4S1P5C5T1�A4P�9H1�I452486FC91F�U65C5T6C8�
V9C91E1592��

WXYX̀abaYc�ef�gafhiYfepqa�rig�csa�hgahXgXceiY�XYt�rXeg�hgafaYcXceiY�ir�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�
fcXcabaYcf�eY�XuuigtXYua�vecs�wXYXteXY�hxpqeu�faucig�XuuixYceỲ�fcXYtXgtfy�XYt�rig�fxus�eYcagYXq�uiYcgiq�
Xf�bXYX̀abaYc�tacagbeYaf�ef�YauaffXg��ci�aYXpqa�csa�hgahXgXceiY�ir�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcf�
csXc�Xga�rgaa�rgib�bXcageXq�beffcXcabaYcy�vsacsag�txa�ci�rgXxt�ig�aggig��

�Y�hgah��������������������������������������������������������������̀����a���������������������b��cd��
Xpeqec��ci�uiYceYxa�Xf�X�̀ieỲ�uiYuagYy�tefuqifeỲy�Xf�XhhqeuXpqay�bXccagf�gaqXcat�ci�̀ieỲ�uiYuagY�XYt�
xfeỲ�csa�̀ieỲ�uiYuagY�pXfef�ir�XuuixYceỲ�xYqaff�bXYX̀abaYc�aecsag�eYcaYtf�ci�qeexetXca�csa�wec��ig�
ci�uaXfa�ihagXceiYfy�ig�sXf�Yi�gaXqefceu�XqcagYXcefa�pxc�ci�ti�fi���

g�������������h������i���������������̀����a��������i�������������b��cd��������������̀�������̀������j��

klmnopqrs�tusvpwsnxnynonus�zpq�o{u�klmno�4A�9H1�I452486FC91F�U65C5T6C8�V9C91E1592��

|xg�ip}aucefaf�Xga�ci�ipcXeY�gaXfiYXpqa�XffxgXYua�Xpixc�vsacsag�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcf�
�����h������������������������������������������h��������~��������~����������������������~������~�����d��
gahigc�csXc�eYuqxtaf�ixg�iheYeiY���aXfiYXpqa�XffxgXYua�ef�X�sès�qafaq�ir�XffxgXYuay�pxc�ef�Yic�X�̀xXgXYcaa�
csXc�XY�Xxtec�uiYtxucat�eY�XuuigtXYua�vecs�wXYXteXY�̀aYagXqq��Xuuahcat�XxteceỲ�fcXYtXgtf�veqq�XqvX�f�
tacauc�X�bXcageXq�beffcXcabaYc�vsaY�ec�a�efcf��WeffcXcabaYcf�uXY�Xgefa�rgib�rgXxt�ig�aggig�XYt�Xga�
uiYfetagat�bXcageXq�ery�eYtefetxXqq��ig�eY�csa�X̀ g̀àXcay�csa��uixqt�gaXfiYXpq��pa�a�haucat�ci�eYrqxaYua�
csa�auiYibeu�tauefeiYf�ir�xfagf�cX�aY�iY�csa�pXfef�ir�csafa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcf��

�f�hXgc�ir�XY�Xxtec�eY�XuuigtXYua�vecs�wXYXteXY�̀aYagXqq��Xuuahcat�XxteceỲ�fcXYtXgtfy�va�a�aguefa�
hgiraffeiYXq�}xt̀baYc�XYt�bXeYcXeY�hgiraffeiYXq�f�ahceuefb�csgix̀sixc�csa�Xxtec���a�Xqfi���

�� �taYcer��XYt�Xffaff�csa�gef�f�ir�bXcageXq�beffcXcabaYc�ir�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcfy�
vsacsag�txa�ci�rgXxt�ig�aggigy�tafèY�XYt�hagrigb�Xxtec�hgiuatxgaf�gafhiYfefa�ci�csifa�gef�fy�XYt�
ipcXeY�Xxtec�afetaYua�csXc�ef�fxrreueaYc�XYt�XhhgihgeXca�ci�hgifeta�X�pXfef�rig�ixg�iheYeiY���sa�gef��
ir�Yic�tacauceỲ�X�bXcageXq�beffcXcabaYc�gafxqceỲ�rgib�rgXxt�ef�sèsag�csXY�rig�iYa�gafxqceỲ�rgib�
aggigy�Xf�rgXxt�bX��eYfiqfa�uiqqxfeiYy�rig̀ag�y�eYcaYceiYXq�ibeffeiYfy�befgahgafaYcXceiYfy�ig�csa�
ifaggeta�ir�eYcagYXq�uiYcgiq��

�� |pcXeY�XY�xYtagfcXYteỲ�ir�eYcagYXq�uiYcgiq�gaqafXYc�ci�csa�Xxtec�eY�igtag�ci�tafèY�Xxtec�hgiuatxgaf�
csXc�Xga�XhhgihgeXca�eY�csa�ueguxbfcXYuafy�pxc�Yic�rig�csa�hxghifa�ir�a�hgaffeỲ�XY�iheYeiY�iY�csa�
�������i�������������b��cd������������������j�

���fXqxXca�csa�XhhgihgeXcaYaff�ir�XuuixYceỲ�hiqeueaf�xfat�XYt�csa�gaXfiYXpqaYaff�ir�XuuixYceỲ�
afcebXcaf�XYt�gaqXcat�tefuqifxgaf�bXta�p��bXYX̀abaYc���

�� b����~�����������̀ �̀�̀�����������������������d��~������������������������a������������~�����������
pXfat�iY�csa�Xxtec�afetaYua�ipcXeYaty�vsacsag�X�bXcageXq�xYuagcXeYc��a�efcf�gaqXcat�ci�afaYcf�ig�
������������������c��������������������~a���������b��cd���a����c����������~��������������������j����h��
�����~�������������������~���������c���������h���������~�����������h���������������~���~�����d����̀����
ci�csa�gaqXcat�tefuqifxgaf�eY�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcf�igy�er�fxus�tefuqifxgaf�Xga�
eYXtaexXcay�ci�biter��ixg�iheYeiY��|xg�uiYuqxfeiYf�Xga�pXfat�iY�csa�Xxtec�afetaYua�ipcXeYat�xh�ci�
�������������~���~�����d����̀���j���h�i�����~�~����i���������������������c���~�������wec��ci�uaXfa�
ci�uiYceYxa�Xf�X�̀ieỲ�uiYuagY��

�� �fXqxXca�csa�ifagXqq�hgafaYcXceiYy�fcgxucxga�XYt�uiYcaYc�ir�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcfy�
eYuqxteỲ�csa�tefuqifxgafy�XYt�vsacsag�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcf�gahgafaYc�csa�
xYtagq�eỲ�cgXYfXuceiYf�XYt�afaYcf�eY�X�bXYYag�csXc�Xuseafaf�rXeg�hgafaYcXceiY��

�� |pcXeY�fxrreueaYc�XhhgihgeXca�Xxtec�afetaYua�gàXgteỲ�csa�reYXYueXq�eYrigbXceiY�ir�csa�aYceceaf�ig�
pxfeYaff�Xucefeceaf�vecseY�csa�wec��ci�a�hgaff�XY�iheYeiY�iY�csa�uiYfiqetXcat�reYXYueXq�fcXcabaYcf��
�a�Xga�gafhiYfepqa�rig�csa�tegauceiYy�fxhagfefeiY�XYt�hagrigbXYua�ir�csa�wec��Xxtec���a�gabXeY�fiqaq��
gafhiYfepqa�rig�ixg�Xxtec�iheYeiY��

� �

IBDO 



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

�
�
�
12�45667894@A2�B9AC�AC5D2�4C@EF2G�B9AC�F5H2E8@842�E2F@EG98FI�@658F�5AC2E�6@AA2EDI�AC2�PQ@882G�
D45P2�@8G�A9698F�5R�AC2�@7G9A�@8G�D9F89R94@8A�@7G9A�R98G98FDI�984Q7G98F�@8S�D9F89R94@8A�G2R94928492D�98�
98A2E8@Q�458AE5Q�AC@A�B2�9G28A9RS�G7E98F�57E�@7G9AT��
�
�
�
�
UC@EA2E2G�VE5R2DD958@Q�W44578A@8AD�
�
X@8457H2EI�YE9A9DC�U5Q76̀ 9@�
a@S�bI�cdce�

IBDO 

BDO uw,--CLda LL P 



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0102 0100

34567648�@AB64�CDE

FGHIHPGIQ�ISSTUS

�����V75W�7A8�X75W�4Ỳab7c4A65 defgehip � dqCgdrDp �

�����sAb456t4A65�@AB64�eE Ddgqiu� rDgdCf�

�����sAb456t4A6�aA�vBA587c4�wA4xy��VBx���@AB64�uE ughdr� ughdD�

������̀ 4��xBt�B6W4x�yBb4xAt4A65 fgfeC� igqhf�

������XXB̀A65�x4X4ab7�c4 hgffe� Cqgdud�

�����vB7A�6B�vBA587c4�wA4xy��VBx���@AB64�iE dDgDde� dDgDie�

�����sA64x456�x4X4ab7�c4 fgChd� Dgrrq�

eiugiff� eiCgeCC�

QGI�GQGUGTS

������XXB̀A65��7�7�c4�7A8�7XXx̀48�ca7�aca6a45 eqgeiD� ddgCrr�

������4�4xx48�x4b4À4 ehgrDC� efgDqf�

������4�4xx48�c4754�x4b4À4�@AB64�CeE uhgrCC� urgudC�

������4�4xx48�84b4cB�t4A6�XB56�XW7xy45 dfghCi� dCghdu�

�����wt�cB�44��̀6̀x4��4A4�a65�@AB64�DE hgeeu� hgurD�

������8b7AX45�7A8�B6W4x�ca7�aca6a45 CdgDiq� CqgChh�

��5546�x46ax4t4A6�B�cay76aBA5�@AB64�hE dgfud� dgDur�

CDrgfDr� Cidgehu�

HTU�FGHIHPGIQ�ISSTUS Chughqh� Crhgrdf�

H�H�FGHIHPGIQ�ISSTUS

������7Aya�c4�X7�a67c�755465�@AB64�fE idhgqdC� ufrgCeq�

�����sAb4A6Bxa45 rfh� ruh�

������x4�7a8�4��4A545 egeCD� dgfiu�

iedgeCi� uhdghed�

IPP���QIUT��S���Q�S�@AB64�rE fCfgCdep � DhCgfirp �

VBtta6t4A65�7A8�XBA6aAy4AXa45�@AB64�CqE

VWa4���aA7AXa7c����aX4x

v7xx��b7cx4AdB

Uef�Pghighjklgm�gn�kef�Plko�gn�Hghke�pjmqgrsfh
Pgmtgulvjkfv�Skjkfwfmk�gn�Flmjmqlju��gtlklgm�

It�jk��fqfwxfh�2yz�0102�{lke�qgwijhjklsf�nl|rhft�ngh�0100

}lm�kegrtjmvt�gn�vguujht~

b44�7XXBt�7A�aAy�AB645�6B�6W4�XBA5Bca87648��aA7AXa7c�56764t4A65



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0102������������

456789 0102 0100

@ABCDE�G@HI�PAQ�RSI TDECPCDQ�@ABCD�RUI

VWXWỲ W

abBcDbCd�ePfgD�CPh�@ABCD�Ri�@PII pSqpiSr � pUqGpsr � pGqRStr �

uCvDb�fDeHDE sqRsw� sqRxx� sqiiG�

yH�DA�DE�PAQ�cDb�HCE SqswU� pqxtx� pqRUS�

�HADE�PAQ��DDE SqxpU� UqxSs� UqGwU�

TDAC GqUtU� wqxpw� wqUxt�

�ACDbDECq�QHeHQDAQE�PAQ�cDAPfCHDE sqpSt� RSqRSU� xqipS�

�PfD�B��EDbeH�DE wUqipt� wUqxRt� wwqtix�

TD�PCD�PAQ�bD�BeDbHDE xS� Giw� RUS�

�bPACE�PAQ�BCvDb xqGxi� Gxqitt� RwqRtt�

�DeDfBcDb��BACbH�gCHBAE�PAQ�BCvDb�CbPAE�DbE wix� Sqtsx� siqtip�

�PHA�@yBEEI�BA�QHEcBEHCHBA�B��PEEDCE psU� @RqRswI�

yBAEQPfD��ADb�d��Bbc��HA�B�D�@ABCD�sI w� GRw�

RswqwUp� RxUqiUR� RxxqSpS�

W��WY�W�

�DADbPf��BeDbA�DAC GSqSGw� GxqRtp� GUqwGU�

�bPAEcBbCPCHBA�PAQ�CbPAEHC pqpps� Riqpst� RiqppR�

�DPfCvq�EB�HPf�EDbeH�DE�PAQ�vBgEHA� wqiUt� Gqtxs� GqptU�

�DeDfBc�DAC�EDbeH�DE xqpUi� tqUis� pqpRU�

abBCD�CHeD�EDbeH�DE wRqUpU� wGqxss� GxqGsx�

aPb�Eq�bD�bDPCHBA�PAQ��gfCgbD wSqxRR� wpqRsw� wsqwtU�

�PCDb�gCHfHCHDE RGqiSw� RGqwpx� RRqpGs�

�DbDb�gCHfHCHDE RGqSRs� RwqiSs� RGqGiR�

�BfHQ�bPECD sqitx� wqpss� wqGSs�

�BCPf�DhcDAEDE�@ABCD�RGI RsRqGpx� RSiqUtp� RwpqswG�

cAAgPf�EgbcfgE Gqixt� wSqwUs� SRqRsw�

c��g�gfPCDQ�EgbcfgE��D�HAAHA��B��dDPb UxRqpSt� UxRqpSt� UwiqURU�

c��g�gfPCDQ�EgbcfgE�DAQ�B��dDPb Uxwqxsxr��������������� pRpqRGwr��������������� UxRqpStr �

de8�fghighj9kgl�gm�9e8�fk9n�gm�Ygh9e�Xjlog5p8h
fglqgrk6j986��9j98s8l9�gm�ti8hj9kglq�

u8jh�8l686�v8o8sw8h�2xy�0102�zk9e�ogsijhj9kp8�mk75h8q�mgh�0100

{kl�9eg5qjl6q�gm�6grrjhq|

�DD�P��B�cPAdHA��ABCDE�CB�CvD��BAEBfHQPCDQ��HAPA�HPf�ECPCD�DACE



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

0102

345678 0102 0100

9@ABCD�F9GH�I@P�QRH SCDBIBCP�9@ABC�QTH

�����U@@VIW�DVXYWVD F̀abcd � eR̀eTfd � RQ̀Qfed �

�����UghVGDGBGA@�Ai�BI@pGqWC�gIYGBIW�IDDCBD 9rT̀ffeH� 9TècfaH� 9eR̀TrfH�

�����sA@tgIDu�PCvCWAYCX�gA@BXGqVBCP�IDDCBD t� 9F̀acfH� 9Q̀RfaH�

�����wXAgCCPD�A@�DIWC�Ai�BI@pGqWC�gIYGBIW�IDDCBD t� Q̀aFc� QFa�

�����xCYXCgGIBGA@�Ai�BI@pGqWC�gIYGBIW�IDDCBD Qr̀raa� QT̀bTa� Qr̀crR�

�����yADD�A@�PGDYADGBGA@�Ai�BI@pGqWC�gIYGBIW�IDDCBD t� 9rfTH� Q̀Qfe�

9Rb̀rfeH� 9fb̀bcQH� 9Qr̀crTH�

�����UghVGDGBGA@�Ai�G@vC@BAXGCD t� 9Q̀eeTH� 9Q̀QreH�

�����UghVGDGBGA@�Ai�YXCYIGP�C�YC@DCD t� 9èeRTH� 9èrfQH�

������DC�Ai�G@vC@BAXGCD t� Q̀eaT� crQ�

������DC�Ai�YXCYIGP�C�YC@DCD t� F̀rcf� F̀ReQ�

t� 9RcFH� 9Q̀fQFH�

������@gXCIDC�9PCgXCIDCH�G@�@CB�iG@I@gGIW�IDDCBD 9RT̀TRfH� 9Qf̀QQcH� eQ̀rRR�

�����sCB�iG@I@gGIW�IDDCBD̀�qCpG@@G@p�Ai��CIX Qcb̀cFr� Qcb̀cFr� QTr̀QrF�

�����sCB�iG@I@gGIW�IDDCBD̀�C@P�Ai��CIX QfF̀Fred � Qbf̀babd � Qcb̀cFrd �

��7��������8�������8�7���8��������8�������4�7�
���b�c�5�875�d8�87e7�8��������67b�����78�f�������c�gbb78b

h7���7�575�i7�7ej7��2kl�0102�m�8����e����8��7���64�7b�����0100

n���8��4b��5b����5�cc��bo

pCC�IggAqYI@�G@p�@ABCD�BA�BuC�gA@DAWGPIBCP�iG@I@gGIW�DBIBCqC@BD



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26

IPIQ IPII

RSTUVUSW�ỲaUS�bcd

48e1�765H@f2f�gC�hGe2f�B56ip

q72689@Ar�068Ae8F9@5Ae

�����s̀ t̀Vu�TtvwutT xy�xc�� � yb�b�x� �

������US�T�̀aU��̀�au��̀���VT��

�����������SwvS��VU�à�S�wS̀TS bc��c�� b����y�

s��vSU�à�S�wS̀TS �x� ���

�����������V�̀�Y�aTTd�à�W�TwaTVu�a��UV̀��buS��Vw�UVu�VTTSUT Y��cd� b�b�x�

����������càd�VT��WS�SuawSv��àUv�btUSW�VTTSUT Ye����d� Yb�y��d�

�����������àTWVuS�f̀Sv�g�havwi��̀�a�S Yxd� Yebxd�

�����h�V̀�ST��̀�̀àd�VT��awSvVU�̀���US�T�

�����������̀�vSVTS��̀�WtS��va��aU�Sv��a�Sv̀�S̀UT Ye�c��d� Yb�beyd�

�����������S�vSVTS��̀�V��at̀UT�vS�S��VbuS b��c�� b�ee��

����������h�V̀�S��̀�uaV̀�Ua��àTWVuS�f̀Sv�g�havwi x�� x���

�����������S�vSVTS�Y�̀�vSVTSd��̀��̀USvSTU�vS�S��VbuS Yb�ed� b��x��

�����������̀�vSVTS�YWS�vSVTSd��̀�V��at̀UT�wVgVbuS�V̀W�V��vtSW�u�Vb�u�U�ST ��by�� Y��bd�

�����������̀�vSVTS��̀�WS�SvvSW�vS�S̀tS b�xy�� x�x���

�����������S�vSVTS��̀�WS�SvvSW�uSVTS�vS�S̀tS Yyb�d� Yy��d�

�����������̀�vSVTS�YWS�vSVTSd��̀�WS�SvvSW�WS�Suaw�S̀U��aTU���Vv�ST y���b� Ye��d�

�����������̀�vSVTS�YWS�vSVTSd��̀�V��vtSW�S�wuagSS��tUtvS�bS̀S��UT Ybced� bb��

�����������̀�vSVTS��̀�VW�V̀�ST�V̀W�aU�Sv�u�Vb�u�U�ST e��ce� bbb�

�����������̀�vSVTS��̀��̀�S̀Uav�ST Yx�d� Ye�ed�

�����������̀�vSVTS��̀�wvSwV�W�S�wS̀TST Yyced� Yb�eb�d�

c���x�� �b���b�

487@98j�068Ae8F9@5Ae

����������hVT��tTSW�Ua�V�kt�vS�UV̀��buS��Vw�UVu�VTTSUT Ycx����d� Yxy�c��d�

����������lva�SSWT��va��TVuS�a��UV̀��buS��Vw�UVu�VTTSUT b��e�� be��

Yce��bbd� Yxy�yy�d�

mAH2e9@Ar�068Ae8F9@5Ae

�����������S�vSVTS��̀��̀�STU�S̀UT x��bcx� ����ex�

x��bcx� ����ex�

n@A8AF@Ar�068Ae8F9@5Ae

����������RSwVg�S̀U�a��uà�dUSv��WSbU d� Yex�d�

�̀�vSVTS��̀��VT��V̀W��VT��Skt��VuS̀UT xc����� �c�x�x�

hVT��V̀W��VT��Skt��VuS̀UT��bS��̀̀ �̀��a��gSVv e�b�e�c� be���ex�

hVT��V̀W��VT��Skt��VuS̀UT��S̀W�a��gSVv ex��x�y��������������� e�b�e�c� �

oSS�V��a�wV̀g�̀��̀aUST�Ua�U�S��àTau�WVUSW���̀V̀��Vu�TUVUS�S̀UT

45Ae5j@f892f�p9892q2A9�5B�48e1�nj5re�

s286�2Af2f�t2F2qg26�Quv�IPIQ�r@91�F5q78689@H2�B@rG62e�B56�IPII

h@A�915Ge8Afe�5B�f5jj86ei



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

Yefghip0qfDS

rst�vwxy�������xs��������t����v���������w��������xt��w����bc�������t��xt�����t��xst�����w�w�������xst�v�dd��wxy�vs��xt��

����xst�e���f�g��t��dt�x�h�x����i�wxw�s�v�f�djw�k��rst�vwxyl����w��w��f���xw�wxy�w��xst�����w�w������f���f�m��t��dt�x��t��w�t��x��

�t�w�t�x�����xst�w��������xt����t�k��rst�t��t��w�t��w��f��t���dw�w�x��xw�tn����xt�xw�tn�x�������x�xw��n�t��w���dt�x�fn�

�t��t�xw���fn���xt���������wx��y��t��w�t�k�

aeSqoDqRq4pD0�p44fpD0qDo�gfqq4qhS

rst������fw��xt���w����w�f��x�xtdt�x�����v���s��t�jtt����t���t��w�����������t��wxs�v����w�����jfw���t�x���������xw�m�

�x�������n������t���wjt��jy�xst�r�jfw��st�x���h�����xw�m�i�������rshi��k�rst��wm�w�w���x�������xw�m���fw�wt����t���dd��wtt��

jtf��u��

c8dv8I@I�5B�g62I2A989@5A

rst������fw��xt���w����w�f��x�xtdt�x��w��f��t�xst�������x������ff�xst����������v��n�xst�������x�����xst����xs��������t��vwxy�

ewj���yn��sw�s�w�����x��fft��jy�v��n�v��l��wwk�xy�������xw���xt��s��t����xst���t��xw�������xst����xs��������t��zt��t�xw���

v�ddw��w��n�����v��l��{by�������xw���xt��s��t����xst���t��xw�������xst����xs��������t��|��t�d�����h��sw�t��v�ddw��w��k�

v��l��w��t�xdt�x�w��e�����ft�}�t�my�v������xw�����e}v��n����s�ffy����t��m��t��dt�x�j��w�t���t�xt���w�tn�w��������xt������

��w�m�xst�d��w�wt��t~�wxy�dtxs��k��

v���s�������m�ttdt�x��wxs�xst��w�x�w�x�������xs��������t��w��xst���t��xw�������d���mtdt�x����xst����xs��������t��zt��t�xw���

v�ddw��w��n�����v���w��f��t��wx��������xw���xt��s��t�w��v��l�������fw��xt���w����w�f��x�xtdt�x�k�rst�����t�x��m�ttdt�x�

��t�w�wt��xs�x�xst���t��xw�m����x���s�ff�jt���w��wwk�xy���b�����wwk�xy��jy�v���������kb�y���b�������kb�y��jy�xst��w�x�w�x����

���xs��������t�k��}��s�d��w�w��fwxy�w���t�����wjft�����wx���������wfwxwt��������y���bby�����ff����wx�f����x���tf�xw�m�x��

wd����tdt�xn�t�����w��������t�f��tdt�x����j�wf�w�m��������wfwxy�t~�w�dt�xk�

v����f���s�������m�ttdt�x��wxs�xst��w�x�w�x�������xs��������t��w��xst���t��xw�������d���mtdt�x����xst����xs��������t��

|��t�d�����h��sw�t��v�ddw��w��n�����v���w��f��t��wx��������xw���xt��s��t�w��v��l�������fw��xt���w����w�f��x�xtdt�x�k�rst�

����t�x��m�ttdt�x���t�w�wt��xs�x�xst���t��xw�m����x���s�ff�jt���w��{by���b�����{by��jy�v�������{by���b�����{by��jy�xst�

�w�x�w�x�������xs��������t�k�}��s�d��w�w��fwxy�w���t�����wjft�����wx���������wfwxwt��������y���bby�����ff����wx�f����x���tf�xw�m�x��

wd����tdt�xn�t�����w��������t�f��tdt�x����j�wf�w�m��������wfwxy�t~�w�dt�xk��

cWdv8I@I�5B�pFF5GA9@A�

zt�t��t�w���t����t��������������f�j��w�������t��m�wtt���st��t���t�k��}��t��t����t��t��m�wtt�����xsty���t�w�����t������

dt�����jft�������t��fx����xst��t�tw�x����m����������t��w�t�k�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�
�
ae���SghDgRg4iD0�i44pqD0gDh�rpsg4gtS�cF5A9@AG2Qd�

�

cFd�u2H2AG2�u2F5vA@9@5A��
��

y���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������̀�y�����������a�������b���c����d�����c������ee����e��������������c��������f���������g����h���ee��c������������

��f���c����̀�y����hh������h���������f���c��������������������������������������c������������g�����̀��i�������ce�����h���

j��������k��������������������������������������������������������������̀��

�

i����������������������������������������l�����������������������c��h����������̀�

��

b�������h�����g����g���������������g��������������������������������h���̀�b����������h����������������������������g��������

�������������������������������̀�
��

m�����h�������������������������������������������������������������̀�

�

cQd�V2B2662Q�u2H2AG2�

�

k�h������������������������h�e��e����e��e������������e��e���������������������������h����e���������������h����������������������

e�������̀��

�

c2d�V2B2662Q�s28I2�u2H2AG2�

�

k�h������������������������������h�h���������������������������h��������e�������h�������l���c�e��e������������g�����g�������

�����������������������������������l�����������������������c��h����������̀��

�

cBd�V2B2662Q�V2H2P57T2A9�45I9�4186v2I�

�

k�����ec������������������������������e���h���h��������e�����e��f�����������h�������e��������e����������������������������g����

������e�����������h���g����������g��������������������������̀�

�

cvd�48I1�8AQ�F8I1�2nG@H8P2A9I�

�

b��������������o�������������������h����������������o����e�������������������������������������g��������p�����e���q�������

d��������̀�

�

c1d�gAH2I9T2A9I�

�

r�����c����������������s����������������������������t�������������������������������c���������h����k���c����uv��wxwu�����

��������������������g����h���������c��s��������̀��m�����������������������������������������g���������g�������h���������������������

����������������������ce�����̀�

�

c@d�yGQv29�R@vG62I�

�
y����������h������������������������h���������h���������e�������e�������de����wz����wxwù�� �



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�
�
ae���SghDgRg4iD0�i44pqD0gDh�rpsg4gtS�cF5A9@AG2Qd�

�

cud�h5H26AT2A9�068AIB26I�

�

vwxy��x���y�����yxw�yw���x�w��yx���xy�xy���w��y�����xy�yw�y��w���y��y�x��������y��x�w��yx���������x��y�������y������w��

���yxw�yw���w���w��y������������x��yx������y��yyw��y�����y��x���y�����yxw�yw���x�w��yx����w���y�b�������x�w����x����yx��x�w��yx���

�xy�xy���w��y�����xy�yw�y��w���y��y�x��w�b������w�����c������w��������xy��y����������y���xy��y���

�

cdd�tT7P5C22�RG9G62�e2A2B@9I�

�

fgh��w������y�c���yy����iy���w�x������w�������y�j�w���c���kyw���w�k��w���l�������c��w�����������my�c���yx�c��w����w�x������w��

�xy�yncyw�y������w��xxy���

�

o��i��y��y��w��c���my�c����yw���ywy�������������x�y����fghp��y�c���yy����q�y����������y��xy���y�������y�y��ywy������xy������x������

�y�yx��wy�����y���w��yx���y���w���y���y������y�����xy��xy�yw����y���w��yncy��y������xy�����x���w��b��y��w�xy��y����q�y�

���������y���w�yx���y�y��ywy�����c��w���xy����x�y�����y���w�cx�ry��y���ywy����������y�y�c���yy��xyw�yx��yx���y��wy�y���x�����

y�xw���y�����xy��ywy������

�

cPd�s5Ast926T�V2W9�

�

u�w�m�yx���y������xy��x�y���w���y���w�������y����w�w���������y�yw���wy�������wi�w����w��c���yw����w����r����yw����

�

cTd�D5AtR@A8AF@8P�iII29I��

� ��

g�wm��w�w��������y����xy�w�����������y����������x�y�yn����w�����������y���w���xy��y�����x���y��w���y�cx������w�����yx���y����q�y������

���y���y�������y��yn�yw��w���y��w����y���xxyw���y�x��w���xy�w����w�yw�y����x����y��w���y��x��w�x�����x�y��������wy����

�

c@d�08As@WP2�487@98P�iII29I�

�

q�w����y���c��������y����xy�xy��x�y�����������b������w����y������w���������xy���xy��������x�������y������v�������w��

��w��x�����w���y�y��c�yw���x��y��yx�yw�������y����y����q�y�������y���xy�����������y������y���w����y���c��������y����

yn�����w����w���������x���y���w�����x�����m��wy���������yx���y�x�y������y����y�������y����������b�w�

�

u�w����cx��y�yw��� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� xy�z�xyy��y�x��

k�xi��� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� xy�z�{|��y�x��

}�����w��� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� xy�z�xyy��y�x��

j����wyx��~�yv��c�yw�� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� ��z��|��y�x��

hy����y�� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� ��z��|��y�x��

�w�x���x����xy� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� {�z�xyy��y�x��

u��x�x�����yx����� o�x�����m��wy���yx���y�������y����y�������y���w��� ��z�|��y�x��

��xi��w�cx��xy��� g������x���y���w����c����w�����y� �

� � �
�

�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�
�
ae���SghDgRg4iD0�i44pqD0gDh�rpsg4gtS�cF5A9@AG2Qd�

�

cTd�D5AuR@A8AF@8P�iII29I�cF5A9@AG2Qd�

�

c@@d�45A96@WG9@5AI�5B�08Av@WP2�487@98P�iII29I�

�

wxy�������x���x��x���������������x����y��������y�������xy����������������������x������������x�������������x�����x����x����

x�������x��������������xy��x����x������������x������y����

�

c@@@d��56�I�5B�i69�8AQ�b@I956@F�iII29I�

�

cde�xy������f������xy��g��������c��������y��xyx����xy����y�������x������h��i�����x���xy��y�yj����x���yx��

���������x�����k��y�����y��������y��k�x����x���k��x�y��y���xy����������������x����x��c��l�������xy��������������xl�x��x���

�

m��i�����x���xy�����������x������x���y������������x��x�������y���������y�����x������yxy��x����x����y����

�

c@Hd�D89G68P�n2I5G6F2I�

�

o����������x��x�����������x��������x��x�k���x��l�x��x��xy���x���y��x���y��������y�p���x��x�������y�������y�����x����

��yxy��x����x����y����

�

cHd�gA9262I9�487@98P@q89@5A�

�

cde������y����x���x��p���y�������������x�����x����h����������y��������y����x��xy�������x���x��x������

�

cH@d�s28I2Q�08Av@WP2�487@98P�iII29I�

�

r�x������x����xy����������xy��x��l�x������������y������xy�����i���y����y�x������hy�����������������l�x���x����y��������x��

��x�����xy�������x���x��x��������g�����������x����x���x����y��������x������x��y����x����xy�������xl��y���x�����x�����

����s��y����x���y��������

�

cH@@d�gAH2A956@2I�

�

ty��y������������������y�������y�x������������x��������h������h��������x���x��������xy������x����y��������

�

cAd�tI9@T892I�

�

w�������x�x���y����������y�����x������yxy��x����x����y�����u�������xyx����y������xi�������x����xy��x��������y����x��x������

�������������x���y����y�������y�����x������yxy��x����x����y���xy����������������������y��y��y����x����������g��x����u����y��

���y����xy�������x���y�x�������j�����l��y����y�����k������y�x����x���y����xy�������yx���y���y�����k������x�������������������

�xy�������x���x��x�����k�x�������������y�������x���y��xy����x������y�������y��y��y����x����������g���x����������������������������

�����������x�����

�
� �



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�
�
ae���SghDgRg4iD0�i44pqD0gDh�rpsg4gtS�cF5A9@AG2Qd�

�

c5d�S2uT2A9�V@IFP5IG62�

�

v�wxy�x����w��x���x���w�����w���y��w����x�������������y����������������xw������y��x���x�����������������w�����������x����wx�����x���

�x����������������������������x���x�����x��x�wxw��bxx����x�cd��

�

c7d�45A98T@A892Q�S@92I�

�

v�������������������������x��w��xw��w��x��y��ex����x����w��x��w�����������������x��wx���������x��x��x��x�x�����w�������x��������x�

��������y�����x������x��x�f�

�g������x�������x�����w��������x��w�wh�

��g�����������������x��xx�w���x�x�������x�����w�������h�

���g��ijk��w����x������xw���w���x�������x��w��xw���w�������h�

��g�����w�x��x��x������������x�x���������x�x���w�������x�y��x����h�����

�g�������x�w�����x�xw�����x������x�������������x����x�

�

l�x������������w��x��y��ex���w�����yx�x��mw�xw�����x������x���w�������w�n�x�x����������������y���x������o������x����x�����

���������y��������x�������xy��������������x��x�x��������w����xy������������������x��w��x��

�

cpd�iII29�q29@62T2A9�pWP@u89@5AI�

�

r��s�������co�dtduo�ijk������x���������wx��������������y�w��������udvto�vwwx��wx���x�x���r���y�����w��l��w��x�����������y�

w������������xwwxw���x��x������y�����xy�������y�����w��ww�����x���������x��x���x�x�������x���������y���x����������wwx�w��l�x�

w����������w������x�������x�������x���x���w�x����x���w�w������x����x��������������

�

v������������w��x��y��ex����x�o��w������x������������x������y����xf�

�g� ��x�x��w����xy�������y����������������x���x�x�����w�w�����x���������������y���x����������wwx�h�

��g���x���w������w����������x�x���y����y���wx������x�������������w�������x�h�

���g�����w�x��x��x������������x�x���������x�x���w�������x�y��x����h�����

��g����x�w�����x�xw�����x������x�������������x����x��

�

l�x��xw�����y���w�w����x��xx����������ex���������x��������y�������������x��x���x�����y���x����������wwx�w�������x��x��y�������ex��

�����x�w��x���w�w��w���x��x���x�����y���x����������wwx���vww�������w��wx�������x������������w���x��x��x�x������������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"((

)01�3456457894@�4A�801�398B�4A�C4580�D7@E4FG15�
C481H�84�34@H4I9P781P�Q9@7@E97I�R8781S1@8H�
T175�1@P1P�U1E1SV15�WXY�̀àW�
b)7VFI75�7S4F@8H�9@�804FH7@PH�4A�P4II75Hc�

d̀RefCeQe3gC)�g33hiC)eCf�phqe3erR�bE4@89@F1Pc

b5cQ9@7@E97I�e@H85FS1@8H

stu�wxy���x������������y��w��y���������w�xw�x����������w���w����������������bb����c��dw��w�e�f��g�g���y��w���y������c���w���h�

���w���w����������������w���b��w��y�����x��������x���y���������y��w�x�b��w���w��������������w����y������w���b��x����y�w�y�i���

��w����������w���y�e�by���i��x��w��y��yb��i������yx��i�e�w���i��xh�����w���w��w������w�x�b��w���w����w����������y�i����iw��i�x�����

�j���e�������������j�y��x����w��w���c���w�k����w�x�b��w���w��������������x�����w��x�w��bw���cw�����w�����w����x�w���y���y��

w�y���l�x��y�����y���������y��w�x������j������y������w�����y�����y�h��sw�i�w�x��w�i��j��cw������w�����w����x�w���y��h�m��y�����

�����cw�������c����������y�i��������cw������w�x�w��y������wew����w�x�w�����x���w���������w�����w����x�w��w�y���l�x��y���������

�i���bb����c������������w������iyx��y�x��������������������c�����y���n����������i��sy��y��xw��x�o�w�������yb�p���w��y���by���i��

����yx��������w���xh��uw��w��y��w��yqw�����w����wx��qi����y������y��������xy���h���c��������������x���w�k������x��y����w�x�

�y�x��w�x���yc����w���y�x��w�x�x�����������w�������wb�����i����������e�w�h������c���������w���wxr����x�by��w�e�w�y���lw��y��yb�

���������y��x���y����h��ow����w�x�����iw����yb���c���������w������y�x�x�y���i����wx��xw��h��s�w��w���y���y�������w��x��y��i��

w�j������y��yb���c���������w��������x�x�����i���w��e����cw����yb��i�����w��x���c��������h��

m���b��w���w��w���������y�x�x�w���y���y��w�y���l�x��y���w��������x�w���w��e�by�����w������h��ti���b��w���w��w������w������w���x��

���w��������y�����w������y�x�x�����i��sy��y��xw��x�o�w�������yb�p���w��y��h��m�b��w���w����w�����e�y�������w������x�u���y���l�x�

qi����������n�������i�xh�

WdeCDrR)vrC)R

si��bw���cw����yb���c���������w��w���������f��g�g�����xy��zyg�����{g�gg�u�xz|�gf�����}h�stu~����c���������y��by��y��y�������

yb���yc����w��w�x�sw�wx�w���w�k��y�x��q��i�w��y���yb�xyg���������{g�gg�u�xzy�gf�����}h���

���w���w���������������w����������q����dw��w�e�g�g���y�w��������g�g���w�������e���x�b�y��ghf����y��hf���{g�g����fh�����y�

�hff�}h���c����������w�������b�y��dw��w�e�g�g���y��we�g��f��w�������e���x�b�y��fh�����y��h�g�h�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

efgDEhS0ihD0�gD�pqDSVrph�hDhstU�4qsuqsr0gqD�cvph4wd

xy��������������������������������������������������x�����b��������b��c�����������������d��������x��c���������eb��fd�������

x���gh��i����j��k�l��mnnop���x��c���������������b�������k��k���g�c��q�������k�����b������k�����������������������������������

b�gg��b����h����������������x��k����y��������b��q��p�

r�gg���s��������b���������g��������������������x��������������t�

mnmo� mnmm

x���������bb��������b��q�h��� u��������v�nwn� u����� �o�nnm�

x����������y��cg���� �vn�z{z� �o|�vmn�

}������������ ���lom� ���l{l�

~������������ u������vw�lw��� u�������vm��|z�

ebb������c�k�h��������bb��������h�������� u��������o�{l|��� u����� �m�|zw�

���������b�����h������� ���|�{m��� ���l�|�w�

��h�� �m|�{mo� �m{�{wo�

~��������h�������� u������vn�zmm�� u�������ol�o{o�

r��������������y���k� u��������v�|mz�� u����� �v�|m{�

~�������q����� u��������z�l�o� u����� �z�lnm�

~�������c������ ���z�l�n� ���z�v|z�

y�����b�g�� u����� ���o� u����� ����m�o�

��b���������xy����x������������r����g������������b����x��������������q���g���������������������k�x��cp����������g��������

uv�|mz�nnn�fmnmm���uv�|m{�nnni��������������b��q�h�����������g��������um{�{mo�nnn�f�����wf�ii�fmnmm���um{�{wo�nnnip�e�����

��b����������bb��������b��q�h������xy����x������������r����g������������b����x��������������b��q�h�������g���x���������g�����

���u��n{l�nnn�fmnmm���u���mm�nnnip�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

efghiD�0h�ghDSVigp�pDpqrU�4hqshqi0thD

uvw�y�����w�w����yw���y���w�������������������������������������������b�����bvw���yy�c��d���bw�w�b��w����d�e��f�����g���bw�h�

i��jkdk�b�l����lm��nop�����w�bwq��f�k�b��qkw����f�rsn�cvw�w�g�rsn����kwq�����gw���e��f�����g���bw�b��nop����bvw��f�k�b�

���������l�t��u�i��vkyg�l�����lt���q�o��wf�w��lw�����l��nopx��n�k���y��kbv���ywq�rsn�b�������c�����qq�b����y��l��ml�����

��q���t�������w�ew�b��wygu�i��jkdk�b�l�������������w�gw���qwf��q�bw�f�y����c������kwq��g�nop�b�������c���f�z�fkf����

��������t��u�uv���e��f�����g���bw��wey��wq���q��kyy���wq��yy�e�w���k��e��f�����g���bw�����kwq��g�nop�b��rsnu�uvw�y����f�bk�w��

���jkdk�b�l�����m���q��w������bw�w�b��b��u�l{�ew�����kfu�j���b�|w�wf�w���l�����������f�k�b������������m�}��wf�����qkw�

b��nopu�|k���d�bvw�gw����rsn�q�wc��l������������������������������f�bv���e��f�����g���bwu�j�bw�������qw���d�bvw�e�����e�y�

e�gfw�b������}���t�l���f�qw�b��q�bw��bvw��wf�����d��k�q��d�����y��yw�b��rsn�k�qw��bvw�bw�f�����bvw��d�wwfw�b�����}��}l������

cv��v�rsn�wzew�b��b��q��c���������kbk�w����wb�����b�k�b���u��

~�bw�w�b��w�w�kw�����wtm��������������w�}��������q�q���qw�q��w�w�kw�����}��t���������������t����v����ww�����ykqwq����bvw�

n����y�q�bwq��b�bwfw�b����iew��b����u�

jb�bvw�f�bk��bg�q�bw����bvw�y����b��rsn��nop�f�g���b��b��q����wb�����wzbw�q�bvw�bw�f�����bvw�y�������cv�yw�������e��b����rsn�f�g�

�we�g�bvw�y�������cv�yw�������e��b�k���d�w�bvw����bw���y����wzbw���y���������du�

�fp�sghUpp�R�0�qp��pDpRt0S

c8dS@F��8AQ�S2H268AF2

sfey�gww�����nop���w�w�b�bywq�b��e�gfw�b���wy�bwq�b��k�k�wq������yw��w���q��w�w����w�ke����wb��wfw�b�����w��d��b������bw��bw��

gw��������w����wu�uvw��f�k�b��w���qwq�����bvw�w��w�w��b��������wq���������bk����y���yk�b����q��w��g������qwew�qw�b����f����

��bk���w��k���d���e���w�bwq��w�w��b���bk����y���yk�b����fwbv�q�e�����bwq�����w����w�u�uvw�f��b��w�w�b���bk����y���yk�b�������

nopx���kbk�w��w�w��b��c�����feywbwq�����b�|w�wf�w���l������u�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

efghipqUgg�Rr0rsg�tgDgRu0S�cF5A9@AG2Qd

c8dS@Fv�8AQ�S2H268AF2�cF5A9@AG2Qd

wxy�������x��������x�����������������x��y�����������x�y������x��b��x��cdde��y�������������x��bf������g�h�����g��x������

i��i�����x�����������y�������������x��bf���j��������x����������x��x����������x��bf���kb��b���x��l����f������������x��

������y����m�n�

odop� odoo�

q�x�y������������x�r�����xx�x���y�����g���� s������t�uvv��� s������w�udt�

l��n�����b���x�����f���������� xuw� wpc�

��wx��������x�����b�����x�y������������x� poo� odt�

��l��b�����������y���xz� c�dop� yc�ccxz�

h���n���q�x�y����i���� yuo{z� yw{vz�

q�x�y������������x�r��x���y�����g���� s������w�ux{��� s������t�uvv�

l��n����|x������}������b���������x� pwt� c�xxo�

q�x�y�����������g�r��x���y�����g���� s������{�ppv��� s������{�vut�

~������x�y���x�����b���������b�i���x�����i�����x�����b��x������������b�����x�y�����������g��������y����m�n�

odop � odoo

�����bx�������� v�cde� v�xde�

�b�b����xy�����x������� v�xe�y���odov��x��o�xe�������y���� o�dde�

���i�x�����x��x���������x����y�

�xy�����x�

d�dde����d�xde� o�x{e����v�tpe�

~���bx������}������b���������x����������}����f�����i��������b������������i��g������f�����������x�x�����f������y�������y����f�x�

g�����y�������yodoo�r�cc�g����z��

cWd45GAF@P�s29@62T2A9�S9@72AQ

������x��oddx����bx����k������������x��������������������x�����i�x���������x�u�pce��y������x��f��b������������x���x��g������f���

�b����b�x�����oddo��~��������bx�����������b���������x����x������������x�����bx���i�g������x������b����������������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

ef0gDhipqr�4gsi0gq�gSSr0S

c8dt56u�@A�s65v62II

wxy������yx�y��������������x���x�����������bbb�cdbdd�e��f��d�d�bbbg������x��h�����ixy��j�kl��mixy��j���x��x���������������

n�oo��xii�����n����������������������y����l�

cWdV2H2P5726�45A96@WG92Q�08Av@WP2�487@98P�gII29I�8AQ�p9126�068AIB26I

q���ox��y��x��y�hr��k������ho��������o����������k�x���y��y�����y��x���d�bs��bbb�cdbdd�e����t�b�bbbg������h����y��x���j�k�

kry��������u��yl���

abaX q8AQ
q8AQ�

iT765H2T2A9I
s86uI pG@PQ@AvI

v8F1@A26C�w�

�rxG@7T2A9
E21@FP2I iAB68I96GF9G62

q@W686C�

v8926@8PI

t56u

�@A�s65v62II
0598P

45I9I

y�o�����h���������x��u��y ���dds�������� �d������� ���� tf��st������� ��s������������ d���b��������� �d�f����� �� dff�bzz�������� stt��� ��� f��d�d������� fdz��dd��������

mkk���x�����k�mk{r��i���� e �d� t�z�f��� z�ztd�� ftz��� z�z������ t�fd��� dzz��� �f�dt��� ���bzz���

q���x��o� e e e�� e��� e� ��td�� �b��� dd���� e ���tf

y�o�������k�x��u��y ���dds�������� �d��dz��� ���� �z�b�d������� �td��db�������� d���t��������� ���tb���� �� d�d��t��������� s�b��� ��� ��������������� f�f�ss���������

gFFGTGP892Q�gT569@|89@5A

y�o�����h���������x��u��y e����� � d��tbs� ���� db���z������� ff�z�z�������� �s��f��������� ��zbs��� ���� ss����������� �f���� ��� e����� � d����sd��������

mixy��j���x����k�mk{r��i���� e d�db�� d��t���� ���s��� ��tz���� s�f���� t�z�z�� d����� e �����b�

q���x��o� e e e�� e��� e� ��d�f� �b�� dd���� e ��tft

y�o�������k�x��u��y e����� dz�f�b� ���� dd�df�������� ����ts�������� d��bbf�������� t�szs��� ���� �b��fdf�������� ������ ��� e����� dts�sff��������

D29�p55u�E8PG2 ���dds�������� t��f�z��� ���� �b����������� fb�s���������� t���f���� ��� ��t�t��� ���� �ff�sz��������� �s���� ��� ��������������� td��bd���������

abaa q8AQ
q8AQ�

iT765H2T2A9I
s86uI

pG@PQ@AvI

c62I9892Qd

v8F1@A26C�w�

�rxG@7T2A9
E21@FP2I iAB68I96GF9G62

q@W686C�

v8926@8PI

t56u

�@A�s65v62II
0598P

45I9

y�o�����h���������x��u��y ���sbs�������� �d�z����� ���� tt��tf������� ��s��sb�������� d��b���������� �d�t�t��� �� dtb�f�d�������� s�d��� ��� f��ztf������� �sd�d����������

�mk{r��i����y�o�������x�y��x�����x��x��
m�����}���y�i����~ho�����x��c�x����g�

zzs��
zzs���

y�o�����h���������x��u��y��y������k ���sbs�������� �d�z����� ���� tt��tf������� �tb�bds�������� d��b���������� �d�t�t��� �� dtb�f�d�������� s�d��� ��� f��ztf������� �sd��df��������

mkk���x�� ��zdb�� tb��� z���b��� �d��� z�d�z��� ���f����� df�ffz��� d����� c��tg� zf�d���

q���x��o� e� f�� ���dd��� ��d�� ����b��� ��z������ ��tbd�� dbt��� e� ��b�s

y�o�������k�x��u��y ���dds�������� �d������� ���� tf��st������� ��s������������ d���b��������� �d�f����� �� dff�bzz�������� stt��� ��� f��d�d������� fdz��dd��������

gFFGTGP892Q�gT569@|89@5A

y�o�����h���������x��u��y e����� � �s�b�z� ���� �s�d��������� fd��ft�������� ����z��������� �������� ���� st��tb������� ��f��� ��� e����� � dz��db���������

�mk{r��i����y�o�������x�y��x�����x��x��
m�����}���y�i����~ho�����x��c�x����g�

dfd��
dfd���

y�o�����h���������x��u��y��y������k e����� � �s�b�z� ���� �s�d��������� fd�f�f�������� ����z��������� �������� ���� st��tb������� ��f��� ��� e����� � dz���fz��������

mixy��j���x��������� e� d��zz� ��s����� ��sf��� d�tbd��� f�b���� t��fb�� d����� e� �f�sft�

q���x��o� e� f�� ��b����� z�b�� ����b��� ��b�d���� �f��� dbt��� e� ��ft�

y�o�������k�x��u��y e����� � d��tbs� ���� db���z������� ff�z�z�������� �s��f��������� ��zbs��� ���� ss����������� �f���� ��� e����� � d����sd��������

D29�p55u�E8PG2 ���dds�������� �b�sbd��� ���� zf�t�d������� fd��bt�������� ���dt���� ��� ���bs��� ���� �ff�t�s�������� �ff��� ��� f��d�d������� �fs��zb��������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

efgSSh0�ih0pihqhD0�rstpug0prDS

vwx���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������b���������������

���b��������������c������������������������b�����������d�e�fg�c����������

h��������������������b����������d�����������������������������������������b��������������������������������b�c��������������������

�������������d�c�����i����d�������j���������klm��

n����b����d����������������������������������������d������o�

pqpe�
n����b�����r�b������

eks�pqpe�

n����b�������������d�i���� �t���� �psluv�

wbb��������xc����� �ve�

n����b�������d�i���� �t���� �psyup�

pqpp�
n����b�����r�b������

eks�pqpp�

n����b�������������d�i���� �t���� ���z

w�{����������������������b����������d�
w�����|����������}����������� ��psflq�

}c�����������b�s���������� �t���� �psflq�

wbb��������xc����� �~v�

n����b�������d�i���� �t���� �psluv�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

ef�g44hihpg0qV�ShrsphS

tutv tutt

wxy���x������x�����

�x�x��������y����x�x��������x������yx�x�������b���x����� c���������d�e�e�� c��������ff�uut���

wxyx�gx�������h�� ii�tu�� ��td�ftj�

k�lb����������m�� �ffv�udi� �fut�tvu�

nmm�o����x��y��l��y��x������px��� c������j�j��tv�� c�������e��jfi�

c8dq2A268P�BGAQI�r�s2A268P̀�t8926�8AQ�I2t26

tutv tutt�
nll��l�b��x�u�
���x�x��������� c��������tv�uj�� c��������t��e�j�
��v��x������� j��uf� d���t�
��wx�x����x��b���x������ �d�ttu� �d�udi�
y��ll��l�b��x�u
���x�x��������� ����ee� � i�uid�
��v��x������� d�t�t� v�dje�
��wx�x����x��b���x������ v�jdv� �iu���
�x�x��������y���kz{|x}�i�w��x�wxy����������� eti� ��j�t�

c���������d�e�e��� c��������ff�uut�

cWd�r2I26H2�RGAQI�

~����mx k����bh��b��y ����b��y ��lx��b���xy ~����mx

xxmxohx��v���tutt ������y�x�y xxmxohx��v���tutv

��m�b�x�p��������blox��
�����b�xx�b�� v�ttuc��� ���� }c��� � ti�c ���� e�ec���� ������ t��dvc�� ����

���b�x v�j��� tvv����� dt������ t�d������ dte����
���x�x��� ft����� }���� j���� ve���� t����
��k�ol��x� i������ ve���� f���� i����� dv���

~�b��b�� �d���� }���� }��� �j���� jd���
��m���|ol��gxox��y eut��� ������� fd������ t��� eff����

n������h�x����yb�� �u��t������ fui����� ��e���� v��uf��� e��de����

����w��x�����y vf�u������� }� t�f�f� ji������� v��jef������

v��x�����y d�ivf���� }���� vv����� }� f�tj��

����b�� ����� }���� }��� }����� ������

kbgbm�nox�b�p �d�tf������ �u�dvf��� ��dff���� fv�fii���� tj�fdj������

��y�bmx�n�ob�by����b���nmm�oo����b�� jt����� }���� }��� ������ f����
w��xx�y�xkk }�� ��ud�� v���� ��udd��� }���
����y�xkk }������ �t��� }��� �t������� }���

���x�����y���x�nox�b�p e���� }���� }��� e��� }���

���x�����y���x��x��mp t��jt���� }���� �ji���� ee���� t�j�v����
|����y���m���x ev���� }���� �ve���� ff���� ��d�d����
��h�bm�n�� �vf��� ef���� df������ v����� jti����

w�y��b��h�x�����yl�����b�� �iu��� ee���� �d������ de���� tdd����
k��h������� fft��� vu������ df������ eu���� e�e����
����b���k�oo��b�bxy����� }�� �u�ie�� vjf���� }� ���v����
����� �td�ftjc��� ��� tv�evec���� ��� ����ttc�� ����� �u�je�c���� ���� ii�tu�c�� ������



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

efg44hihpg0qV�ShrsphS�cF5A9@AG2Qd

cFd487@98P�RGAQ

tutv tutt�

xy����y������y�����

���y��y������������y������������y��� ��������t�btcu� �������de�bdc��

f��g��g���y����������hi���� tebe�j� t�bedj�

���������vbudj� ��������utbtvu�

Ybf4kiil0iqD0S�gDV�4kD0lDmqD4lqS

c8ds657269C�08n2I

opq���������y������y�rb�����y�������gys����g��yg�r���ty������yu��h��hb��������h�����y��uy��ggy�g���h��g��yg�r���ty���hb���uyg�����y��

���h����v�w�

tutv tutt�

x�t�����y��y�� ��������vvb�e���� ��������tebt���

yy�������y�������h�g�����gys������y�������uyg�����y�w�

zg���������{��yg�sy���|�}�u����� ��������dtbeje��� ��������d�b��v�

{gy��yg�q����i�yg�xy�������~���g���� tb�ce� tbutj�

{gy��yg�q����i�yg�xg�����g�������fi�u�g��r� �ubt�d� jbcec�

�g����u�o��is����f��y��sy���fi�u�g��r� �b�j�� �b�vc�

�i��������������y�fi�u�g��r� c� c�

��f�y�vyg�y������y�}���y�r� �uu� �uu�

��������ebvu���� ���������b�u��

zg��yg�r�q��iy�x�t� �������e�bted��� �������etb��j���

cWds2AI@5A�p@8W@P@9C

opq���������ys���ryy������g��i�y�����uy��i��������zy������z�������������r��gi��yy���y�������������xuy����g���h��gi��yy�b�

gy�gy�y�����������sys�yg������ys���ryg�b����gy��������y�h�g���s�����yg�����uy�����b�����i��������y��sy����h����y�������

��s�����g�������h��y�yh�����xuy�����������si���|ys���ryg��yh��y���y�yh����y�������������������y�������y�yh�����gy����y�������

h�gsi����f�����~y�ys�yg�v�b�tuttb��uy������u������i��tdubuuu������y�sys�yg���������g�t�s��y�r��tdbuuu�gy��gy��sys�yg���

f����y�sys�yg������i�y����g�t�s��y�r�dvbuuu�����g��i��g��hg�s����������yg�sy�����

��ygr��ugyy�ry�g�b�������i�g�������i����������ygh�gsy��������y����uy�h�������������������h��uy������������y�i��r��h������hi�������

xuy����i�gr��y�ygs��y��������g��g���y���s���y��ys���ryg�����sys�yg�����g��i�����g��y����hi����uy�������xuy����i�gr���

����i���y������g��i�����g��y�������y������uy�y��gr���y���gs��������sy�u��b�vu��u��g��i�y���uy�����|�ygs�g��y��h�sys�yg�����

ys���ryg�����g��i�������ihh���y�������g����y��y�yh����h�g���yg��y�hi�igy�y��g���������uy��������xu���g��y�s�r��y����i��y��h�g��uy�

�s�g����������h���r����i�g����hi�������ig��i������v�����y����i��y��h�g��uy��s�g����������h���r�i�hi��y�����i�g������������r��



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

Ybe4fggh0giD0S�pDV�4fD0hDqiD4hiS�cF5A9@AG2Qd

cWdr2AI@5A�s@8W@P@9C�cF5A9@AG2Qd

tuv�xy����v�v��������������������y���y���uv������������v���y��������������v�vx�v�������b������c����vc���d��ef��x����y�����c��g�

���������y���������v���y���v�v�����y����gy��g��y��v��������h��ijk����c�dl��m��bbb�n�b���o�dm�pl��bbbq��y��vx��yrv��

�y��������y����y��uv�����������������b��h��tuv��vs���������y��t�����v��������v�vx�v�������b�mh�

ux��yrv���������������g�����uv�������v�y�c��uv����v���y��vs�v��v�����uv��xy����y��vx��yrv���y��������y���x�cv�c����g��uv��������

rv���ncv���vc��y��������y���v���y����������y�����gqh�tu�������v����v��uv�������v�y�c�������vc����������v����c������vc����v����y��

�uv����������gg�vg��v���v������g�����y��y�����v�����c��v�����v��������y�����y�����g��uv�y���g���y������v�����c��y����y���c���c����

vx��yrv���������������g�����uv�����h���

cFd45A9@Av2A9�s@8W@P@9@2I

ijk��������v���r�v�g�gvc����y������r��y��v�������vg�������y�������v��xv������v������c�y�uv��vs�����g��y�c���y������y����g�

���v������r��tu��u�x�r��v��������x��v������y��h�w��v��y����v�v���x��v�y���uv�v������v����������v��u����vv��x�cv�tuv�v��y�����v�

��c�����v�y�cvc�����uv���������������vxv�����������������rh�xuv�v��uv�y���yxv��y���xy�����y���y��v����v����v�������x���gvxv���

u���cv�v�x��vc��u����uv�v���v��y��y�v������x��v������xy��������y��vch�

cQdiy45TT

ijk������xvx�v��y��uxv�gv��r�iyxx�������y����y��z�����u�iy��x�����{��y��y���vc�n|uoiyxx}q�����y�g���~���y���yx����vc�

��vcyx����v�r�y��xvx�v��x�����������v����y���uv�����y�v�y����y��c��g�vxv�gv��r�c������u��v����v�h��ijk�����v��v�v��vc�y���uv�

�y��c���c������������|w}��u��vuy�cv��u����y���g���gu����uy��c��uv�y�g���~���y��t�����y��������cc���y����cv��h�

tuv�uoiyxx��������r�t����y�������vc�����g�cv����������������g�xv�u����x���c�xvx�v�����v������v��y������y�y���y���v��u��v�y��

�u���cv��h�tu���cv�������v���c��r�xvx�v����u�y�gu���������vv���u��gvc��r�uoiyxxh���uy��c�uoiyxx�c���y��v���uv�xvx�v���

ty��c��v������v��y������y�y���y���v��u��v�y����r��v��c����cv��h��w��v������v�r���uy��c�xvx�v����uyy�v��y�y���y���y��uoiyxx��

�uvr�ty��c��v������v��y������y�y���y���v��u��v�y��cv�������uv���xv�y��t��uc��t��h���

ijk�uy�c����������|w}��u��v����c�y�v�������|z}��u��vh�

c2d45A968F9G8P�fWP@v89@5AI

w������v�vx�v�������b���ijk�u�c�v��v�vc����y�����y����y��������y���y���������y�����y����y������c��g�����v�y��d�mb��bb�bbbh�

YYe0��S0�R�DVS

iv���������v���u��v��vv���y��vrvc�y������g�vc��y�ijk��y��v��cx�����v�vc����c��v��vc��r�����g�vvxv���y��������vh�ijk�uy�c��

�uv����v����y���uv��v�v����y�����c�����c���������c�����r��v����y��u����y���uv��v�v������rh�tuv�ivxv�v�r�t��������c���y�����g�

d��p�b�bbb�n�b���o�d��fmp�bbbq��tu��u�����cx�����v�vc��r�ijk��u����y���vv�������cvc�t��u�ijk������y����h�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

YaeSfghfD0fV�iDRpqhr0ipD

stu�wx�y��w���xw�w������w�w�y����������������w���w����������w���������w�wx��s�����wy���y������w��x�y��w����y�������x���w��x����

w�x��w�wb��xc��s���yw�������w��y��y��yx��y������������w����y���x��y�y������wx���x���w������x���������w�����y�w��c��d���x������x�

y�������x���w��x����������w���y���yx�������xe�

g2A268P�g5H26AT2A9�

f����y��f��������������w��x�����y��w�wx��y�w���y������wx�y�w���x���w��x���y��x������������y�w��x�x�����x����stuc��g����w��x�

w��������w�y��wy����y��w���y���������w��h�������w��������������y������wx�y�w���x���w��xc�

068AI756989@5A�8AQ�068AI@9�

d���d�y�x����y�w���y���d�y�xw���w�wxw���yw�x��������w������y�����y���xx��������w����y�xw�h�xy�������x��wy��y�������wx�������xh�

y���xxw������y�x����y�w���������������w����w�w�������w�w���y����yw��yw���iwx�w���w���yx��������c��d��x����y�x�y���y��w�������������

x��������xw��h���y��w��xw��y�x�y���xw��xh�x�������w���w���y�����y���yw����y����y��w�w�w�xc�

j28P91̀�S5F@8P�S26H@F2I�8AQ�j5GI@Ak�

l�y���h�m��wy��m���w��x�y���l��xw���������yxx�x�y��w����y�w�������sw����������w�w�wy�w��x�yw����y��x������w�������x��wy��

x���������y���x�x�yw�y�w�w����������������w��c��n��������y����������������y�w��xh�������y����y�w���x�������x���w��xh�x��w��x�

�����y�x�y���������xx��������w���w�w�wy�w��xc�

V2H2P57T2A9�S26H@F2I�

o�����������m���w��xp�����x�wx�������w�����y��w��h���w���w������x��y����x����w���w��xh������y�y����������sw����������y��xh�

���w�y�����y��w���y������������������stupx����w�wy��������w�����y�c�

q6592F9@H2�S26H@F2I�

�������w���m���w��x�wx������wx����������t�����uy��������rss�����y������h�����t�����uy��������sw���gw���o��y�������y���

���y�������������c��d���t�����uy��������rss�����y���������y�x�y��w�����y�������w�������������w������t�����uy��������

��xw����x�y������w���������������������w����������w���y���������w��h�������������x���x��y����w��w��x���w��xc��d���t������

uy��������sw���gw���o��y�������wx���x���xw������������w�w����w���x�����xxw���x���w��h��w����������w���x���w��x�y����w���xy�����

����y�w��c�����y��m���w��x�wx���x���xw������������������������y�������y�w����������sw��px����y�x�y��������w�����x����w��c�

q86tÌ�q2F6289@5A�8AQ�4GP9G62�

�y�uxh�r����y�w���y���s�����������w��x�y���xx���������y�w����y�w�w�w�xh���������y�w���y����yw����y�������stupx��y����y�ux�y���

��yw�xh�����t�����uy��������sw���vw��y���y���stupx��y��w�w�y�w���w������t�����uy��������s�x����y���w���w��x�y�������t�����

uy��������r����y�w���y���s�������s���wxxw��c�

x8926�y9@P@9@2I�

d���zy����{�w�w��h�w�����|����w����w���s�����uy�������h�����w��x�xy��h����y�h����wy�����y�������������xw����x�y�����xw��xx�x����

����sw������t�����uy�������c���

S2}26�~�V68@A8k2�y9@P@9@2I�

d���m�������o�yw�y���{�w�w����������x��yx����y����y�����y�x����x�w���������u��y�����yw�x�y����yx���y�������y��������y��x�

����y�������s�����uy�������c��n��y��w�w�����������������w�������yx���y���h�����m�����{�w�w���y�x���y�y��x�stupx����u��x�����

��yw�y���x�x������w����w����x��yw��y�����������w���y������yxwx�����������������w��c�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�
�
Yaf���SghigD0gV�pDRqris0pqD�cF5A9@AG2Qd�

�

S5P@Q�t8I92�

uvw�y���������w���������������w���������w�������w���w�������������������������������w����������vw��w���w�����a��vw�b�����a�c���v�

d������w�e�

�

uvw�b���������w��y���w�w����a�f�w������������w��w��������w����w��������a����g�h�

�

�

�

YXf��VgRgrrgV�igsSg�rgEgDjg�

�

k��lmlm��bcd�w��w�w�������������ww�w���a����vw�n�����ow���w�cw��v���v����p�����a������w��w��w����a�qq��w���e��k�����w�����

�waw��w���w�w��w����rst�quu�mmm�vlmll�w�rsq�slu�mmmx�����w�����������v����w��we�

�

Yyf��RpDsD4psi�rpSz�isDshgigD0�

�

bcd�v���w{�����w�����vw�a����g�������|��a����������w��a�a����������������w���h���w�������|�����|w�����|�������}����������|e�bcd�v���

��w���a�w��������~������|������w����w���v��������w�w��������������������������vw�e��

�

c8d�462Q@9�6@I��

�

b�w�������|�����vw����|��a�a�����������������bcd��a���������w����������w������������a����������������w���a���������ww������������������

�����������e�y��v����|������w�������������a��������������w�w�����w����w�����a�����w������{������������w��������vw�����w����w����

��{��w���w��������w�e�

�

��������w������{�������������������w�������������������������w������aw��w������vw�����w������{�����������������w��g��v��vw�

������w���w�������w��������vw�w����a�w��v�a�������w�������a�����������������a��vw���{����w����a����vw�����w���e�bcd�����w}���w�����

�vw�p��������w���w������������������������������{����w�����aaw�����a������w�������������������w��v�����w���a��w�������w�������

gv��v���{w����w��w���}�w��e��w����w�w���v���w�v���w���v��w��vw�a�������v������w�ww���vw�����w���e�u���w�ww���vw�����w������vw�

�v���w�v���w��������w�����vw�a�������w������w����������w�w�������vw�����v��w�����w���������w��w������vw��������w��g��v�����w��w���

�a��vw���{����we�

�

������vw�����������w�w�����w�������w���bcd���������������g���w��a������w��������w��������w���g��v��w������������w�g��v���bcd���

w{�w��������ek���|���w������w����w��w���a�vw����g���wa�������a���������������w��w������������������v���������

�w�w��w� ���w�����w�wa�����������y�����w� yw����w� ������������ b��������w� u����

�������y�������

v�wa����x

�w�w�������w���w�� uu���qtr����������������� lm�l�tr�������������� ��lqtr���������������� s��mtr���������������� s�m�lr���������������� v��qlqxr��������������� lt�uq�r�������������� t��lmur��������������

u������������������������� ��t������������������������� ��sqs������������������ t�t��������������������� um��t����������������� ���ts������������������ v����sx����������������� um��sq���������������� v��tt�x�����������������

nw���v����������w����w������v������ s�q�������������������������� s����������������������� qm����������������������� l�suq������������������ l������������������������� w���������������������� l�qts������������������ vl��u�x�����������������

�w�w����w����w����w� um���s��������������������� ��uu������������������� ������������������������� l�s�������������������� w���������������������� w���������������������� q��ms������������������ u�m�m������������������

����w����w��w����w� l�l�l����������������������� lu�mtu���������������� qut��������������������� um�uqs���������������� tl���������������������� vu��x�������������������� �l�tss���������������� v�m���lx���������������

���|����w��w����������������w u��m�s��������������������� ut��t����������������� u�tm������������������� �����t���������������� ��s�m������������������ vs��s��x��������������� ���us����������������� vls�mtqx���������������

���w���������w� u�������������������������� l�ms������������������� t�tt������������������� u�t�s������������������ tl���������������������� vu�ls�x����������������� ul���t���������������� s�lt�������������������

ywgw���������w� uq�u����������������������� l�mt������������������� s�s��������������������� uu��tl���������������� q�q��������������������� vl�ustx����������������� u��m�s���������������� ��umq������������������

y�����g���w ���l������������������������ u�qmm������������������ tu����������������������� u��l������������������� sm����������������������� w���������������������� ���ss������������������ vluqx��������������������

lml� ut��m�ur����������������� ���lstr�������������� ut�sm�r�������������� umu��ttr������������ u��q�mr�������������� v����m�xr������������� u�m��q�r������������ �����sr��������������

lmll�v�w����w�x� utt����r����������������� �t���tr�������������� u����mr�������������� �t��q�r�������������� ut�m�lr�������������� v���ss�xr������������� u���s�lr������������ �u�us�r��������������

�{�w��w�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ((

)01�3456457894@�4A�801�398B�4A�C4580�D7@E4FG15�
C481H�84�34@H4I9P781P�Q9@7@E97I�R8781S1@8H�
T175�1@P1P�U1E1SV15�WXY�̀àW�
b)7VFI75�7S4F@8H�9@�804FH7@PH�4A�P4II75Hc�
�
Xef��QgChC3ghi�pgRq�rhChstrtC)�bE4@89@F1Pc�

�

vw�xy����v����v������vx������wv��������������v�������y�������w���v��������v���������xy���������������xy��y����v�x�����vww�

��v������y�������v��y�����vx��������v��������������v������������������

�

bVc�r75�18�59H��

�

���a������a�����y�����a��y����y��������vw���w��������������������x����w���������������������vw��y������������a������������y��v�b�������

vw����a������a����������������v��v���v�����a������a��c�v������x��y�������������������������xy����v�����d�����y���������v�����ae�

�y�����a������a���v�xy��y�fgh�����c�v��������wv�������c�y��������a�����������������������a���

�

b9c�Q4519i@�1jE07@i1�59H��

�

kv�������c�y��������a���w�����v��y�����a��y����y��w����������vw�w��������������������e�v��w���������y�w�vx�����v�������x��y�

�y�������������e�x����w������������f���������v����������������v��y���������wv�������c�y������������

�

�y��w�����v�����������l�vw�fgh�����y��f���������v������fgh�����������v���mn��v�������l������������������v���mn�

�v�����v����������������������v������y����mn��v��������������v�����������������������w�������v���������������vw��v����

v����������������v��e�������������������������a���

�

b99c�g@8151H8�5781�59H��

�

o����������������a�����y�����a��y����y��w����������v��w���������y�w�vx��vw���w��������������������x����w�����������������vw�

�y����������y�����a�������������������fgh������������y����a��l���v���v��vw����������������v���l�������y��������v�

�y����v���l������y��fv������l�fy�������o�������������������vv����w�����x��y��y������������k�������p��yv���l������

�������w�����v��wv��v�������v�������x��y�fghq��������������v���le�xy��y�������������������v��vw��������e�������d���v��vw�

��w��������������������������ae���ww���������r�����l��v������v�����������������������r���������e�������������v��vw����������

�������v���������������o�������������������sof������t��y�o��������n�������p��v������v�����b�����v����a���w��������v����

o���������������q��v����v���y���fgh�����v���c�v�����v������w���������a������a���������w�v������w�����������������������

�

bEc�i9uF9P98B�59H��

�

v�r�����l����a�����y�����a��y���fgh�x�����v�����������v����������w���������v�������v�������y�l����v��������kv���������v�����

��l�����e�fgh�����������r�����l����a��l�yv��������������y����������������l��v�����������v����y������l��v��������l��v���v�����

�����������wv������������y�w�vx��w�v��v������v���������������������������������w���������������������v�������e����w������

�v������e��y������x������x�l��y������ww���������r�����l��v����������������������xy������e��������v�y��v�������������������v�����v��e�

x��yv���������������������������v�����v�����a������������v�fghq����������v���

�
� �



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�

YefghVip0�RqihrpS

stu�wxy�u�����x�u����u�u��uy�����tu�u��������y��uy���������������u�u��������xyu����������tu�����t������x�u�����b�c�w���b���y�

���d��������������u��t��u�����tu�����t������x�u��eu��u�������������������y�����t������x�u��fx�ux����y�g��t��u��

����������h�stu����������������i���������uy�wb���x���������tu�j���������k���������tu�lu����m�mn����m�mo�pb��iq�m�mnq���h�

rstm�g�����mu�tq�m�mnh�stu���w�u�wu��i��u������u���tu�������uy�wxy�u������tu�wxy�u�����x�u���u����uyh�

j���������k����
pb��i�

eu�u�xu��u��v���u�u������w�u�������� x������unqnto�

cu��y�

pxy�u���yzx���u���������������y������ {�no|��

s�����u���������u�u��u� {mqrsu|��

}��u���u��b��x�y�� {tq~on|�

{sqt�u|�

eu�u�xu��u��j���������k����pb��i� x������nnqotn�

���u��u���u��v���u�u������w�u�������� �u�qmor�

gyzx���u���y�

�u��u��u�������������u��u�y��x�u�� {oqs�r|�

}���u��u��������������������zu���� mqour�

pxy�u���yzx���u���������������y������ �~q�mn�

�u��u��u��������u���u��b���b�u���� {tq~on|�

{tqtm�|�

���u��u���u��j���������k����pb��i�� x������nuqt~r�

�u�����������tu�bu��� {rs~|�

eu�u��u����y��������y�

��������u��u�y��x�u�� {otquun|�

�u��u�������� �oqo���

��x��b� {�sq~m~|�

s�����u���������u�u��u�� ~�quuu�

���u�����������wx������ mrqo�s�

g��x���wxy�u�uy��x���x���u��j���������k����pb��i� x����� �



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
D592I�95�45AI5P@Q892Q�R@A8AF@8P�S9892T2A9I�
U286�2AQ2Q�V2F2TW26�XỲ�abaX�
c08WGP86�8T5GA9I�@A�915GI8AQI�5B�Q5PP86Id�
�
Yef��ghiph�gqhipV�rVstS0uqD0�

�

vw�y�w�������������������������������b�c�b�����bb��w��wd�c��w�������e���fcc���g�����h�w��v���d����wci��jk�c�w�l��bb��w��wd�

c��w����������cc�c��k���������wd��m���d�������d����wc��cc�b������l��k��k��������h�w���m�b�����w���wd�����b��������cc��ci��jk��

c��w�����l�c����������w��k��h���m���������c��b��n����c�c�����k��������m��������wi�

�

jk���h��b���m��k�����������������o�c�h�w���w��k��p�b�h�������������b�h������n���h��w�c��c��c�m����lcq�

�

� rI�g62H@5GIPC�
h275692Q�

� iAF628I2�r�
cV2F628I2d�

�
rI�h2I9892Q�

45AI5P@Q892Q�S9892T2A9�5B�R@A8AF@8P�g5I@9@5A� �
�

�
�

�

fcc���������h�w������d����w����������� s���������������t��
�
s����������uvw�

�
�s����������uvw��

j�wd�����b��������cc��c�t�b�c�� x���ve���
�

��w�
�

x���e����

j�wd�����b��������cc��c�t��bb�h��������h����y����w� �vv�v�v��
�

�xe�
�

�vv�uw���

fbb�h�������c�����c� uev��vx�
�

z��{ee|�
�

ue��x{w�

� �
�

�
�

�

45AI5P@Q892Q�S9892T2A9�5B�p72689@5AI� �
�

�
�

�

}�w�����d�n��wh�w���~��wc��� �u������
�

w{��
�

�u���u��

fww����c�����c� {����e��
�

zw{|�
�

{���v���

fbb�h�������c�����c����d�ww�wd��m������ u�����w�
�

z��vw�|�
�

u���u�u�

fbb�h�������c�����c���w���m������� uev��vx��
�

z��{ee|�
�

ue��x{w��

� �
�

�
�

�

45AI5P@Q892Q�S9892T2A9�5B�418A�2I�@A�D29�R@A8AF@8P�rII29I� �
�

�
�

�

fww����c�����c� {����e�
�

zw{|�
�

{���v��

p����b�����w��m���wd�����b��������cc��c� �x�wuw�
�

u�
�

�x�wx{�

�wb���c��z��b���c�|��w�w���m�w�wb�����cc��c� ���evv�
�

zew|�
�

���x{{�

����m�w�wb�����cc��c����d�ww�wd��m������ �uw�x���
�

z��{u�|�
�

�ux��x��

����m�w�wb�����cc��c���w���m������ ����{xu�
�

z��uvw|�
�

�we�w�x�

� �
�

�
�

�

45AI5P@Q892Q�S9892T2A9�5B�48I1�RP5�I� �
�

�
�

�

fww����c�����c� {����e�
�

zw{|�
�

{���v��

p����b�����w��~��wc�� �x�wuw�
�

u�
�

�x�wx{�

fbb�����w��~��wc�� t�
�

ew�
�

ew�

� �
�

�
�

�

D592�����rFFGTGP892Q�SG67PGI� �
�

�
�

�

zb|���������m�w�� {�v�e�e�
�

z��{ee|�
�

{�������

�wn�c�����w���wd�����b��������cc��c� vxw��uw�
�

z��{ee|�
�

vxu�ve��

�

�

Y�f��4pugrhr0iEq�iDRphur0ipD�

�

������w�������������h��w�c�k�n�����w���b��cc�m����m���b�wc�c��wb��l��k��k��b����w����������c�w�����wi��jk�c����b��cc�m�b����wc�

k���w���mm�b���w��k�������������c���c��m���������wci�



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

0123�5678�23�29@89@2A96BBC�B8D@�EB69F



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'" ()

012�45675689@5A�5B�912�4@9C�5B�D5691�E8AF5GH26�
IF12PGQ2�R�S�T�U�VA8GP@92P��
W286�2AP2P�X2F2Y 2̀6�abc�deda�
f08̀GQ86�8Y5GA9g�@A�915Gg8APg�5B�P5QQ86gh�

IF12PGQ2�Ri�4pEqXUbr�I8B2�s2g9869�t68A9�

uvuw�

uvuu�y��������������������� ������ ������u��

y����������������bc�

������b���bb�de�������f� ���g�uhi�

����dejj����f�k�b������f�l�k��em��f� ���guuwi�

����d��f�n��m���b� ���gou�i�

����k�b�e�b��l��j�������pbb��b� ��g��i�

uvuw�y����������������������q���jr���w���uvuw� ������ �hus��

IF12PGQ2�Ti�t65t@Au�45YYGA@9@2g�vGAP�

uvuw�

uvuw�y��������������������� ���������v�shw�

p�����b��������� w�o�

y����������������b� x�

uvuw�y����������������������q���jr���w���uvuw� ������������ww��



������������	
��	������������ �!�"�#�$%!��&$'"()

01234561718591@A2

BC�ECFGHIPPCQR�STQT�UIRVFWPIXTU�YQC̀ �aCPUIGb�CcHT�IG�dedfg�FGUTQ�haT�iQCpIRICGR�RTh�CFh�IG�haT�EC̀ `FGIhq�EaWQhTQr

stuvw�yw�w��

����������������������



wmf1Ym
V

r \

Sm,
t+Z

\
/■ VV/l v‘

J
*• f

Izm. > .s.
r 1&,1 g- ^/•

i «: ^-•*v iOTW ■ot ei
%i • /

*',A • >•i ^.HvCl mi* .. (w\ +m \ '*:

Wi 7 i .'r. •V.&G N
■A I »v * fi! r*& ■'

■M**'! •/s\a >C ••'*'vkV

. r • I P&'Wj
&**}*•*

*«%
OaTi

\■m * ir x\rV-f tfv > 1m rtVc:m- 'i »W-gMfc
I jf. 1

'■Vm. 4

5^-irn a
■ II®

t

« /xap< n mmm i
!• •4 ^

y;

}« ^4•Tt Jl•T? *.as^*\M »-V
*mV, SW«L

r.r. 1 »8
//I«—■giriff f

' .'/f ^7 [f /

^ mw'8*.LAH *i■■

S/
fl '•$£11 WA* 'K *fi

/

it fetj m f^i m m■i.l iIS; (

f SO 1S^ rr?. -

'-■■

•<
V’

#w
X*" r a- ».,Cs’i • r

3VFj

•'•AuV.*
# f. u

M ’•-

,Y

» .*
■"» v^lV. >’< i# •

V * .<'■ %
*M-.:



���������	

������������������������ �

�	�����!���"

#$#�&�#$'(�)'011'
230'(�456738910@�AB��4CD�#EF

G�HI$PFQRPCCH#

769P30S��T��U6V3W769P30S



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



6/18/2024

1

Revitalizing North Vancouver’s Community through 
Public Spaces

CNV NSYCF Group: Erin Behncke, Ned 
Booker, Kevin Dickie,Rosemary Langford, 
Natalia Izzo Manzano, Sasha McGrenera, 

Luke Saville, Ryker Zilkey

June 24th, 2024 



6/18/2024

2



6/18/2024

3

Third Spaces in the City of North 
Vancouver 

https://www.cnv.org/Parks-Recreation



6/18/2024

4

Third Spaces Directory

North Shore Culture Compass: 
https://www.northshoreculturecompass.ca/

Public bulletins

Physically present community 
bulletins and information sharing 
media.



6/18/2024

5

Young person working group



6/18/2024

6

The End



North Shore 
Community 

Resources 
CONNECT•EMPOWER•PARTICIPATE 

• "'orth Shore 
Young Civic 
Forum 

June 11, 2024 

Dear Mayor and Councillors: 

RE: Delegation Request 

We are writing to request that members of the fourth cohort of the North Shore Young 
Civic Forum be permitted to arrive and present to you as a delegation at the City of 
North Vancouver Council Meeting scheduled for June 24th, 2024. 

The North Shore Young Civic Forum is a non-partisan civic education and engagement 
program run by North Shore Community Resources. The Forum uses experiential 
education and public engagement methods to educate 18-39 year olds on the North 
Shore about their municipalities and get them more engaged with their municipal 
governments. The program, now in its 4th iteration, is made possible by North Shore 
Community Resources and partners such as the City of North Vancouver. 

The program includes a project phase where participants research and develop a 
project based on a topic affecting young residents in their municipality, which they later 
present to their municipal council. Members of the Forum's City of North Vancouver 
group have spent time looking at ways in which the City of North Vancouver can 
develop its public spaces into true 'third spaces' - places can exist freely and safely in a 
space outside of work or home with a sense of shared community and belonging. In 
particular, they have examined the ways in which the City of North Vancouver promotes 
information about these third spaces. It is on this topic that the Forum wishes to present 
to you at the June 24th Council Meeting. 

We appreciate your consideration of this matter, and your ongoing support of the 
Forum and civic engagement on the North Shore in general. The mission at the core of 
the Forum is one of engaging community members in public institutions and processes, 
and we appreciate the City of North Vancouver's efforts in that area. 

Yours sincerely, 

Murray Mollard, 
Executive Director 

C: Hassan Merati & Raksh Kainth, Co-Facilitators, North Shore Young Civic Forum 
Peter DeJong, Acting Corporate Officer 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



6/18/2024

1

Community Wellbeing Strategy

Presented June 24, 2024
Planning and Development Division

Community wellbeing is the 
combination of social, economic, 

environmental, health, cultural, and 
political conditions that are essential for 
individuals and communities to flourish 

and fulfill their potential.

- Adapted from Wiseman and Brasher, “Community Wellbeing in an Unwell World”

2



6/18/2024

2

Strategy Development

3

Phase 1 Research + Information 
Gathering

Phase 2 Develop Early Ideas

Phase 3 Develop Draft Strategy

Phase 4 Finalize Strategy

Implementation Implement Strategy

WE 
ARE 

HERE

What We Heard

4

Key Themes:

• Reconciliation + collaboration 
• Partner + leader that cares 
• Housing + affordability 
• Community connections + inclusion
• Equity 
• Meaningful action



6/18/2024

3

Our City Today

5

A Growing City 
in a Growing 
Region

Challenges with 
Housing Affordability, 
Suitability + Adequacy

Loneliness + Isolation 
are Affecting our 
Health

Partnerships are 
Needed to Provide 
Services + Programs

Increasing Cost 
of Living

Not Everyone has 
had an Equal Voice 
and Opportunity

Social Determinants of Health

Our health and 
wellbeing, both as 
individuals and as 
a community, is 
influenced by the 
conditions in which 
we are born, grow, 
live, and age. 

6



6/18/2024

4

A City where everyone belongs and has 
opportunities to thrive

7

Our Aspirations

Connection Equity Investment

8

Complete Communities

DIRECTION
Build complete, connected, socially active communities where daily needs are 
met within a short walk or roll of every home. 

1



6/18/2024

5

9

DIRECTION
Expand the supply and improve the quality, diversity, and affordability of 
housing in the City. 

Housing for All2

10

DIRECTION
Create a City that contributes to wellbeing for all ages and phases of life. 

A City for All Ages3



6/18/2024

6

Accessibility, Diversity, Equity + Inclusion 4

11

DIRECTION
Create an inclusive City, where we celebrate diversity, and we commit to 
advancing equity and accessibility for all. 

12

Poverty Reduction + Inclusive Economy5
DIRECTION
Create a people-centred local economy and work together to break the 
cycle of poverty. 



6/18/2024

7

Partnerships, Advocacy + Financial Supports6

13

DIRECTION
Build equitable and supportive partnerships that advance the City’s 
priorities for wellbeing, align City resources and funding, and advocate for 
the community’s needs.

Implementation

• Outlines consistent approaches  HOW WE DO THE WORK

• 10 principles to assess implementation options PRIORITIZING THE WORK

• The City's first set of priority projects to take 
action on the StrategyPRIORITY PROJECTS

• Indicators used to measure impact and track our 
progressMETRICS

14



6/18/2024

8

Priority Projects

15

16

Truth + Reconciliation + 
Building Relationships

Housing Supply, Affordability, 
Suitability + Adequacy Initiatives

Update Regulations + Guidelines to 
Increase Social Connection 



6/18/2024

9

17

Community Needs Assessment 

Apply an Equity Lens

Renew the Supportive Funding 
Framework

What’s Next

• Setting up for success

• Project delivery

• Continuing to advance:
• Connection
• Equity
• Investment

18



6/18/2024

10

Thank you! 



To: 

� 
Departm�nt 
Manager 

CAO 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

CITY CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 

REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

From: Renee de St. Croix, Manager, City Planning and Design 

Subject: CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER COMMUNITY WELLBEING STRATEGY 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 10-5080-20-0003/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, City Planning and Design, dated June 
12, 2024, entitled "City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy": 

THAT the City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy be endorsed; 

THAT staff report back to Council with updates regarding progress and priority 
projects outlined in the Community Wellbeing Strategy, starting 2025; 

AND THAT S�w�wu?mesh Uxwumixw (Squamish Nation), selilwata4 (Tsleil
Waututh Nation), multiple agencies and community members that contributed 
input, information and expertise to the plan be thanked for their contributions and 
be provided with a copy of the Community Wellbeing Strategy. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy (CityDocs 2538427)

2. CWS: Phase One What We Heard Report (2021) (CityDocs 2140704)

3. CWS: Phase Two What We Heard Report (2023) (CityDocs 2536974) 

SUMMARY 

This report presents the final version of the Community Wellbeing Strategy (CWS) 
(Attachment #1) for Council consideration. This final version of the CWS integrated, 
where possible and appropriate, community input from Phase Two engagement 
(Attachment #3), and includes updates and refinements to the Draft Community 
Wellbeing Strategy, presented in 2023. 

Document Number: 2515559-v7 



REPORT: City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy 
Date: June 12, 2024 

BACKGROUND 

The CWS will support the Official Community Plan (OCP), our long-term vision for the 
City. The CWS also supports the vision of Council's 2022-2026 Strategic Plan to create 
the healthiest small city in the world, and is identified as an action under the priority of "a 
City for people". 

The CWS aims to achieve a City where everyone belongs and has opportunities to 
thrive. Community wellbeing is multi-faceted and impacted by the conditions into which 
we are born , grow, live and age. In its simplest form, wellbeing is about people's health, 
happiness, sense of belonging, and quality of life. 

The CWS has benefited from review and input from S~w~wu7mesh Uxwumixw 
(Squamish Nation) and salilwata4 (Tsleil-Waututh Nation). 

Community engagement has played a key role in shaping and refining the CWS with 
input and contributions from interest holders, residents, community agencies and 
partners. Engagement for the CWS was at the "consult" level on the IAP2 Spectrum of 
Engagement. This means, the City commits to listening, acknowledging concerns and 
aspirations, as well as providing feedback on how input influenced the decision. 

In Phase 1 (2021) of public engagement, we sought input from the community on 
visioning, goal setting, and emerging tactics for the CWS. On July 24, 2023 Council 
endorsed the draft CWS for public engagement and refinement. In Phase 2 (2023), the 
draft CWS was shared to receive feedback on the pathways, directions, and tactics. 

For the summaries of the public engagement, see attached Community Wellbeing 
Strategy engagement reports: Phase One (2021) (Attachment #2) and Phase Two 
(2023) (Attachment #3) . 

DISCUSSION 

This section includes an outline of the content in the CWS (Attachment #1) and the 
revisions and refinements that have been made to finalize it for Council's consideration. 

Outline of the CWS 
The CWS aims to achieve a City where everyone belongs and has opportunities to 
thrive. The aspirations in the CWS are: 

• Connection: Our city connects people with each other and with daily needs 
closer to where we live; 

• Equity: Our City is built on fair access to opportunities; and 
• Investment: Our City's social infrastructure (spaces, places, services, and 

programs) is consistently invested in and maintained over time, to benefit both 
the economy and society. 

The CWS presents a road map to prepare and respond to the challenges ahead, 
consider innovative and holistic approaches, coordinate investments, and achieve 
multiple goals and objectives in alignment with the community's values and desires. It 
will help to guide decisions related to City policies, priorities, programs, and services, 

Page 2 of 4 



REPORT: City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy 
Date: June 12, 2024 

and define the City's role as well as collaboration opportunities between governments, 
partner agencies, not-for-profit organizations, and the community. 

The CWS has six pathways, each with clear direction and tactics: 

Build complete, connected, socially active 
communities where daily needs ore met 
within o short walk or roll of every home. 

Accessibility, Diversity, 
Equity + Inclusion 

Create an inclusive City, where we 
celebrate diversity, and we commit to 

advancing equity and accessibility for all. 

Exµa11d th<' wµply and improve tlw 
quallly, d,vernty, c111d affordability of 

hou,inq i11 lhf' City. 

Create a people-centred loco/ economy 
ond work together to break the cycle af 

poverty. 

Creole o City thot contributes to wellbeing 
for all ages and phases of life. 

Partnerships, Advocacy + 
Financial Supports 

Build equitable and supportive 
partnerships that advance the City's 

priorities for wellbeing, align City 
resources and funding, ond advocate for 

the community's needs. 

The CWS will guide the City's activities to improve community wellbeing over the next 
decade. The CWS's Implementation section outlines the City's approaches and 
prioritization principles to identify projects and guide actions. Staff will maximize 
efficiency by utilizing the City's existing corporate planning tools (such as the Corporate 
Business Plan, Annual Financial Plan, and the Annual Municipal Report) to prioritize, 
deliver, and report out on the CWS initiatives. Staff will continue engagement with 
partners to support decision-making on these priorities and identify opportunities for 
increased collaboration. The CWS provides metrics, including both quantitative and 
qualitative data, to monitor, assess, and determine progress towards desired outcomes. 

Local First Nations Review 
Revisions and refinement of the CWS responded to comments and input that were 
provided by S~w~wu7mesh Oxwumixw (Squamish Nation) and salilwata4 (Tsleil
Waututh Nation). Some of the revisions include: 

• Referring to local First Nations with the correct names in their respective 
traditional languages; 

• Strengthening and supporting employment, training, economic and procurement 
opportunities; 

• Supporting inclusion of local First Nations culture and history (examples; in City 
spaces, through staff training, consultation in land use matters); and, 

• Acknowledging local First Nations' interest and role in implementation and 
community projects related to wellbeing. 

Page 3 of 4 



REPORT: City of North Vancouver Community Wellbeing Strategy 
Date: June 12, 2024 

The first priority project for the CWS (listed in the Implementation Section) is Building 
Relationships with local First Nations, highlighting the importance and commitment to 
this work. 

Updates to Existing City Policies, Plans and Strategies 
Policies and actions from some of the City's existing plans and strategies are included 
and/or updated in the Community Wellbeing Strategy, to keep in step with the growth 
and changes around us as we seek to respond to the diverse community needs and 
interests. As such, the CWS updates the City's Social Plan (1998), Youth policies 
including CNV4ME (2014), Civic Youth Policy Programs and Resources (2008), Civic 
Youth Strategy, Youth Policy: Youth Services, and Youth Policy: Outreach and Centre
Based Youth Work. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Implementation and action items will be brought forward through the annual financial 
planning process, departmental work programing and budgets, as partnerships or 
external funding opportunities arise, and in alignment with Council priorities. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Staff met with several Advisory Committees of Council throughout the process of 
creating the CWS. The committees that provided input included: Advisory Planning 
Commission, Integrated Transportation Committee, Social Planning Advisory 
Committee, and North Shore Advisory Committee on Disability Issues. Their input was 
sought at varying intervals throughout the process, from the vision and goals at the 
beginning of the process, to the draft CWS, to the indicators and metrics. 

The CWS will require collaboration across the City to be effectively implemented. As 
such the CWS has been developed with input from City departments and divisions, and · 
reviewed by the City's Policy and Projects Team and Leadership Team. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

A future update to the OCP will integrate the CWS to enable a clear and simplified 
policy landscape for the public and municipal staff. The CWS supports the vision of 
Council's 2022-2026 Strategic Plan and all of its five priorities. Adoption of the CWS 
was identified as a key priority in Council's 2022-2026 Strategic Plan. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Renee de St. Croix, 
Manager, City Planning and Design 

Page 4 of 4 



Community 
Wellbeing 
Strategy

JUNE 2024

sfriesen
FreeText
Attachment 1
�



A CITY WHERE EVERYONE BELONGS

a 
City where everyone belongs and has opportunities to thrive.

Complete 
Communities; Housing; A City For All Ages; Accessibility, Diversity, Equity + Inclusion; 
Poverty Reduction + Inclusive Economy; and, Partnerships, Advocacy + Financial Supports

Overview

When communities come together, great things happen.”

Unknown

When com

2

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y



Appreciation and Thanks

A Commitment to Truth and Reconciliation

 

Land Acknowledgment

3



TABLE OF 

Contents
What Is the Community Wellbeing Strategy? 06

The Big Picture 14

What Are We Trying to Achieve? 24

The Path Forward 26

Implementation

Appendix

54

27

30

40

44

48

35

62

62

64

65
4



We are well in our community when we both give and 
receive – being part of things results in dignity and health.

Seniors Working Group participant speaking about volunteerism

5



and resources – at City Hall and within our community – for setting policy and taking 
action to improve overall community wellbeing in the City of North Vancouver over the 
next 10 years.

To navigate the challenges and opportunities ahead, this Strategy is a tool to help the 
City prioritize the work and articulate expectations – both internally and externally. To 

includes a range of metrics to measure our progress, which will be presented through 
regular reporting. 

WHAT IS THE 
Community 
Wellbeing 
Strategy?

WHAT ARE WE TRYING TO ACHIEVE?
A City where everyone belongs and has opportunities to thrive.

OUR ASPIRATIONS

Connection: 

Equity:

Investment:Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

6



simplest form, it is about supporting one another’s and our collective health, happiness, 
belonging, and quality of life.

Defining Community Wellbeing

Community wellbeing is the combination of social, economic, environmental, health, cultural, and 

potential.

Adapted from Wiseman and Brasher, “Community Wellbeing in an Unwell World”

Community

7



Our health and wellbeing, both as individuals and as a whole community, are strongly 

conditions that determine our health (called “social determinants of health”) include a 
mix of factors:

SOCIAL DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH

 »
 »
 »
 »
 »
 »
 »
 »
 » Culture

 »
 »
 »
 »

 »
 »

 »

YOUR LIFE

YOUR ENVIRONMENT

YOUR HEALTHCARE

YOUR BIOLOGY

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

8



What Role does Government Play in Wellbeing?
All levels of government have a role in the achievement of community wellbeing. The 
table below provides an overview of the responsibilities, jurisdiction, and priorities for 
each level.

Federal  
Government

Provincial  
Government

Regional  
Government

Municipal  
Government

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

9



What is the City's Role in Wellbeing?

 » Advocate

 » Engage

 » Invest

 » Partner

 » Regulate

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

10



How are Social and Community      
Services and Programs Delivered?

11



Why Should we Invest in Wellbeing?
Investing early, and supporting people before they are in crisis, is critical to a thriving 

manageable. The consequences of not proactively investing in community wellbeing 

can become more acute and widespread (such as social disconnection, poverty, mental 
health, addiction, and crime). 

RETURN ON INVESTMENT EXAMPLE
Each $1 invested in mental health promotion and mental illness prevention activities results in $7 
in reduced health care costs and $30 in reduced loss of productivity and social costs according to 
“Public Health: A Return on Investment” report by the Canadian Coalition for Public Health in the 
21st Century, 2013.

SHORT-TERM BENEFITS 
STRETCH INTO LONG-

TERM RETURNS.

THE IMPACT OF 
INVESTMENTS 
IS MULTIPLIED.

SUPPORT TO INDIVIDUALS 
BENEFITS THE BROADER 

COMMUNITY.

Short term impact:

 »

Medium term impact:

 »

Long term impact:

 »

Impacts:

 »

 

 »

 »
 

Example: Investments in early 
childhood development and 

education (child care)organizations such as 
community grants

 »

 »

 »

Example: Women’s 
 employment workshops

SOCIAL INVESTMENTS YIELD POSITIVE RETURNS

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

12



Big cities get a lot of attention, but the City of North Vancouver has 
shown that a smaller town with big aspirations and a connected and 
caring community can strive for and achieve some pretty cool things.

Host of Urbanarium City Talks

True community is based upon equality, mutuality, and reciprocity. 

human ties that bind us together.

Pauli Murray, Civil Rights Activist and Advocate

13



THE  
Big Picture
Our City Today

Did you know?

POPULATION

58,180

205044,110

18%

47%

79,260

43

25%

100+

Did you know?

2  

City Boundary

Burrard 
Inlet

District of  
North VancouverCity Boundary

 
(Squamish 
Nation) 

Note: Statistics are from 2021 unless otherwise noted.

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

14



Did you know?

168

43%

33%

67%

2.1

11%

19%

49%

HOUSING

Note: Statistics are from 2021 unless otherwise noted.

15



Did you know?

HEALTH + WELLBEING

27

1,100

1 in 4

 (

22%

14%

48%

 

(

72%

Note: Statistics are from 2021 unless otherwise noted.

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

16



Did you know?

PARTNERSHIPS + FUNDING SUPPORT

$4M 150+

Did you know?

ECONOMY

(

$115k

Top 3
Industry 
Sectors

$1,379
per month

25%

7.5%

63%

Note: Statistics are from 2021 unless otherwise noted.

Note: Statistics are from 2021 unless otherwise noted.

17



Challenges and Opportunities
Over the last few years, the overlapping and interconnected challenges of a housing 

outcomes, growing mental health challenges, physical health challenges (obesity and 
physical inactivity), drug toxicity crisis, discrimination, and broad demographic shifts 

pandemic and the related economic, education, and community health impacts.

Throughout the community engagement process on this Strategy, we had many 
conversations and heard many stories about how these very real challenges 

circumstances for individuals, families, businesses, and local governments and have 
worsened inequity in our community. However, with careful planning and targeted 
social investment, we can increase resilience and create opportunities for the 
community to thrive.

 is our ability as individuals and as a community to withstand, respond to, and 
recover from change and adversity.

RESILIENCE

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

18



A GROWING + CHANGING CITY AND 
REGION 

MANAGING AFFORDABILITY + THE COST 
OF LIVING  

WORKING TOWARD AN EQUITABLE 
COMMUNITY  

19



How We Got Here
STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

data
early engagement

implement 

strategic directions 
framework

Implementation Plan

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

20



The City’s Policy Landscape

documents relate to one another, is helpful context for considering the City’s 
Community Wellbeing Strategy.

THE FUTURE CITY POLICY LANDSCAPE

PEOPLE + PLACE BASED APPROACH

OFFICAL COMMUNITY PLAN

INFRASTRUCTURE + 
PHASING

PARKS +  
PUBLIC SPACE

PUBLIC 
SAFETY

COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING

CLIMATE + 
ENVIRONMENT

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENTMOBILITY

ABOUT THE OCP

21



Relevant External 
Policies
Beyond the City of North Vancouver, 
there are a number of existing and 
evolving provincial, regional, and sub-
regional policy and regulatory approaches 

this Strategy and its implementation. 
These policies and approaches typically 
seek to address and align objectives of 
common interest that often require the 
City to respond with regulatory, policy or 

» PROVINCIAL STRATEGIES AND PLANS

 » METRO 2050

» TRANSPORT 2050

 » CLIMATE 2050

» A VARIETY OF NORTH SHORE PLANS, 
STRATEGIES AND CHARTERSS

VAR
GIE

22

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y



We've witnessed the transformative power of intergenerational 

tearful grandma expressing gratitude for the opportunity to connect 

impact on individual participants is undeniable. In an age-segregated 
society where older adults are often marginalized, integrating 
intergenerational initiatives into all aspects of our community 
becomes imperative. Overall, intergenerational connections 
enrich communities by fostering mutual respect, understanding, 
and support between individuals of all ages. By recognizing and 
embracing the diverse contributions of each generation, communities 
can become more vibrant, inclusive, and resilient.

IntergenNS

23



WHAT ARE WE  
Trying to Achieve?

A City where everyone belongs and 
has opportunities to thrive.

Our vision recognizes that the social aspects of our city are incredibly important – from 
the day-to-day interactions with neighbours to the programs, services, and supports 

diverse and must serve a complex variety of needs and interests. It acknowledges that 

the City and community life. It is about paying attention to what we have in common 
– our community – and our role and responsibility in creating it. Building a City where 
everyone belongs and has opportunities to thrive is a commitment to progressing 
health, happiness, potential, and quality of life for everyone. 

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

24



Our Aspirations

Our City connects people with each other and with daily needs closer to 
where we live.

Our City is built on fair access to resources and opportunities.

Our City’s social infrastructure (spaces, places, services, and programs) 

economy and society.

CONNECTION

EQUITY

INVESTMENT

25



THE  

Path Forward
What Does The Path Forward Look Like?

COMPLETE 
COMMUNITIES

ACCESSIBILITY, 
DIVERSITY, EQUITY + 

INCLUSION

HOUSING  
FOR ALL

POVERTY  
REDUCTION + 

INCLUSIVE ECONOMY 

A CITY FOR  
ALL AGES

PARTNERSHIPS, 
ADVOCACY + 

FINANCIAL SUPPORTS 

1 2

3 4

5 6

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

26



 » Land Use

 » Quality Design 

CONTEXT

to more sedentary forms of work, reliance on motorized vehicles to get us places, and 
communities designed around cars, not people.

1. Complete Communities

DIRECTION
Build complete, connected, socially active communities where 
daily needs are met within a short walk or roll of every home. 

Did you know?

27



TACTICS
1.1

 »

 »

 »

 »

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

28



There are amazing trails and gardens here… I love being able to walk 
to everything.

City resident

I like to see people sitting outside and connecting, it feels like a 
neighbourhood.

Business owner on Lonsdale Avenue

I love to access the water in my wheelchair and have conversations 
with people.  [This is] very important to me.

City resident

The library is more important than ever. It is one of the last true 

here and come by every week multiple times.

City resident, Library patron

Voices from our City
Complete Communities1

29



 »  

 » Suitable 

 » Adequate

CONTEXT

achieving a thriving community.

2. Housing for All

DIRECTION
Expand the supply and improve the quality, diversity, and 

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

30



WHAT IS THE HOUSING CRISIS?

 » Lack of General Housing Supply 

 » Increasing Gap between Incomes and 
Housing Costs

 » Limited Non-Market Units

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

HOUSING CONTINUUM

Emergency 
Shelters

Non-Market Housing

Supporting Unhoused Rental Ownership

Market Housing

Transitional 
Housing

Supportive 
Housing

Non-Market 
Rental

Purpose Built 
Rental

Secondary 
Suites / Coach 

Houses
Condos Other 

Ownership

31



TACTICS
Supporting Individuals and Families 
Experiencing or At-Risk of Homelessness

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Non-Market Housing

2.7

 »

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

32



Market Housing

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Supporting Livability

2.19

2.20
 

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

33



people to help support us out of our homeless situation was crucial. 

us navigate the social service systems and were overall on our side, 
advocating since the very beginning. We felt like we had a team!

City resident

[I am] frustrated that there are people that can own multiple 

many people such as [myself] struggle to even enter the housing 
market.

City resident

currently homeless, but I am moving forward and have learned a lot 
from my time being homeless.  I am optimistic that this experience 

for them.

City resident

2 Voices from our City
Housing for All

City 

for 

curr
my time be

omeless,
homele

34

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y



CONTEXT

An age friendly city is about belonging. An age friendly city is intentionally designed 
to work well and include people in all stages of life, so that residents can age in place 
from young to old. It is generally acknowledged that a city that works for its youngest 
and oldest residents will work for everyone. It is “a place that adapts its services and 
physical structures to be more inclusive and receptive to the needs of its population 
to improve their quality of life as they age.” – World Health Organization

3. A City for All Ages

DIRECTION
Create a City that contributes to wellbeing for all ages and 
phases of life.

Did you know?

35



AGES AND STAGES

Children Youth Adults Seniors
UNDER 12 YEARS OF AGE 12 TO 25 YEARS OF AGE 18+ YEARS OF AGE 65+ YEARS OF AGE

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

36



TACTICS
Supporting All Ages

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Supporting Childcare and Early Childhood 
Development

3.10

 »

 »

 »

 »

3.11

37



Supporting Youth 

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

 »

 »

 »

Supporting Adults and Seniors

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

38

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y



Recently, after my surgery I used the parklets along Lonsdale as 
destinations and rest stops to increase my mobility. The art in the 
parklet and along the way always lifts me up when I feel down.

City resident, older adult 

North Vancouver Recreation and Culture (NVRC) provides recreation, 
sport, arts and cultural programming and events on behalf of the 

welcoming gathering places for everyone in the community where 
people can learn, be active, get creative and make vital social 
connections. There are programs, activities and events for people of 
all ages and abilities.

North Vancouver Recreation and Culture (NVRC)

Relaxing with friends and enjoying a smoothie on Lonsdale makes for 
a great afternoon. Thanks for providing a safe space for us!

City resident, youth

3 Voices from our City
A City for All Ages

39



CONTEXT

Not everyone has had an equal voice in how we build and grow our City. 

This pathway is about designing for a diversity of people and needs to ensure spaces, 
programs, information, and services are welcoming to all. It is about learning, recognizing, 
acknowledging, and deconstructing or removing historical and current systemic 
oppressions, colonialism, racism, marginalization, social inequities, and barriers.

4. Accessibility, Diversity, Equity + Inclusion

DIRECTION
Create an inclusive City, where we celebrate diversity, and we 
commit to advancing equity and accessibility for all.

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

40



ACCESS

ACCESSBILITY

DIVERSITY

EQUITY

EQUALITY

INCLUSION

TACTICS
Community Action + Engagement

4.1

4.2

4.3

 »

 »

 »

41



4.4

4.5

 »

 »

 »

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Community Design

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

 »

 »

4.8

4 9

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

42



We are a resilient people. My husband and I are Squamish and Elders 
in our community. We are both residential school survivors and have 
lived through many traumas since childhood. But what keeps me 

because of who we are. And my husband also has a disability, so it 

capable and need to be recognized for all that we can do and all that 
we have overcome. But there is still so much work to be done to heal 
these wounds. Last month, we went to look at an apartment that was 

property manager told us the units weren’t available. She looked us 
up and down and I could tell in her eyes she did not trust us because 
of who we are. This isn’t fair. It is racism, pure and simple. But what 
can we do? It’s so hard to prove these things. And these experiences 
aren’t uncommon – many of our relatives struggle to access housing 
and healthcare because of our identity. I am proud to be Squamish 
and I want my grandchildren to know that they matter. No one can 
tell us we don’t belong. This is our land.

City resident

overcome the language barrier and the library became my second 
home/ living room. I feel comfortable, safe, not alone in here, plus all 
the knowledge I had improve. I am very glad to have a public space 
like this to join. It’s an important part of my Canadian experience. 
Thank you all for welcoming me.

City resident

4 Voices from our City
Accessibility, Diversity, Equity + Inclusion

lcoming me.

y g
It’s an important part of my Canadian exper

ou all f

ity re

43



CONTEXT

The growing gap between incomes and the cost of living means that many households 
are challenged to meet their basic needs. The situation is particularly acute for 
vulnerable populations, including Indigenous peoples, lone parent households, seniors, 
and people with disabilities. An increasing number of households are also experiencing 
working poverty, with women, immigrants, and young people particularly impacted 
by lower paying jobs and long hours. These circumstances lead to personal and family 
stress, and many residents living in poverty feel there is a stigma associated with 
accessing the services they need.

5. Poverty Reduction + Inclusive Economy

DIRECTION
Create a people-centered local economy and work together to 
break the cycle of poverty.

Did you know?

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

44



NORTH SHORE POVERTY 
REDUCTION STRATEGY (2023)

TACTICS
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

45



5.5

5.6  

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

46



When people can connect … there isn’t anyone left behind.  People 
feel less lonely.

City resident

I’ve been living in my car and I have my dog with me which makes it 

tough. And how do you cook when you’re living in a car? I don’t have a 
stove or a kitchen so I’m always buying food which is expensive. . . . I 
don’t want to leave the North Shore because my community is here.

City resident

I never thought I would be in this situation but here I am and having a 
stable home is number one.  I got an apartment and I am thrilled and 
thankful.

City resident assisted by the North Shore Solutions Navigators Program

My hope is coming back from a dark place. I’m still in it but the light is 
starting to shine through my clouds.

City resident assisted by the North Shore Solutions Navigators Program

In our city we need low-cost no-barrier ways to be part of 
the community.

City resident

5 Voices from our City
Poverty Reduction + Inclusive Economy

y

ent

47



CONTEXT

important expertise, responsibility, and commitment to the City and its residents. It is 
critical to pursue partnerships, undertake advocacy, and provide supportive funding to 
achieve the needed social infrastructure in the City.

6. Partnerships, Advocacy + Financial Supports

DIRECTION
Build equitable and supportive partnerships that advance the 
City’s priorities for wellbeing, align City resources and funding, 
and advocate for the community’s needs. 

Partnerships

PARTNERSHIPS

ADVOCACY

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

48



Advocacy Supportive Funding

Did you know?

49



TACTICS
Partnerships

6.1

Informal

Formal

FORMALITY OF PARTNERSHIPS

TYPES OF PARTNERSHIPS IN SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY PLANNING

Policy

Financial

Advocacy

Project

Internal (City) Supports

External Supports

Note: Different types of work require different forms of relationships and often multiple forms of relationships with the same partners.

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

50



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

51



Supportive Funding

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

Advocacy 

6.10

 

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

6.11

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

52



available, and close to home for all residents.

Family Services of the North Shore

for young families. The result is parents, often women, leaving 
the workforce, which weakens the resilience of our economy and 
community health. The City is committed to working in partnership 

support the well-being of children and the lives of working parents.

City of North Vancouver Mayor, Linda Buchanan, City of North Vancouver Press release 
March 20, 2024

The relationship between the City and service providers like us is 
strong and supportive. The trust and mutual reliance goes both ways … 
this is what makes it work.

North Shore Neighbourhood House

6 Voices from our City
Partnerships, Advocacy + Financial Supports

53



Implementation
This Strategy is intended to guide the City's decisions and our activities to improve 
community wellbeing over the next decade. 

How We Do the Work

Funding and Resources

 » The Annual Financial Planning Process

 » Work Programming 

 » Partnerships and External Funding Sources

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

54



A WORKING TOGETHER APPROACH TO WELLBEING

1 Monitoring and Reporting 

Talk and Engage 

Pilot, Learn, Adapt 

Education, Empowerment and Stewardship 

Financing Wellbeing 

2

3

4

5

55



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

56



Priority Projects

Truth and Reconciliation - Building 
Relationships with Local First Nations

*Pathways 4 + 6

ONE

Adequacy Initiatives

*Pathway 2

TWO

Update Regulations + Guidelines to Increase 
Social Connections

*Pathways 1, 3, 4 + 5

THREE

57



Community Needs Assessment to Inform 
Neighbourhood Level Planning 

*Pathway 1

FOUR

Renew the City’s Framework for Supportive 
Funding to the Community

*Pathway 6

Apply an Equity Lens to All We Do

*Pathway 4

FIVE

SIX

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

58



Outcomes and Measurement
ACCOUNTABILITY

OUR METRICS

“Not everything that can be counted counts, and not everything that counts can be 
counted.”

1. Complete Communities

 »

 »

 »

 »

2. Housing

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

59



3. A City for All Ages

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

4. Accessibility, Diversity, Equity + Inclusion

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

5. Poverty Reduction + Inclusive Economy

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

6. Partnerships, Advocacy + Financial Supports

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

»

6. Partne

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

60



so I like this idea. I think Lonsdale is great with the intergenerational 
seats, especially for seniors who can rest along the way. I really 
appreciate that. Walkability is amazing here and I appreciate seeing 
more spaces for youth to feel included in our public spaces.

Employee at a business on Lonsdale Avenue

Let's prioritize doing the work that really moves the dial and makes 
progress in the community.

City resident

61



Appendix

2SLGBTQI+:

ACCESS:

ACCESSIBILITY:

ADVOCACY: 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING:

Glossary

BARRIER:

BELONGING: 

COMMUNITY WELLBEING:

DIVERSITY:

EQUALITY:

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y

62



EQUITY:

EQUITY LENS: 

GENDER INCLUSIVE: 

HOMELESSNESS: 

INCLUSION:

INTERSECTIONALITY:

MARKET HOUSING:

MENTAL HEALTH:

NON-MARKET HOUSING:

PARTNERSHIP:

PLACEMAKING:

POVERTY:

RESILIENCE:

SOCIAL DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH:

63



SOCIAL INFRASTRUCTURE:

Related Plans and Strategies

City of North Vancouver website (www.cnv.org)

Community Planning Plans and Strategies: 

 »

 »

 »

 »

Additional City Plans and Strategies: 

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

Partners’ Plans and Strategies: 

 »

 »

 »

 »

TENURE:

64

Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 V
an

co
uv

er
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y



List of References

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

»

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

65



Working together, we can create a 
City where everyone belongs and has 
opportunities to thrive.



WHAT WE HEARD

Community 
Wellbeing 
Strategy

Results of Public Engagement on the 
Draft Vision, Goals and Strategies 
September 22 - November 5, 2021



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Introduction   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Engagement Process  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Activities and Outcomes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Results of Engagement  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

Next Steps   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Community Wellbeing Strategy Public Engagement
Public engagement on the draft vision, goals, and emerging strategies for the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy occurred over a six week period from September 22, 2021 to 
November 5, 2021. The intent of this engagement was to raise project awareness, to 
reach a broad and diverse spectrum of the community, and to seek feedback on the 
draft framework. A variety of engagement activities and tools were used to maximize 
outreach. 

Overall, the feedback from the public engagement was positive, and people are keen 
to see the draft Community Wellbeing Strategy in the next stage. Feedback highlighted 
both the importance and the ambitiousness of the framework, and the possibilities this 
will create for the City and its residents.

Survey Responses

289 Surveys Completed

67% of respondents felt the vision 
was right for the community 

69% of respondents felt the goals 
support the needs of the community 
well or very well

81% of respondents felt the 
strategies support the needs of the 
community well or very welll



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT2

@

Key Themes Arising: 

Key themes that emerged from survey responses and engagement activities include: 

 The importance and many benefits of strong social connections and the need to 
develop more community spaces and opportunities for interaction 

 Community desire for more affordable housing options 

 Building and improving upon community partnerships, local businesses, and non-
profit relationships that deliver key services and supports 

 The urgent need to consider and address the impacts of climate change 

 The importance of equity, access, and inclusion in all areas of wellbeing 

 Acknowledgment of the need for greater supports for most vulnerable residents 

 The wide range of factors that contribute to and influence individual and 
community wellbeing. 

 A desire for neighbourhoods to be more walkable with easy access to amenities 
and supports, and a greater range of activities in the community.

13 Stakeholder Meetings

60 Secondary School students 
engaged in wellbeing workshop

30 University Students involved 
in CityStudio wellbeing project 

1,035 visitors to the City’s 
project webpage and Let’s Talk 
engagement platform

41,363 total reach through 
social media activities

1,200+ subscribers to the 
City’s CityView e-newsletter

Outreach Activities

CITYSTUDIOCITYSTUDIO

200+ people engaged in 
conversation

116 Organizations were sent 
invitations to provide feedback



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   3

The City of North Vancouver is developing a Community 
Wellbeing Strategy to plan for the services, resources, 
amenities, activities, and places that will help our 
community live healthy, happy, and fulfilled lives. 
The Strategy will serve as a guide or playbook for 
how we make decisions about social infrastructure 
over the next 10 years. 

The scope of the Community Wellbeing Strategy 
is to replace the City’s 1998 Social Plan with a new 
modernized framework that provides direction 
on social infrastructure and the evolving wellbeing 
needs of our community. It will include a new vision, 
goals, strategies, actions, and implementation plan to 
guide community wellbeing into the future. 

Community wellbeing Community wellbeing 
is the combination of social, 
economic, environmental, 

health, cultural, and political 
conditions that are essential for 

individuals and communities 
to flourish and fulfill their 

potential.

About the Community Wellbeing Strategy

INTRODUCTION

VISION + GOALS:
 The overarching summary of what we want the future 
to look like and what we are striving to achieve.

STRATEGIES + ACTIONS:
 Broad statements outlining what needs to be done to achieve 
the vision and goals, coupled with specific policies, actions, and 
processes that will be undertaken as a part of day-to-day work.

IMPLEMENTATION + MONITORING:
 Timeframes, responsibilities, and leadership for 
delivering the strategies and actions, coupled with 
monitoring our progress and adapting as needed.



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT4

A Quartet of Strategies 
The City of North Vancouver is currently developing four major strategies to guide our 
next decade of planning and decision-making in key areas: mobility, climate and the 
environment, community wellbeing, and the economy. When complete, these strategies 
will provide modernized guidance to support advancing the broader goals and ambitions 
of the City’s Official Community Plan. The Community Wellbeing Strategy supports, 
and is supported by, each of these strategies through aligned goals, and coordinated 
actions.

Five guiding principles have been developed to ensure the City’s and community’s 
values are being maintained while developing the four City-wide strategies:

1. We need to take actions that improve our collective health

2. We need to take resilient actions

3. We need to take equitable actions

4. We need to take actions that work towards reconciliation.

5. We need to take timely actions

Economic 
Strategy

Climate and 
Environment 
Strategy

Mobility 
Strategy

Community 
Wellbeing 

Strategy



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   5

The COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted how unexpected shifts happen and the 
significant impacts these shifts can have on our communities. Recovery from the 
pandemic provides new opportunities to make our City livable, connected, and 
equitable for all. 

Process for the New Strategy

The Community Wellbeing Strategy is being created through four stages of work, including 
two public engagement opportunities as well as ongoing focused stakeholder, committee, 
and expert conversations throughout the process.

The first stage of public engagement has completed. The feedback received, and 
highlighted in this report, will be used to inform and develop the full draft Community 
Wellbeing Strategy in Step 3. The draft Community Wellbeing Strategy will be shared 
for public input, prior to finalizing the Strategy in Step 4.

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT #2

Spring 2022

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT #1

Fall 2021

 Develop draft 
vision, goals, 
and strategies

 Community 
review of draft 
strategy 

 Input on 
priorities

 Integration 
of feedback

 Final strategy 
development

 Council 
review

 Research (existing 
plans, policies, 
trends, gaps, 
issues, best 
practices review, 
and public input)

 Public input 
on preliminary 
vision, goals, 
and strategies

 Stakeholder 
discussions

STEP 1 
2018-2020

STEP 2 STEP 3
Winter 2022

STEP 4
Summer/Fall 2022

 Integration of 
feedback

 Build draft 
strategy

 Council      
review

Foundational analysis 
and You Me Us Public 

Engagement

Preliminary 
vision, goals, and 

strategies
actions and 

framework

Finalize 
Strategy

Spring / Summer 2021

WE ARE HERE!



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT6

ONE VIS ION 
FOR TODAY 
AND IN THE 

FUTURE

 15 Minute City

 Social Design

 Access

 Resiliency

2O STRATEGIES 
TO ACHIEVE 
OUR GOALS

Building a  
city of short 

distances

Making room  
for community

Being an  
equitable  

city

Repositioning 
social  

investments

FOUR GOALS 
WE NEED TO 

ACHIEVE OUR 
VIS ION

HEALTHY 
DESIGN

HUMAN 
ESSENTIALS

SUPPORTING 
PEOPLE

WORKING 
TOGETHER

 Housing for All

 Homelessness

 Food Security

 Safety

 Equity + 
Diversity + 
Inclusion

 Reconciliation

 Mental Health

 Children 
+ Youth + 
Families

 Child Care

 Seniors

 Poverty 
Reduction

 Social 
Infrastructure 
+ Facilities 
+ Programs

 Advocacy

 Partnerships

 Financial 
Supports + 
Opportunities

 Economy for 
Everyone

A City where everyone belongs 

SUPPORTING 
ACTIONS & 

MONITORING
To be developed in next phases of work

What Did We Engage On?
The public engagement focused on receiving input and feedback on the first three 
components of the Community Wellbeing Strategy Draft Framework, including the 
Draft Vision, Goals, and Strategies:  



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   7

About the Public Engagement Process
The intent of public engagement was to seek feedback on the draft framework for the 
Community Wellbeing Strategy. The draft framework outlines a draft vision, goals, and 
set of strategies to support people to live healthy, happy, and fulfilled lives in the City of 
North Vancouver. It was developed based on current trends and best practice research, 
along with a review of existing plans and policies, and initial community input from the 
2018-2019 You, Me, Us process. 

The objectives of the first stage of public engagement were to: 

 Reach a broad and diverse range of community members and local stakeholders

 Raise awareness of social issues and opportunities 

 Offer a variety of engagement formats to make it easy and accessible to participate

 Encourage respondents to provide feedback through an empathy and equity lens (i.e. 
consider the needs of the whole community and our most vulnerable residents)

 Gather feedback on the preliminary vision, goals, and strategies 

 Seek initial input and ideas to help inform the development of the actions 

 Build upon relationships with community agencies and partners

Public engagement launched on September 22, 2021 and closed on November 5, 
2021. To maximize the reach and scope of the engagement process, three methods of 
engagement were used to increase general awareness of the project, enable a broad 
range of residents to provide feedback, and to facilitate in-depth stakeholder discussions 
on specific topics of interest. 

ENGAGEMENT PROCESS

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing social distancing 
requirements of the Provincial government, engagement activities were 
predominately held virtually. Print materials were made available at City Hall 
and the City Library, and smaller in-person meetings were scheduled upon 
request. 



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT8

INTENT TOOLS USED

Project Awarness

 A variety of platforms and notifications 
were used with the intention of 
maximizing awareness of the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy and promoting 
opportunities to provide input and ways 
to stay updated on the process. 

 Community Wellbeing 
Project Webpage

 Community Wellbeing Let’s 
Talk Engagement Platform

 Print and Digital Outreach 
(social media, newspaper ads, 
e-newsletters, postcards, posters)

 Sharing through Networks

Broad Public Engagement

 The intent was to reach a broad and diverse 
group of residents and recieve feedback 
on the draft vision, goals, and strategies. 
A survey and supporting materials, along 
with a number of other outreach materials 
and contact information was provided.

 Public Survey

 Information and Survey Guides

 Community Event Displays 
(Loutet Farm Pumpkin Patch, 
City Library, Civic Plaza)

 Dedicated email and phone number

 Meetings as requested 
to support access

Focused Stakeholder Engagement

 To engage and involve stakeholders, local 
businesses, and partners who provide 
services, focused engagement opportunties 
tailored to these groups were undertaken. 
This enabled the ability to dive deeper into 
specific topic areas and to discuss the issues 
and opportunities on community wellbeing.  

 Stakeholder Survey

 Stakeholder and Committee Meetings 

 School Outreach

 Listening Sessions (participants 
included those who typically 
have not engaged in planning 
processes due barriers)  

Community Engagement Framework
The following community engagement framework was used to guide engagement 
activities in order to achieve the engagement objectives. 



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   9

ACTIVITES AND OUTCOMES

Public Survey
A public survey was open from September 
22, 2021 to October 31, 2021 inviting 
feedback on the draft vision, goals, and 
emerging strategies. The survey included 
additional questions on the community 
services used most often, and the 
greatest challenges facing individuals 
and the community. Optional questions 
on the demographics of respondents 
were also included to help understand 
who participated in the process and if the 
survey was reaching a broad demographic.

Stakeholder Survey
A stakeholder specific survey was created 
to capture feedback on the draft vision, 
goals, and emerging strategies from 
community agencies, local businesses, 
partners, and other government entities. 
The survey was open from September 
22, 2021 to October 31, 2021. A direct 
link to the survey was emailed out to 116 
organizations and further spread through 
external networks. The main questions in 
the public and stakeholder surveys were 
the same to enable the survey responses 
to be analyzed together. Survey results 
related to the draft vision, goals, and 
strategies were combined with the public 
survey responses and are reflected in the 
metrics above.

264 Public Surveys Completed

67% of respondents felt the 
vision was right for the community 

69% of respondents felt the 
goals support the needs of the 
community well or very well

81% of respondents felt the 
strategies support the needs of 
the community well or very well

25 Stakeholder Surveys Completed

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (PAID OR VOLUNTEER):

TYPES OF ORGANIZATIONS:

5%

20%



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT10

Stakeholder Meetings
Staff extended an invite to provide feedback 
to approximately 116 organizations including 
local service-providers, businesses, community 
groups, and other governments. Stakeholders 
were provided the option to complete the 
stakeholder survey, provide feedback through 
a letter, or meet with staff to discuss their input. 

Meetings were arranged with both internal and 
external stakeholders to discuss the draft vision, 
goals, emerging strategies and ideas for further 
action. Stakeholder meetings contributed to 
deeper discussions on specific topic-areas and 
opportunities for further development within 
the Community Wellbeing Strategy. This also 
included Listening Sessions with individuals 
who typically do not participate in planning 
processes due to barriers, such as vulnerable 
populations, specific household characteristics, 
and language translation requirements. 

200+ People engaged 

13 Stakeholder Meetings

116 Organizations were 
sent invitations to provide 
feedback

Website
A dedicated project webpage launched 
on September 22, 2021 on both the City’s 
website and Let’s Talk Engagement platform 
for members of the public to stay informed 
and updated on the Community Wellbeing 
Strategy. The webpages provided key project 
information including: project overview, 
process, related council reports, survey and 
information guides, and links to engagement 
opportunities.  

732 Visitors to the website

303 Visitors to the Let’s Talk 
Page

Website: www.cnv.org/wellbeing 

Let’s Talk: www.letstalk.cnv.org/
community-wellbeing 

LET’S TALKLET’S TALK

 The Listening Sessions were 
focused on both the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy and the Climate 
and Environment Strategy.



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   11

1,200+ Subscribers to the 
City’s CityView e-newsletter@

Print and Digital Outreach 
A variety of print and digital materials and notifications were used to inform the public 
on how they could provide feedback and learn more about the Community Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

The following engagement materials were developed:

 Survey Guide: included background information and an overview of the draft vision, 
goals, and emerging strategies to provide context for the survey was available on 
the project webpage and print copies available at City Hall and the City Library. 

 Information Guide: included detailed information on the draft vision, goals, 
emerging strategies, and ideas for action for those seeking further details 
was available on the City website and print versions by request. 

 Postcards: printed postcards with a QR code promoting the online survey were 
distributed at local events, stakeholder meetings, and available at the City Library. 

 Sandwich Board and Posters: promoting the online survey and project 
webpage were displayed around City Hall, Civic Plaza, and the City Library. 

41,363 Total Reach

7 Postings

725 Engaged (like, comment, share)

16,501 Views

8 Postings

55 Engaged (like, comment, share)

20,514 Views

The following is a summary of the digital 
and print notifications: 

 North Shore News: the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy was advertised 
in the October 27, 2021 edition of 
the North Shore News promoting the 
online survey and project page. 

 Social media: included weekly 
posts on the City’s Facebook, 
Twitter, and Instagram to promote 
engagement opportunities. 

 Electronic Newsletters: the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy was featured in the 
City’s e-newsletter CityView five times. 
It was also featured in a number of our 
community partners’ e-newsletters.



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT12

City Studio   
CityStudio North Vancouver is an 
experimentation and innovation hub 
where Capilano University students 
collaborate with City of North Vancouver 
staff and partners to co-create projects for 
the community – see https://citystudiocnv.
com/ for further details. 

In the fall 2021 semester, students in 
BADM 305-7A/B (Leadership, Business & 
Professional Studies, School of Business) 
considered the question ‘How can we 
best support the City’s goal to build a city 
of short distances by developing the City 
of North Vancouver’s own version of the 
15 minute city?’

2 Visits and several online 
meetings with CityStudio class

CITYSTUDIOCITYSTUDIO

30 Students engaged 

@
6 Projects were created and 
presented to the City

Projects focused on:

 The time aspect of the 15 Minute City, considering the need for key services to be available 
24/7 for those who are serving while others are sleeping to maximize the utility of the 
concept.

 Recommendations to better position the e-bike share program to reduce potential social 
costs, and to expand the provision of community gardens to reach more City residents.

 Making the 15 Minute City in work in North Vancouver based on three key components 
- strategic placement of new infrastructure, affordable housing, and an integrated transit 
framework.

 Enabling more Capilano University students to live in North Vancouver by supporting 
affordable student housing in appropriate locations and better integration of students into 
life of North Shore via a Student House in the Shipyards to increase the vibrancy of the area 
and support the local economy/link to local businesses.

 Targeted and proportionate use of zoning changes to introduce thoughtful replacement 
within neighbourhoods to support an enhanced mix of cafes, shops, green spaces and 
community uses in more areas of the City. 

Website: https://citystudiocnv.com/



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   13

Secondary School Outreach   
Staff arranged sessions with two local secondary schools to present the draft framework 
and gather high level feedback on areas students considered important to their 
wellbeing, this included:

 The Initiatives and Leadership club at Carson Graham Secondary, that focuses on service 
leadership in the local community.

 The Social Studies Explorer Program (an outdoor education program) at Sutherland 
Secondary, themes of the class include government and environmental sustainability. 

The approximately 60 students involved identified a wide range of factors that they felt 
were important to their wellbeing, including:

 Individual health factors, for example mental and physical health, free time and access to 
leisure activities (sports facilities, music, etc.) / things to do that they enjoy. 

 Societal factors, for example equality, stability, democracy, freedom, education and health 
care.

 Basic needs, for example food, housing, money, transit, fast internet. 

 Community factors, for example friends, family, connections with others, feeling safe, a 
supportive environment.

 Environmental factors, for example quality of environment, access to nature.

60 Students engaged 



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT14

Summary of Feedback
The following sections provide a summary of the feedback received across all public 
engagement activities in relation to the draft vision, goals, emerging strategies, and 
ideas for action. Where statistics are provided, these refer to the combined results from 
the public and stakeholder surveys. Note that not all respondents answered all survey 
questions. The summary of comments received combine feedback from the survey as 
well as stakeholder meetings. 

Draft Vision

Summary of Proposed Changes

It is acknowledged that the connection to the natural environment and climate change 
needs to be further articulated in the Community Wellbeing Strategy, this will be reflected 
through the recognition and alignment with the upcoming Climate and Environment 
Strategy and the overarching principle of taking actions that are resilient. The addition 
of ‘thrive’ to the vision will be considered as the full draft strategy is developed.

A City where everyone belongs 

Summary of Comments Received

The majority of responses were supportive of 
the draft vision. Some comments suggested 
the vision was missing a connection to the 
natural environment and climate crisis, 
and that it should also encompass housing 
affordability. A few comments suggested 
the vision was too vague or lofty of a 
statement. Many people recommended the 
addition of the word “thrive” be added to 
the vision sentence. 

RESULTS OF ENGAGEMENT

DOES THE DRAFT VISION SUPPORT THE 
NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY?



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   15

Draft Goals
Overall, survey feedback indicated general support for the four goals. 

Building a  
city of short 

distances

Making room  
for community

Being an  
equitable  

city

Repositioning 
social  

investments

Summary of Comments Received

GOAL WHAT WE HEARD

1. Building a City of Short 
Distances

We are a City that connects 
people with each other and 
with day-to-day needs closer to 
where we live.

 The comments reflected a shared understanding of the 
many health and environmental benefits of Goal #1. 
Improving public transit, supporting active transportation 
modes, reducing vehicle traffic, and enhancing pedestrian/
cyclist safety were highlighted as key components to 
achieving this goal. In addition, ensuring the entirety 
of the City is included and not just specific geographic 
areas was emphasized. Some were unsure of the 
phrasing and meaning of “a city of short distances” 
and suggested adjustments or further clarification. 

DO THE DRAFT GOALS SUPPORT THE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY?

GOAL 1: 
BUILDING A CITY OF SHORT DISTANCES

GOAL 2: 
MAKING ROOM FOR COMMUNITY

GOAL 3: 
BEING AN EQUITABLE CITY

GOAL 4: 
REPOSITIONING SOCIAL INVESTMENTS

17%

18%

13%

21%



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT16

Summary of Proposed Changes

There was general support for all four goals indicating they are providing the right 
direction for the Strategy. However, there was a shared response for further clarification 
and plain language so that the goals provide a stronger direction for our future wellbeing. 
The goals will be clarified and simplified in the next version of the Strategy. 

GOAL WHAT WE HEARD

2. Making Room for 
Community

We are a City that provides 
strong and supportive social 
infrastructure, including 
places, spaces, programs, and 
partnerships.

 Survey results showed support for Goal #2. However, 
many commented on the vagueness of the wording and 
need for further clarification on the meaning of the goal 
statement (e.g. does it refer to “physical” room?). Some 
felt this goal was not reflective of the draft strategies, 
which are more people and support centric. Suggestions 
were made to further articulate and define the goal in 
order to convey a stronger image of the direction.

3. Being an Equitable City 

We are a City that is shaped 
by a diverse and inclusive 
representation of voices, 
experiences, and contributions.

 Generally feedback agreed that that the City is shaped by a 
diverse and inclusive representation of voices, experiences, 
and contributions. Many felt this goal would indeed 
benefit the community and that it is a vital goal for all 
communities. The concerns expressed were mainly around 
the need for clarification around equity and equality and 
how this goal will translate into meaningful City policy.

4. Repositioning Social 
Investments

We are a City that sees the 
provision of social infrastructure 
as an investment with excellent 
returns and public cost savings.

 The common theme reiterated in the comments is that this 
goal is vague and unclear. Many wanted further details so 
they could have a better understanding of what the goal 
entails. Specifically, people wanted more information around 
which “investments” were being referred to and how they 
were going to be repositioned. Supportive comments 
were also received as people felt that a socially healthy 
community would lead to a healthier economy overall.



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   17

Draft Strategies
The 20 draft strategies are the statements that provide direction towards achieving the 
goals. They are organized under four themes or chapters:

Creating places 
and spaces that 
are designed to 
support physical 
and mental 
health and 
resiliency.

HEALTHY 
DESIGN

HUMAN 
ESSENTIALS

SUPPORTING 
PEOPLE

WORKING 
TOGETHER

Prioritizing 
essential needs 
relating to 
suitable and 
affordable 
housing, 
sufficient healthy 
food, equitable 
opportunities, 
health, and 
safety.

Creating 
resources and 
opportunities 
that enable 
people to 
improve their 
wellbeing in 
ways that are 
responsive to 
individual needs 
and experiences.

Developing 
a network of 
partnerships 
and support 
to achieve the 
City’s objectives 
together.

 15 Minute City

 Social Design

 Access

 Resiliency

2
O

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IE

S

 Housing for All

 Homelessness

 Food Security

 Safety

 Equity + 
Diversity + 
Inclusion

 Reconciliation

 Mental Health

 Children + Youth 
+ Families

 Child Care

 Seniors

 Poverty 
Reduction

 Social 
Infrastructure 
+ Facilities + 
Programs

 Advocacy

 Partnerships

 Financial 
Supports + 
Opportunities

 Economy for 
Everyone



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT18

HEALTHY DESIGN DRAFT STRATEGIES

Summary of What We Heard 

Survey results showed strong support for the draft Healthy Design strategies.

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

15 Minute City

Create a 15 
minute city with 
healthy, connected 
and inclusive 
neighbourhoods 
where daily needs are 
within a short walk, 
bike or transit ride.

 The 15 minute city concept was strongly supported. Comments 
received reflected on the benefits of the strategy as strengthening 
social connections, enhancing sustainability, increasing wellbeing, 
and creating community vibrancy. Many responses highlighted 
age, ability, household type, and the City’s steep terrain as 
important factors that need careful consideration in developing 
this strategy. Making sustainable and active transportation modes 
more safe, convenient, and comfortable was also emphasized. 

 Many people suggested prioritizing local businesses within this 
concept to support the local economy, including the addition of 
small neighbourhood shops and corner stores. Specific geographic 
areas of the City were mentioned as currently lacking some 
resources. In addition, proximity and access to food, family doctors, 
and a range of housing types were particularly emphasized. 

Resiliency

Build neighbourhood 
capacity and 
resiliency to 
strengthen 
community response 
to adversity.

 Building community resiliency was strongly supported. Many shared 
that the pandemic demonstrated our ability to provide innovative 
solutions to quickly adapt to change, the importance of strong social 
connections, and how resilient our community is today. Responses 
indicated that more work needs to be done towards emergency 
preparedness and tackling climate change. Ideas for incorporating 
more opportunities for growing food, emergency preparedness 
education, and sustainable building practices were also shared. 

DO THE DRAFT STRATEGIES MEET THE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY?

15 MINUTE CITY

SOCIAL DESIGN

ACCESS

RESILIENCY

14%

6%2

1%2%

1%3%



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   19

HEALTHY DESIGN DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Social Design

Grow opportunities 
for community 
connection and 
inclusion by 
incorporating social 
design provisions 
into the development 
of public and private 
spaces so they 
function as social 
places.

 Many commented that the pandemic and recent extreme weather 
events have highlighted the need for safe, social spaces as a priority 
for improving mental health and community connection, and reducing 
feelings of loneliness and isolation. Consultation with community 
partners, local businesses, and accessibility experts were emphasized 
as important components to designing these spaces. Loutet Farm, The 
Shipyards, and City Parklets were highlighted as examples of successful 
public spaces that also provide intergenerational opportunities. 

 A number of ideas for future public and private spaces were provided 
such as the need for more greenspaces, community gardens, 
urban farms, public washrooms, covered outdoor spaces, seating, 
multi-purpose spaces, quiet spaces, and places for seniors, youth, 
and children. In addition, it was emphasized that these spaces 
not only provide social opportunities but also feel welcoming 
and inclusive to a variety of ages, cultures, and abilities.

Access

Enable and improve 
physical, locational, 
and financial access 
so that all residents 
are comfortable 
participating in civic 
life.

 Financial barriers and the importance of equity were highlighted as 
key considerations for this strategy. Many made recommendations 
towards improving access to active/public transportation modes, public 
spaces, support services, green spaces, seniors programs, and spaces 
for children/teens. Some felt the current focus on the strategy was too 
narrow and should expand to include emotional access and access to 
affordable housing. In addition, the wording “participate in civic life” 
was described as difficult to understand and should be rephrased. 

Summary of Proposed Changes

Key themes shared in the comments included changes to reflect the need for more 
opportunities for community gatherings and social connections, the desire to have 
community amenities and services nearby that are fully accessible to all, and the need 
for greater actions around climate change and resiliency. These ideas will be developed 
further within the actions of the strategies. 



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT20

HUMAN ESSENTIALS DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Safety

Increase safety and 
the feeling of safety 
for all, with a particular 
focus on improving the 
wellbeing of people 
who experience bias, 
discrimination, and 
vulnerability.

 A wide range of comments were received around the topic of safety. 
For some residents, lighting and traffic were major concerns and it 
was noted that more streetlights, wider sidewalks and controlled 
intersections would increase safety. The need for more police and 
enforcement was also raised and differing views were expressed 
around the topic. Although generally people feel safe in the City, 
some thought that more community police were needed. 

 The majority of people, however, highlighted that social programs, 
community supports and community cohesion would help prevent 
crime and increase public safety. The need for RCMP to work alongside 
mental health professionals was also mentioned as well as the need to 
support racialized communities and vulnerable populations including 
those experiencing homelessness and those with mental health 
challenges and addictions to combat hate and discrimination.

Summary of What We Heard

The draft Human Essentials strategies received general support through the survey. 

DO THE DRAFT STRATEGIES MEET THE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY?

HOUSING FOR ALL

HOMELESSNESS

FOOD SECURITY

SAFETY

MENTAL HEALTH

EQUITY + DIVERSITY 
+ INCLUSION

RECONCILIATION

2

14%2

2

10%

2%2%



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   21

HUMAN ESSENTIALS DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Housing for All

Improve the diversity 
and affordability of 
housing by enabling 
a greater variety of 
homes of all types, 
sizes, and tenures.

 Improving the range and affordability of housing options in the City 
was clearly supported. Many respondents highlighted that there 
needs to be a focus on securing livability alongside affordability – for 
example, providing more larger units with sufficient space for a range 
of household sizes across tenures/forms of development and ensuring 
that residents have easy access to a range of amenities in the local area.

 Suggested actions to support this included seeking a wider range 
of affordable housing options (both rental and ownership) from new 
development; enabling ownership of a wider variety of housing forms 
(such as coach houses); revising land use designations to enable forms 
of development throughout the City for the missing middle – those 
individuals and families with mid-range incomes such as teachers, 
and firefighters that are priced out of conventional single family 
dwellings; and encouraging integration of appropriate amenities closer 
to and/or within to more of the City’s existing residential areas. 

 The need to strike a balance between supporting new development 
and ensuring that existing residents aren’t displaced was highlighted 
by respondents, as was the need to focus on supporting those in 
precarious housing situations to become safely and stably housed.

Homelessness

Work proactively 
with partners to 
enhance services 
for the homeless 
population and move 
towards a model of 
support based on 
permanent housing 
as a foundation for 
addressing complex 
needs.

 An approach which focuses on the provision of stable housing 
was supported by respondents. The importance of recognizing 
the range of reasons that may have led to an individual becoming 
homeless, and involving those experiencing homelessness, in 
developing solutions was highlighted. Comments also emphasized 
the need to provide a wide range of support services alongside 
housing, for example access to training opportunities.



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT 22

HUMAN ESSENTIALS DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Food Security

Improve the 
accessibility, 
affordability, and 
coordination of the 
food system and 
access to healthy food 
by collaborating with 
partners on creative 
and strategic projects 
in the City.

 The food security strategy was strongly supported. Recommendations 
were made to add access to culturally appropriate foods and 
affordable food options that are nutritious. Many commented 
on the success of the local food bank and Loutet Farm. Several 
respondents highlighted the need for more community gardens 
and other innovative spaces to grow food locally such as boulevard 
gardens, rooftop gardens, and school gardens. Supporting local food 
producers and small businesses, reducing food waste, and increasing 
education and food literacy opportunities were also emphasized.

Reconciliation

Value, foster, and 
develop strong 
relationships with 
Indigenous members 
of the community and 
surrounding Nations 
to work towards 
reconciliation.

 Comments highlighted the need for the City to do more towards 
reconciliation with Indigenous peoples and encouraged the City 
to provide opportunities for learning and fostering understanding.  
Several respondents complimented the programming offered 
by the City Library, but stated more opportunities are needed. 
Building relationships, collaborating and coordinating with First 
Nations was also strongly supported. Other comments stressed the 
importance for the City to act on the United Nations Declaration 
on the Rights of Indigenous People (UNDRIP) and the Truth 
and Reconciliation Commission’s 94 calls to action to further 
reconciliation between Canadians and Indigenous peoples. 

Equity + Diversity + 
Inclusion

Cultivate a City that is 
engaged, equitable, 
and inclusive, where 
diversity is not only 
welcomed and 
celebrated but is also a 
City commitment.

 Although some felt that this strategy needs to be more clearly defined 
and may be difficult to achieve, the majority of respondents were 
very supportive. Many commented on the rich community diversity 
in the City and how this should be reflected in the City’s committees, 
consultation processes, and policy development.  The need to work 
with the community organizations, including the North Shore Immigrant 
Inclusion Partnership table, which is part of Impact North Shore, was 
also mentioned as well as the need to celebrate different cultures. 



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   23

HUMAN ESSENTIALS DRAFT STRATEGIES

Summary of Proposed Changes

Comments reflected the strong importance of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion and 
Reconciliation strategies, and that these topic areas are larger than one strategy 
and should be considered and addressed throughout the entirety of the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy. In addition, the City is working on a number of organizational efforts 
in these areas and the Community Wellbeing Strategy will further support those efforts. 
Other proposed changes will consider a broader heath strategy focused on municipal 
opportunities for action.  

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Mental Health

Promote improved 
mental health for 
all by embedding 
consideration of 
mental health into 
municipal services 
and policies, and by 
actively supporting 
initiatives, strategies, 
and organizations that 
positively affect mental 
health outcomes.

 Although it was noted that mental health fell under the responsibility 
of the Province and Local Health Authority and not local governments, 
many recognized that municipal governments could have a role 
in this area. Some of the suggestions included providing support 
and funding to non-profits that care for people with mental health 
issues, to educate the public (particularly youth) about mental health 
in order to reduce any stigma associated with it, and to reduce 
noise pollution through development. The need for connection 
and belonging across cultures and generations was also mentioned 
as well as the importance of pets to people’s wellbeing. 



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT24

SUPPORTING PEOPLE DRAFT STRATEGIES

Summary of What We Heard

The draft Supporting People strategies received the highest level of support from the 
survey across all the strategies. 

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Child Care

Improve the accessibility, 
affordability, and quality 
of child care in the City by 
collaborating with partners, 
creating new spaces, 
and advocating for the 
community’s needs.

 Residents commented that more child care spaces, especially 
those targeted to infants and toddlers were needed. These spaces 
need to be affordable and accessible for all children, including 
those with special needs and those who require supports. 
Comments were also made around the great care provided 
by not-for-profits and that the City should continue to support 
initiatives introduced by the Federal and Provincial governments.  

Seniors

Support the needs of 
our diverse seniors 
population by improving 
our age-friendly city and 
fostering seniors active 
role, contributions, and 
participation in civic life.

 In general, most respondents expressed support for the existing 
seniors support programs and services that are in place on the 
North Shore. Multiple responses indicated a need to expand 
services to seniors who are most vulnerable such as those who are 
food insecure, those with increasing physical/mental challenges, 
and those who are experiencing mobility challenges.  Comments 
also emphasized the need to provide more intergenerational 
learning and community activities throughout the City, such 
as volunteering, home sharing, and community gardening.

DO THE DRAFT STRATEGIES MEET THE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY?

CHILDREN + YOUTH 
+ FAMILIES

SENIORS

CHILDCARE

POVERTY 
REDUCTION

SOCIAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
+ FACILITIES + 
PROGRAMS

2%

4%2%

2%3%

3%3%



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   25

SUPPORTING PEOPLE DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Children + Youth + 
Families

Support families in the 
City with family-friendly 
community design, housing 
and transportation options, 
employment, child care, 
social opportunities, and 
community services.

 Generally the comments centered on the need to support 
families through the provision of child care as well as through the 
provision of more accessible and affordable programs for children 
and youth.  Other comments were provided around the need to 
go deeper and consider people with disabilities and vulnerable 
populations. Remarks were also made around the need to include 
actions related to food access and literacy as well as the need 
for spaces that children could engage in unstructured play.

Social Infrastructure + 
Facilities + Programs

Enhance and expand social 
infrastructure to meet a 
range of community needs 
and program uses, bring 
people together, and 
support the social and 
cultural fabric of the City.

 Responses highlighted the need to plan proactively to meet 
the needs/demands of a changing community, and the 
importance of facilities with low or no fees where people 
can access a range of activities. In considering future 
needs, a number of responses suggested engagement 
to determine what kind of facilities are needed most and 
how these should be designed and programmed. 

 Investment in City-owned assets was identified as a potential 
way to provide more multipurpose social and community 
spaces throughout the City. Comments also emphasized 
the need for informal as well as formal provision and co-
location of services to encourage opportunities for varied 
connections, including intergenerational connections.

Poverty Reduction

Assist with the mitigation of 
the impacts of poverty while 
providing a supportive 
environment to help people 
move out of poverty.

 Although some survey participants felt that this strategy 
was somewhat unachievable and too broad, many believed 
that a living wage, food security and food access, and 
affordable and supported housing were important basic 
rights that should be addressed. Education was also noted as 
a key component and that it is often hidden poverty that is 
experienced by seniors and other vulnerable populations.

Summary of Proposed Changes

The strategies within Supporting People received generally high levels of support, and 
any changes in the next draft will focus on clarifications and identification of deliverable 
actions.



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT26

WORKING TOGETHER DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Partnerships

Build equitable and supportive 
partnerships with senior levels 
of government, First Nations, 
the business community, non-
profit organizations, and other 
stakeholders to ensure that the 
diverse and changing needs of 
the community are met.

 Survey participants indicated clear support for the City 
to continue or enhance their partnerships with non-profit 
partners, community partners (e.g. the School District), 
and senior levels of government. These partnerships are 
seen as valuable as through conversation and by working 
alongside community groups, the City can better understand 
the issues impacting vulnerable residents. This can better 
allow the City to find opportunities to address challenges 
and to seize opportunities (e.g. provide land or pursuing 
funding opportunities) to help address inequities, such 
as accessing healthy food. It was also noted that more 
sustainable funding would help non-profits provide the 
programs and services to people that need it the most.

Summary of What We Heard

The draft Working Together strategies were highly supported through the survey.

PARTNERSHIPS

ADVOCACY

FINANCIAL 
SUPPORTS + 
OPPORTUNITIES

ECONOMY FOR 
EVERYONE

DO THE DRAFT STRATEGIES MEET THE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY?

14%



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   27

WORKING TOGETHER DRAFT STRATEGIES

STRATEGY WHAT WE HEARD

Advocacy

Champion and advocate to 
senior levels of government 
to provide support, funding, 
regulations, policy, and projects 
that meet community needs and 
enhance quality of life.

 Taking a focused and coordinated approach to advocacy 
was supported. A number of respondents suggested that 
the strategy should explicitly focus on coordination with 
other bodies such as neighbouring municipalities and 
community non-profit organizations so that advocacy 
efforts are targeted and duplicated only as needed.

Financial Supports + 
Opportunities

Act as an engaged partner 
with non-profit, social, and 
community agencies in working 
towards outcomes that benefit 
community wellbeing and 
prioritizing areas of key need 
through support, funding, space, 
and other resources.

 Most respondents agreed that this strategy was important 
as non-profit partners play a crucial role in providing 
community services to vulnerable populations. Many 
comments were also received around the importance of 
sustainable funding given the time and effort organizations 
have to dedicate to fundraising for their survival, could be 
spent on providing programs and support to their clients. 
Some comments also supported the idea of exploring 
social enterprises and sponsored based funding while 
others felt that this strategy would be too expensive. 

Economy for Everyone

Shape growth and investment 
to focus on social priorities 
alongside economic and 
commercial priorities, enabling 
individuals and communities to 
prosper, share in the benefits of 
growth, and build resilience.

 The comments received on this strategy focused on the 
importance of prioritizing and supporting local and small 
businesses, social enterprises, and green growth. The 
risks of local businesses getting squeezed out by new 
developments, both due to pressures on industrial areas 
and the higher rents charged by new developments, 
were highlighted as areas requiring action.

Summary of Proposed Changes

The importance of community partnerships, supporting local businesses, and sustainable 
funding opportunities were strongly articulated within the comments. There was a lot of 
overlapping feedback amongst the four Working Together strategies, therefore changes 
in the next draft will focus on refinement and limiting overlap. 



|   WHAT WE HEARD REPORT28

Demographics of Public Survey Respondents
While not all survey respondents chose to answer the optional demographic questions, 
analysis of the demographics of those who did respond show that there are distinct 
demographic and socioeconomic trends regarding who completed the public survey 
– respondents to the public survey tended to be older, female, and in higher income 
earning households. Of those who responded to the question asking about ethnicity/
racial background/family origin, 70 percent of respondents identified as Caucasian/
white.   

One of the City’s Four Guiding Principles of Engagement is Inclusiveness & Accessibility.
From the onset, a concerted effort has been made to reach, inform, and hear from 
all community members. To tackle this challenge, the engagement process sought to 
provide ‘barrier free’ opportunities for all community members to provide feedback 
and complete the survey questions. Staff have tapped into informal networks and have 
initiated pop-up type opportunities to target the broader community. However, the 
demographics of the public survey respondents indicate that further efforts need to be 
made to successfully engage with a wider cross section of City residents. 

Age:

 15% of respondents are 34 
years old or younger

 38% of respondents are 35-49 years 

 32% of respondents are 50-64 years 

 15% of respondents are over 65 years

Gender:

 74% of respondents are female

 23% of respondents are male

 3% of respondents chose 
‘another’ category 

Household Income:



WHAT WE HEARD REPORT   |   29

Integrating Feedback and Next Steps
The feedback received through the public engagement is being used to further refine 
the draft vision, goals, and strategies for the Community Wellbeing Strategy. The input 
will also help to facilitate the development of policies, actions, and an implementation 
plan for the Community Wellbeing Strategy. The draft Strategy is anticipated to be 
shared for public input in spring 2022.

NEXT STEPS

Next Steps

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT #2

Spring 2022

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT #1

Fall 2021

 Develop draft 
vision, goals, 
and strategies

 Community 
review of draft 
strategy 

 Input on 
priorities

 Integration 
of feedback

 Final strategy 
development

 Council 
review

 Research (existing 
plans, policies, 
trends, gaps, 
issues, best 
practices review, 
and public input)

 Public input 
on preliminary 
vision, goals, 
and strategies

 Stakeholder 
discussions

STEP 1 
2018-2020

STEP 2 STEP 3
Winter 2022

STEP 4
Summer/Fall 2022

 Integration of 
feedback

 Build draft 
strategy

 Council      
review

Foundational analysis 
and You Me Us Public 

Engagement

Preliminary 
vision, goals, and 

strategies
actions and 

framework

Finalize 
Strategy

Spring / Summer 2021

WE ARE HERE!



LETSTALK.CNV.ORG

City of North Vancouver 

141 West 14th Street 

North Vancouver, BC V7M 1H9

Email: wellbeing@cnv.org 

Phone: 604-983-7357



Community Wellbeing Strategy 
Public Engagement Phase 2 Summary



Engagement Context ............................................................................................. 3

Engagement Objectives ........................................................................................ 4

How We Engaged.................................................................................................... 5

Who We Heard From ............................................................................................. 6

What We Heard  ..................................................................................................... 8

Key Takeaways  ..................................................................................................... 17

Next Steps .............................................................................................................. 18

Table of Contents



3What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

The City of North Vancouver is creating a Community Wellbeing Strategy 
to plan for the services, resources, amenities, activities, and places that 
will help our community and the people in it to live healthy, happy, 
connected and ful  lled lives. The Strategy will serve as a guide for how 
we make decisions about social infrastructure and wellbeing over the 
next 10 years.

The Strategy will replace and update the City’s 1998 Social Plan with a 
contemporary framework, with a renewed vision, goals, and tactics to 
guide community wellbeing for the future. It is one of the latest in an 
evolving series of City strategies and plans that set the vision for City 
decision-making in the coming years.

Two phases of public engagement have helped to shape the draft 
Strategy. In Phase 1 (2021), we sought input from the community on 
visioning, goal setting, and emerging tactics for the Strategy. After 
applying this input in the draft Strategy, the document was shared in 
Phase 2 (2023), to receive feedback on the pathways, directions, and 
tactics in the draft Strategy.   

Phase 2 was at the “consult” level of engagement on the IAP2 Spectrum 
of Engagement. (Learn more about the IAP2 Spectrum of Engagement 
at iap2.com.) At the consult level, we commit to listening to and 
acknowledging concerns and aspirations and providing feedback on 
how input in  uenced the decision. 

Engagement Context



4What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

During Phase 2 engagement, the City sought input on the draft Strategy, speci  cally in these areas: 

•   Feedback was sought from Sḵwxw̱u7mesh Úxwumixw (Squamish Nation) 
and səlilwətaɬ (Tsleil-Waututh Nation) on the draft Strategy.

•   We sought to learn whether the community feels that what we are trying 
to achieve, and the goals within the Strategy meet the needs of the 
community.

•   We sought feedback on the proposed tactics within each of the six 
Pathways in the Strategy.

•   We sought to provide a variety of opportunities for the community to 
provide feedback, and to hear from a breadth of community members, 
including those who may face barriers to engagement, those with lived 
experiences, and to hear from community agencies and organizations.

Engagement Objectives



5What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

A variety of engagement activities and tools were used to receive input on the Strategy during a 
12 week period between September and November 2023. 

How We Engaged

19 community agencies, partners and committees/collaborative 
tables provided input through committee meetings, 
workshops and written input. 

Targeted outreach to various organizations connected 
with community groups and individuals that have been 
historically underrepresented in civic engagement.  

104 respondents participated in the online survey 
(also available in hard copies).

1000+ residents were engaged at pop-up events at 
various locations. 

A project webpage, social media, print and e-newsletters 
promoted the opportunity to provide input as well as 
relevant background information.  

Targeted outreach included groups such as immigrants and newcomers at Impact North 
Shore, Tween Advisory Group, North Shore Women’s Centre, North Shore Shelter & 
Housing Centre, and the North Shore Neighbourhood House.

The online survey was available in several languages (via a Google Translation feature) 
and an accompanying information /summary document about the Strategy was 
available in English, Farsi, Simpli  ed Chinese, and Tagalog.   

11 pop-ups included a planting day event, sea bus commuters, festivals, seniors 
centre, a farmers market, and more.



6

Survey respondents were asked optional demographic questions to help the City 

to learn more about who we are hearing from. The City is striving to reach an 

increasing breadth of the population and perspectives to inform City policy and 

decisions, and to support our work to break down barriers and to hear from 

diverse voices in the community.

decisions

p y

hear from 

Who We Heard From
A variety of community members with di  erent perspectives, experiences and demographics 
responded to the community survey.

of survey respondents were 
between 35 and 44 years of age.

34%

of respondents are from a 
racialized community or identify 
as a person of colour.

13% 

of respondents live in or lead a 
single income household.

27%
of respondents live with children 
or teens in the household.

18% 

of respondents have experience of addiction, homelessness, or accessing 
mental health services.16% 

survey respondents were 
younger than 35, and one in 
 ve were 65 and over.

1 in 5

of respondents are new to 
Canada in the last  ve years.

15% 

6



7What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

Who We Heard From

Community Organizations

In addition to the survey, we connected with community agencies, partners and 
committees/collaborative tables for discussion and input on the Strategy:

Community 
Housing Action 

Committee

North Shore Seniors 
Working Group

Table Matters

Tween Advisory 
Group

Vancouver Coastal 
Health 

North Vancouver 
Recreation & Culture

North Vancouver City 
Library

Advisory Planning 
Commission

North Shore Advisory 
Committee on 

Disability Issues

Social Planning Advisory 
Committee 

Integrated 
Transportation Committee 

Former CNV4Me Task 
Force

Advisory 
Committees

Community 
Partners

Community Groups 
and Tables

Local First Nations Review of the Draft Strategy

Sḵwxw̱u7mesh Úxwumixw (Squamish Nation) and səlilwətaɬ (Tsleil-Waututh Nation) 
each provided feedback through their respective review processes. 

The local First Nations’ comments will be considered and included in the  nal draft. 
This feedback is included in the summarized themes throughout this report. 



What We Heard
Throughout the Phase 2 engagement process, we asked for feedback 
on elements of the draft Strategy, including what the Strategy is trying 
to achieve, as well as on the goals within each of the six Pathways.

While there was signi  cant support for what the Strategy is trying to 
achieve, many comments also indicated that how the City does this is 
important.

Some participants added that the statement highlighted the importance 
of inclusivity, diversity, equity, health and safety; all of which are key 
for residents’ wellbeing. Others noted that belonging is a feeling, and 
that all community members should feel they belong. Concerns were 
raised on a  ordability and how it impacts people’s ability to belong 
and thrive in the City. 

81% of survey respondents indicated that this statement 
meets the needs of the community. 

The draft Strategy states that we are trying to achieve 
“A City where everyone belongs and has opportunities to thrive.”  

The community supports what the Strategy is trying 
to achieve, but are interested in the ‘how’11

8



9What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

What We Heard

The draft Strategy states that we are focusing on three goals: 
Connection, Equity, and Investment.

There is strong support for the goals of Connection, 
Equity and Investment 22

A majority of survey respondents somewhat and strongly agree 
with these goals:

•  84% of survey respondents agree with the Connection goal.
•  78% agree with the Equity goal.
•  79% agree with the Investment goal.

Respondents shared comments regarding what they felt was important 
in order to create a Strategy to e  ectively achieve the City’s goals of 
Connection (connecting with daily needs where we live), Equity (diverse 
representation of voices) and Investment (investment in social infrastructure).

We Heard Some Common Themes in Response to the Goals

•   The Strategy’s reference and connection to the United Nations 
Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples (UNDRIP) was 
noted and appreciated. Respondents felt the strategy and actions 
should clearly reference and connect to the calls to action in the 
Truth and Reconciliation Commission Report.

Reconciliation:

•   There are signi  cant concerns regarding a  ordability in the city’s 
housing market and access to transit. 

•   Mental health, trauma, abuse, gender-based violence, racism, and 
anti-trans discrimination are very real challenges a  ecting wellbeing. 

•   Community wellbeing involves supporting each other through di   cult 
times. Real community is built around relationships, common purpose, 
and mutual reliance. 

•   Equity is about justice and equal opportunity; this goes further 
than objectives and intentions of inclusion.

Acknowledging Signi  cant Factors that Impact Community Wellbeing:



10

What We Heard

•   The Strategy aligns and resonates with many of the 
social services, community groups, and non-pro  t 
organizations, and addresses relevant trends and issues. 

•   Social investment makes a big di  erence in the community, 
for example City support for non-pro  t spaces that 
deliver key services to the community.

•   Some key issues and opportunities should be more 
prominently addressed in the Strategy: the importance of 
volunteerism, recognizing the role of community organizations 
in program delivery, and growing civic participation.

•   There was appreciation that the Strategy includes 
culture, public art, and events. 

•   There was support for framing the Strategy with a holistic 
consideration of social determinants of health (e.g. access 
to safe food, active transportation infrastructure, 
childhood development, and harms from substance 
use). Municipal e  orts and policy can contribute to 
mitigating negative impacts. 

•   There was support for the intentional use of an equity 
lens throughout the Strategy, and emphasizing equity 
as a core priority within each pathway.

Context and Community Building:

Equity and Social Determinants of Health:

Respondents supported each of the six pathways as they 
meet the needs of the community, and prioritized the 
tactics in order of importance to respondents. 

Respondents Supported the Pathways and Tactics 
in the Strategy 33



11

What We Heard

Pathway 1. Complete Communities

1.  Ensure that residents’ walking and rolling experience 
is comfortable and convenient.

2. City land should be used for the community’s bene  t 
such as parks, amenities and more. 

3.  The diversity of community daily needs should 
be met at a neighbourhood scale.

•   Local jobs: Focus on creating well-paid jobs that are 
accessible by walking, rolling, or transit; allowing 
residents to work in the same city they live in.

•   Infrastructure: Ensure sidewalks are consistently 
provided and in  lled throughout all areas of the city, 
and ensure public spaces that are welcoming and 
safe are provided.

•   Food access: Foster the opportunity for food to 
bring people together and reduce isolation. Assess 
the need for community gardens and kitchens, and 
include food access into neighborhood planning.

Respondents prioritized their top objectives:

Other key themes heard:

The direction is to create a city that is complete, connected, 
socially active, and where daily needs are met within a short 
walk or roll of every home.

of survey respondents feel this pathway 
meets the needs of the community.77%



12What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

What We Heard
Pathway 2. Housing for All

1. Develop inclusionary housing policy, regulations, and incentives to increase the supply 
of non-market housing.

2.  Reduce stigma about people who are unhoused through education/increasing awareness.
3.  Increase extreme weather response by working with government and other partners.

Respondents prioritized their top objectives:

•   Housing is at the top of humans’ hierarchy of need; all people need their 
housing needs met to achieve wellbeing.

•   The City cannot manage rapid growth and housing priorities on its own. 
Collaborating with the Province is essential.

•   Engage with local First Nations to understand, identify and help to 
address their housing needs through partnership.

Importance of Housing:

•   Promote social interaction and community gathering in housing developments 
and neighborhoods.

•   Continue and expand library services to support individuals with housing needs. 
Ensure residents of below-market and mid-market rentals in mixed-income housing 
projects are included and welcome.

•   Prioritize the creation of deeply a  ordable rental units.
•   Work to provide more certainty for people that may face eviction due to 

redevelopment, and will not be able to a  ord other housing in the community.

Inclusion and belonging:

•  Well-designed outdoor space makes multifamily living more livable and desirable.
•  Noise from construction negatively a  ects wellbeing.

Livability:

Other key themes heard:

of survey respondents feel this pathway 
meets the needs of the community.76%

The direction is to expand the supply and improve the quality, diversity and a  ordability of housing 
in the City.



13What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

What We Heard
Pathway 3. City for All Ages

1.  Enhance social connectedness and neighbour 
relationship-building by supporting and promoting 
community-based programs.

2.  Collaborate with agencies to support mental health 
and addiction services.

3.  Design the community to support people living with 
dementia and varying cognitive abilities. 

4. Enhance support for seniors. 

•  Family support: Provide support for families, parents, 
caregivers, nannies, and grandparents. Ensure children 
have support to develop healthy social relationships.

•   Volunteerism & participation: Think about what excluded 
people need to become more engaged in our community.

•   Youth and young adults: There is an opportunity to 
include younger adults (18-39) in the community and in 
City strategies. The City needs to play a supportive role 
in enhancing youth mental health.

•   Multigenerational needs: Develop multigenerational 
housing and creative types of housing that meet varied needs.

•   Aging in place: More independent living supports are 
needed. Think what people need to live in the City for 
their entire lifespan, from early childhood to older senior.

Respondents prioritized their top objectives:

Other key themes heard:

We are well in our 
community when we 
both give and receive 
– being part of things 

results in dignity 
and health.

–  Community table 
participant speaking 
about volunteerism

of survey respondents feel this pathway 
meets the needs of the community.82%

The direction is to create a City that contributes to wellbeing for all ages and phases of life.



What We Heard
Pathway 4. Accessibility, Diversity, Equity & Inclusion 

1.  Provide skills-based sta   training on all aspects of Accessibility, Diversity, Equity & Inclusion.
2. Actively work with local First Nations to identify and incorporate local First Nations culture 

and history throughout City spaces, and update the City’s heritage program.
3. Engage and collaborate with groups and organizations that support equity and inclusion. 

Respondents prioritized their top objectives:

Other key themes heard:

•   Collaborate with local First Nations to enhance access, inclusion, and training 
related to Truth and Reconciliation, United Nations Declaration on the Rights 
of Indigenous Peoples (UNDRIP), and the Declaration on the Rights of 
Indigenous People Act (DRIPA),and incorporate these into city initiatives.

•   Increase local First Nations cultural representation through art, language 
on signage, and in naming of places.

•   Ensure transportation, housing, policing and emergency services are safe 
and equitable for local First Nations people.

•   De  nitions in this pathway needed clari  cation, especially related to 
accessibility. 

•   We need to proactively design for inclusion, going beyond removing barriers.
•   Create opportunities for diverse communities and ethnicities to connect, 

create a family and a home that builds a sense of belonging.
•   Create public places where all are welcome, such as outdoor covered spaces.

The Community Wellbeing Strategy 
is separate from the City’s Accessibility 
Plan, which is underway to 
advance accessibility in the City.

14

of survey respondents feel this pathway 
meets the needs of the community.81%

The direction is to create an inclusive City, where we celebrate diversity, and we 
commit to equity and accessibility for all.



15

Pathway 5. Poverty Reduction & Inclusive 
Economy 

1. Working with partners to improve a  ordability in housing, child 
care, food security, transportation options and other supports. 

2. Collaborating to implement the North Shore Poverty Reduction 
Strategy.

3. Building, supporting and enhancing our local economy
throughout our community.

•   Leverage the Strategy to help build opportunities with local 
First Nations’ priorities – businesses, access to education, 
health treatment, local First Nation languages.

•   The increasing cost of food is really challenging especially 
for lower income earners. Consider food in the social 
infrastructure needs, as well as emergency preparedness.

•   Address issues related to people living in their cars / motor 
homes and in poverty – policies, outreach programs, and 
support networks.

•   Take a multi-generational long term view of how inclusive our 
economy can become; it takes time to build.

Respondents prioritized their top objectives:

Other key themes heard:

What We Heard

of survey respondents feel this pathway 
meets the needs of the community.73%

The direction is to include all residents in local economic opportunities 
and work together to break the cycle of poverty.



16What We Heard  |  Community Wellbeing Strategy - Public Engagement Phase 2

1. Advocate to senior governments for  nancial support and partnerships for 
identi  ed community needs and priorities. 

2. Support non-pro  t and community organizations with funding opportunities 
and collaboration.

3. Actively invest in the City’s social infrastructure in alignment with community 
needs and development opportunities.

Respondents prioritized their top objectives:

•   Pursue partnership and procurement opportunities with local First Nations.
•   Respect, support and adhere to principles and protocol agreements that are in 

place between the City and local First Nations.
•   Support o   ce and programming space for non-pro  t organizations.
•   Enhance/encourage collaboration among non-pro  ts, and support the 

capacity of the non-pro  t sector to serve the community.

Other key themes heard:

What We Heard
Pathway 6. Partnerships, Advocacy & Financial Supports

of survey respondents feel this pathway 
meets the needs of the community.71%

The direction is to build equitable and supportive partnerships that advance the City’s priorities 
for wellbeing, align City resources and funding, and advocate for the community’s needs.



17

Key Takeaways

There are opportunities for Reconciliation 
and collaboration with SḵwxSḵwxw̱u7meshwu7mesh
Úxwumixw (Squamish Nation) and 
səlsəlilwətaɬilwətaɬ (Tsleil-Waututh Nation), as we 
move forward to implement the Strategy.

The City is recognized and valued as a 
community partner and leader that cares 
about the community and its people.

Housing and a  ordability are signi  cant 
issues that a  ect wellbeing of individuals 
and the community as a whole.

Community connections, and being included 
in the community, are very important for 
mental health and wellbeing.

Equity in the community is of high importance, 
to ensure that the community is built on fair 
opportunities and access in our city.

People want to see meaningful action, and 
are asking the City to prioritize work that 
“moves the dial,” or truly makes a di  erence 
in community wellbeing.  

The community supported the statement of what we are trying to 
achieve, the goals, and pathways and tactics in the Strategy.

The City is working to incorporate key themes heard in the engagement 
process in the Community Wellbeing Strategy, including:



The City is revising and  nalizing the Community Wellbeing Strategy 
and reviewing and implementing the feedback heard in Phase 
2 engagement. The  nal Community Wellbeing Strategy will be 
presented to Council for endorsement in summer 2024, after which a 
plan for implementation will begin.

Next Steps

18



/ftT @ vvt 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PEOPLE, CULTURE & TRANSFORMATION DEPARTMENT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Magda Trespalacios, Leader, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

CNV ACCESSIBILITY PLAN 

REPORT 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 07-2830-01-0001/2024 

The following Is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Leader, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, dated 
June 12, 2024, entitled "CNV Accessibility Plan": 

THAT the work to begin development of the Accessibility Plan be approved. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution approved by Council at its regular meeting of June 7, 2021 (CityDocs 
2063890) 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to update Mayor and Council on the development of an 
accessibility plan for the City of North Vancouver. 

BACKGROUND 

The Accessible British Columbia Act1, requires prescribed organizations, including 
municipalities, to develop an accessibility plan to "identify, remove and prevent barriers 
to individuals in or interacting with the organization." 

The plan must be developed in consultation with an accessibility committee, established 
with the goal of assisting the organization identify existing barriers and to provide advice 

1 https://www.bclaws.qov.bc.ca/civix/documenUid/complete/statreg/21019 

Document Number: 2534993 



REPORT: CNV Accessibility Plan 
Date: June 12, 2024 

on how to remove and prevent them, guided by the principles of inclusion, adaptability, 
diversity, collaboration, self-determination and universal design. 

Following the legislative requirements, as a first step, City staff focused on developing a 
high level policy framework and objectives, with the goal of integrating accessibility 
considerations across all City policies and facilitate the development of action plans. As 
part of the process, City staff continuously engages in consultation with the North Shore 
Advisory Committee on Disability Issues (NS ACDI), which has provided advice on the 
City's approach to accessibility, the Draft Community Wellbeing strategy, the Mobility 
Strategy, and many other policy and project work. 

At its regular meeting of July 24, 2023, Council instructed City staff to consider feedback 
received from members of NS ACDI regarding the CNV's approach to accessibility. In 
particular, a request to develop an accessibility plan in consultation with NS ACDI and to 
further develop a feedback mechanism to receive and address feedback from the public. 

As a result, staff evaluated the feedback received and will move forward towards 
developing an accessibility plan that builds upon all the work undertaken by the CNV over 
the past years and expand into areas where the CNV has opportunities to improve 
accessibility for the community it serves. 

DISCUSSION 

At its Regular meeting of June 7, 2021 Council unanimously resolved to direct staff to 
"build a framework on EDIR (Equity, Diversity, Inclusion and Reconciliation) that identifies 
appropriate strategies, identifies skills and resources needed to undertake this work, 
identifies key partners and outlines a set of principles that guides this work". 

In response to this direction, staff is currently developing a Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 
(DEi) framework that supports advancement of Council's vision and priorities, as well as 
the CNV Corporate Business Plan outcomes and initiatives. Part of the process included 
gathering input from members of staff across the organization, and reviewing public 
feedback, collected through the consultation and public engagement phases of the Draft 
Community Wellbeing Strategy. Advancing accessibility is one of the recommendations 
identified as a priority and a key area of focus of the DEi framework. 

In parallel, a DEi Division was created and a DEi Leader appointed to complete 
development of the strategic framework and lead implementation of the DEi action plan. 
The DEi framework is currently in its last stage of development and is expected to be 
presented to Council in the fall. 

The DEi Leader will lead the development of the CNV accessibility plan and will act as a 
point of connection between the different internal departments, through the development 
and implementation phases, and will liaise with external partners, advisory committees 
and the community, in collaboration with the internal Communications and Engagement 
team, to ensure information is shared in a clear and transparent manner and the voices 
of the disability community are heard and its members are involved throughout. 

Page 2 of 4 



REPORT: CNV Accessibility Plan 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Development of the accessibility plan will be guided by BC Accessibility legislation2 and 
will entail collaboration across all City departments and external partners. A project plan 
will be developed early fall, which will establish project timelines and scope. 

Considering the overarching goals of the accessibility legislation, work will continue year 
over year, as the action plan expands into new areas of accessibility, incorporates 
learnings from the previous year and evolves to meet future needs. 

The accessibility plan will be informed by the Accessible BC Act Standards, following the 
BC Accessibility legislation. Standards applicable to municipalities include: employment, 
delivery of services, the built environment, information and communications, and 
procurement. 

The Accessible Service Delivery and Employment Accessibility standards are being 
developed by the BC Provincial Accessibility Committee (PAC), which is currently 
beginning consultations to collect input from people, organizations and industry groups 
within B.C.3, and the remaining standards will be developed in the years to come. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Implementation of actions included in the accessibility plan will have a multi-year and 
ongoing financial impact. This impact will be estimated during the development of the 
first iteration of the plan and will be periodically reviewed, as the organization advances 
towards achievement of its accessibility goal of removing and eliminating barriers to 
accessibility. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

The CNV Accessibility Plan will include a series of actions that will have cross
organizational impacts. The project will establish an internal Accessibility Committee 
that will include staff from across the organization to support planning and delivery of 
this work. The internal accessibility committee will be comprised of staff from Planning & 
Development, Engineering, Parks & Environment, Real Estate, Facilities & Economic 
Development, Financial & Information Technology Services, People, Culture and 
Transformation, Public Safety and Communications and Engagement. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The City of North Vancouver is committed to being a diverse, inclusive, accessible and 
equitable place to work, play and live. The Accessibility Plan supports the Strategic Plan 
vision and priority to be "A City for People", "A Connected City" and "A Vibrant City": To 
promote an inclusive, equitable, accessible and healthy community that is welcoming of 
all. A City that provides sustainable ways for people to move safely and creates 
dynamic public spaces for connection and celebration. 

2 https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/about-the-bc-government/accessibility/legislation 
3 https://engage.gov.bc.ca/accessiblebcactstandards/ 

Page 3 of 4 



REPORT: CNV Accessibility Plan 
Date: June 12, 2024 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Magda Trespalacios . 
Leader. Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

Page 4 of 4 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD ELECTRONICALLY FROM 
CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON  
MONDAY, JUNE 7, 2021 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION 
 
3. Equity, Diversity, Inclusion and Reconciliation – File: 01-0620-03-0001/2021 
 
 Submitted by Mayor and Council  
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Hu 

 
WHEREAS the City of North Vancouver Council identified Equity, Diversity, Inclusion 
and Reconciliation (EDIR) as essential components to the City’s vision of being the 
Healthiest Small City in the World; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT staff be directed to build a framework on EDIR 
that identifies appropriate strategies, identifies skills and resources needed to 
undertake this work, identifies key partners and outlines a set of principles that guides 
this work; 

 
THAT staff report back to Council on key resources to support this work, including the 
Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC) Report and the Coalition of Inclusive 
Communities; 
 
THAT staff be directed to implement the priority action items as outlined in the EDIR 
Report City Council Dialogue April 2021; 
 
THAT the City of North Vancouver reaffirm its commitment to the TRC Calls to Action; 
 
THAT the Mayor, on behalf of Council, write the Federal Government to fully 
implement the TRC recommendations, including additional supports to address TRC 
Calls to Action 71-76 that relate to missing residential children and burial information; 
 
THAT the Mayor, on behalf of Council and the CAO, write to the local Indigenous 
Nations (Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh) offering our support to them in general and, in 
particular, as it relates to St. Paul’s Residential School; 
 
AND THAT Council work with our local Indigenous Nations and School District No. 44 
to build community awareness of indigenous history and culture. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

sfriesen
FreeText
Attachment 1�



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

t?ts ' 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Linden Mulleder, Planner 2 

REPORT 

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 457 WEST 14TH STREET (QKD 
CONSTRUCTION LTD.) 

Date: June 05, 2024 File No: 08-3400-20-0092/1 

The following is a SU[lflested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated June 05, 2024, entitled 
"Rezoning Application: 457 West 14th Street (QKD Construction Ltd.)": 

THAT the application submitted by QKD Construction Ltd., to rezone the property 
located at 457 West 14th Street from a One-Unit Residential 1 (RS-1) Zone to a 
One-Unit Residential 2 (RS-2) Zone, be considered with no Public Hearing being 
held, in accordance with the Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public 
hearing prohibited]; 

AND THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024 No. 9033" 
(QKD Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) be considered for first, 
second and third readings with no Public Hearing held, in accordance with the 
Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public hearing prohibited]. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2348403) 

2. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs 2517509) 

3. "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024 No. 9033" (QKD 
Construction Ltd ., 457 West 14th Street, RS-2) (CityDocs 2517623) 

Document Number: 2347554 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 457 West 14th Street (QKD Construction Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

SUMMARY 

This report presents an application to rezone 457 West 14th Street from a One-Unit 
Residential 1 (RS-1) Zone to a One-Unit Residential 2 (RS-2) Zone to allow for the future 
subdivision of the existing one lot into two. The intent is to develop new single-family 
dwellings with secondary suites and detached garages on each subdivided lot. 

BACKGROUND 

On February 28, 2022, Council directed staff to continue to process RS-2 rezoning 
applications on a case-by-case basis. Council also approved a simplified process for 
these applications, where at rezoning stage there would be a focused review on zoning, 
subdivision and servicing requirements. The review of the design would be fairly limited. 
This is to set a clear expectation with the applicant and the public that the City does not 
have design control over single family homes. 

DISCUSSION 

Site Context 

The site is located close to the intersection of West 14th Street and Forbes Avenue. The 
area mainly consist of one and two level single family homes or duplexes with varying lot 
widths. 

The buildin!;}s and uses immediately surrounding the site are described in Table 1 below. 

North 458 W 14th St Single family home RS-1 

South 458-460 W Keith Rd Duplex RT-1 

East 453 W 14th St Single family home RS-1 

West 463 W 14th St Single family home RS-2 

PLANNING ANALYSIS 

Official Community Plan 

The Official Community Plan (OCP) designates the subject site as Residential Level 1 
(R 1 ), which provides for ground-orientated housing with non-strata accessory uses, with 
a maximum density of 0.5 FSR. Secondary Suites and Coach Houses are not able to be 
stratified. The proposal represents a minimal increase in the number of units to the land 
area with one additional net unit being permitted through the RS-2 rezoning and 
subdivision. The proposed density is consistent with the OCP and planned character of 
the neighbourhood. 

Page 2 of 4 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 457 West 14th Street (QKD Construction Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

Zoning Bylaw 

The proposal to allow for one lot to be subdivided into two new lots, each with a single 
family dwelling, requires a rezoning from RS-1 (One-Unit Residential 1) to RS-2 (One
Unit Residential 2) to allow for a narrower Minimum Lot Frontage as described in Table 
2 below. 

Buildings 

Use 

Units 

GFA 

One Principal Building per lot 

One-Unit Residential Use 

Three units per lot: 
• One Principal Dwelling Unit; 
• One Accessory Secondary Suite; 
• One Accessory Coach House 

Lesser of 0.3 FSR + 92. 9 sq.m. (1,000 
sq.ft. ), or 0.5 FSR 

One Principal Building per lot 

One-Unit Residential Use 

Two units per lot (total four) : 
• One Principal Dwelling Unit; 
• One Accessory Secondary Suite 

Lesser of 0.3 FSR + 92.9 sq.m. (1 ,000 
sq.ft.), or 0.5 FSR 

For the subject site, the maximum GFA For both proposed sites, combined 
is 0.3 FSR + 92.9 sq.m, (1,000 sq.ft.)= maximum GFA is, 0.5 FSR: 

Lot Coverage 

Minimum Lot 
Frontage 

Principal 
Building 
Setbacks 

Minimum off
street parking 

326.82 sq.m. (3517.9 sq.ft.) 

30% for Principal Building 

10m(50ft.) 

Front Lot Line - 4.6 m (15 ft.) 
Rear Lot Line - 15.0 m (49.33 ft.) 
Interior Lot Lines - 1.2 m (4 ft.) 

1 parking stall for Principal Dwelling 
unit 
1 parking stall for Accessory units 

LANDSCAPING & TREE RETENTION 

Lot A (West)= 194.9 sq.m. (2098 sq.ft.); 

Lot B (East) = 194.9 sq.m. (2098 sq. ft.) 

Same as per the RS-1 Zone 

7.5 m (24.6 ft.) 

Same as per the RS-1 Zone 

Same as per the RS-1 Zone 

The site is not subject to the City's Tree Bylaw. Two trees at the rear of the property are 
proposed to be removed. Staff support the removal of the trees on site to accommodate 
the new development. Three street trees on City property will be protected and retained, 
as well as two trees on the neighbouring property to the west which are very close to 
the lot line boundaries. 

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

The applicant hosted a Virtual Developer Information Session (VDIS) on October 25, 
2022, to introduce the application to the community, as well as to receive input. 

Page 3 of 4 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 457 West 141h Street (QKD Construction Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

As outlined in the attached DIS Summary report (Attachment #3), the event was 
attended by four members of the public. Four comments forms were received after the 
event. Feedback from the public was addressed by the applicant to the satisfaction of 
staff. 

NO PUBLIC HEARING FOR OCP COMPLIANT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Pursuant to recent Provincial amendments to Section 464 of the Local Government Act, 
which came into force on November 30, 2023, the City must not hold a public hearing 
on a proposed rezoning bylaw if: an OCP is in place for the subject site; the bylaw is 
consistent with the OCP; the purpose of the bylaw is to permit a development that is 
residential; and that residential component is at least half of the gross floor area for the 
development. Since all of these factors apply to this development, no public hearing will 
be held and notices have been published prior to First Reading of the Bylaw, as 
required by the Local Government Act. 

CONCLUSION 

This application has been assessed and is in alignment with the goals and objectives of 
the Official Community Plan and Council Strategic Plan to increase and diversify the 
residential housing stock within the City. The proposal is supported by staff. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Linden Mulleder 
Planner 2 

Page 4 of 4 



City of North Vancouver

457 West 14th Street

Fo
rb

es
 A

ve
W 14th St

4
5

2
W

1
4

th
S

t

4
4

2
W

1
4

th
S

t

4
3

9
W

1
4

th
S

t

4
5

8
-4

6
0

 W
K

e
it

h
 R

d

4
4

7
 W

 1
4

th
 S

t

4
3

8
W

1
4

th
S

t

4
4

4
-4

4
6

 W
K

e
it

h
 R

d

4
5

8
W

1
4

th
S

t
4

5
7

 W
 1

4
th

 S
t

1
3

4
8

Fo
rb

e
s 

A
ve

4
5

3
 W

 1
4

th
 S

t

1
3

2
5

-1
3

2
7

F
o

rb
e

s 
A

ve

4
4

8
W

1
4

th
S

t

1
3

0
8

 F
o

rb
e

s
A

ve
,4

6
2

 W
K

e
it

h
 R

d

4
5

0
-4

5
2

 W
K

e
it

h
 R

d

4
5

4
-4

5
6

 W
K

e
it

h
 R

d

4
4

1
 W

 1
4

th
 S

t
4

3
8

-4
4

0
 W

K
e

it
h

 R
d

5 0 2 W 1 4 t h S t

1
3

4
5

Fo
rb

e
s 

A
ve

4
6

2
W

1
4

th
S

t

4
6

6
W

1
4

th
S

t

4
6

3
 W

 1
4

th
 S

t

PLOTT ED : 3/31/2023

COOR DIN ATE SYSTEM: NAD 83, U TM Zone 10

GIS Division, Information Technology, 
City of North Vancouver

This map was produced on the City of North 
Vancouver's Geographic Information System. 
Data provided herein is derived from sources 
with varying levels of accuracy and detail. 
The City of North Vancouver disclaims all 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness 
of information contained herein.

DISCLAIMER

0 6 123
Meters

Legend
Subject Site
Legal_Parcels

1:500

SOUR CE: StaffMAP

Attachment 1



457 West 14th Street Rezoning Application
Virtual Developer Information Session (DIS) Summary Report

Applicant: Eric Diep
QKD Construction Ltd.
2223 East 54th Ave, Vancouver
info@qkd-construction.com
604-338-4252

Event Date: October 25, 2022
Time: 6:00 PM - 8:00 PM
Location: Online Zoom Webinar

Attendance: 4 members of the public attended virtually, and City of North Vancouver
Planner H. Dang

Report Date: Nov 23, 2022

Issues Discussed
● Environmental impacts of gas when electric can be used instead.
We will be using more electric heat pumps, and building a better wall assembly to retain
heat loss and better aircomfort, also will look into alternative green building solutions such
as low carbon cement. Recommend our client to use all electric appliances and fireplace.
● Support of using eco-friendly building materials & recycling.
House will be tested for hazardous materials, decontaminated and do a green recycling to
all necessary building materials, further to that we will also looking into options of
deconstruction of the house recycle further wood material.
● Consider installing EV Charger and solar panels.
We will install EV chargers on property, as well as rough-in all conduit and necessary lines
to be able to hook up solar panels for renewable energy at a later date.
● Affordable Housing and Rental Stocks.
In our proposed design with smaller units it will create three additional rentals for markets.

Notification
Mailout
DIS invitation was sent out to the surrounding community within a 40 metre radius of the
property. Invitations were mailed out on October 8, 2022. The mailout can be viewed under
Appendix A.

Newspaper Advertisement
DIS was advertised in the North Shore News, the advertisement ran October 12, 2022 &
October 19, 2022. The advertisement can be viewed under Appendix B.



Site Signage
Signage alerting to the upcoming DIS was installed on the property by Northshore Signarama
on October 6, 2022. The site signage can be viewed under Appendix C.

Comment Sheet and Email Summary

Received 4 comment sheets after DIS. 3 were submitted by participants, 1 was submitted

directly to City Planner. The comment sheets can be viewed under Appendix D.

1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9033 Document: 2517623-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9033 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9033” (QKD Construction Ltd., 457 West 14th Street, RS-
2). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 457 West 
14th Street and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of RS-2 (One-Unit Residential 2 Zone): 

 

PID: 015-142-418 LOT 2 BLOCK 65 DISTRICT LOT 271 PLAN 750 

 
from zone RS-1. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

R,t5. M 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Matthew Menzel, Planner 3 

REPORT 

Subject: ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT FOR 1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE 
(DOMUS PROJECTS LTD.) 

Date: June 05, 2024 File No: 08-3400-20-0088/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 3, dated June 05, 2024, entitled "Zoning 
Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St. Georges Avenue (Domus Projects ltd.)": 

THAT the application submitted by Domus Projects ltd., to rezone the property 
located at 1612 St. Georges Avenue from a RM-1 Zone to a Comprehensive 
Development Zone, be considered; 

THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055" 
(Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) be considered for first, 
second and third readings with no Public Hearing held, in accordance with the 
Local Government Act, Section 464(3) [public hearing prohibited] ; 

THAT "Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056" (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 
St. Georges Avenue, CD-764) be considered for first, second and third readings; 

AND THAT the community benefits listed in the report section "Density Bonus 
and Community Benefits" be secured through agreements at the applicant's 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2525605) 

2. Architectural Plans, dated June 3, 2024 (CityDocs 2533293) 

3. Landscape Plans, dated June 3, 2024 (CityDocs 2531531) 

4. Overview of Zoning Variances and Parking Provisioning (CityDocs 2523659) 

Document Number: 2523658 v2 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St Georges Avenue (Domus Projects Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

5. Advisory Design Panel Resolution, dated March 24, 2023 (CityDocs 2525590) 

6. Public Consultation Summary, dated February 17, 2023 (CityDocs 2334533) 
7. Tenant Relocation Plan, dated May 7, 2024 (CityDocs 2530631) 
8. "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055" (CityDocs 

2528677) 
9. "Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056" (CityDocs 2528653) 

SUMMARY 

This report presents a rezoning application for the subject site at 1612 St. Georges 
Avenue to permit a 6-storey rental apartment building consisting of 75 units, eight of 
which would be mid-market rental units. 

BACKGROUND 

Applicant: Demus Projects Ltd. 
Architect: Stuart Howard Architects Inc. 
Official Community Plan Residential Level 5 (R5) 
DesiQnation: 
Existing Zoning: RM-1 (Medium Density Apartment Residential 1) 

DISCUSSION 

Site Context and Surrounding Use 

The subject site is located on the north-east corner of St. Georges Avenue and East 
16th Street. Both St. Georges Avenue and East 16th Street are identified as local roads. 
The St. Georges Avenue frontage contains an existing pedestrian crossing. 

The site is located within close proximity to a full range of services, public transit 
facilities and recreation opportunities within Central Lonsdale. 

The site is surrounded by multi-family residential apartment buildings with heights 
ranging from 3 to 4-storeys. 

The buildings and uses immediately surrounding the site are described in Table 1 
following. 

North 1650-1664 St. 
CD-490 

8 unit strata townhouse 
(across lane) Georges Ave development 

South (across East 16th 1540 St. Georges 
CD-306 3 storey rental apartment St.) Ave 

East 260 East 16th Street RM-1 3-4 storey rental apartment 

West 1621 and 1605 St. 
RM-1 2-3 storey rental apartments (across St. Georges Ave) Georges Ave 

Policy Context 

Page 2 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St Georges Avenue (Dom us Projects Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

The subject site is designated Residential Level 5 in the Official Community Plan (OCP). 
This designation has the purpose of providing quality multi-family housing with a mix of 
unit sizes, with a maximum density of 2.6 FSR (including 1.0 bonus FSR). A maximum 
height of six storeys is permitted. 

Project Description 

The application proposes a 6-storey residential rental building with two levels of parking. 
Vehicle parking access is provided from the rear lane to the north. 

The following table provides an overview of the proposed development: 

Table 3: Development proposal overview 

Element Proposal 

Density 2.6 FSR 
Unit Mix 75 residential rental units, including: 

• 46 studio/ one-bed units; 

• 17 two-bed units; and 

• 12 three-bed units (12%) . 
Mid-Market Rental 8 units (10%), including: 

• 5 studio units/ one-bed units; 
• 2 two-bed units; and 

• 1 three-bed units . 
Adaptable Units 19, Level 2 adaptable units (25%), including: 

• 6 studio units / one-bed units; 

• 7 two-bed units; and 
• 6 three-bed units . 

Residential Amenity Indoor - 83.6 square metres (900 square feet) 
Outdoor - approx. 177 square metres (1 905 square feet) 

Eight of the units (10%) are proposed as mid-market rental units and 19 of the units 
(25%) are proposed to meet Level 2 of the Adaptable Design guidelines. All units would 
be secured through the Housing Agreement for the life of the building. 

PLANNING ANALYSIS 

Policy Alignment 

The proposal is consistent with the OCP land use designation and below OCP height 
limits for the site. The proposed density is 2.6 FSR, which is consistent with the OCP 
Residential Level 5 land use designation. 

The proposal is in alignment with a number of OCP goals and objectives to have 
additional secured rental housing within the Lonsdale Regional City Centre and close to 
shops, services, frequent public transit and employment opportunities. 

The proposed mix of unit types meets key actions of the Housing Action Plan for mid
market rental units and family-friendly units. The proposal also meets the Zoning Bylaw 

Page 3 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St Georges Avenue (Dom us Projects Ltd.) 
Date; June 05, 2024 

minimum requirement for 25% of units to meet Level 2 Adaptable Design. The proposal 
generally addresses the Active Design Guidelines through the provision of indoor and 
outdoor amenity spaces, as well as new public realm upgrades. 

Built Form and Urban Design 

The proposed built form is consistent with the character of the neighbourhood. The 
proposed height at 19 metres and six storeys complies with the OCP and will ensure the 
build ing integrates with future developments on the adjoining lot. The proposal 
establishes a strong street wall along both St Georges Avenue & East 16th Street, with 
a suitable setback to the eastern side boundary to establish suitable building separation 
to the adjoining residential building. 

A high level of activation and casual surveillance of the road frontages and laneway is 
achieved through orientation of private patios, communal outdoor amenity area and 
upper level private balconies towards the corresponding road. 

The fac;ade of the building has been designed with appropriate articu lation through the 
use of steps and recesses along the elevations, and use of attached balcony structures, 
which work to break up the form of the building and reduce the perceived bulk. The 
proposed development has also provided suitable landscaping treatments within the 
buildings design that will soften the visual impacts of the built form. 

Proposed Zoning Changes 

The proposed Comprehensive Development Zone will be based off of the Medium 
Density Apartment Residential 1 RM-1 Zone, consistent with the proposed use types 
and recent developments of a similar nature. To allow the massing, the proposed bylaw 
would include modifications to the RM-1 zone density, building height, setbacks and 
building width . A table summary and overview of the proposed zoning changes is 
included in Attachment 4 to this report. 

Parking, Loading and Transportation 

The site is located in the Lonsdale Regional City Centre, within proximity to transit 
services along Lonsdale Avenue and East 15th Street. 

The application proposes vehicle access to an underground parkade accessed from the 
northern laneway. The proposed bicycle rooms will be accessed directly from the 
laneway via the parkade, as wel l as via elevator from the residential lobby. 

Table 4 provides a summary and overview of the proposed car parking provisioning 
associated with the project: 

Page 4 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 161 2 St Georges Avenue (Dom us Projects Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

Table 4 Prooosed Vehicle and Bicvcle Parkina 
Car Provided 
Parking Total of 45 spaces, comprised of: 

• 37 resident parking spaces (including 
2 disability spaces); 

• 8 residential visitor spaces (including 
one accessible space). 

Bicycle Provided 
Parking Residential: 

• Secure - 114 spaces; 
• Short Term - 8 spaces. 

Note: 
o 8 of the 114 secure spaces have 

been provided for larger cargo 
bikes. 

Required by Zoning Bylaw 
• 45 resident spaces, 

including 8 visitor parking 
spaces (37 resident spaces 
excluding visitor spaces); 

• 3 accessible spaces. 
Required by Zoning Bylaw 
Residential: 
• Secure - 114 spaces; 
• Short Term - 8 spaces. 

Overall, the application meets the parking and loading requirements of the Zoning 
Bylaw. 

Off-Site Works and Infrastructure Upgrades 

The proposed development will provide appropriate off-site streetscape upgrades 
consistent with the Subdivision and Development Control Bylaw. This includes the 
reconstruction of the frontages along St. Georges Avenue and East 16th Street with the 
installation of new sidewalk, curb and gutter, street trees, street lighting, and road 
paving. 

In addition to the bylaw required works, the development will secure the following: 

• Provision of improvements at the north east intersection of St Georges Avenue & 
East 16th Street; and 

• Provision of sanitary main upgrade along St. Georges Avenue between 
development and East 15th Street. 

These requirements will be secured through legal agreements with the City. 

Density Bonus and Community Benefits 

The City's Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in conjunction with the OCP, 
allows for density bonuses beyond 1.6 FSR in the Residential Level 5 designation, up to 
a maximum of 2.6 FSR. 

The policy provides a number of community benefits options for projects seeking 
additional density and seeks to ensure the City receives value for additional density 
granted. The community benefit offered by this proposal is an increase of the City's 
rental housing stock by 75 units, 8 of which will be mid-market rental units, secured for 
the life of the building through a Housing Agreement with the City. 

Page 5 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St Georges Avenue (Domus Projects Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

In addition to secured market and mid-market rental units, staff are seeking Counci l 
direction to secure the fol lowing items as conditions of this rezoning: 

• Public Art to a value of $111 ,000. 

Legal Agreements 

Should Council support this rezoning, the following legal agreements will be prepared 
and signed by the applicant prior to final adoption: 

• Development Covenant; 
• Housing Agreement; 
• Servicing Agreement; 
• Community Good Neighbour Agreement; 
• Crane Swing and Shoring Agreement; 
• Flooding Covenant; and 
• Community Energy Agreement. 

RESIDENTIAL TENANT RELOCATION 

In 2021 , Council amended the Residential Tenant Displacement Policy to enhance 
protection and compensation to long-term residential tenants. 

The existing building contains 22 units in total. At the time of writing this report, 13 of 
these units were occupied. Five tenants have lived there for 15 years or more, and one 
tenant has been there for more than 10 years. 

The applicant has prepared a Tenant Relocation Plan in accordance with the 
requirements of the 2021 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, including 
compensation and relocation assistance. Tenants were first informed of the 
redevelopment plans in November 2022 with a letter, followed by a Tenant meeting in 
January 2023. The correspondence and meetings provided the existing tenants 
information on the compensation package of 4-months' rent, plus moving expense 
compensation of $1,000 for one-bedroom units and $1250 for two-bedroom units 
(adjusted by CPI since 2021 ). 

A Relocation Coordinator has been engaged to communicate with tenants and provide 
information on available units in the general rental market, as well as resources for 
government housing programs. In June 2024, an update was provided to the tenants 
with updated timelines and the Tenant Relocation Plan to help inform relocation efforts. 

Under the Provincial Residential Tenancy Act, final eviction notices cannot be delivered 
to tenants until a demolition permit has been issued. The notice must provide a 
minimum of four months prior to the eviction date. Before issuance of the demolition 
permit, staff will request an update from the Relocation Coordinator regarding the 
progress of relocating tenants and compensation as outlined in the Tenant Relocation 
Plan (refer to Attachment 7). 

Page 6 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St Georges Avenue (Dom us Projects Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

The application was originally reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) on March 
21 , 2023. The Panel recommended approval of the proposal subject to addressing the 
following issues to the satisfaction of staff (refer to Attachment 5): 

• review siting to address functional concerns that the building is "too close" to 
the property line; 

• review of landscaping adjacent to the eastern boundary; 
• further design development to address access issues, security, main entrance 

identification and wayfinding in regards to the courtyard and to individual 
units; 

• consider alternative location for parkade access, as well as treatments to 
activate the lane, including the exploration/ consideration of public art; 

• further design development of the north facing units adjacent to the parkade 
to ensure livability, with consideration of building code implications; 

• address concerns regarding visibility and careful attention to lighting into the 
courtyard; 

• further design development to enhance architectural elements along the east 
fa9ade of the building; 

• consideration of streetscape design to address safety concerns (i.e. sidewalk 
configuration, corner bulges, and street lighting, parking and corner 
sightlines); 

• consideration of removal of the existing cherry trees on St. Georges Avenue, 
and replacement with new trees within the boulevard; 

• development of sustainability elements, including that stormwater be directed 
to use on site, particularly towards the landscaped areas; and 

• reconsideration of the screening element of the stairwell and elevator, to 
increase. 

Revised designs were subsequently submitted that address the above concerns to the 
satisfaction of staff. 

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

A Developer's Information Session (DIS) was held on January 31 , 2023 and was 
attended by 5 people. Seven comment forms and emails with comments were 
submitted following the DIS. Three members of the community provided support for the 
project, and 4 were neutral. 

The main reasons for support were: 
• Provision of new rental units and housing options; 
• Proposed vehicle and bicycle parking; 
• Retention of the existing large tree; 
• Appearance of the building. 

The main concerns were: 
• Impact to existing tenants; 

Page 7 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 1612 St Georges Avenue (Domus Projects Ltd.) 
Date: June 05, 2024 

• Construction phase impacts; 
• Improvements to pedestrian safety. 

A summary of the public consultation, as prepared by the applicant, is available in 
Attachment #6. 

NO PUBLIC HEARING FOR OCP COMPLIANT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Pursuant to recent Provincial amendments to Section 464 of the Local Government Act, 
which came into force on November 30, 2023, the City must not hold a public hearing 
on a proposed rezoning bylaw if: an OCP is in place for the subject site; the bylaw is 
consistent with the OCP; the development is residential; and that residential component 
is at least half of the gross floor area for the development. Since all of these factors 
apply to this development, no public hearing will be held and notice will be publ ished for 
First Reading of the Bylaw, as set out in the Local Government Act. 

CONCLUSION 

This proposal is in alignment with goals and objectives of the OCP and Council 
Strategic Plan to intensify residential development within the Lonsdale Regional City 
Centre, and increase rental and mid-market units in the City. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Matthew Menzel 
Planner 3 

Page 8 of 8 



St
. A

nd
re

ws
 A

ve

S t
.G

eo
rg

es
Av

e

Lo
ns

da
l e

Av
e

E 17th St E 17th St

E 16th St

E 15th St E 15th St

Ea
ste

rn
 A

ve

2
4

1

1 6 2 1

2 3 1

1 5 1 4

1 6 1

1
3

5

1 5 3 8

1
4

3
1 6 2 6

1 5 3 6

1 5 0 0

1 5 9 8 3 0 8

1
2

1

1 5 3 6

2
3

5

1
6

1
2

2
2

8

1 5 5 0

2
0

1

1
5

4

1
5

5
5

1
3

1

1 5 0

1 6 1 0

3
1

2

1 5 5 0 1 5 5 2

2
1

8

1 4 5 2

1
2

2

1 6 1 2

1 5 3 5

2 6 0

3
0

7

2
6

5

2
3

6

1
5

4
0

1 4 4 1

2
1

3

1 5 2 8

2
1

7

1
7

1
7

1 4 1

2
4

9

1 5 4 4

2
2

9
2

2
8

2
2

2

2
5

7

1
7

1
2

2
4

6

1
3

6

3
0

8

2
5

4

2
6

0

2
2

5

2
5

5

2
1

9

2
3

1

1
7

2
1

1 4 8 0
2

3
5

1 6 3 6

1
3

0
1 6 5 0

2
1

5

2
1

51 5 5

1 6 1

1
1

2

2
0

5

2
0

6

1 4 0

1 5 2 4

3
0

4

2
3

6

1 5 6 2

2
1

5

2
2

6

2
3

2

1 6 2 9

1
2

1

2
5

1

2
4

0

1 5 4 9

2
2

4

1 4 4 0

1 5 2 0

2
3

5

1 6 0 4

1 5 4 4

1
5

4
1 5 6 5

1 6 1 8

2
4

7

1 6 0 5

1
7

9
0

2
5

0

1 5 0 4
2

1
2

2
0

8

2 3 0

2
6

1

3
1

5

2
2

5

1
7

1
0

1
3

7

1
7

4
9

2
1

4
2

1
4

3
0

7

1
3

1

1 5 5 2

1
1

5

1 1 5

1
6

5
0

2
4

9

2
2

1

2
4

1

1
5

4
5

2
5

0

Context Map: 1612 St. Georges Avenue

Attachment 1



Attachment 2

















nsno��5�	!/2#!4��7!��!7!*/0!2��."/2,�5'/.��!44'/.�\ �t�

�-m;�)-��Ŋ�);v|�(b;�

ƐѵƐƑ�"|��;ou];v���;�Ŋ�);v|�(b;�

SITE

��Ɛѵ$��"$

��ƐƔ$��"$

�'5!��/.5!95

LANE

��Ɛƕ$��"$

"$
��
��
!�
�"
��
(�

��
"$
�!
�
��
(�

��
�
"	
��
��
�(
�

CITY MARKET

Ɛĺ

Ƒĺ

ƐĺƐĺ
ƑĺƑĺ

MS

Development proposal for 
|�o�ѵŊv|ou;��u;m|-Ѵ�0�bѴ7bm]v

Development 
proposal for 
13-storey rental 
building

$�o�ƐƑŊv|ou;��
-m7�om;�ѵŊv|ou;��
u;b7;mঞ-Ѵ�u;m|-Ѵ�
buildings currently 
�m7;u�1omv|u�1ঞom

nsno��5�	!/2#!4��7!��!7!*/0!2��."/2,�5'/.��!44'/.�\ �s

�!'#&�/62&// ��/.5!95

Subject site

Mixed Use

Commercial

Medical 

Municipal

ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƟĂů

Parks

SITE

MS

u;t�;m|�$u-mvb|��;|�ouh�ş��bh;�!o�|;v Land Uses











































SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

LE
C

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

230 EAST 16TH

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

CITY SIDEWALK

C
IT

Y 
SI

D
EW

AL
K

POST WALL AT
SUITE ENTRIES, TYP.

PATIO

GARBAGE STAGING AREA

PATIO PATIO PATIO

PATIO
PATIO

PATIO

PATIO PATIO PATIO PATIO

PATIO

DECORATIVE PRECAST
CONCRETE PAVERS

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

72 X 20 X 20"HT.
C3 METAL PLANTER

NEW STREET TREES
TO CNV APPROVAL

EAST 16TH STREET

GATE
STYRAX JAPONICUS
'PINK CHIMES'

ACER RUBRUM 'KARPICK':
NEW STREET TREES TO CNV APPROVAL,
BOULEVARD TO BE PLANTED IN 6' WIDE x 3' DEEP
CONTINUOUS GROWING MEDIUM CHANNEL,
DOCUMENT SIZE OF CHANNEL TO L.A. PRIOR
TO SODDING LAWN

LANE

EXISTING CEDAR TREE
TO BE RETAINED;

POCKET PLANTING
WITHIN TPZ, MAX.

3" OF TOPSOIL

MAGLIN 150 BIKE RACK

RATANA LIMO
RECT TABLE -

84" X 42", ASH GREY,
CHAIRS - NEW MIRAGE

STAKING SIDE CHAIR
FN42911GRO

EXIT
PA

R
KA

D
E 

D
R

IV
EW

AY

PARKADE LINE

PARKADE LINE

PARKADE LINE

WISHBONE WHALE
TAIL BENCH WT-76A

PMT

PLAY ZONE

CONCRETE
SEAT WALLS;
SALT FINISH

INDOOR AMENITY

GRAVEL DRAIN STRIP

MAINTENANCE GATE

SOD
LAWN

OUTDOOR AMENITY

WISHBONE FISHTAIL
SEAT FTS-24

POUR IN PLACE RUBBER PLAY
SURFACE

FOREST GREEN &
BLUE EMBER

3'-6" HT.  GUARD RAIL
BY ARCH

6' HT. VERTICAL
METAL FENCE

BY ARCH

SOD
LAWN

ROOT BARRIERS

PROVIDE IRRIGATION
TO BOULEVARD

PLATING/STREET TREES

1' WIDE CRUSHED
GRANITE FINES

CIP CONCRETE
TO CNV STANDARD

CIP CONCRETE
TO CNV STANDARD

NOTE:
- ALL BOULEVARD PLANTING TO BE FENCED OFF FROM TRAFFIC FROM INSTALLATION TO END OF
WARRANTY PERIOD, TO ALLOW ESTABLISHMENT.
- MULCH: APPLY DECOMPOSED MULCH AROUND TREES (50MM MAX. DEPTH) TO RETAIN MOISTURE
AND SUPPRESS WEED GROWTH. KEEP MULCH AWAY FROM TREE BASE.

RAIN GARDEN
PER CNV;
SEE CIVIL

ROOT BARRIER

WOOD
MULCH

+TW 337.43'

+TW 337.43'

UNIT
111

UNIT
110

UNIT
109

UNIT
108

UNIT
107

UNIT
106

UNIT
105

UNIT
104

UNIT
103

UNIT
102

UNIT
101

TAXUS BACCATA
'FASTIGIATA AUREA'
FOR ADDITIONAL
LARGE SHRUB/ SMALL
TREE IN COURTYARD

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

BOTANICAL NAME
TREE SCHEDULE - ONSITE

KEY QTY
TREE

NOTES:  * PLANT SIZES IN THIS LIST ARE SPECIFIED ACCORDING TO THE BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD, LATEST
EDITION.  CONTAINER SIZES SPECIFIED AS PER CNLA STANDARD.  BOTH PLANT SIZE AND CONTAINER SIZE ARE THE MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE SIZES.  *
REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR DEFINED CONTAINER MEASUREMENTS AND OTHER PLANT MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS.  * SEARCH AND REVIEW: MAKE
PLANT MATERIAL AVAILABLE FOR OPTIONAL REVIEW BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AT SOURCE OF SUPPLY.  AREA OF SEARCH TO INCLUDE LOWER
MAINLAND AND FRASER VALLEY. * SUBSTITUTIONS: OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO MAKING ANY
SUBSTITUTIONS  TO THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL. UNAPPROVED SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE REJECTED.  ALLOW A MINIMUM OF FIVE DAYS PRIOR TO
DELIVERY FOR REQUEST TO SUBSTITUTE.  SUBSTITUTIONS ARE SUBJECT TO BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD -
DEFINITION OF CONDITIONS OF AVAILABILITY. * ALL LANDSCAPE MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP MUST MEET OR EXCEED BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD
AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD LATEST EDITION. * ALL PLANT MATERIAL MUST BE PROVIDED FROM CERTIFIED DISEASE FREE NURSERY. *
BIO-SOLIDS NOT PERMITTED IN GROWING MEDIUM UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

IRRIGATION: PROVIDE A DESIGN-BUILD EFFICIENT AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO IIABC STANDARDS; INCLUDE RAIN SENSOR IN SYSTEM.

PLANTED SIZE / REMARKSCOMMON NAME

1 ACER PALMATUM 'SANGO KAKU' CORAL BARK MAPLE 5CM CAL; 3-STEM CLUMP; B&B
2 PARROTIA PERSICA 'RUBY VASE' RUBY VASE PERSIAN IRONWOOD 5CM CAL; 1.5M STD;B&B
1 PICEA OMORIKA SERBIAN SPRUCE 2.5M HT; B&B
2 STYRAX JAPONICUS 'PINK CHIMES' PINK FLOWERED JAPANESE SNOWBELL 5CM CAL; 1.5M STD; B&B

NOTE:  THE MAJORITY OF SPECIFIED TREES ARE CHOSEN FROM THE METRO VANCOUVER CLIMATE RESILIENT TREE LIST 'APPROPRIATE' CLASS.

MAGLIN BIKE RACK MBR150-S

RATANA LIMO COLLECTION

STRUCTURA AURA RECT CATENARY LIGHT

WISHBONE WHALE TAIL

WISHBONE FISH TAIL

LEGEND

BROOM FINISH CONCRETE

SOD LAWN

RIVER ROCK 50MM-100MM
GREY TO GREEN

BARKMAN BROADWAY 65MM PAVERS;
NATURAL COLOUR
PATTERN 7

EXISTING TREE TO BE RETAINED

EXISTING HEDGE TO BE RETAINED

RATANA LIMO RECTANGULAR TABLE
84" X 42", ASH GREY
CHAIRS - NEW MIRAGE STAKING
SIDE CHAIR (FN42911GRO)

WISHBONE WHALE TAIL (WT-76A)

WISHBONE FISHTAIL SEAT FTS-24

MAGLIN 150 BIKE RACK

ONSITE PLANTED AREA
(SHRUBS, PERENNIALS AND GC)

WOOD MULCH

POURED IN PLACE RUBBER PLAY
SURFACING FOREST GREEN & BLUE
EMBER

0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'
CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

L1
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC

Attachment 3



TREE TO BE RETAINED

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TREE PROTECTION ZONE & FENCING

HEDGE TO BE RETAINED

LEGEND

A TREE PROTECTION BARRIER SHALL BE INSTALLED
AROUND ANY TREE OF GROUP OF TREES BEING RETAINED
BEFORE ANY WORK COMMENCES, AND REMAIN IN PLACE
UNTIL WRITTEN APPROVAL IS RECEIVED FROM THE
FORESTRY TECHNOLOGIST FOR IT'S REMOVAL.

A TREE PROTECTION BARRIER SHALL BE APPROVED BY
THE FORESTRY TECHNOLOGIST BEFORE ANY WORK
COMMENCES.

NO WORK IS PERMITTED WITHIN THE ZONE EXCEPT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS AND PROCEDURES
AUTHORIZED BY A TREE PERMIT.

ALL TREES BEING RETAINED SHALL BE APPROPRIATELY
MAINTAINED AND PROTECTED FROM EVERY TYPE OF
DAMAGE.

SIGNAGE SHALL BE PLACED ON THE PROTECTIVE
BARRIER INDICATING THAT THE AREA WITHIN THE
BARRIER IS A PROTECTION ZONE AND THAT NO
ENCROACHMENT IS PERMITTED INTO THE ZONE.

PROTECTIVE FENCING SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF
CHAIN LINK SNOW FENCING FIRMLY SECURED, AS
APPROVED BY THE FORESTRY FOR BARRIERS
ALONG STREAM CORRIDORS, WETLANDS, OR THE
WATERFRONT, OR OF PLYWOOD FASTENED TO WOODEN
STAKES OR OTHER FORM OR BARRIER SATISFACTORY
TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OFFICER.

1.8M MIN

12 TIMES TREE TRUNK DIAMETER OR 1 METER
BEYOND THE TREE DRIP LINE,

WHICHEVER IS GREATER

NOTES:

1.

2.

3.

4.

TREE PROTECTION FENCING
N.T.S.

1

0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'

SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE
ST

. G
EO

R
G

ES
 A

VE
N

U
E

230 EAST 16TH

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

EAST 16TH STREET

LANE

EXISTING LARGE CEDAR TREE
TO BE RETAINED / PROTECTED,
TOP DRESS WITH 3" GROWING MEDIUM
/POCKET PLANTING PROCEDURE TO BE USED
WITHIN TPZ

CNV STANDARD TREE PROTECTION FENCE;
ARBORIST TO BE IN ATTENDANCE WHEN
NEEDING TO WORK WITHIN TREE
PROTECTION ZONE

4022

O
S 

SH
R

U
B 

R
O

W

OS CEDAR HEDGE

WOOD MULCH

6.
7m

 T
PZ

3.3m TPZ

4.
95

m
 T

PZ

12
m

 T
PZ

1.8m
 TPZ

12.5m TPZ1.8m TPZ

2.
4m

 T
PZ

1.
1m

 T
PZ

1.8m TPZ 2.8m TPZ7.4m TPZ

5.3m TPZ

4.
9m

 T
PZ

9.
4m

 R
ad

iu
s 

R
PZ

10.3m
 TPZ

EXISTING TREE
DRIP LINE

+TW 337.43'

+TW 337.43'

NOTE:

*  A ROOT EXPLORATION MUST BE CONDUCTED USING AN
AIR-SPADE ALONG THE PROPOSED FOUNDATION
ALIGNMENT ON THE NORTH SIDE OF TREE #4022 TO
DETERMINE THE DEGREE OF ROOT LOSS PRIOR TO
EXCAVATION FOR THE PARKADE FOUNDATION.

*  THE PROPOSED PARKADE FOUNDATION MUST BE
ALIGNED WITH THE EXISTING FOUNDATION WALL AND
MUST NOT ENCROACH FURTHER INTO THE CRITICAL ROOT
ZONE OF TREE #4022.

*  THE EXISTING BUILDING FOUNDATION SHOULD BE
SURVEYED AND SHOWN ON THE PLAN.

*  EXCAVATION WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF TREE
#4022 MUST BE DONE WITH LOW-IMPACT METHODS SUCH
AS VERTICAL EXCAVATION USING AIR-VAC TO ALLOW FOR
ROOT PRUNING, FOLLOWED BY SHOTECRETE AND
SHORING. THIS EXCAVATION SHOULD BE DONE IN TWO
PHASES A YEAR OR MORE APART, UNDER ARBORIST
SUPERVISION.

*  EXCAVATION AND STAIRS CONSTRUCTION WITHIN 1.5M
OF THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONES OF #4022, OS SHRUB ROW,
& OSCEDAR HEDGE MUST OCCUR USING LOW-IMPACT
METHODS SUCH AS AIR VAC, TO ALLOW FOR ROOT
PRUNING, UNDER ARBORIST SUPERVISION.

*  TREE PROTECTION FENCING FOR TREE #4022 IS TO BE
FIELD FITTED TO THE EDGE OF THE EXISTING BUILDING
WHERE APPLICABLE.

*  NO GRADE CHANGES CAN OCCUR WITHIN THE TPZ OF
ANY RETAINED TREE & SHRUB.

*  SIDEWALKS AND PATHWAYS WITHIN TPZS MUST BE BUILT
ON OR ABOVE THE EXISTING GRADE USING LOW-IMPACT
METHODS WHILE UNDER ARBORIST SUPERVISION.

*  CONTACT PROJECT ARBORISTS AT
max@diamondheadconsulting.com OR 604.733.4886
WITH 3 WORKING DAYS NOTICE TO ATTEND TPZ.

CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

EXISTING TREE  
MANAGEMENT PLAN

L2
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC



IRRIGATION: PROVIDE A DESIGN-BUILD EFFICIENT AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO IIABC STANDARDS; INCLUDE RAIN SENSOR IN SYSTEM.

PLANTED SIZE / REMARKSCOMMON NAMEBOTANICAL NAME
PLANT SCHEDULE - ONSITE

KEY QTY
TREE

1 ACER PALMATUM 'SANGO KAKU' CORAL BARK MAPLE #7 POT; 1M SPRD
2 PARROTIA PERSICA 'RUBY VASE' RUBY VASE PERSIAN IRONWOOD 2.5M HT; SPEC TREE FORM;B&B
1 PICEA OMORIKA SERBIAN SPRUCE 2.5M HT; B&B
2 STYRAX JAPONICUS 'PINK CHIMES' PINK FLOWERED JAPANESE SNOWBELL 5CM CAL; 1.5M STD; B&B

SHRUB
17 ABELIA x'EDWARD GOUCHER' PINK ABELIA #2 POT; 30CM; FULL SUN/PT SHADE
21 BUXUS SEMPERVIRENS GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD #3 POT; 40CM
6 CHOISYA TERNATA MEXICAN MOCK ORANGE  #3 POT; 50CM
4 CORNUS SERICEA 'KELSEYI' DWARF KELSEY DOGWOOD #2 POT; 50CM 
23 MAHONIA AQUIFOLIUM 'COMPACTA' - TPZ COMPACT OREGON GRAPE HOLLY #1 POT; 20CM
60 NANDINA DOMESTICA 'GULF STREAM' HEAVENLY BAMBOO; DWARF #2 POT
12 RHODODENDRON 'PATTY BEE' DWARF RHODODENDRON; YELLOW #3 POT; 30CM
2 SARCOCOCCA CONFUSA SWEET BOX #2 POT; 30CM
3 TAXUS BACCATA 'FASTIGIATA AUREA' GOLDEN IRISH YEW 1.0M HT; B&B
64 TAXUS X MEDIA 'HICKSII' HICK'S YEW 1M HT
8 VACCINIUM OVATUM EVERGREEN HUCKLEBERRY #3 POT; 60CM

GRASS
24 CAREX OSHIMENSIS 'EVERGOLD' EVERGOLD JAPANESE SEDGE #1 POT
29 HAKONECHLOA MACRA 'AUREOLA' JAPANESE FOREST GRASS #1 POT
25 PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES FOUNTAIN GRASS #1 POT

PERENNIAL
19 COREOPSIS VERTICILLATA `MOONBEAM' THREADLEAF COREOPSIS; YELLOW 15CM POT
9 HELLEBORUS x HYBRIDUS- VANCOUVER SERIES LENTEN ROSE 15 CM POT
26 LIRIOPE MUSCARI 'BIG BLUE' LILY TURF 'BIG BLUE' #1 POT; FULL/PT SUN/SHADE
6 OXALIS OREGANA REDWOOD SORREL 9CM POT
32 SEDUM TELEPHIUM 'HERBSTFREUDE' AUTUMN JOY STONECROP 15CM POT

GC
29 ADIANTUM ALEUTICUM MAIDENHAIR FERN #2 POT; 35CM
4 ASPLENIUM SCOLOPENDRIUM HART'S TONGUE FERN #1 POT
1 BLECHNUM SPICANT DEERFERN #1 POT; 20CM
32 PACHYSANDRA TERMINALIS JAPANESE SPURGE 9CM POT 
188 POLYSTICHUM MUNITUM WESTERN SWORD FERN #1 POT; 20CM

NOTES:  * PLANT SIZES IN THIS LIST ARE SPECIFIED ACCORDING TO THE BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD, LATEST EDITION.  CONTAINER SIZES
SPECIFIED AS PER CNLA STANDARD.  BOTH PLANT SIZE AND CONTAINER SIZE ARE THE MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE SIZES.  * REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR DEFINED CONTAINER
MEASUREMENTS AND OTHER PLANT MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS.  * SEARCH AND REVIEW: MAKE PLANT MATERIAL AVAILABLE FOR OPTIONAL REVIEW BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AT
SOURCE OF SUPPLY.  AREA OF SEARCH TO INCLUDE LOWER MAINLAND AND FRASER VALLEY. * SUBSTITUTIONS: OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
PRIOR TO MAKING ANY SUBSTITUTIONS  TO THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL. UNAPPROVED SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE REJECTED.  ALLOW A MINIMUM OF FIVE DAYS PRIOR TO DELIVERY
FOR REQUEST TO SUBSTITUTE.  SUBSTITUTIONS ARE SUBJECT TO BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD - DEFINITION OF CONDITIONS OF
AVAILABILITY. * ALL LANDSCAPE MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP MUST MEET OR EXCEED BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD LATEST EDITION. * ALL
PLANT MATERIAL MUST BE PROVIDED FROM CERTIFIED DISEASE FREE NURSERY. * BIO-SOLIDS NOT PERMITTED IN GROWING MEDIUM UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT.

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

230 EAST 16TH

CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

SHRUB
PLAN

L3
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC



SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

230 EAST 16TH

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

EAST 16TH STREET

LANE

+TW 337.43'

+TW 337.43'

0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'
CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

GRADING
PLAN

L4
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC



0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'

STEP LIGHT:
WAC WL-LED100 

BOLLARD LIGHT:
WAC QUAD PATH LIGHT

CATENARY LIGHTING:
STRUCTURA AURA RECTANGLE
2' X 4'

SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

230 EAST 16TH

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

EAST 16TH STREET

LANE

+TW 337.43'

+TW 337.43'

CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

LIGHTING
PLAN

L5
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC



0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'

LEGEND
18 inch / 450mm

48 inch / 1200mm

PARKADE LINE

STRUCTURAL SOIL / 650mm

36 inch / 914mm

SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

230 EAST 16TH

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

EAST 16TH STREET

LANE

8.9m3
(900mm)

6.1m3
(900mm)

6.1m3
(900mm)

6.1m3
(900mm)

5.6m3
(900mm)

6.4m3
(900mm)

37.0m3
(650mm)

EXTENT OF STRUCTURAL SOIL
UNDER SIDEWALK
37.0m3 (650mm)

71.3m3
(900mm)

52.5m3
(650mm)

3.6m3
(900mm)

16.3m3
(900mm)

5.9m3
(900mm)

14.2m3
(900mm)

EXTENT OF
STRUCTURAL SOIL
UNDER SIDEWALK

52.5m3 (650mm)

+TW 337.43'

+TW 337.43'

CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

SOIL VOLUME
PLAN

L6
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC



ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2

EXT. WALKWAY

EXT. WALKWAY

72 X 20 X 42"H
C3 METAL PLANTER

LIFESPACE 10'
HARVEST TABLE

CUSTOM BBQ
COUNTER

HAUSER OUTDOOR LOUNGE SEATING:
BAYWOOD LOVESEAT HS871761-K

BAYWOOD SOFA HS871771-K
BAYWOOD CLUB CHAIR HS871731-K

BAYWOOD II END TABLE HS981322-SB
COLOUR: CANVAS GRANITE

60 X 20 X 42"H
C3 METAL PLANTER

24" SQ. HYDRAPRESSED
SLAB

ROOF AMENITY AREA3'-6"

3'-6"

4'-6"

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

PLANTED SIZE / REMARKSCOMMON NAMEBOTANICAL NAME
PLANT SCHEDULE

KEY QTY
SHRUB

36 CAREX OSHIMENSIS 'EVERGOLD' EVERGOLD JAPANESE SEDGE #1 POT

NOTES:  * PLANT SIZES IN THIS LIST ARE SPECIFIED ACCORDING TO THE BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD,
LATEST EDITION.  CONTAINER SIZES SPECIFIED AS PER CNLA STANDARD.  BOTH PLANT SIZE AND CONTAINER SIZE ARE THE MINIMUM
ACCEPTABLE SIZES.  * REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR DEFINED CONTAINER MEASUREMENTS AND OTHER PLANT MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS.  *
SEARCH AND REVIEW: MAKE PLANT MATERIAL AVAILABLE FOR OPTIONAL REVIEW BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AT SOURCE OF SUPPLY.  AREA OF
SEARCH TO INCLUDE LOWER MAINLAND AND FRASER VALLEY. * SUBSTITUTIONS: OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO MAKING ANY SUBSTITUTIONS  TO THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL. UNAPPROVED SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE REJECTED.  ALLOW A
MINIMUM OF FIVE DAYS PRIOR TO DELIVERY FOR REQUEST TO SUBSTITUTE.  SUBSTITUTIONS ARE SUBJECT TO BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND
CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD - DEFINITION OF CONDITIONS OF AVAILABILITY. * ALL LANDSCAPE MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP MUST MEET
OR EXCEED BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD LATEST EDITION. * ALL PLANT MATERIAL MUST BE PROVIDED
FROM CERTIFIED DISEASE FREE NURSERY. * BIO-SOLIDS NOT PERMITTED IN GROWING MEDIUM UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT.

HAUSER BAYWOOD LOUNGE COLLECTION

LIFESPACE 10' HARVEST TABLE

60 X 20 X 42"H C3 METAL PLANTER 

TEXADA 24" SQ. HYDRAPRESSED SLAB

0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'
CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

LEVEL 6
LANDSCAPE PLAN

L7
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR

PC

PC



+337.14'

TW 337.50'+
LANE

EAST 16TH ST

OUTDOOR AMENITY

CITY SIDEWALK

NEW STREET TREE

PROPOSED STORMWATER
LOCATION, REFER TO CIVIL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

SOD BLVD.
GARBAGE STAGING

AREA

ROOFTOP OUTDOOR AMENITY

HAUSER BAYWOOD
LOUNGE SEATINGSCUSTOM BBQ COUNTER

C3 METAL PLANTER

336.15'+
+337.14'

+337.14'

TW 338.64'+
+TW 338.00'

42"42"

SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

LE
C

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

230 EAST 16TH

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

337.14'+

ST. GEORGES AVE

6' HT. VERTICAL
METAL FENCE

OUTDOOR AMENITY

NEW STREET TREE PATIO

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

BW 333.10'+

TW 346.35'+

TW 338.00'+

FRONT BLVD.

TW 335.50'+

335.54'+

TW 338.00'+

S/W BACK BLVD.

BW 334.20'+
332.95'+

TW 338.64'+
TW 334.20'+

CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 8

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

LANDSCAPE
SECTIONS

L8
21.NOV.24

AS NOTED

JR

PC

PC

2 2

1

1

SECTION 1-1     1/8"=1'-0"

KEY PLANSECTION 2-2     1/8"=1'-0"

E 16TH ST

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

LANE



SIDEWALK

SI
D

EW
AL

K

SIDExWALK

LAWN

MAIN
ENTRY

G
AR

D
EN

G
AR

D
EN

LE
C

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

VI
SI

TO
R

B
IK

E

GARDEN

GARDEN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650 STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

STAINLESS STEELKITCHEN SINKPROLIFICK-23650

DESK

KITCHENETTE

GAME

ADAPTABLE
LEVEL 2 DESIGN

EAST 16th STREET

LANE

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

24
"

6"6"

24
"

24"

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

P.
L.

 1
50

.3
3'

 - 
45

.8
22

m

  0
° 

 5
8'

  2
0"

 0
° 

 5
8'

  3
8"

ST
. G

EO
R

G
ES

 A
VE

N
U

E

EAST 16TH STREET

LANE

+TW 337.43'

+TW 337.43'

PMG PROJECT NUMBER:

PLANTED SIZE / REMARKSCOMMON NAMEBOTANICAL NAME
PLANT SCHEDULE - OFFSITE

KEY QTY
TREE

3 ACER RUBRUM 'KARPICK' COLUMNAR KARPICK MAPLE (STREET TREE) 6CM CAL; 2M STD; B&B
3 CORNUS MAS CORNELIAN CHERRY 5CM CAL; 1.5m STD; 
1 PINUS SYLVESTRIS SCOTS PINE 3.5M HT; B&B
1 PSEUDOTSUGA MENZIESII DOUGLAS FIR 2.5M HT; B&B
1 QUERCUS RUBRA RED OAK (STREET TREE) 6CM CAL; 1.8M STD; B&B
1 QUERCUS X MACDANIELII OAK HERITAGE 6CM CAL; 1M STD; B&B

SHRUB
16 CEANOTHUS THYRSIFLORUS VAR. REPENS DWARF CALIFORNIA LILAC #2 POT; 40CM
38 CORNUS SERICEA 'KELSEYI' DWARF KELSEY DOGWOOD #2 POT; 50CM 

GRASS
6 CAREX OBNUPTA SLOUGH SEDGE #1 POT

162 DESCHAMPSIA CESPITOSA TUFTED HAIR GRASS #1 POT
12 JUNCUS EFFUSUS COMMON RUSH #1 POT
30 PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES FOUNTAIN GRASS #1 POT

PERENNIAL
131 BERGENIA CORDIFOLIA HEARTLEAF BERGENIA; ROSE PINK 11CM POT
50 COREOPSIS VERTICILLATA `MOONBEAM' THREADLEAF COREOPSIS; YELLOW 15CM POT
9 ECHINACEA PURPUREA PURPLE CONEFLOWER 15CM POT
7 LIRIOPE MUSCARI 'BIG BLUE' LILY TURF 'BIG BLUE' #1 POT; FULL/PT SUN/SHADE

19 LUZULA SYLVATICA GREATER WOOD RUSH 9CM POT
178 OXALIS OREGANA REDWOOD SORREL 9CM POT

7 SALVIA YANGII RUSSIAN SAGE 15CM POT
GC

46 ASPLENIUM SCOLOPENDRIUM HART'S TONGUE FERN #1 POT
19 BLECHNUM SPICANT DEERFERN #1 POT; 20CM
55 MAHONIA REPENS CREEPING MAHONIA #1 POT

NOTES:  * PLANT SIZES IN THIS LIST ARE SPECIFIED ACCORDING TO THE BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE
STANDARD, LATEST EDITION.  CONTAINER SIZES SPECIFIED AS PER CNLA STANDARD.  BOTH PLANT SIZE AND CONTAINER SIZE ARE THE
MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE SIZES.  * REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR DEFINED CONTAINER MEASUREMENTS AND OTHER PLANT MATERIAL
REQUIREMENTS.  * SEARCH AND REVIEW: MAKE PLANT MATERIAL AVAILABLE FOR OPTIONAL REVIEW BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AT
SOURCE OF SUPPLY.  AREA OF SEARCH TO INCLUDE LOWER MAINLAND AND FRASER VALLEY. * SUBSTITUTIONS: OBTAIN WRITTEN
APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO MAKING ANY SUBSTITUTIONS  TO THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL. UNAPPROVED
SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE REJECTED.  ALLOW A MINIMUM OF FIVE DAYS PRIOR TO DELIVERY FOR REQUEST TO SUBSTITUTE.
SUBSTITUTIONS ARE SUBJECT TO BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD - DEFINITION OF CONDITIONS OF
AVAILABILITY. * ALL LANDSCAPE MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP MUST MEET OR EXCEED BC LANDSCAPE STANDARD AND CANADIAN
LANDSCAPE STANDARD LATEST EDITION. * ALL PLANT MATERIAL MUST BE PROVIDED FROM CERTIFIED DISEASE FREE NURSERY. *
BIO-SOLIDS NOT PERMITTED IN GROWING MEDIUM UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

0 10' 30' 50'5' 20'
CHK'D:

21203-14.ZIP

DRAWN:

DESIGN:

SCALE:

DATE:

PMG PROJECT NUMBER: 21-203

OF 1

DRAWING TITLE:

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C.

RENTAL APARTMENT  
PROJECT:

DRAWING NUMBER:

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE DR.

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE

SEAL:

   Copyright reserved. This drawing and design is the
property of PMG Landscape Architects and may not be
reproduced or used for other projects without their
permission.

c

CLIENT:

LANDSCAPE

Burnaby, British Columbia, V5C 6G9
p:  604 294-0011  ;  f:  604 294-0022

Suite C100  -  4185 Still Creek Drive
ARCHITECTS

2 22.SEP. 9 TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN WZ

3 22.SEP.15 NEW SITE PLAN WZ

4 22.NOV.09 CITY COMMENTS JR

5 23.FEB.06 COLOURING FOR ADP JR

6 23.SEP.13 NEW SITE PLAN JR

7 23.SEP.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

8 23.OCT.03 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

9 23.OCT.06 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

10 24.JAN.26 NEW SITE PLAN JR

11 24.FEB.06 REV. PER ARCH COMMENTS JR

12 24.MAR.19 NEW SITE PLAN / CITY COMMENTS JR

13 24.MAR.20 ARBORIST COORDINATION JR

14 24.MAY.29 UPDATE PER CITY COMMENTS CLG

15 24.JUN.03 UPDATE PER NEW SITE PLAN / ISSUE CLG

BUILDING

OFFSITE LANDSCAPE
PLAN

L1OS
21.NOV.24

1"=10'-0"

JR / PC

PC

PC



Document Number: 2523659 

Overview for Zoning Variances 

The following provides a summary and overview of the proposed zoning variances and car parking 
provisioning associated with the project at 1612 St. Georges Avenue:  

Table 1. Summary of Proposed Zoning Changes 
BASE RM-1 ZONE PROPOSED CD-749 ZONE 

Permitted 
Principal 
Uses 

Apartment Residential Uses 
Residential Care Facility 
Rental Apartment Residential Use
Accessory Parking Uses 

Rental Apartment Residential Use 
Accessory Residential Uses  
Accessory Parking Uses 

Density 
Maximum 

1.6 FSR 2.6 FSR (as per the OCP) 

Lot 
Coverage 
Maximum 

50% 50% 

Height 
Maximum 

13 metres (42.65 feet) 19 metres & 6 storeys (as per the OCP) 

Siting 6.096 metres (20 feet) from a 
front, rear, or Exterior Side Lot 
Line 

From the Front Lot Line (southern boundary): 
• No less than 3.18 metres to the basement

levels;
• No less than 4.57 metres (15 feet) to upper

level walls;
• No less than 3.35 metres (11 feet) to an

unenclosed balcony;

From the Rear Lot Line (northern boundary): 
• No less than 0 metres the basement levels;
• No less than 2.44 metres (8 feet) to the upper

level walls;
• No less than 1.2 metres (4 feet) to an

unenclosed balcony;

From the Exterior Side Lot Line (western 
boundary): 
• No less than 0 metres the basement levels;
• No less than 4.57 metres (15 feet) to upper

level walls;
• No less than 3.35 metres (11 feet) to an

unenclosed balcony;

From the Interior Side Lot Line (eastern boundary):
• 1. Not less than 0.8 metres (2.6 feet) to the

basement levels;
• 2.  No less than 4.57 metres (15 feet) to

upper level walls;
• 3. Not less than 3.048 metres (10 feet) to an

unenclosed balcony;

4.57 metres (15 feet) from an 
Interior Side Lot Line 

Building 
Width & 
Length 

Shall not exceed a horizontal 
width or length of 30.48 metres 
(100 feet) above third storey 

39 metres (approx. 128 feet) to the eastern 
elevation.  

Attachment 4 



   

  
Justification for Variances 
 
Boundary Setbacks 
The proposed development will result in a variation to the siting requirements for the RM-1 zone, 
as outlined in Table 1. 
 
The proposed setback variances are considered appropriate and consistent with similar rental 
apartment buildings in the R5 Residential areas. The development has been designed in 
accordance with the 6-storey limit imposed by the OCP, and no variance is sought to Lot 
Coverage.   
 
Additionally the reduced setbacks allows for retention of the existing large tree in the south-west 
corner of the site, as well as suitable landscaping with tree plantings on all sides of the 
development. Attention has been paid to the eastern boundary edge, to ensure an appropriate 
side boundary setback has been achieved to create suitable separation to the adjoining building 
to the east. The eastern elevation has also been designed to limit the number of habitable rooms, 
balconies and windows facing the side boundary, to reduce potential privacy issues.  
 
The proposed siting is determined to be appropriate for the subject site.  
 
Building Width and Length 
The proposed development will result in a variation to the building width and length requirements 
set for the C-2 zone, specifically being 30.48 m (100 ft). The proposed development results in a 
maximum building width of 39 m (128 ft) above the third storey for the eastern elevation only.  
 
The proposed elevations have been designed with appropriate articulation along the length of the 
building, including steps in the building line, and inclusion of attached balconies. The building 
also adopts a contemporary design, which utilizes a variety of façade materials. These built form 
elements appropriately break up the form of the building and reduce the perceived building bulk, 
despite the minor variance to building length and width.  
 
The building width and length standards are regularly varied in individual Comprehensive 
Development Zones to ensure a functional built form outcome is established in R5 areas.  
 



Document Number: 2345493-v1

March 24, 2023

VIA EMAIL: avanest@stuarthoward.com

Adam Van Est
Stuart Howard Architects, Inc.
405 - 375 West 5th Avenue
Vancouver, BC V5Y 1J6

Dear Mr. Van Est,

Re: 1612 St. Georges Avenue (Rezoning Application)

This will confirm that at their meeting on March 21, 2023, the Advisory Design Panel reviewed 
the above submission and endorsed the following resolution:

“THAT the Advisory Design Panel has reviewed the Rezoning Application for 1612 St. 
Georges Avenue and recommends approval subject to addressing the following issues 
to the satisfaction of the Development Planner:

review siting to address functional concerns that the building is “too close” to the
property line;
review of landscaping adjacent to the eastern boundary;
further design development to address access issues, security, main entrance
identification and wayfinding in regards to the courtyard and to individual units;
consider alternative location for parkade access, as well as treatments to activate the
lane, including the exploration / consideration of public art;
further design development of the north facing units adjacent to the parkade to
ensure livability, with consideration of building code implications;
address concerns regarding visibility and careful attention to lighting into the
courtyard;
further design development to enhance architectural elements along the east façade
of the building;
consideration of streetscape design to address safety concerns (i.e. sidewalk
configuration, corner bulges, and street lighting, parking and corner sightlines);
consideration of removal of the existing cherry trees on St. Georges Avenue, and
replacement with new trees within the boulevard;
development of sustainability elements, including that stormwater be directed to use
on site, particularly towards the landscaped areas; and
reconsideration of the screening element of the stairwell and elevator, to increase
activation of the stairs and potential inclusion of green landscape elements;

AND THAT the Panel wishes to thank the applicant for their presentation.”

…/2



- 2 - 

The recommendations of the Advisory Design Panel pertain only to site-specific design and site 
planning considerations and do not, in any way, represent Council and staff approval or 
rejection of this project. 

 
Yours truly, 
 

 
T. Huckell 
Committee Clerk-Secretary 
 
Cc: H. Dang, Planner 1, Planning and Development 
 M. Menzel, Planner 2, Planning and Development 
 R. Wittstock, Domus Homes 
 N. Robertson, Stuart Howard Architects, Inc. 
 C. Griffiths, PMG Landscape Architects Ltd. 
 P. Campbell, PMG Landscape Architects Ltd. 
  
 



1

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

DIS Engagement Summary Report
Date: February 17, 2023 
Created by Pooni Group

on behalf of Domus Homes



2

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

(

•
• 
• 
• 
• 
•



table of contents.

4

7

9

12

13

Page Number Sec on Titles

14

17

17

21

39

40

41



4

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

1. INTRODUCTION & PROJECT OVERVIEW

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 



1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

2. PROJECT WEBSITE



6

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

NEWSPAPER ADVERTISEMENT

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

• 
• 
• 

MAIL OUT NOTIFICATION FLYER

SITE SIGN

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 



7

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

4. VIRTUAL DEVELOPER INFORMATION SESSION

WEBINAR SUMMARY

Time: 6:00-7:30 pm

PROJECT TEAM IN ATTENDANCE

• 

• Neil Robertson
• Adam Van Est

• 
• 

• 



1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

PRESENTATION MATERIAL

14. Site Plan



9

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

5. FEEDBACK SUMMARY

• 
• 
• 

SUMMARY OF QUESTIONS/COMMENTS RECEIVED DURING Q&A

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

•



10

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

• 

SUMMARY OF COMMENT FORM AND EMAILS RECEIVED

• 
• 
• 



11

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 



12

1612 ST. GEORGES AVENUE VIRTUAL DIS
 ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

6. CONCLUSION AND NEXT STEPS

1



TENANT RELOCATION PLAN 
St. George Apartments 

1612 St. George’s Avenue, North Vancouver 

UPDATED May 7, 2024 

1 

Development Process: 

1. Further to the Tenant Communication Plan dated March 20, 2024 previously submitted,

we are providing this document for additional information.

2. All tenants received a letter in November 2022 when the rezoning application was

submitted, advising them of their eligibility under the Tenant Assistance Package as

described below.  Two tenants who wished to relocate since that date recently took

advantage of this.

3. We held a Developer Information Session in January, 2023 and all tenants received

advance notice of this. A project website was set up which provided information on the

development and timeframe anticipated at that time. No tenants attended the DIS.

Subsequent to the DIS, all inquiries from tenants have been handled by our on-site

caretaker who has a strong relationship with the remaining tenants. An engagement

summary prepared by Pooni & Associates was submitted to the City in February, 2023.

4. As noted above, two tenants moved out since the submission of the rezoning and the

original Tenant Communication Plan in October 2022. These two tenants were paid full

compensation (four months’ rent plus moving expenses).

5. We have engaged Tracy Huynh to move forward with our tenant relocation plan once we

have determined that the project is ready to proceed. We anticipate making this decision

by the end of Q2 2024.

6. Should the project proceed, Ms Huynh will host a meeting with the remaining 13 tenants

(likely in July 2024) in the building to advise them that the redevelopment process has

commenced.

7. Following this, Ms. Huynh will invite the tenants to one-on-one meetings to provide

further information about the timeline, compensation offered and their options i.e. the

Tenant Assistance Package as described below. Tenants will be advised of their rights

under the Residential Tenancy Act and will be made aware of the Tenant Resource and

Advisory Centre www.tenants.bc.ca for additional information and support.

8. We will continue to work with departing tenants to find alternate accommodation options

that work for them on their timeframe. We will present options that correspond to the

guidelines established by the Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, i.e. not to exceed

the Average Rent per CMHC + 10%. Ideally we will be able to find satisfactory relocation

options for many of the tenants well in advance of our final project approval, so that the

tenants aren’t all competing with each other for available suites in the marketplace at the

same time.

9. All 15 tenants that were in place at submission of the initial Rezoning Application

in November 2022 are eligible for compensation as specified in the City of

North Vancouver’s Residential Tenant Displacement Policy:



TENANT RELOCATION PLAN 
St. George Apartments 

1612 St. George’s Avenue, North Vancouver 

UPDATED May 7, 2024 

 

2 
 

 
a. The applicant will compensate all eligible tenants with financial assistance 

equivalent to 4 months’ of their current rent. 
 

Less than 5 years 4 months’ rent 

More than 5 years 4 months’ rent plus ((total tenancy length in months – 60) x $25) 

 
b. In addition, tenants will be compensated moving expenses of $1,000 for one- 

bedrooms and $1,250 for two-bedrooms (there are no studios or three-bedrooms 

in the building). These amounts to be escalated from 2021 by CPI. 

 
10. First Right of Refusal: We will provide all displaced tenants the first right of refusal to live 

in any purpose-built rental units in the new building, with the particulars of the units to be 

negotiated between the property owner and individual tenants. Provided tenants meet 

the MMR eligibility requirements, tenants will have the first right of refusal to rent an MMR 

unit in the new building. To ensure that displaced tenants receive notification when the 

MMR units are becoming available, they will need to confirm during the relocation 

process that they want to exercise their first right of refusal. 

 
11. Tenant Assistance Package – This will be provided to all 15 tenants upon Staff approval. 

This will include the following information as a minimum: 

a. Timeline and overview of the development application process; 

b. Commitment to provide advanced notice and updates to tenants on Development 

Information Sessions, Council Meetings and Public Hearing related to the 

application; 

c. Contact information for Tenant Relocation Coordinator; 

d. Responsibilities of the developer to provide financial compensation and other 

assistance; 

e. Method for low income tenants and others facing barriers to request additional 

assistance; 

f. A current copy of the British Columbia Residential Tenancy Act; 

g. A copy of the City’s Residential Tenant Displacement Policy; and 

h. Copies of applicable tenant resources. 

 
12. Demolition Permit – A final Tenant Relocation Report will be submitted with the 

application for Demolition Permit for the property, as per the format prescribed by the 

City. At a minimum, this should include: 

a. The outcome of the relocation process for displaced tenants, including evidence 

that tenants have been satisfactorily assisted in locating alternative 

accommodation. Where tenants have opted out of relocation assistance, written 

notice from the tenant must be submitted; 

b. The value of compensation given to each tenant including financial compensation, 

moving expenses, and any additional assistance or services that were provided to 

the tenant(s); and 

c. Details of all tenants who wish to exercise their first right of refusal for any mid- 

market rental units provided in the new building(s) and how these tenants will be 



TENANT RELOCATION PLAN 
St. George Apartments 

1612 St. George’s Avenue, North Vancouver 

UPDATED May 7, 2024 

 

3 
 

notified when the units become available 

 
13. Occupancy Permit – Details of all tenants who wish to return to the building and the 

status of their tenancy must be provided prior to the issuance of an Occupancy Permit. In 

cases where there are more tenants who wish to exercise their first right of refusal than 

available MMR units, the developer will be responsible for selecting a tenant in 

accordance with the provisions of the Housing Agreement associated with the 

development. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055 Document: 2528677-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9055 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700,
Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue,
CD-764).

2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby
amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 1612 St.
Georges Avenue and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and
forming part of CD-764 (Comprehensive Development 764 Zone):

PID: 007-425-244 LOT 1 BLOCK 32 DISTRICT LOT 549 PLAN 9794 

from zone RM-1 

3. Part 11 of Division V: Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning
Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by:

A. Adding the following Comprehensive Development Zone to Section 1100 in numerical
order:

“CD-764 Comprehensive Development 764 Zone” (1612 St. Georges Avenue)

In the CD-764 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking
shall be as in the RM-1 Zone, except that:

(1) One Principal Building shall be permitted on one Lot;

(2) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to:

(a) Rental Apartment Residential Use:
i. Accessory Home Occupation Use, subject to Sections 507(6), (7) and

(8) of this Bylaw;
ii. Accessory Off-Street Parking Use;
iii. Accessory Home Office Use;

(3) Gross Floor Area:

(a) Combined and in total, shall not exceed 1.6 times the lot area;
(b) Maximum Gross Floor Area may be further increased to a maximum of 2.6

times the lot area, upon entering into a Housing Agreement with the City:



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055 Document: 2528677-v1 

 
BASE DENSITY

OCP Schedule ‘A’ 1.6 FSR 
ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 

ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 

CATEGORY 
DESCRIPTION 

ADDITIONAL 
(BONUS) 
DENSITY 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

Secured Rental 
Housing 

100% rental 
housing; 10% 
mid-market 
rental units 

1.0 FSR OCP section 
2.2 

TOTAL DENSITY 2.6 FSR 
 

(4) Height: 
 

(a) Height of Principal Building shall not exceed six storeys and 19 metres 
(62.4 feet) as measured from average building grade; 
 

(5) Height Exceptions: 
 

(a) The Heights of Buildings and Structures permitted elsewhere in the Bylaw 
may be exceeded for: 
i. parapet walls, guard rails, Garden Structures, common staircase and 

elevator structures by not more than 6.1 metres (20 feet); 
ii. Fully screened mechanical equipment, sited at least 2.5 metres (8.2 

feet) from the outer edge of the roof, by not more than 6.1 metres (20 
feet); 

 
(6) Siting: 
 

(a) Principal Building shall be sited in accordance with the following: 
i.  from the Front Lot Line (southern boundary): 

1.  No less than 3.18 metres to the basement levels;  
2.  No less than 4.57 metres (15 feet) to upper level walls;  
3. No less than 3.35 metres (11 feet) to an unenclosed balcony;  

ii. from the Rear Lot Line (northern boundary): 
1.  No less than 0 metres the basement levels; 
2. No less than 2.44 metres (8 feet) to the upper level walls; 
3. No less than 1.2 metres (4 feet) to an unenclosed balcony; 

iii. from the Exterior Side Lot Line (western boundary): 
1.  No less than 0 metres the basement levels; 
2.  No less than 4.57 metres (15 feet) to upper level walls;  
3. No less than 3.35 metres (11 feet) to an unenclosed balcony;  

iv. from the Interior Side Lot Line (eastern boundary): 
1. Not less than 0.8 metres (2.6 feet) to the basement levels; 
2.  No less than 4.57 metres (15 feet) to upper level walls;  
3. Not less than 3.048 metres (10 feet) to an unenclosed balcony; 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055 Document: 2528677-v1 

(b) Section 410(3) “Siting Exceptions” is varied as follows: 
i Where eaves project beyond the face of the Principal Building, the 

minimum distance to an abutting Lot Line as permitted above, may 
be reduced by 1.524 metres (5 feet);  

 
(7) Section 510(2), Unit Separation, shall be waived; 

 
(8) Section 510(3), Building Width and Length, shall be waived. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICE 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9056 

A Bylaw to enter into a Housing Agreement (1612 St. Georges Avenue) 

WHEREAS Section 483 of the Local Government Act R.S.B.C. 2015 c.1 permits a local 
government to enter into a housing agreement for rental housing; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024,
No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764, Rental Housing
Commitments).

2. The Council hereby authorizes The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver to enter into
a Housing Agreement to secure rental housing commitments with the owner of lands having
a civic address of 1612 St. Georges Avenue, North Vancouver, legally described as: PID:
007-425-244; LOT 1 BLOCK 32 DISTRICT LOT 549 PLAN 9794, substantially in the form
attached to this bylaw.

3. The Mayor and Corporate Officer are authorized to execute the Housing Agreement and
any documents required to give effect to the Housing Agreement.

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

MAYOR 

CORPORATE OFFICER 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

PART 2 – TERMS OF INSTRUMENT 
 

RENTAL HOUSING AGREEMENT AND SECTION 219 COVENANT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, 
 
BETWEEN: 
 

1315102 B.C. LTD., INC.NO. BC1315102  
918 - 1030 West Georgia Street 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
V6E 2Y3 
 
(the “Owner”) 

 
AND: 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER, 
a municipal corporation pursuant to the Local Government Act and 
having its offices at 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, British 
Columbia, V7M 1H9 
 
(the “City”) 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
A. The Owner is the registered owner of the Lands. 
 
B. The City is a municipal corporation incorporated pursuant to the Local Government Act, 

RSBC 2015, c. 1 and the Community Charter, SBC 2003, c. 26.  
 
C. Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 (the “Land Title Act”) permits 

registration of a covenant in favour of a municipality in respect of the use of land or the 
use of a building on or to be erected on land, that land is or is not to be built on except in 
accordance with the covenant and that land is not to be subdivided except in accordance 
with the covenant. 

 
D. Section 483 of the Act permits a local government to, by bylaw, enter into a housing 

agreement that may include terms and conditions regarding the occupancy of the housing 
units identified in the agreement, including respecting the form of tenure of the housing 
units, the availability of the housing units to classes of persons, the administration and 
management of the housing units and the rents and lease, sale or share prices that may 
be charged. 

 
E. The City has adopted a bylaw authorizing this Agreement. 
 
F. The Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Section 219 of the 

Land Title Act and section 483 of the Act. 
 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) now paid by the City to 
the Owner and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Owner hereby acknowledges), the Owner and the City covenant each with the other as follows: 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

(a) “Act” means the Local Government Act, RSBC 2015, c.1 as amended from time 
to time; 

 
(b) “Affordable Rent" means with respect to each Mid-Market Rental Unit a rent 

payment amount equal to 10% below the “Private Apartment Average Rents” for 
the corresponding bedroom type in the City of North Vancouver as established by 
CMHC’s Housing Market Information Portal for the year the tenancy is entered 
into; 

 
(c) “Agreement” means this agreement as amended from time to time; 

 
(d) “Commencement Date” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein; 

 
(e) “Council” means the municipal council for the City of North Vancouver; 

 
(f) “CMHC” means Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation; 

 
(g) “Director, Planning and Development” means the chief administrator of the 

Department of Planning of the City and their successors in function and their 
respective nominees; 

 
(h) “Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit as defined in the City of North Vancouver’s 

“Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700” as amended from time to time; 
 

(i) “Lands” means those lands and premises legally described as: 
 

Parcel Identifier: 007-425-244 
Lot 1 
Block 32 
District Lot 549 
Plan 9794; 

 
(j) “Mid-Market Rental Units” means the 8 Dwelling Units in the Residential Building 

to be constructed on the Lands that are rented to tenants for Affordable Rent; 
 

(k) “Market Rental Units” means all Dwelling Units in the Residential Building other 
than the Mid-Market Rental Units; 

 
(l) “Maximum Household Income” means an annual gross household income 

determined by multiplying Affordable Rent by 12 to yield the households’ annual 
housing costs, and divide by 30% (0.30) to meet the standard definition of 
affordability; 

 
(m) “Rental Purposes” means an occupancy or intended occupancy which is or would 

be governed by a tenancy agreement as defined in Section 1 of the Residential 
Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78 as amended from time to time between the Owner 
and the tenant; 

 
(n) “Rental Units” means the Market Rental Units and the Mid-Market Rental Units; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

 
(o) “Residential Building” means the 6 storey building to be constructed on the Lands 

to be used for Rental Purposes with 75 Dwelling Units, of which 67 Dwelling Units 
will be Market Rental Units and 8 Dwelling Units will be Mid-Market Rental Units; 

 
(p) “RT Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78; 

 
(q) “Rezoning Bylaw” means the rezoning bylaw applicable to the Lands described 

as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9055”;  
 

(r) “Section 219 Covenant” means a covenant pursuant to Section 219 of the Land 
Title Act;  

 
(s) “Tenancy Agreement” means an agreement, whether written or oral, express or 

implied, between the Owner and a tenant respecting possession or occupancy of 
a Rental Unit;  

 
(t) “Tenant Relocation Plan” means the Tenant Relocation Plan dated May 7, 2024 

as prepared by the Owner and approved by the City, to meet the requirements of 
the City’s Residential Tenant Displacement Policy No. H18, as amended on July 
12, 2021, a copy of which is attached as Schedule A to this Agreement; and 

 
(u) “Term” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein. 

 
2. TERM 
 
2.1 This Agreement will commence upon adoption by the City’s Council of “Housing Agreement 

Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056” (Domus Projects Ltd., 1612 St. Georges Avenue, CD-764, Rental 
Housing Commitments) (the “Commencement Date”) and will continue until the date this 
Agreement is terminated in accordance with sections 2.2 or 7.3(c) (the “Term”). 

 
2.2 This Agreement will terminate immediately upon the removal or destruction of the Residential 

Building provided the Residential Building is not repaired or rebuilt following the destruction 
thereof. 

 
2.3 Subject to section 3.5, upon termination of this Agreement, this Agreement will be at an end 

and of no further force and effect. 
 
3. SECTION 219 COVENANT  
 
3.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the City as a covenant in favour of the City pursuant 

to Section 219 of the Land Title Act, that during the Term of this Agreement, it being the 
intention and agreement of the Owner that the provisions in this Agreement be annexed 
to, and run with and be a charge upon the Lands, that notwithstanding the Rezoning 
Bylaw, the Lands will be used and built on only in strict compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and that:  

 
(a) the Lands must not be subdivided or stratified; 

 
(b) the Rental Units in the Residential Building must be used for Rental Purposes only 

and all Rental Units must be owned and operated by the Owner, provided that the 
Mid-Market Rental Units may be operated by a non-profit entity engaged by the 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

Owner and having expertise in non-market housing, with the approval of the 
Director, Planning and Development; and 

 
(c) no Rental Unit in the Residential Building must be occupied for any purpose except 

for Rental Purposes pursuant to a Tenancy Agreement. 
 
3.2 The Owner further covenants and agrees with the City that the Lands and any buildings 

or structures constructed thereon including the Residential Building must be developed, 
built, and maintained in accordance with all City bylaws, regulations and guidelines as 
amended from time to time. 

 
3.3 Pursuant to section 219(6) of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 except for the 

negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will indemnify and 
save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, actions, loss, damage, costs 
and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for or suffer or incur or be put to 
by reason of or arising out of: 

 
(a) any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, by the Owner, or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents, contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is 
responsible; 

 
(b) the Owner’s default under this Agreement; and 

 
(c) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes.  
 

3.4 Except to the extent such advice or direction is given negligently, the Owner hereby releases 
and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns from and against all claims, demands, damages, 
actions or causes of action by reason of or arising out of advice or direction respecting the 
ownership, operation or management of the Lands for the provision of housing for Rental 
Purposes which has been or hereafter may be given to the Owner by all or any of them. 

 
3.5 The covenants of the Owner set out in sections 3.3 and 3.4 of this Agreement will survive the 

expiration or the earlier termination of this Agreement and will continue to apply to any breach 
of the Agreement and to any claims arising under this Agreement during the ownership by 
the Owner of the Lands. 
 

 
4. TENANCY RESTRICTIONS 
 
4.1 The unit mix for Rental Units in the Residential Building will be no fewer than 12 three-

bedroom units, 17 two-bedroom units, and 46 studio / one-bedroom units or as otherwise 
approved in writing by the Director, Planning and Development in their discretion. 

 
4.2 The 8 Mid-Market Rental Units will be provided in the following unit mix: 5 studio unit / one-

bedroom units, 2 two-bedroom units, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The Owner may only change 
this mix with the approval in writing by the Director, Planning and Development with such 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

approval to be granted in their discretion. The Owner will be entitled to determine the 
locations of the 8 Mid-Market Rental Units within the Residential Building. 

 
4.3 The Owner will enter into a minimum 1 year Tenancy Agreement for each of the Mid-

Market Rental Units which will convert to a month to month tenancy at the end of the 1 year 
term. If such a tenancy is ended prior to the end of the Term, the Owner must rent the Mid-
Market Rental Unit at Affordable Rent.  For greater certainty, at the end of each tenancy, 
the Mid-Market Rental Unit will continue to be rented as a Mid-Market Rental Unit at 
Affordable Rent, which obligation will be ongoing at all times during the Term. 

 
5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
5.1 Without limiting section 3.1 of this Agreement: 
 

(a) Management and administration: the management, administration, and associated 
costs with the management and administration of the Rental Units, including the 
Mid-Market Rental Units, will be borne by the Owner or its designated rental agent, 
unless otherwise approved by the City in writing and all Mid-Market Rental Units 
must be managed by one rental agent; 

 
(b) Compliance with Tenant Relocation Plan:  The Owner will fulfil all of the 

commitments set out in the Tenant Relocation Plan and if requested by the City at 
any time, will provide information to the City to confirm compliance with the Tenant 
Relocation Plan; 

 
(c) Advertisement: when the Mid-Market Rental Units first become available, the 

Owner will advertise such units for a minimum of one month on at least two 
common rental property search platforms that allow potential tenants to view 
available properties for rent in North Vancouver without payment of a fee or 
requirement for registration, and the Owner will feature the tenure restrictions set 
out in this Agreement prominently in all advertising of Mid-Market Rental Units. 
When a Mid-Market Rental Unit becomes available for a subsequent, new tenancy, 
the Owner will advertise the unit in accordance with the foregoing requirements for 
a period of at least one week; 

 
(d) Tenant Selection: the Owner will make the Mid-Market Rental Units available, both 

at the first tenancy and each subsequent tenancy, in the following order of priority: 
 

(i) If the Residential Building replaces an existing rental building, then tenants 
from the existing rental building on the Lands being replaced who have 
household incomes at or below the Maximum Household Income will be 
provided first right of refusal in the Mid-Market Rental Units, and have first 
priority, provided that if there are multiple applicants in this category for one 
unit, then applicant families with one or more dependents will have priority 
for units with two or more bedrooms and if applicants are equal in this 
regard, then applications will be considered on a first come-first-served 
basis;  

 
(ii) Households who have been displaced from redevelopment elsewhere in 

the City who have household incomes at or below the Maximum Household 
Income will have second priority, provided that if there are multiple 
applicants in this category for one unit, then applicant families with one or 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

more dependents will have priority for units with two or more bedrooms and 
if applicants are equal in this regard, then applications will be considered 
on a first come-first-served basis 

 
(iii) The Owner will then make any remaining Mid-Market Rental Units not 

rented by tenants from the existing building on the Lands available to 
tenants with an annual household income at or below that the Maximum 
Household Income who are either current residents of the City of North 
Vancouver or who work in the City of North Vancouver and have done so 
for at least six months, provided that if there are multiple applicants in this 
category for one unit, then applicant families with one or more dependents 
will have priority for units with two or more bedrooms and if applicants are 
equal in this regard, then applications will be considered on a first come-
first-served basis;  

 
(iv) If there are any remaining Mid-Market Rental Units not rented by tenants 

who meet the criteria in sections 5.1(d)(i) to (iii) after the expiry of the one-
month advertising period, then the Owner will make such units available to 
tenants who meet the Maximum Household Income requirement; and 

 
(v) Tenants in Mid-Market Rental Units must not have an ownership interest in 

a residential property in the City or in a neighbouring municipality which the 
tenant could otherwise occupy and the Owner will require confirmation from 
the prospective tenant that they meet this requirement at the time of 
tenancy; 

 
(vi) In determining whether a tenant meets the Maximum Household Income 

requirements or the requirement in section 5.1(d)(v), the Owner or its rental 
agent, so long as it acts honestly and in good faith, is entitled to rely on all 
information provided by the prospective tenant and the Owner will have no 
liability if the prospective tenant intentionally or unintentionally provides any 
incorrect information. The Owner is under no obligation to monitor or 
update the financial circumstances of the tenant once the lease is signed. 

 
(e) Rent Amount and Permitted Increases: Affordable Rent for Mid-Market Rental 

Units is to be determined at the time of tenancy. Rent amounts may be 
subsequently increased below or at the permitted annual rent increase then set 
under the RT Act;  

 
(f) Compliance with applicable laws: without restricting the foregoing, the Owner will 

comply with all applicable provisions of the RT Act and any other provincial or 
municipal enactments imposing obligations on landlords in relation to residential 
tenancies; 

 
(g) Performance: the Owner will perform its obligations under this Agreement diligently 

and in good faith; 
 

(h) Information Regarding Unit Availability:  If the City establishes a register for 
availability of Mid-Market Rental Units within the City, the Owner will provide to the 
City information regarding any Mid-Market Rental Units that become available for 
rent, in a form acceptable to the Director, Planning and Development;  

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

(i) Evidence of compliance: provided that the same can be done without breaching 
the Personal Information Protection Act, SBC2003, Ch. 63 (as amended from time 
to time) the Owner will, on an annual basis at the time of Business License renewal 
and upon any other request by the City, supply to the City copies of any 
documentation in possession of the Owner necessary to establish compliance with 
the Owner’s obligations under this Agreement.  

 
6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
6.1 The City may, acting reasonably, give to the Owner a written notice (in this section 6.1, the 

“Notice”) requiring the Owner to cure a default under this Agreement within 30 days of receipt 
of the Notice. The Notice must specify the nature of the default. The Owner must act with 
diligence to correct the default within the time specified. 

 
6.2 If the default is not corrected within the time specified, the Owner will pay to the City on 

demand by the City 200 percent of the difference between current market rent, as determined 
by a third-party appraiser, and Affordable Rent for each Mid-Market Rental Unit in default for 
the default year to the end of the Term of the Agreement. The monies collected from default 
will be deposited to the City’s Affordable Housing Reserve Fund.  

 
6.3 The Owner will pay to the City on demand by the City all the City's costs of exercising its 

rights or remedies under this Agreement, on a full indemnity basis. 
 
6.4 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that in case of a breach of this Agreement which is 

not fully remediable by the mere payment of money and promptly so remedied, the harm 
sustained by the City and to the public interest will be irreparable and not susceptible of 
adequate monetary compensation. 

 
6.5 Each party to this Agreement, in addition to its rights under this Agreement or at law, will be 

entitled to all equitable remedies including specific performance, injunction and declaratory 
relief, or any of them, to enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

 
6.6 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is entering into this Agreement to benefit the 

public interest in providing housing for Rental Purposes, and that the City's rights and 
remedies under this Agreement are necessary to ensure that this purpose is carried out and 
that the City's rights and remedies under this Agreement are fair and reasonable and ought 
not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture. 

 
6.7 No reference to nor exercise of any specific right or remedy under this Agreement or at law 

or at equity by any party will prejudice, limit or preclude that party from exercising any other 
right or remedy.  No right or remedy will be exclusive or dependent upon any other right or 
remedy, but any party, from time to time, may exercise any one or more of such rights or 
remedies independently, successively, or in combination.  The Owner acknowledges that 
specific performance, injunctive relief (mandatory or otherwise) or other equitable relief may 
be the only adequate remedy of a default by the Owner under this Agreement. 

 
7. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
7.1 The Owner agrees to reimburse the City for all legal costs reasonably incurred by the City for 

the preparation, execution and registration of this Agreement and notice of this Agreement 
which is required to be filed pursuant to the Act.  The Owner will bear their own costs, legal 
or otherwise, connected with the preparation, execution or registration of this Agreement. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

 
7.2 Nothing in this Agreement: 
 

(a) affects or limits any discretion, rights, powers, duties or obligations of the City under 
any enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of 
land; 

 
(b) affects or limits any enactment relating to the use of the Lands or any condition 

contained in any approval including any development permit concerning the 
development of the Lands; or 

 
(c) relieves the Owner from complying with any enactment, including the City's bylaws 

in relation to the use of the Lands. 
 
7.3 The Owner and the City agree that: 
 

(a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 
 

(b) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, occupier or user 
of the Lands or any portion of it including the Rental Units and the Limited Common 
Property; and 

 
(c) without limiting part 2 of this Agreement, the City may at any time execute a release 

and discharge of this Agreement in respect of the Lands, without liability to anyone 
for doing so. 

 
7.4 This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and any part into which any of them may 

be subdivided or consolidated, by strata plan or otherwise.  All of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its successors 
and assigns, and all persons who acquire an interest in the Lands after the date of this 
Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Owner will not be liable for 
any breach of any covenant, promise or agreement herein in respect of any portion of the 
Lands sold, assigned, considered or otherwise disposed of, occurring after the Owner has 
ceased to be the owner of the Lands. 

 
7.5 The covenants and agreements on the part of the Owner in this Agreement have been made 

by the Owner as contractual obligations as well as being made pursuant to section 483 of 
the Act and as such will be binding on the Owner. 

 
7.6 The Owner will, at its expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to 

ensure this Agreement and notice of this Agreement is registered against the title to the 
Lands, including any amendments to this Agreement as may be required by the Land Title 
Office or the City to effect such registration. 

 
7.7 The City and the Owner each intend by execution and delivery of this Agreement to create 

both a contract and a deed under seal. 
 
7.8 An alleged waiver by a party of any breach by another party of its obligations under this 

Agreement will be effective only if it is an express waiver of the breach in writing.  No waiver 
of a breach of this Agreement is deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other 
breach of this Agreement. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 10 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

7.9 If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds that any part of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, that part is to be considered to have been severed from the rest of this 
Agreement and the rest of this Agreement remains in force unaffected by that holding or by 
the severance of that part. 

 
7.10 Every obligation of a party which is set out in this Agreement will extend throughout the Term 

and, to the extent that any obligation ought to have been observed or performed prior to or 
upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term, such obligation will survive the expiry or 
earlier termination of the Term until it has been observed or performed. 

 
7.11 All notices, demands, or requests of any kind, which a party may be required or permitted to 

serve on another in connection with this Agreement, must be in writing and may be served 
on the other parties by registered mail, by facsimile or e-mail transmission, or by personal 
service, to the following address for each party: 

 
City: The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 

141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, British Columbia 
V7M 1H9 
Attention: Director, Planning & Development 
Facsimile: 604.985.0576 
Email: planning@cnv.org 

 
The Owner: Domus Projects Ltd.  

918-1030 West Georgia Street 
Vancouver, British Columbia  
V6E 2Y3 
Attention: 
Email: richard@domushomes.ca  
Phone: 604-319-9400 

 
Service of any such notice, demand, or request will be deemed complete, if made by 
registered mail, 72 hours after the date and hour of mailing, except where there is a postal 
service disruption during such period, in which case service will be deemed to be complete 
only upon actual delivery of the notice, demand or request; if made by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission, on the first business day after the date when the facsimile or e-mail 
transmission was transmitted; and if made by personal service, upon personal service being 
effected.  Any party, from time to time, by notice in writing served upon the other parties, may 
designate a different address or different or additional persons to which all notices, demands, 
or requests are to be addressed. 

 
7.12 Upon request by the City, the Owner will promptly do such acts and execute such documents 

as may be reasonably necessary, in the opinion of the City, to give effect to this Agreement. 
 
7.13 This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties and their 

successors and permitted assigns. 
 
8. INTERPRETATION 
 
8.1 Gender specific terms include both genders and include corporations.  Words in the singular 

include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 11 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

8.2 The division of this Agreement into sections and the use of headings are for convenience of 
reference only and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any provision.  
In all cases, the language in this Agreement is to be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 

 
8.3 The word "including" when following any general statement or term is not to be construed to 

limit the general statement or term to the specific items which immediately follow the general 
statement or term to similar items whether or not words such as "without limitation" or "but 
not limited to" are used, but rather the general statement or term is to be construed to refer 
to all other items that could reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general 
statement or term. 

 
8.4 The words "must" and "will" are to be construed as imperative. 
 
8.5 Any reference in this Agreement to any statute or bylaw includes any subsequent 

amendment, re-enactment, or replacement of that statute or bylaw. 
 
8.6 This is the entire agreement between the City and the Owner concerning its subject, and 

there are no warranties, representations, conditions or collateral agreements relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, except as included in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended only by a document executed by the parties to this Agreement and by 
bylaw, such amendment to be effective only upon adoption by City Council of an amending 
bylaw to “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056”. 

 
8.7 This Agreement is to be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of British Columbia and the laws of Canada applicable therein. 
 
8.8 This Agreement can be signed in counterpart. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THIS AGREEMENT the City and the Owner have executed this Agreement by 
signing the “Form C – General Instrument – Part 1” or “Form D – Executions Continued” attached 
hereto.  
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 12 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

SCHEDULE A 
TENANT RELOCATION PLAN 

 
[see attached] 

 
[PRIORITY AGREEMENT TO BE ADDED IF MORTGAGE ON TITLE] 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 13 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 14 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 15 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9056 Document: 2528653-v1 

1612 St. Georges Avenue 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

f,7-,? 

r}t~ent CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

REPORT 

From: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Heather Evans, Community Planner, Planning 
(Urban Regeneration and Analytics) 

Subject: 2024 ROUND ONE COMMUNITY GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 05-1850-20-0005/2024 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Community Planner, Planning (Urban 
Regeneration and Analytics), dated June 12, 2024, entitled "2024 Round One 
Community Grant Recommendations": 

THAT the Round One 2024 Community Grants be awarded to the list of 
organizations as proposed in the report, in the total amount of $198,300, with 
funds allocated from the 2024 Community Grants budget; 

AND THAT the funded and non-funded grants be listed in the Minutes, in full. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. City of North Vancouver Community Grant Applications Guidelines (CityDocs 
#2475821 ) 

2. 2024 Round One Community Grants - List of Applicant Requests and Committee 
Recommendations (CityDocs #2535963) 

PURPOSE 

This report provides Council with the Social Planning Advisory Committee's (SPAC) 
recommendations for the 2024 Round One Community Grants. 

Document Number: 2530016-v3 



REPORT: 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
Date: June 12, 2024 

BACKGROUND 

Community Grants are among several grant funding opportunities that the City of North 
Vancouver offers to non-profit organizations and groups to assist with the delivery of 
services that work to reduce social, economic or physical disadvantage, and/or which 
improves the quality of life for City residents. 

Community grants provide an opportunity for non-profit agencies to gain municipal 
financial support for projects, programs or general operations that address the 
objectives of the City's Social Plan and Official Community Plan. The City's annual 
budget for Community Grants is the sum of two components: 

• The City's annual operating budget: $100,000; and, 
• The annual interest accrued from a reserve fund called the Lower Lonsdale 

Legacy Fund ("LLLF"). In the last five years the interest in this fund has fluctuated 
from approximately $46,000 to $179,000. 

DISCUSSION 

Total Amount of Community Grants 
In 2024 the operating budget funding of $100,000 is combined with interest in the 
amount of $179,169 from the Lower Lonsdale Legacy Fund, for a total Community 
Grants budget of $279,169. This amount is distributed through two rounds of application 
intakes: 

• Round 1 (application deadline January 2024)- $198,300 will be distributed; 
• Round 2 (application deadline September 2024) - $80,869 will be available for 

distribution. 

In the last year the City has changed the investment for this legacy fund, and this has 
resulted in more than double the amount interest earned and available for community 
grants. 

This report addresses the first round of grants for 2024. 

Application Review Process 
SPAC reviews applications in accordance with criteria set out in the Community Grant 
Guidelines (Attachment 1) and in relation to the City of North Vancouver's Social Plan. 

To be eligible for funding, an organization must be not-for-profit, provide services to 
residents of the City of North Vancouver, seek additional other sources of funding, and 
provide proof of financial responsibility (financial statements). 

Eligible not-for-profits are offer services that directly benefits local residents. The 
number of City residents benefiting from the services must be estimated as a part of the 
application, measured through the service delivery, and reported upon completion by 
the receiving agency. 

Page 2 of 7 



REPORT: 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Grant applications that meet basic criteria are reviewed by SPAC and prioritized 
according to the "Procedural Guidelines for the Review of Grant Applications by Sub
committees" as follows: 

'A' or top priority - evidence of need for the service or project 
- evidence of clear goals and expected outcomes 
- evidence of financial need for a Community Grant 
- relevance to Social Plan 

'B' or medium priority - quality of management 
- uniqueness of service 
- involvement with community partners 
- addressing barriers to services for people with disabilities 

and for ethno-cultural residents. 

'C' or lower priority - number of local residents served 
- number of local volunteers and their role 
- amount of funding requested from each municipality 

related to the numbers of residents served. 

Many applicants comment on how the demand for their services are increasing (e.g. for 
mental health and counselling services) and that their waitlists are growing. It was also 
noted that meeting demand is becoming more difficult as fundraising dollars are 
diminishing (likely related to inflation) and because fewer grants are available 
(especially those related to COVID relief). 

Grant Recommendations 
In the first round of grants, 76 grant applications were received and reviewed , 
requesting a total amount of $391,200. Of those, 67 were repeat applicants for new or 
existing programs and operating grants, and nine were applications from first-time 
applicants. A list of grant applications with recommended allocations is included as 
Attachment 2. Of the 76 applications received in Round One, 71 are recommended to 
receive funding . The Committee's recommendation is to allocate $198,300 and hold 
back $80,869 to be distributed in Round Two (autumn 2024). 

Table 1 below lists the applications that SPAC recommends for funding. 

Table 1 - A lications Recommended for Fundin 

Athletics for Kids Financial Assistance (B.C.) - Program -
S ort4Life Grant Pro ram 

Avalon Recovery Society (Avalon Women's Centre North Shore) 
- 0 eratin 

Avalon Recovery Society (Avalon Women's Centre North Shore) 
- Pro ram - Counsellin Pro ram 

$3,000 

$2,500 

$10,000 

$2,500 

Page 3 of 7 



REPORT: 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Backpack Buddies - OperatinQ 

Backpack Buddies - Program - Backpack Buddies 

Bastille Dav Festival Society - ProQram - Bastille Dav Event 

BC Pets & Friends - Operating 

BiQ Brothers of Greater Vancouver - OperatinQ 

Big Brothers of Greater Vancouver - Program - Community 
Mentorinq 

Big Sisters of BC Lower Mainland - Operating 

Big Sisters of BC Lower Mainland - Program - Big Sisters 
MentorinQ 

Big Sisters of BC Lower Mainland - Proqram - Study Buddy 

Canadian Liver Foundation, BC/Yukon Region - Program - 2024 
LIVERiQht Health Forum 

Canadian Mental Health Assn . - North and West Vancouver 
Branch - Operating 

Canadian Mental Health Assn. - North and West Vancouver 
Branch - Program - Circle of Care Housing Program 

The Cinderella Project Society - Proqram - Boutique Dav 

Crisis Intervention & Suicide Prevention Centre of BC -
Operating 

Dutch Network - Proqram - Dutch Festival / KoninQsdaQ 
Family Services of the North Shore - Program - Baby Basics and 
Breastfeedinq 
Foundations for Social Change - Program - New Leaf Expansion 
Program 
Get Out and Play - Program - 7th Annual GOAP Family Sports 
Day 
Greater Vancouver Law Students' Legal Advice Society -
Proqram - Law Students' Leqal Advice Proqram (LSLAP) 
Greater Vancouver Youth Unlimited North Shore - Program -
Mobile Youth Drop-In 
Hiqhlands United Church - Proqram - Shelter to Home 
Hollyburn Community Services Society - Operating 
Hollyburn Community Services Society - Program - Free Trauma 
Informed Counselling 
Hollyburn Community Services Society - Program - Hockey 
Heroes and Summer Proqram 
Hollyburn Community Services Society - Program - Seniors at 
Housinq Risk 
Hollyburn Community Services Society - Program - Supporting 
Seniors to Remain Housed 
lmmiqrant Link Centre Society - Operatinq 
Iranian Laughter Club - Operating 
Iranian LauQhter Club - Train the Trainer 

$500 

$4,000 

1,500 

$3,000 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$500 

$4,500 

$5,000 

$1 ,000 

$5,000 

$1 ,500 

$10,000 

$7,500 

$1,000 

$2,000 

$7,500 

$5,000 
$1 ,000 

$2,500 

$1 ,000 

$2,500 

$2,500 

$8,000 
$500 

$1 000 

Page 4 of 7 



REPORT: 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Junior Achievement of BC (JABC) - Program - Financial Literacy 
for City of North Vancouver Youth 
KidSport North Shore - Prooram - Sauamish Nation Project 
Lionsview Seniors' PlanninQ Society - OperatinQ 
Lionsview Seniors' Planning Society - Program - North 
Vancouver City Seniors' Action Committee 
Lionsview Seniors' Planning Society - Program - Services to 
Seniors Coalition/Plannina Table 
Living Systems: Family Systems Counselling, Education , Training 
& Research Society - Program - Parenting and Marriage 
Counselling 
Lookout Housina and Health Society - Operating 
Lumara Grief & Bereavement Care Society - Program - Family 
Grief Support 
North Shore Disability Resource Centre - Program - Information 
and Advocacy 
North Shore Disability Resource Centre - Program - Multi-
Sensory Van Outreach Proaram 
North Shore Disability Resource Centre - Program - Summer 
Bursary ProQram 
North Shore Keep Well Society - Operatinq 
North Shore Multicultural Society (dba as Impact North Shore) -
Operating 
North Shore Multicultural Society (dba as Impact North Shore) -
Program - Anti-Racism Programming 
North Shore Multicultural Society (dba as Impact North Shore) -
Program - Community Bridqinq 
North Shore Polish Association Belweder - Program - Polish 
Festival Vancouver 
North Shore Safety Council - Operatinq 
North Shore Safety Council - Program - Program - Be Bright, Be 
Seen 
North Shore Stroke Recovery Centre - OperatinQ 
North Shore Table Tennis Club Society - Qperatina 
North Shore Table Tennis Club Society - Program - Happy Hands 
Adapted Table Tennis ProQram 
North Shore Table Tennis Club Society - Program - Table 
Tennis for Brain Health 
North Shore Table Tennis Club Society - Program - Youth Table 
Tennis Program 
North Shore Women's Centre - Program - North Shore 
Coordinating Committee to End Violence Against Women in 
Relationships 
North Shore Women's Centre - Program - Separation Support 
Group 
North Shore Writers Association - Operatinq 
Odihi - Proqram - Bim1er Ideas Conference 
Pathways Serious Mental Illness Society - Operating 

$4,000 

$5,000 
$2,800 

$400 

$600 

$3,000 

$5 000 

$2,500 

$3,000 

$1,000 

$2,500 

$2 000 

$3,000 

$1,000 

$4,000 

$1 ,500 

$2,000 

1,000 

$5,000 
$500 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$4,000 

$3,000 

$500 
$500 

$4,000 

Page 5 of 7 



REPORT: 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Pathways Serious Mental Illness Society - Awareness and Early 
Prevention 
Quest Outreach Society - Operatinq 
Quest Outreach Society - Program - Food Recovery and 
Redistribution Program 
Special Olympics British Columbia Society - North Shore -
Program - SOBC North Shore Sports Proqram 
Spinal Cord lniurv BC - Proqram - Peer Support Proqram 
St. Andrew's United Church - Program - St. Andrew's Community 
Meal Program 
Vancouver Adaptive Snow Sports - Operating 
Vancouver Adaptive Snow Sports - Program - Adaptive Learn to 
Ski 
Volunteer Cancer Drivers Society - Operating 

TOTAL 

$2,500 

$2,000 

$5,000 

$2 ,000 

$2 ,000 

$5,000 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 

$1 ,500 
$198,300 

Five applications are recommended to not receive funding (Table 2). The committee 
decided not to recommend funding to these applications for the following reasons: 

• For organizations that submitted multiple applications, SPAC may not be 
recommending that all applications be funded. 

• Some organizations/ programs were proposing to serve a lower amount of City 
residents than others, or the outcomes are not as clear and certain. 

• The impact from larger (e.g. national) organizations with broader funding support 
would not offer as much of a direct impact in our community than local groups. 

• Some applications did not have as strong of a social planning focus. 
• Some applicants' proposed programs would not be meeting a need that was 

deemed to be as critical as other applications to supporting core needs of City 
residents. 

i bl 2 A /' t' a e - 100. ,ca ions p ropose 0 0 d t N tR ece,ve F d . un ,nq 
Dundarave Festival of Lights Society - Operating 
Latincouver Cultural & Business Society - Program - Flamenco & Tango 
Moments 2024 
Latincouver Cultural & Business Society - Proqram - Trail of Coffee 
North Shore Polish Association Belweder - Operating 
North Shore Polish Association Belweder - Program - Canadian Polish 
Active Club - Seniors Club for Over 55 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The 2024 annual budget for community grants is calculated and provided in the same 
manner as previous years. 

Page 6 of 7 



REPORT: 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations 
Date: June 12, 2024 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The allocation of grant funding is in keeping with the guiding principles of the Official 
Community Plan, specifically: 

Community Supporting Community: 
The City will continue to be a compassionate community recognizing that all 
individuals and/or their families will require support at some point in their lives. The 
City will assist organizations and individuals that provide community support 
through the responsible allocation of its resources. 

The Community Grants program supports Council's Strategic Plan priority to be "A City 
for People that is welcoming, inclusive, safe, accessible, and supports the health and 
wellbeing of all". All community grant applications are also reviewed relative to the goals 
and objectives of the City's existing Social Plan (1998) and the Community Grant 
Guidelines (Attachment 1). 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Community Planner 

Page 7 of 7 



CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATION 

Submission Deadlines: Round 1 – January 31, Round 2 – September 15 

PLEASE NOTE: These guidelines are for the City of North Vancouver. 

The District of West Vancouver’s separate Community Grants Program can be found at: 
https://westvancouver.ca/be-involved/grants-awards/community-grants. 
The District of North Vancouver’s separate Community Grants Program can be found at: 
https://www.dnv.org/programs-and-services/municipal-community-grants 

Page 1 of 10 Document: 1332876-v1 

Guidelines 
Using these Guidelines 

These guidelines are to be used to correctly and effectively complete the City of North 
Vancouver Municipal Grant Application Forms.   

Read this document before completing the forms to ensure your application is completed 
correctly. 

Contents 
Using these Guidelines .............................................................................................................. 1 
City of North Vancouver Municipal Community Grants - Overview ............................................. 1 
Applying for the City of North Vancouver’s Community Grants ................................................... 3 
Evaluation Criteria ...................................................................................................................... 4 
Filling in the Application Forms - Overview ................................................................................. 4 
Filling in the Organization Summary Form ................................................................................. 5 
Filling in the Operating Grant Application Form .......................................................................... 6 
Filling in the Program Grant Application Form ............................................................................ 6 
Final Steps to Completing the Application Package ................................................................... 7 
Frequently Asked Questions ...................................................................................................... 8 

City of North Vancouver Municipal Community Grants - Overview 

Purpose of the City of North Vancouver Municipal Community Grants 
City of North Vancouver Municipal Community Grants are intended to support not-for-profit 
organizations serving City residents.  The City provides these grants in order to: 

To provide local government endorsement to better attract funding from more senior levels
of government, donors, and foundations;
To assist groups with the delivery of services which work to reduce social, economic or
physical disadvantage; and/or which improve the quality of life for residents;
To serve vulnerable and hard to reach populations in areas where the municipality does not
provide services;
To effect positive social change;
To provide seed money to enable quick responses to changing and / or unmet community
needs.

PDF: 2475821



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 2 of 10 

Who Can Apply? 

Eligible Organizations 

The organization applying for a grant must be: 

a) A not-for-profit with a BC Society No. and/or Charitable Registration No.   
b) Providing services to residents of the City of North Vancouver 
c) Seeking sources of funding other than City of North Vancouver Municipal Community 

Grants. 
d) Able to provide proof of financial responsibility (latest financial statement). 

Eligible Expenses 

a) Special projects and events: e.g. hosting a workshop or producing resource material. 
b) Operating costs: e.g. ongoing operating costs such as rent, utilities, fixed costs. 
c) Project or program to serve a particular group.  A program typically has distinct 

resources committed to the operation of that specific program such as staff costs and 
other expenses related to that program. 

d) Capital costs: e.g. the purchase of office equipment.   

Program Grants: Applying for More than One 

You may apply for more than one program grant, but must complete a SEPARATE Program 
Grant Application Form for EACH additional grant. 

Funding Characteristics of the City of North Vancouver’s Community Grants 

The City is working with a set grant budget during each funding cycle and strives to be equitable 
in funding both new and established needs.  Funding is not guaranteed.  Each cycle, the 
applications are considered and grants are allocated in response to current needs and 
resources.   

Funding Limits 

The maximum total grant amount available per year from the City of North Vancouver is 
$15,000. 

Funding Term 

The term of a City of North Vancouver Municipal Community Grant is one year.  

Funding Cycles 

Grants are allocated bi-annually in the City of North Vancouver. An annual Accountability Form 
must be completed. 

Notification of Application Decisions  

Allocations by municipal Council are typically made in June/July (Round One grants) and 
November/December (Round Two grants).  Organizations are notified by letter. 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 3 of 10 

Disbursement of Funds 

Cheques are typically issued by the City’s Finance department in June or July (Round One 
grants) and in November/December (Round Two grants). 

Acknowledgement of City of North Vancouver Community Grants  

All recipients of City of North Vancouver Community Grants are required to publicly 
acknowledge such donations on their print and digital promotional materials, website, and social 
media relating to the program and/or service funded by the grant. 

Applying for the City of North Vancouver’s Community Grants 

This form is for the City of North Vancouver’s Community Grants only. 
 
Please note: Each municipality on the North Shore receives, processes and allocates grants 
separately.   
 
The District of West Vancouver’s separate Community Grants Program can be found at: 
westvancouver.ca/be-involved/grants-awards/community-grants 
The District of North Vancouver’s separate Community Grants Program can be found at: 
dnv.org/programs-and-services/community-grants-and-awards 

Application Submission 

Application Deadlines 

The deadline for Round One Community Grants applications is 5:00 p.m. January 31 of each 
year, or, where January 31 lands on a weekend, the last Friday of January.  

The City of North Vancouver has a Round Two intake of applications with a deadline of 
September 15.  PLEASE NOTE: If your organization applied for a grant in the first round of the 
year, you may apply to the second round but for a different program only. 

Submitting Forms  

Choose one of two options: 
 

 Email (submit one digital copy by email): communitygrants@cnv.org  
 

or 
 

 Mail or Drop off (submit two copies): 
 
Planning and Development Department 
Attention: Edytha Barker 
City of North Vancouver 
141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, V7M 1H9 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 4 of 10 

Evaluation Criteria 

In evaluating each application for funding, the following will be the basis for assessment of your 
application.  Please be sure to address these in your application: 

a) Evidence of need for the service or project. 
b) Number of City of North Vancouver residents served. 
c) Quality of management (established track record, proposal well thought out and clear, 

etc.). 
d) Evidence of clear goals and expected outcomes. 
e) Uniqueness of service (does not duplicate but may complement an existing service). 
f) Number of local volunteers. 
g) Evidence of financial need for a City of North Vancouver Community Grant. 
h) Amount of funding requested from each municipality is proportional to the number of 

residents served. 
i) Inclusion and access.  Breaking down the layered and intersecting physical, social, and 

perceived barriers that can deter people from accessing services and programs. These 
include varying mobility, cognitive, and accessibility needs, sense of safety, attitudes and 
discrimination, how welcoming and inclusive programs feel, cost considerations, 
wayfinding and communication needsand other obstacles. 

j) Indicated involvement from other community partners whether financial or in kind. 

Further, the City’s goals and objectives will also be considered while reviewing grant 
applications. For more information: https://www.cnv.org/Community-Environment/Social-
Planning/Community-Wellbeing  

Filling in the Application Forms - Overview 

Please ensure the following information is read carefully prior to filling in your application forms 
to ensure the forms are filled out adequately, accurately, and effectively. 

Acceptable Applications 

Applications will only be accepted if they are: 

 Completed in full including all attachments listed on the City of North Vancouver 
Community Grant Application Checklist.   

 Completed legibly  
 Submitted on time  

***Please note: Unless all information is supplied or an acceptable explanation offered as to 
why this information cannot be supplied, incomplete applications will not be considered. 

Three Application Forms 

There are three application forms to be used as follows: 

 Organization Summary Form: to be filled out by all applicants;  
 Operating Grant Application Form: for organizations applying for financial assistance for 

ongoing operating costs such as rent, utilities, fixed costs; 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 5 of 10 

 Program Grant Application Form: for individual projects/services/programs.  You may 
apply for more than one program grant, but must complete a SEPARATE Program Grant 
Application Form for EACH additional grant. 

Quality of Information 

The application forms provide the opportunity to explain information on the history, mandate, 
experience, and objectives of your organization; and to demonstrate to Committee members 
what makes your organization and its programs valuable to the City of North Vancouver and 
how your organization responds to community needs. 

Maximum Words for Answer 

Always stick to the stated word count and be concise with your answer. 

Filling in the Organization Summary Form 

The Organization Summary Form is to be filled out by all applicants. 

The questions on the Organization Summary Form should make it clear what information is 
required.  Keep in mind the information above in Evaluation Criteria and Quality of Information.  
However, some specifics and examples are provided here to assist. 

Section: Accessibility 
Examples of topics to consider are provided below for each item in this question: 

Question: How does your organization ensure your services are accessible and inclusive to: 
a) People with disabilities 

 Is your building wheelchair accessible? 
 Are you on a bus route? 
 Are there designated parking spots for persons with disabilities adjacent to the 

building in which your programs/services take place? 
 How do you market/communicate your programs/services to people with disabilities? 

b) Culturally diverse communities: (maximum 50 words) 
 Do you list languages other than English that are spoken by your staff/volunteers? 
 Are your program/service materials available in languages other than English?  

Which languages? 
 Are your website and/or social media in languages other than English?  Which 

languages? 
 How do you market/communicate your programs/services to speakers of languages 

other than English? 
c) People of various social and economic backgrounds: (maximum 50 words) 

 Which organizations have you approached that serve this demographic in order to 
promote your programs/services? 

 How do you market/communicate your programs/services to people of various social 
and economic backgrounds? 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 6 of 10 

Section: Trends 

Question: What current trends affect your organization?  E.g. is the demographic changing, is 
the waitlist changing, etc.  (maximum 50 words) 

The City values non-profit social service organizations’ identification of current trends in the 
community.  For example, whether more of their clients are feeling isolated, more families are 
seeking food or on the verge of homelessness.  Other trends could include growing waitlists for 
particular programs or a decrease in volunteer hours. 

As a social service organization working closely with our more vulnerable populations, the 
organization’s ability to adapt or create new programs and services to meet these changing 
needs is significant. 

This question asks organizations to identify and share these trends. 

Section: Sustainability 

Question: Please describe what steps your organization has taken to reduce Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions and increase energy efficiency (e.g. implementing Power Smart measures, 
carpooling to meetings, etc.). 

The City places strong value on environmental sustainability.  Explain how the organization 
shares this value.  Please be sure to provide examples. 

Filling in the Operating Grant Application Form 

The Operating Grant Application Form is for organizations applying for financial assistance for 
ongoing operating costs such as rent, utilities, fixed costs. 

The questions on the Operating Grant Application Form should make it clear what information is 
required.  Keep in mind the information above in Evaluation Criteria and Quality of Information.  
However, some specifics are provided here to assist. 

Section: Operating Budget 

The Operating Budget refers to the costs and revenue associated with the general operation of 
the organization.  Examples of expenses include ongoing operating costs such as rent, utilities, 
fixed costs. 

Question: In-kind Sources 

In-kind sources are sources of non-cash support in the form of goods and services. 

Filling in the Program Grant Application Form 

The Program Grant Application Form is for individual projects/services/programs.  You may 
apply for more than one program grant, but must complete a SEPARATE Program Grant 
Application Form for EACH additional grant. 

The questions on the Program Grant Application Form should make it clear what information is 
required.  Keep in mind the information above in Evaluation Criteria and Quality of Information.  
However, some specifics and examples are provided here to assist. 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 7 of 10 

Section: Program Proposal 

Question 4. If you applied for and received funding for this program last year, what were the 
specific outcomes of that program?  Please provide quantitative and qualitative information.   

This question asks for “quantitative and qualitative information”.  Qualitative information is 
anecdotal, quantitative is numbers, statistics.  

Stories and anecdotal responses are interesting and valuable; however, the response should be 
backed with numbers to validate the statements made.  Examples of numbers could be: count 
of volunteers, volunteer hours, clients served, meals provided or referrals made.  

Question 5. Please identify the specific criteria you will use to evaluate your program’s results 
and how you will measure success. 

The tools used to evaluate should provide quantitative information, be backed by numbers, 
whenever possible, as this helps demonstrate the results.  Examples of criteria you could use 
could be: count of volunteers, volunteer hours, clients served, meals provided or referrals made.  

Question 7. If you did not receive the amount of money requested last year, what was the 
impact to the program?   

Qualitative or anecdotal information is expected along with quantitative information, the 
numbers, in order to demonstrate the impact.  Examples of quantitative information could be the 
number of clients turned away, resources that had to be cut which impacted the quality of the 
program. 

Section: Program Budget 

Question: Please indicate program start and end dates or fiscal start date as appropriate 

Note that programs can have a specific start and end date or be continuous.  Please indicate as 
appropriate. 

Question: In-kind Sources 

In-kind sources are sources of non-cash support in the form of goods and services. 

Final Steps to Completing the Application Package 

The Checklist  

Organizations must include attachments with the application forms to create their completed 
application package.  Please be sure to use the Checklist provided as a cover sheet for your 
submission.  This Checklist details the attachments and forms that must be completed to ensure 
your application will be considered. 

Attachments 

All attachments required with your application should be marked on your Checklist  

All applications will be required to include: 

 Organization Summary Application Form 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 8 of 10 

 Most recent Year End Financial Statement (examples include balance sheet, 
income/expenditure) 

 Most recent Annual Report (just one regardless of number of applications submitted) 
 Organization’s Proposed Budget for your fiscal year 

Depending on grant applications being made, an application may be required to include any of 
the following: 

 Signed Operating Grant Application form 
 Signed Program Grant Application form(s) 
 Annual Accountability Form for grant funds spent in the previous year 

Frequently Asked Questions 
 

1. What is the difference between a program grant and an operating grant? 

Generally, an operating grant refers to the general on-going operation of your organization 
(e.g. rent, utilities, fixed costs), whereas a program has distinct resources committed to the 
operation of that specific program (staff costs and other expenses related to that program).   

Note: Programs can be continuous or have a specific start and end date. 

2. The service that my organization offers in the City of North Vancouver is part of a larger 
umbrella organization located elsewhere. Our published financial statements reflect the 
larger organization.  Is this an issue? 

There is an expectation that the budgets and financial information that you include in your 
grant application reflect the City of North Vancouver service that is being offered by your 
organization.  The financial information for the larger umbrella organization is informative, 
but does not provide Committee members the information they need to assess your 
application. 

3. When we apply for grants, our organization typically requests more than we require in 
anticipation that we may receive less.  Is this advisable? 

It is best to request the actual amount that your organization requires.   Applications where 
the funding request appears to be inflated can be viewed unfavourably. 

4. Can we rely on the City’s community grant funding as the sole source of funding? 

Community grant funding is considered one source of funding.  Organizations should not 
prepare and submit budgets where this request is the only source of revenue. 

5. In order to save time, our organization sometimes will ‘cut and paste’ from previous 
application forms.  Is this acceptable? 

Although we do not expect agencies to re-write their applications from scratch every year, 
we do expect the information included in the application form to reflect current information, 
both qualitative/anecdotal and quantitative/statistical.  



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 9 of 10 

6. When filling out the application, I sometimes reduce the font size in order to get all of my 
answer to fit into the box, is this acceptable? 

Always stick to the stated word count and be concise with your answer.   

7. Can I just include qualitative/anecdotal information in my application form, or do you 
require statistics or other quantitative analysis?  

The answer is both. Stories and anecdotal responses are interesting and valuable; however, 
your response should be backed with numbers and photos whenever possible as this helps 
Committee members clearly see the funding need for your program or organization.  

Examples of numbers could be: count of volunteers, volunteer hours, clients served, meals 
provided or referrals made.  

8. As some of the services that we offer are done discreetly without recording names or 
addresses, it is challenging to provide precise numbers of individuals accessing services 
or what municipality they come from.   

While we respect your clients’ need for anonymity, there is data that can be collected that 
will not infringe on confidentiality.  For further information or assistance, please contact City 
staff. 

9. On the Operating Grant Application, the question asks for how many individuals were 
served in the City.  Are percentages okay or do we need to go through postal codes and 
get exact numbers? 

The actual numbers are required.  For further information or assistance, please contact City 
staff. 

10. To make it easier for applicants, could the City not evaluate the applications in line with 
the fiscal years and funding cycles of the applicant organizations? 

The application timeline is based on the timing of the municipal budgets and includes the 
time required for the Committees to evaluate the applications and make recommendations 
to Council.  Further, the current model allows the funds to be allocated taking into 
consideration all applications received which is only possible with a single review per grant 
period. 

11. If we are making applications to each municipality on the North Shore, do we ask for the 
full amount we require from each municipality? 

You could split the full amount you require and ask for a portion from each municipality that 
is commensurate with the residents served in each municipality.  

12. I am not sure whether certain expenses would be considered operating costs, how do I 
know? 

Operating costs are your ongoing costs such as rent, utilities, fixed costs.  If you are unsure, 
please contact City staff to discuss. 



City of North Vancouver Community Grants Application - Guidelines 

 Page 10 of 10 

13. We receive a great deal of funding in-kind, are these considered in relation to financial 
funding in terms of evaluating whether the municipal grant would be a sole source of 
funding? 

Yes: in-kind sources of funding are requested in the budget sections of the application forms 
to allow them to be evaluated in monetary terms along with financial sources. 

Updated: January 2024 



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Athletics for Kids Financial Assistance (B.C.) 
Society
#214 - 901 West 3rd Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7P 3P9
Valerie Gosselin, Grants & Financial Manager
604-221-7529
valerie@a4k.ca

$4,000 Program - Sport4Life Grant Program - 
Athletics for Kids' goal is to eliminate the 
financial barriers that some families face 
when attempting to register their children for 
amateur sports.  They have been helping 
kids in need participate in amateur sports for 
the past 24 years. Their grants help assist 
children aged 5-18 across the province, in 
over 55 different kinds of sports.  Grants are 
issued directly to the sports program 
providers. Children must be enrolled in 
school and may have up to 100% of their 
sport registration fees paid. Eligible 
applicants must meet established criteria.

$3,000

Avalon Recovery Society (Avalon Women's Centre 
North Shore)
#300 - 132 East 14th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2N3
Kelly Clarke, Manager, Fund Development
778-868-4215
kelly@avaloncentres.org

$15,000 Operating - The funding requested would 
support Avalon's overall operations.  Over 
the past few years, there has been a 
dramatic increase in demand for services.  
Avalon provides vital services (in person 
and online) to women struggling with 
addiction by providing connection, support, 
refuge and safety as well as education, 
counselling and mentoring.  In 2023 a 
continued increase in outreach was noticed.

$2,500

Avalon Recovery Society (Avalon Women's Centre 
North Shore)
#300 - 132 East 14th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2N3
Kelly Clarke, Manager, Fund Development
778-868-4215
kelly@avaloncentres.org

$10,000 Program - Counselling Program - Free 
counselling program run for women on the 
North Shore.  This program is in high 
demand and runs with very long waitlists.  
The goal is to have barrier free, no waitlist 
access to this counselling to provide support 
for women in recovery. This is a crucial 
component in the individual recovery of 
women who often cannot afford private 
counselling. 

$10,000

Avalon Recovery Society
#300 - 132 East 14th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2N3
Kelly Clarke, Manager, Fund Development
778-868-4215
kelly@avaloncentres.org

$2,500 Program - Operating Hours Expansion -  
Currently Avalon has drop-in hours for 
women seeking support, allowing them to 
come to the Centre during certain times. 
Due to budget restrictions and cost of 
staffing, these drop in hours are challenging 
to extend. Funding this program would allow 
these drop-in hours to be open an additional 
4 hours a day and on weekends.

$2,500

Backpack Buddies 
170 Harbour Avenue
North Vancouver, BC V7J 2E6
Joanne Griffiths, Co-Executive Director
604-910-4046
joanne@backpackbuddies.ca

$4,000 Operating -  Operating funding is needed to 
cover salaries for the staff who manage the 
organization.  The program is completely 
funded by donations, grants and fundraising 
activities.  The operations base is now 
located in a larger warehouse in North 
Vancouver.  The program is delivered in two 
schools in the City and through North Shore 
Neighbourhood House.

$500

Document  #2535963



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Backpack Buddies 
170 Harbour Avenue
North Vancouver, BC V7J 2E6
Joanne Griffiths, Co-Executive Director
604-910-4046
joanne@backpackbuddies.ca

$4,000 Program - Backpack Buddies - This 
program bridges the 'weekend hunger gap' 
for vulnerable, low income students.  On 
Friday afternoons, backpacks are filled with 
food for children to take home for the 
weekend.  This includes enough for meals 
and snacks to last the weekend.  The focus 
on increasing nutrition in the foods provided 
is ongoing.  

$4,000

BC Pets & Friends
PO Box 38639, 100 3rd Street West
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1E0
Pina Scaglione, Partnership & Development 
Manager
604-763-7533
pina@petsandfriends.org

$5,000 Operating - Since 1986, Pets and Friends 
have been providing healing comfort and 
companionship of animals through pet 
therapy teams that visit people in long-term 
care facilities, mental health centres and 
hospitals as well as educational institutions 
and special events.  Studies show that pet 
therapy can ease feelings of loneliness and 
depression, reduce stress and anxiety and 
increase levels of mood elevating serotonin. 

$3,000

Big Brothers of Greater Vancouver
5118 Joyce Street
Vancouver, BC  V5R 4H1
Adaku Ann Akogu, Development Officer
604-876-2447
aakogu@bbgvf.com

$5,000 Operating - Operating funds would support 
the salaries and travel expenses of staff who 
serve the North Shore families, allowing 
them to interact with the community on a 
regular basis.  Mentoring coordinators 
recruit volunteers for North Shore programs, 
perform volunteer and family assessments, 
provide child safety training and coordinate 
and supervise programs.

$1,500

Big Brothers of Greater Vancouver
5118 Joyce Street
Vancouver, BC  V5R 4H1
Adaku Ann Akogu, Development Officer
604-876-2447
aakogu@bbgvf.com

$5,000 Program - Community Mentoring - This 
program  provides supportive one-to-one 
mentoring for children ages 7 - 17 by 
matching them with an adult volunteer role 
model.  Through regular weekly outings, a 
relationship builds on trust, common 
interests and fun. The relationships are 
monitored and supported  

$1,500

Big Sisters of BC Lower Mainland
#200 - 1158 Joyce Street
Vancouver, BC  V5R 4H1
Nathania Fung, Senior Director of Philanthropy & 
Campaigns
604-873-4525, ext. 108
nfung@bigsisters.bc.ca

$2,000 Operating - Funding is sought to assist with 
operating costs associated with supporting 
mentoring programs in the City of North 
Vancouver.  These expenses include rent 
and utilities as well as taxes and 
maintenance and membership expenses for 
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Canada.

$1,500

Big Sisters of BC Lower Mainland
#200 - 1158 Joyce Street
Vancouver, BC  V5R 4H1
Nathania Fung, Senior Director of Philanthropy & 
Campaigns
604-873-4525, ext. 108
nfung@bigsisters.bc.ca

$2,500 Program - Big Sisters Mentoring - Big 
Sisters of the Lower Mainland changes the 
course of young lives by providing 
supportive Development Relationships (in 
the form of mentoring) to youth in the 
community who need someone the most.  
They support girls and female-identified 
youth who may be facing challenges such 
as bullying, isolation, poverty, social anxiety 
and more. 

$1,500



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Big Sisters of BC Lower Mainland
#200 - 1158 Joyce Street
Vancouver, BC  V5R 4H1
Nathania Fung, Senior Director of Philanthropy & 
Campaigns
604-873-4525, ext. 108
nfung@bigsisters.bc.ca

$2,500 Program - Study Buddy - This is a weekly 
1:1 mentoring program that focuses on 
academic support.  Students are matched 
with a mentor who can provide support in 
the child or youth's identified are of need at 
school.  Children and youth who participate 
in this program report a higher level of self-
esteem, better social interaction with peers 
and increased pursuit of post-secondary 
education.

$1,500

Canadian Liver Foundation, BC/Yukon Region
Suite 109 - 828 West 8th Avenue
Vancouver, BC  V5Z 1E2
Daniela Bordignon, Regional Coordinator
604-707-6430
dbordignon@liver.ca

$1,000 Program - 2024 LIVERight Health Forum - 
The CLF provides liver health education to 
patients, caregivers, the public and 
healthcare providers through awareness 
campaigns, online, printed materials and 
over the phone.  The LIVERight Health 
Forum provides an opportunity to improve 
liver health in communities across BC 
through interactive delivery of liver health 
education. It is a free, hybrid event with a 
live stream component. 

$500

Canadian Mental Health Assn. - North and West 
Vancouver Branch
300 - 1835 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2J8
Anveet Mann, Communications Assistant Manager
604-987-6959                                                            
avneet.mann@cmha.bc.ca

$10,000 Operating - Operation funding is needed to 
support the administrative structure and 
information and referral service that 
provides free mental health information and 
service referrals to the North Shore 
community. Community members needing 
mental health information for themselves, 
friends or family members often begin by 
connecting with CMHA.

$4,500

Canadian Mental Health Assn. - North and West 
Vancouver Branch
300 - 1835 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2J8
Anveet Mann, Communications Assistant Manager
604-987-6959                                                            
avneet.mann@cmha.bc.ca

$5,000 Program - Circle of Care Housing 
Program - This program resulted from a 
need to address the region's housing crisis.  
It provides much needed housing for 
vulnerable populations on the North Shore, 
and currently houses 13 individuals across 
three homes, two for single men and one for 
women and couples.  Residents of these 
homes have experienced multiple barriers 
and difficulty finding safe and affordable 
housing.  

$5,000

The Cinderella Project Society
#172 - 219 Mackay Road
North Vancouver,  BC  V7P 3N6
Matthew McKenzie, Director
604-379-1948
mrtmackenzie@gmail.com

$6,400 Program - Boutique Day - The 
organization's mission is to break the cycle 
of poverty in Metro Vancouver.  To support 
this mission, they work closely with school 
guidance counsellor and social workers to 
support their work by encouraging and 
celebrating at-risk youth in their pursuit of 
high school graduation amidst poverty and 
marginalization and to re-ignite belief in their 
future.  Boutique Day is designed as a day 
or recognition and self-esteem boosting in 
order to give the youth an opportunity for 
hope towards the milestone of graduation.  

$1,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Crisis Intervention & Suicide Prevention Centre of 
BC
763 East Broadway
Vancouver, BC  V5T 1X8
Oliver Lum, Development Coordinator
604-872-1811
olum@crisiscentre.bc.ca

$15,000 Operating - The Crisis Centre of BC has a 
long history of serving the residents of North 
Vancouver.  Year after year, there has been 
an increase in volume of calls to the phone 
lines. With the addition of the 9-8-8 National 
Suicide Help Line flowing into the Crisis 
Centre, funding would help continue the 
work done for the Vancouver Coastal Health 
Region.

$5,000

Dundarave Festival of Lights Society
PO Box 91766
West Vancouver, BC  V7V 4S1
Mary Markwick, Executive Director
778-847-1426
mary@dundaravefestival.com

$2,000 Operating - The Dundarave Festival 
supports the North Shore Shelter through 
the Forest of Miracles, drawing visitors from 
across the region.  They are an active 
participant in the North Shore 
Homelessness Task Force.

$0

Family Services of the North Shore
Suite 203 - 1111 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2H4
Julia Staub-French, Executive Director
604-988-5281
jsfrench@familyservices.bc.ca

$12,000 Program - Baby Basics and 
Breastfeeding - In September 2023, Family 
Services started this program to meet 
community needs.  The Baby Basics and 
Breastfeeding drop-in provides support to all 
parents with infants from birth - 12 months. 
Meeting at the CNV Library, a family 
resource facilitator and a certified Birth 
Doula offer information, support, facilitated 
discussion and resources to new parents.  

$10,000

Greater Vancouver Law Students' Legal Advice 
Society
129 - 1822 East Mall, UBC
Vancouver, BC  V6T 1Z1
Queenie Leung, Executive Director
604-822-1661
execdirector@lslap.bc.ca

$15,000 Program - Law Students' Legal Advice 
Program (LSLAP) - LSLAP is a non-profit 
society run by the law students at the 
University of British Columbia.  They provide 
free legal advice and representation to 
clients who would otherwise be unable to 
afford legal assistance.  They are the 
second largest provider of free legal 
representation in BC.  Their North 
Vancouver clinic is located at North Shore 
Neighbourhood House. 

$2,000

Greater Vancouver Youth Unlimited North Shore
115 - 12974 84th Avenue
Surrey, BC  V3W 1B3
Andrew Chong, North Shore Area Director
andrew@youthunlimited.com
604-307-8693

$12,000 Program - Mobile Youth Drop-In - YUNS's 
Mobile Youth Drop-In is accessible to youth, 
ages 10 to 24, but targeting high school age 
(13 to 18) and partnering primarily with the 
City of North Vancouver (through obtaining 
City-permitted space in both Carson 
Graham and Sutherland school 
neighbourhoods).  Since 2015, an 
overwhelmingly positive reputation has been 
built in the community, especially in the 
CNV.  This is the only mobile outreach of its 
kind on the North Shore.  

$7,500

Highlands United Church
3255 Edgemont Boulevard
North Vancouver, BC  V0N 3A0
Melissa Wilkin, Administrator
604-980-6071
churchoffice@highlandsunited.org

$8,000 Program - Shelter to Home - This is an 
outreach program of Highlands United 
Church which collects and stores donations 
of gently used or new furniture, linens and 
household items and distributes them to 
referred clients moving from homelessness 
to independent living. Clients are referred 
from a number of North Shore agencies.  

$5,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Hollyburn Community Services Society
104 - 267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1A5
Joy Hayden, Director of Innovation & Engagement
604-512-2483
jhayden@hollyburnsociety.ca

$2,000 Operating - Hollyburn Community Services 
Society's mission is to provide unique 
services in response to existing and 
emerging community social needs across 
the North Shore. The most prevalent social 
issues involve youth, senior and family 
homelessness.  As administrative and 
infrastructure costs increase, operating 
funding through municipalities is relied on to 
assist with covering costs such as rent 
increases and insurance costs.

$1,000

Hollyburn Community Services Society
104 - 267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1A5
Joy Hayden, Director of Innovation & Engagement
604-512-2483
jhayden@hollyburnsociety.ca

$3,000 Program - Free Trauma Informed 
Counselling - Due to a considerable wait 
list for community-based Counselling, 
Hollyburn has created a free trauma-
informed counselling program for youth, 
seniors and families.  Coming out of COVID 
19, more serious anxiety and depression 
amongst clients and the community has 
been witnessed.  Clients typically receive a 
minimum of 10 one-hour sessions. The 
approach is through a trauma-informed 
lenses.

$2,500

Hollyburn Community Services Society
104 - 267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1A5
Joy Hayden, Director of Innovation & Engagement
604-512-2483
jhayden@hollyburnsociety.ca

$2,000 Program - Hollyburn Hockey Heroes and 
Summer Program - This is a unique 
program in partnership with the North and 
West Vancouver school districts that offers 
disadvantaged youth an opportunity to play 
in a recreational hockey program once a 
week. The program serves youth 14-19 
years of age.  Activities are continued 
throughout the summer. Participants are 
youth who are truant in school, face socio or 
economic challenges or have behavourial 
issues an opportunity to play hockey at no 
cost with all equipment provided. 

$1,000

Hollyburn Community Services Society
104 - 267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1A5
Joy Hayden, Director of Innovation & Engagement
604-512-2483
jhayden@hollyburnsociety.ca

$2,500 Program - Seniors at Housing Risk  - This 
program supports vulnerable seniors 
through housing outreach to North Shore 
seniors and families who are homeless or in 
danger of imminent housing loss. Services 
include one-on-one assistance to find 
appropriate housing and assistance filling 
out application forms, etc.  Clients are also 
connected to community resources and 
health services.  

$2,500

Hollyburn Community Services Society
104 - 267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1A5
Joy Hayden, Director of Innovation & Engagement
604-512-2483
jhayden@hollyburnsociety.ca

$2,500 Program - Supporting Seniors to Remain 
Housed - This is an eviction prevention 
program that works with seniors and 
landlords to mitigate tenancy issues.  The 
program works with both parties to come to 
positive solutions to ensure the senior can 
maintain their rental housing.  

$2,500

Immigrant Link Centre Society
#403 - 206 Therrien Street
Coquitlam, BC  V3K 4T5
Igor Bjelac, Director
604-724-7028
igorbjelac@yahoo.com

$15,000 Operating - ILCS's mandate is to save the 
environment and prevent methane emission 
by collecting and delivering food for free to 
people in need instead of having it thrown in 
the landfill.  Food donations come from 
grocery store and warehouses.

$8,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Iranian Laughter Club
#1507 - 145 St. Georges Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 3G8
Haleh Shirchian, Founder 
604-700-5960
iranianlaughterclub@gmail.com

$5,000 Operating - The Iranian Laughter Club is a 
new society in BC.  Their mission is to bring 
laughter therapy & wellness activities to all 
members of the community, at any age and 
in different languages.  This improves 
mental health & quality of life. Last year the 
founder ran all operations and professional 
facilitation herself with two volunteers.

$500

Iranian Laughter Club
#1507 - 145 St. Georges Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 3G8
Haleh Shirchian, Founder 
604-700-5960
iranianlaughterclub@gmail.com

$1,500 Program - Train the Trainer - This is a two 
day workshop and a six month practicum 
program to educate new facilitators for 
laughter therapy techniques.  The new 
instructors will learn the background and 
benefits of Laughter Therapy and how it can 
be implemented to bring joy into people's 
lives. 

$1,000

Junior Achievement of BC (JABC)
360 - 475 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC  V6B 4M9
Susan Shepherd, Development Officer
778-350-4370
s.shepherd@jabc.org

$10,000 Program - Financial Literacy for City of 
North Vancouver Youth - There is 
currently a gap in the school curriculum 
around the topic of financial literacy.  Basic 
financial literacy helps people become self-
sufficient and achieve financial stability for a 
higher quality of life. The goal of the project 
is to deliver 100 financial literacy programs 
to an estimated 2,000 CNV students 
attending schools in SD #44 and youth who 
are no longer in school but participating in 
employment program through community 
groups. 

$4,000

Lionsview Seniors' Planning Society
1733 Lions Gate Lane
North Vancouver, BC  V7P 0C7
Margaret Coates, Coordinator/Executive Director
604-988-7115, ex. 4001
lions_view@telus.net

$2,800 Operating - LSPS's mandate is to act as a 
strong voice for seniors and seniors' 
organizations and to support goals to create 
and implement programs and services 
which mitigate issues and concerns relevant 
to seniors and seniors' organizations. 

$2,800

Lionsview Seniors' Planning Society
1733 Lions Gate Lane
North Vancouver, BC  V7P 0C7
Margaret Coates, Coordinator/Executive Director
604-988-7115, ex. 4001
lions_view@telus.net

$400 Program - North Vancouver City Seniors 
Action Committee -The Seniors Action 
Tables which are based across the North 
Shore work on and plan initiatives to 
improve the quality of life an well-being of 
seniors on the North Shore. The SATs meet 
monthly and are comprised of 12 members 
and two supporting organization (CNV 
library and Silver Harbour Centre). The 
SATs work with senior residents, local 
municipalities, community organizations and 
businesses to raise awareness of senior 
issues and the need for age and dementia-
friendly communities. 

$400



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Lionsview Seniors' Planning Society
1733 Lions Gate Lane
North Vancouver, BC  V7P 0C7
Margaret Coates, Coordinator/Executive Director
604-988-7115, ex. 4001
lions_view@telus.net

$600 Program - Services to Seniors 
Coalition/Planning Table - This 
Coalition/Planning Table provides "one of a 
kind" service to seniors.  The objective is to 
coordinate and provide a venue for 
representatives from seniors' service 
providers for collaboration, networking and 
education.  55 participants from the North 
Shore come together 9 to 12 times per year 
to network, set priorities and plan services 
strategically. 

$600

Living Systems: Family Systems Counselling, 
Education, Training & Research Society
209 - 1500 Marine Drive
North Vancouver, BC  V7P 1T7
Leila Howard, Business & Finance Director
778-232-0479
info@livingsystems.ca

$5,000 Program - Parenting and Marriage 
Counselling - This program provides 
parents with skills and knowledge to 
improve their relationship with each other 
and with their children; primarily parents in 
this program have dependents with 
behaviour or mental health issues. Each 
parent gains insight into how they can 
change one's part in the family problem. A 
sliding scale is provided for household 
incomes under $50,000.  

$3,000

Lookout Housing and Health Society
705 West 2nd Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7E 1E6
Owen Hynes, Community Coordinator
604-982-9126, ex. 107
owen.hynes@lookoutsociety.ca

$10,000 Operating - The housing centre operates 24 
hours a day/365 days a year, providing 45 
temporary shelter beds to individuals 
experiencing homelessness, historically 
running at 100.79% capacity. They also 
operate 2 Emergency Weather Response 
shelters with 16 mats at North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and 20 mats at North 
Shore Housing Centre between November 1 
and March 1 each year. 25 units of 
transitional housing for individuals who 
require longer-term support are also within 
their purview. The shelter is funded primarily 
by BC Housing to provide shelter and basic 
needs but this funding does not cover any 
additional programming.  

$5,000

Lumara Grief & Bereavement Care Society 
(formerly Camp Kerry Society)
322 - 198 Island Hwy, East, PO Box 899
Parksville, BC  V6P 2G8
Heather Mohan, Executive Director
604-808-1199
heather@lumarsociety.org

$2,500 Program - Family Grief Support - This 
program provides grief support services for 
children, youth, and families on the North 
Shore.  Families in North Vancouver are 
supported through a unique model that 
brings together a compassionate inter-
disciplinary team.

$2,500

North Shore Disability Resource Centre
3158 Mountain Highway
North Vancouver, BC  V7K 2H5
Kim Miles, Director, Community Housing & 
Inclusion and Community Based Services
604-904-4090 / 604-985-5371
k.miles@nsdrc.org

$4,000 Program - Information and Advocacy - 
This program provides information and 
referral services to people with disabilities of 
all ages, nationalities and socioeconomic 
backgrounds who reside on the North 
Shore.  This is the only program in the area 
to offer appeal services for people with 
disabilities who may have been denied 
Persons with Disability benefits.  Referrals 
are provided and self-advocacy encouraged. 

$3,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

North Shore Disability Resource Centre
3158 Mountain Highway
North Vancouver, BC  V7K 2H5
Kim Miles, Director, Community Housing & 
Inclusion and Community Based Services
604-904-4090 / 604-985-5371
k.miles@nsdrc.org

$1,000 Program - Mobile Multi-Sensory Van 
Outreach Program - This is BC's first 
mobile multi-sensory environment and 
started operations in 2022.  The room is 
designed to calm the senses to bring peace, 
calm and wellness.  These environments 
can aid learning and development as well as 
help relax and agitated person or stimulate 
alertness levels of someone who has 
sensory processing disorders. 

$1,000

North Shore Disability Resource Centre
3158 Mountain Highway
North Vancouver, BC  V7K 2H5
Kim Miles, Director, Community Housing & 
Inclusion and Community Based Services
604-904-4090 / 604-985-5371
k.miles@nsdrc.org

$3,500 Program - Summer Bursary Program 
2024 - This program offers financial 
bursaries to families who have children with 
disabilities to ensure that they can send 
their child to a summer day camp of their 
choice or hire a worker to assist the child at 
camp.  The NSDRC has been providing this 
assistance since 1978.

$2,500

North Shore Keep Well Society
1733 Lions Gate Lane
North Vancouver, BC  V7P 0C7
Carole Kellough,  Board Member
604-988-7115, ext. 27
keepwell@telus.net

$3,000 Operating - Keep Well offers free exercise 
and wellness programs for all seniors on the 
North Shore. 60 volunteers assist at 8 sites 
(2 in the City). The goal is to help seniors 
cope with the challenges of aging, declining 
health, inactivity and social isolation by 
staying active, healthy and socially 
connected.  

$2,000

North Shore Multicultural Society (dba as Impact 
North Shore)
207 - 123 East 15th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2P7
Wendy McCulloch, Executive Director
604-988-2931
wendym@impactnorthshore.ca

$10,500 Operating - Impact North Shore is a for-
purpose, social impact organization creating 
opportunities for success for im/migrants. 
Services include settlement support for 
families, woman, youth and seniors, school 
support, employment support, group 
programs and English language services.

$3,000

North Shore Multicultural Society (dba as Impact 
North Shore)
207 - 123 East 15th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2P7
Wendy McCulloch, Executive Director
604-988-2931
wendym@impactnorthshore.ca

$1,000 Program - Anti-Racism Programming - 
The legacy of racism continues to have real 
consequences for radicalized individuals 
and im/migrants on the North Shore.  There 
is a significant demand for engagement 
opportunities on the NS. 

$1,000

North Shore Multicultural Society (dba as Impact 
North Shore)
207 - 123 East 15th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2P7
Wendy McCulloch, Executive Director
604-988-2931
wendym@impactnorthshore.ca

$4,000 Program - Community Bridging - Funds 
are being sought to continue developing 
programming within the broader Community 
Bridging Program.  Im/migrants on the North 
Shore continue to experience challenges 
with isolation and belonging. Community 
bridging activities are even more important 
at this time.  Activities will focus on 
developing supportive group volunteer 
opportunities with local organizations and 
increase new immigrants' knowledge about 
volunteering in Canada.  

$4,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

North Shore Polish Association Belweder
5484 Keith Road
West Vancouver, BC   V7W 3C9
Urszula Sulinska, President
604-786-1709
belweder.org@hotmail.com

$3,000 Operating - The main purpose of this 
organization is to promote education, music 
and arts among young people and families, 
to foster community spirit through organizing 
art and music events promoting Poland and 
keeping Polish culture alive within the 
community.  Currently, they operate only on 
volunteers. 

$0

North Shore Polish Association Belweder
5484 Keith Road
West Vancouver, BC   V7W 3C9
Urszula Sulinska, President
604-786-1709
belweder.org@hotmail.com

$3,000 Program - Canadian Polish Active Club - 
Seniors Club for over 55 - This program 
aims to provide services to vulnerable 
populations, especially from the Polish 
community, who lack support.  Activities are 
organized to help seniors overcome 
loneliness.  Monthly meetings are hosted 
where seniors on the North Shore can 
socialize, learn new skills and enjoy guest 
speakers. 

$0

North Shore Polish Association Belweder
5484 Keith Road
West Vancouver, BC   V7W 3C9
Urszula Sulinska, President
604-786-1709
belweder.org@hotmail.com

$5,000 Program - Polish Festival Vancouver - 
The Polish Festival will take place in North 
Vancouver on September 7, 2024. The 
festival celebrates cultural diversity in our 
community and showcases Polish culture 
and food. 

$1,500

North Shore Safety Council
3770 Hillcrest Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7R 4B6
Tom Walker, President/Treasurer
604-218-3697
walkert@shaw.ca

$2,000 Operating - NSSC is a non-profit society 
that teaches pedestrian and cycle safety to 
primary grades in public and private 
schools, daycares and preschools across 
the North Shore.  They also provide school 
crossing guard training and advise school 
safety committees. 

$2,000

North Shore Safety Council
3770 Hillcrest Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7R 4B6
Tom Walker, President/Treasurer
604-218-3697
walkert@shaw.ca

$1,000 Program - Be Bright, Be Seen - This is a 
recently launched program for Grade 3 
pedestrian and cycle safety. The program is 
aimed at enabling and encouraging children 
to be active and safe outdoors in low light 
conditions.  The program is provided at no 
cost to schools who apply to receive the 
materials.  

$1,000

North Shore Stroke Recovery Centre
225 East 2nd Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 1C4
Tara Arvan, Executive Director
778-340-5803
tara@nssrc.org

$6,000 Operating - The NSSRC's mission is to 
diminish the effects the life changing effects 
of a stroke and help members regain 
confidence and independence.  Operating 
grant funding is crucial to maintain core 
programs and services as well as the team 
of experienced and specialized 
professionals.

$5,000

North Shore Table Tennis Club Society
1555 Forbes Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2Y4
Mike Dumler, Chair
604-340-6774
info@nsttc.ca

$7,000 Operating - As the primary organization 
promoting Table Tennis on the North Shore, 
NSTTC are largely responsible for the future 
of the sport and for creating a space for the 
community to access and learn the sport.  
They promote table tennis with all its 
benefits such as body-mind stimulation, 
aerobic exercise and social interaction. 

$500



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

North Shore Table Tennis Club Society
1555 Forbes Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2Y4
Mike Dumler, Chair
604-340-6774
info@nsttc.ca

$3,500 Program - Happy Hands Adapted Table 
Tennis Program - This targeted Table 
Tennis program provides training, 
mentorship and guidance to support all 
children and youth with special needs.  The 
skills each participant learns will improve 
eye hand coordination and cognitive activity 
in the brain. 

$1,500

North Shore Table Tennis Club Society
1555 Forbes Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2Y4
Mike Dumler, Chair
604-340-6774
mdumler@mdumler.ca

$5,000 Program -Table Tennis for Brain Health -  
This innovative new program for Brain 
Health brings attention and grows 
awareness of playing Table Tennis and the 
brain benefits that this sport brings among 
people with neurological diseases as well as 
creating new ways to be active. It promotes 
general healthy brain and body aging, slows 
down cognitive decline, and helps to 
decrease the symptoms associated with 
cognitive conditions.

$1,500

North Shore Table Tennis Club Society
1555 Forbes Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2Y4
Mike Dumler, Chair
604-340-6774
info@nsttc.ca

$3,500 Program -  Youth Table Tennis Program - 
Table Tennis is an Olympic Sport and is an 
ideal activity for developing young people.  
Through this sport, youth learn respect, 
perseverance and teamwork. They build self-
esteem, confidence and social skills. 

$1,500

North Shore Women's Centre
131 East 2nd Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 1C2
Sydney Dawson, Fund Development and 
Communications Coordinator 
604-984-6009
fundraising@northshorewomen.ca

$5,000 Program - North Shore Coordinating 
Committee to End Violence Against 
Women in Relationships - The NS VAWIR 
is a cross-sectoral network of North Shore 
agencies working toward an integrated and 
effective response to ending violence 
against women in the community. In 2023, 
the Committee had over 20 represented 
agencies. It meets bi-monthly and 
undertakes education and training initiatives. 

$4,000

North Shore Women's Centre
131 East 2nd Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 1C2
Sydney Dawson, Fund Development and 
Communications Coordinator 
604-984-6009
fundraising@northshorewomen.ca

$3,000 Program - Separation Support Group - 
This group assists women to build 
resilience, skills, knowledge, awareness and 
connections while navigating complex 
issues involved in ending a relationship.  It 
will be provided in 3 annual 10-week 
facilitated support groups for 12 participants 
each.  The groups offer in-depth and 
continuous assistance.

$3,000

Odihi
TH1 - 200 Nelsons Crescent
New Westminster, BC  V3L 0H4
Efe Fruci, Executive Director
hello@odihi.com
778-378-9068

$10,000 Program - Bigger Ideas Conference - This 
is a career and wellness event for all women 
and those identifying as well as a teen 
conference for females 13-18 years old.  
Participants will get the opportunity to 
network with like-minded change makers 
and leaders and will have a chance to learn 
practical tools.  500 women and 250 teens 
are expected. 

$500



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Pathways Serious Mental Illness Society
(formerly North Shore Schizophrenia Society)
101 - 315 1st Street West
North Vancouver, BC V7M 1B5
Liz Charyna, Executive Director
604-926-0856
executivedirector@smi.org

$4,000 Operating - Pathways is a volunteer-driven, 
membership based, unique front-line 
organization dedicated to helped families 
with a loved-one suffering from a serious 
mental illness. Operating costs have 
increased lately because of higher rent as 
well as increased costs of hiring, training 
and maintaining staff.

$4,000

Pathways Serious Mental Illness Society
(formerly North Shore Schizophrenia Society)
101 - 315 1st Street West
North Vancouver, BC V7M 1B5
Liz Charyna, Executive Director
604-926-0856
executivedirector@smi.org

$2,500 Program - Awareness and Early 
Prevention - Pathways provides education 
and awareness opportunities for the general 
public to learn more about serious mental 
illness and reduce the stigma for people with 
a mental illness as well as those who love 
them.  Lectures, workshops and school 
presentations are provided. 

$2,500

Quest Outreach Society
2030 Dundas Street
North Vancouver, BC  V5L 1J4
Sarah Abbott, Grants Administrator A
604-602-0186
grants@questoutreach.org

$3,000 Operating - Quest disrupts the cycle of 
poverty by providing access to important 
necessities and healthy, affordable food that 
is sustainably sourced to individuals and 
families facing financial barriers.  Surplus 
food is collected from food suppliers and 
redistributed through five non-for-profit 
grocery markets. Quest is focusing on 
growth for the next three years as the need 
for affordable groceries has been steadily 
growing. 

$2,000

Quest Outreach Society
2030 Dundas Street
North Vancouver, BC  V5L 1J4
Sarah Abbott, Grants Administrator A
604-602-0186
grants@questoutreach.org

$5,000 Program - Food Recovery and 
Redistribution Program - Quest believes in 
a sustainable grocery model that 
simultaneously supports individuals and 
families while reducing methane and 
greenhouse gas emissions. This program 
has been running on the North Shore since 
2016.  

$5,000

Special Olympics British Columbia Society - North 
Shore
1379 Chuckart Place
North Vancouver, BC  V7J 1R8
Peter Noble, Grants Coordinator
778-229-5951
grants@sobcnorthshore.ca

$3,500 Program - SOBC North Shore Sports 
Program - SOBC has been providing 
individuals with intellectual disabilities the 
opportunity to enhance their lives and 
celebrate personal achievement through 
positive sport experiences for 39 years. 
These sports provide individuals with 
intellectual  disabilities and all ages the 
opportunity to enhance their lives through 
positive sports experiences.  The programs 
provide these athletes with far more than the 
physical benefits of improved health and 
athletic ability.  Their participation in sports 
provides opportunities to develop social 
skills, cultivate friendships, strive for and 
achieve goals, build community and 
increase self-esteem. 

$2,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Spinal Cord Injury BC
780 SW Marine Drive
Vancouver, BC  V6P 5Y7
Susie Jackson, Fund Development Officer
604-326-1223 
sjackson@sci-bc.ca

$2,500 Program - Peer Support Program - This 
program brings people with spinal cord 
injuries together in a safe and relaxed 
environment where they can share and learn 
from each other and build lasting social 
connections through a series of new 
activities. Planned activities range from 
coffee support group to larger seasonal 
events and outings in the community as well 
as opportunities to try other recreational 
sports. Virtual activities are also offered 
each week to keep everyone connected and 
mentally healthy. 

$2,000

St. Andrew's United Church
1044 St. George's Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 3H6
Laurie-Anne Bourdon, Community Outreach 
Coordinator
604-985-0408
outreach@st-andrews-united.ca

$5,000 Program - St. Andrew's Community 
Lunch Program - St. Andrew's Community 
Lunch program is hosted every Thursday. 
This lunch allows anyone to enjoy in-house 
service of a meal and baked goods to take 
home. On holidays, a special traditional 
meal is prepared. The focus is on 
recognition that food insecurity goes along 
with social isolation.

$5,000

Vancouver Adaptive Snow Sports
6400 Nancy Greene Way
North Vancouver, BC V7R 4K9
James Peters, Executive Director
604-646-8277
giving@vass.ca

$1,500 Operating - Vancouver Adaptive Snow 
Sports (VASS) provides ski and snowboard 
programs for children and adults with 
cognitive or physical disabilities at Grouse, 
Seymour and Cypress Mountains.  These 
programs remove the barriers that prevent 
individuals with disabilities from participating 
in sports.

$1,500

Vancouver Adaptive Snow Sports
6400 Nancy Greene Way
North Vancouver, BC
V7R 4K9
James Peters, Executive Director
604-646-8277
giving@vass.ca

$1,500 Program - Adaptive Learn to Ski - Learn to 
Ski is the core of VASS's programming.  
Children and adults of all ages with cognitive 
or physical disabilities and of all abilities are 
taught to ski or snowboard. Lessons take 
place from January to March, 1 day a week 
for 2 hours for 6 weeks. Withing this 
program students can participate in drop-in 
lessons as well as traditional lessons or 
family learn to ski.  

$1,500

Volunteer Cancer Drivers Society
Box 45618, Sunnyside Mall
Surrey, BC  V4A 9N3
George McAffer, Executive Vice President 
604-535-8856
george.m@volunteercancerdrivers.ca

$1,500 Operating - The VCDS singularly focuses 
on providing complementary, safe, reliable, 
compassionate transportation and peace of 
mind for North Shore, GV and Fraser Valley 
cancer patients who have no viable means 
of getting to their essential treatments.  
Volunteer drivers, using their own vehicles, 
pick up patients at their residences, 
transport them to the treatment facility, wait 
for them and return them to their homes.  

$1,500

2024 Round One Amount Requested by Repeat 
Applicants $326,700

$176,300



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

NEW APPLICANTS

Bastille Day Festival Society
803 - 1101 Pacific Street
Vancouver, BC  V6E 1T3
Anne Legrand, President
416-508-2822
alegrand.bzh@gmail.com

$5,000 Program - Bastille Day Event - The is a 
free event taking place in North Vancouver 
which celebrates the French & Francophone 
communities of the GVA.  There will be food 
vendors as well as booths from non profit 
organizations as well as a free gaming area 
for kids, live music and an outdoor patio. 

$1,500

Dutch Network
367 East 4th Street
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 1J3
John van Rij, President
604-837-9786
john@pureorange.com

$5,000 Program - Dutch Festival / Koningsdag - 
This is a one day festival to celebrate the 
national holiday of the Netherlands on April 
27.  This will be the first time it will be in the 
CNV.  There is a day festival and an 
evening ticketed party event. There will be 
displays about the Netherlands, free 
activites for families, a bike safety check 
station, games and refreshments.

$1,500

Foundations for Social Change
Unit 290 - 1275 Venables Street
Vancouver, BC  V6A 2E4
Jerome Paredes Heidemann, Partnership & 
Fundraising Manager
236-788-2869
jerome@forsocialchange.org

$15,000 Program - New Leaf Expansion Program - 
This is a homelessness intervention project 
that evaulates the effectiveness of 
unconditional cash transfers and non-cash 
wrap-around supports as a means to 
combat homelessness and restabalize lives. 
Following a pilot study, those experiencing 
homelessness are provided with 
unconditional cash transfers that they can 
use whichever way they determine to 
improve their quality of life. The "hidden 
homeless" are targeted in this project.

$7,500

Get Out and Play
407 - 111 Lynn Valley Road
North Vancouver, BC  V7J 3V4
Reza Ghannadan, Director
778-898-2439
reza.ghannadan@gmail.com

$1,500 Program - 7th Annual GOAP Family 
Sports Day - This organization runs a free, 
annual sports day for the North Shore. 
Volunteers run actvity/sport stations for kids 
and parents such as soccer, bocce, frisbee, 
etc.  The goal is to promote physical activity 
and foster community connection. 

$1,000

KidSport North Shore
851 West Queens Road
North Vancouver, BC  V7N 4C2
Peter Elsaesser, Executive Administrator
604-719-5968
pjer@telus.net

$5,000 Program - Squamish Nation Project - 
KidSport NS is the North Shore chapter of a 
Canada-wide organization.  They provide 
financial assistance to families to overcome 
obstacles to their children's participation in 
organized sport.  There has been a decline 
in the number of Indigenous youth on the 
NS participating in lacrosse in recent years. 
KSNS has pledged to support the 
registration of Squamish Nation youth in 
lacrosse for the 2024 season with a 
commitment of up to $15,0000.  

$5,000



2024 ROUND ONE
COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATIONS MATRIX

APPLICANT 2024
ROUND ONE

AMOUNT 
OF REQUEST

DESCRIPTION OF 
SERVICE/PROJECT

 2024
ROUND ONE

RECOMMENDED

Latincouver Cultural & Business Society
#406 - 68 Water Street
Vancouver, BC  V6B 1A4
Paola V. Murillo, Executive Director
604-566-0999
paolavm@latincouver.ca

$7,500 Program - Flamenco & Tango Moments 
2024 - This is a Vancouver-based non-profit 
that works to connect and support the Latino 
& immigrant communities through various 
programs. This is a Carnaval del Sol event 
featuriing performances by flamenco and 
tango dancers. Vancouver is invited to 
experience the passion and beauty of Spain 
and Argentina for one night. The aim is to 
enhance awareness and appreciate of 
Latinx cultures thus helping the communities 
integrate better.  

$0

Latincouver Cultural & Business Society
#406 - 68 Water Street
Vancouver, BC  V6B 1A4
Paola V. Murillo, Executive Director
604-566-0999
paolavm@latincouver.ca

$7,500 Program - Trail of Coffee -  This is a one 
day event to unite coffee producing giants 
Peru, Columbia, Brazil, Guatemala and 
Costa Rica in a vibrant celebration of their 
rich coffee heritage. Visitors will be able to 
explore interactive exhibits and attend 
workshops showcasing the cultivation, 
harvesting and processing techniques uique 
to each country.  

$0

North Shore Writers Association
P.O. Box 37549 Lonsdale East
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 3L7
Erin MacNair, Grant Writer
604-980-2288
erinmacnair@gmail.com

$3,000 Operating - NSWA has been a community 
champion for over 30 years, helping and 
supporting local writers at all levels.  100% 
volunteer-run, they operate on a small 
budget funded exclusively by membership 
fees.  

$500

North Vancouver Community Garden Society
479 - 1641 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2J5
Allison Orr, Board Member
613-770-2398
allison.orr@nscgardens.ca

$15,000 Program - Making North Shore 
Community Gardens Accessible - 
Established in 2008, the NSCGS oversees 
the use and management of community 
gardens on the North Shore. This program 
will focus on making Queen Mary and 
Eastern Community gardens accessible for 
wheelchair and mobility-challenged 
gardeners.

$5,000

2024 Total Requests New Applicants $64,500 2024 Total Allocation New Applicants $22,000

2024 ROUND ONE TOTAL AMOUNT OF 
REQUESTS

$391,200 2024 ROUND ONE TOTAL 
ALLOCATION

198,300$                       



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

........... ~ J;i_ 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
REAL ESTATE, FACILITIES & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Brian Lightfoot, Manager Real Estate 

REPORT 

Subject: STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY IN FAVOUR OF BC HYDRO OVER CITY
OWNED LEASEHOLD LANDS AT 1866 RUFUS DRIVE 

Date: June 03, 2024 File No: 02-0870-01 -0001/2024 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Real Estate, dated June 3, 2024, 
entitled "Statutory Right of Way in Favour of BC Hydro over City-owned 
leasehold lands at 1866 Rufus Drive": 

THAT Council authorize staff to negotiate a statutory right of way agreement with 
BC Hydro to secure the delivery and provision of hydroelectric services to 
properties located at or near 1866 Rufus Drive, and allow such agreement to be 
registered on the lands as required; 

AND THAT the Mayor and the Corporate Officer be authorized to execute the 
statutory right of way as described in the report of the Manager, Real Estate, 
dated June 3, 2024 entitled "Statutory Right of Way in Favour of BC Hydro over 
City-owned leasehold lands at 1866 Rufus Drive": 

SUMMARY 

This report requests Council approval for the Mayor and the Corporate Officer to 
execute a statutory right of way (SRW) agreement in favour of BC Hydro to provide 
protection for new and existing works BC Hydro plans on installing on the City-owned 
ground leased property at 1866 Rufus Drive that will provide electricity to the 
development at 1866 Rufus Drive. 

Document Number: 2489297 Page 1 of 3 



CONFIDENTIAL REPORT: STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY WITH BC HYDRO OVER CITY LEASEHOLD LANDS 
AT 1866 RUFUS DRIVE 
Date: June 03, 2024 

BACKGROUND 

The City entered into a ground lease of City owned land at 1866 Rufus Drive in 1978 for 
60 years. Shortly thereafter, the lessee, Cedar Projects Ltd. constructed 56 market 
rental townhouse units (58,880 sq.ft.). The lease expires in 2038 (but there are 
provisions to extend to 2058 if both parties were to agree). 

When the property was initially developed, BC Hydro did not require an SRW to protect 
their services. The services are aging and BC Hydro is now looking at upgrades. BC 
Hydro's policy has evolved over time and now, BC Hydro requires SRWs to be 
registered prior to installing new services or upgrades on private land to protect their 
equipment. 

DISCUSSION 

BC Hydro has contacted the lessee of the property (Cedar Projects Ltd.) and has 
received their consent to enter into an SRW with the City. 

The main BC Hydro service is located in the Cedar Village Crescent road allowance, 
however once onto City-owned property the service passes through various areas of the 
site to reach the equipment installed. See sketch below for the current location of the 
BC Hydro service and the general location of the proposed SRW (shown in red). 

Document Number : 2489297 Page 2 of 3 



CONFIDENTIAL REPORT: STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY WITH BC HYDRO OVER CITY LEASEHOLD LANDS 
AT 1866 RUFUS DRIVE 
Date: June 03, 2024 

Entering into an SRW with public utilities is common in new development projects and 
where aging infrastructure is being upgraded. The proposed SRW would extend 3 
metres on either side of the alignment of the BC Hydro works shown on the sketch 
above. 

BC Hydro has provided the City with their Standard Charge Terms document that is 
already filed in the Land Title Office. The terms of these agreements are typically non
negotiable, except for project-specific terms and conditions which have been provided 
to the City in a schedule of additional or modified terms. 

The BC Hydro documentation provides that if the works are no longer required, BC 
Hydro will at their cost remove the works, and upon the written request of the City, BC 
Hydro will discharge the SRW agreement. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no known financial implications expected as a result of this recommendation. 
BC Hydro will cover the cost of registering their SRW. It is expected that City staff will 
complete the City SRW's and in the event external legal services are required it would 
be covered by the City's legal services budget. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Real Estate Division staff will be working with the City Solicitor to finalize the required 
documents subject to Council endorsing the attached resolution. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Brian Lightfoot, Manager Real Estate 

Document Number: 2489297 Page 3 of 3 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

Department Director 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

REPORT 

Subject: 2024 APPROPRIATIONS #2 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 05-1705-30-0019/2024 

The following Is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled "2024 Appropriations #2": 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2413) an amount of$ 4,907,676 be appropriated 
from the General Capital Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2414) an amount of$ 1,145,000 be appropriated 
from the Civic Amenity Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2415) an amount of$ 2,047,943 be appropriated 
from the Civic Amenity Harry Jerome Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-
2028 Capital Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2416) an amount of$ 2,521,422 be appropriated 
from the Tax Sale Land Interest Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 
Capital Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2417) an amount of$ 320,000 be appropriated 
from the Infrastructure Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2418) an amount of$ 80,000 be appropriated 
from the Heritage Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 

Document Number: 2531168 



REPORT: 2024 Appropriations #1 
Date: June 12, 2024 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2420) an amount of$ 935,000 be appropriated 
from the Engineering Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2421) an amount of$ 3,952 be appropriated from 
the Justice Building Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2422) an amount of$ 43 be appropriated from 
the General Equipment Reserve for purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 

AND THAT should any of the above amounts remain unexpended as at December 
31 , 2027, the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the said 
reserves. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. 2024-2028 Capital Plan Appropriations (CityDoc 2518284) 
2. Information Report by Section Manager, Streets and Fleet- EPE re: Operations 

Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Program ( CityDoc 2535219 ) 
3. Information Report by the Manager, Real Estate - Real Estate, Facilities & 

Economic Development, re: CNV Funding Contribution for new Coverley Childcare 
(CityDoc 2526981) 

4. Information Report by the Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure - EPE, re: Casano -
Loutet Overpass (CityDoc 2530511 ) 

5. Information Report by the Project Manager, Civic development - Office of the 
DCAO, re: Mickey McDougall Building Upgrades Project (CityDoc 2525204} 

6. Information Report by Section Manager, Streets and Fleet EPE re: Pavement 
Management Streets and Lanes ( CityDoc 2535052) 

SUMMARY 

This report follows the endorsement of the 2024-2028 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9024 and provides details of projects where appropriations are recommended. 
The last appropriation date is scheduled to be on September 23rd, 2024. 

2 of 3 



REPORT: 2024 Appropriations #1 
Date: June 12, 2024 

DISCUSSION 

This report recommends that funds be appropriated so work can begin on the projects 
included in the Revised Financial Plan where project teams are ready to begin delivery. 
These appropriations allow staff to deliver project benefits in a timely manner. 
Attachment 1 provides summary information regarding each project. Attachments 2-8 
provide additional information for projects where appropriations are greater than 
$500,000. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Sections 173(1) and 173(2) of the Community Charter specifies that a municipality must 
not make an expenditure unless it is included in its Financial Plan for that year. Funding 
for the recommended expenditures is included in year 2024 of the 2024-2028 Financial 
Plan approved by Council April 15th, 2024, and as amended in the 2024-2028 Revised 
Financial Plan approved by Council on June 17th, 2024. 

Sufficient funding is available in all reserves for the recommended appropriations. 

Appropriation is the final step in the funding of these projects and, if approved, will allow 
funds to be expended. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Financial Plan is a reflection of CNV's policies and the work plans of all CNV 
departments. Finance staff relied on their close working relationships with all 
departments in the development of this Report and its recommendations. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The projects in CNV's Financial Plans are consistent with the City's 2014 Official 
Community Plan and Council's Strategic Plan. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

3 of 3 



 2024-2028 Captal Plan Appropriations

Document Number: 2518284 Version: 6 1

 Ref #  Project Name  Dept  Lead  Total 2024 
Project Amount 

 Appropriated to 
date 

 Appropriation 
Request 

 Remaining 
Balance  Description 

Appropriation 2413 - General Capital Reserve
2 - 1 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - City 

Hall 
Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Richard Howard 162,000 162,000 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building components at City Hall.

2 - 2 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - Gerry 
Brewer Building

Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Richard Howard 151,839 151,839 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building component of the Gerry 
Brewer Building

2 - 3 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - Fire 
Hall

Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Cody Sahih 201,000 201,000 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building components of the Fire Hall

2 - 4 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - City 
Owned / Non-City Used Buildings

Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Richard Howard 121,500 121,500 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building component for Non-CNV used 
properties (i.e. rental properties, Presentation House Theatre, holding properties, etc...). 

2 - 5 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - Parks 
Buildings

Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Richard Howard 57,000 57,000 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building components relating to City 
Parks.

2 - 6 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - 
Operations Centre

Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Cody Sahih 96,000 96,000 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building components of the Operations 
Centre.

2 - 7 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - Civic 
Library

Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Richard Howard 228,000 228,000 - Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building components at the City Library

2 - 11 John Braithwaite Community Centre NVRC Howard Kiang 130,000 80,000 50,000 - This project will deliver functional upgrades, accessibiity improvements and planned major component 
replacements in the John Braithwaite Community Centre.

4 - 24 FireSmart and Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan Implementation

Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Derek Priestley 150,000 - 150,000 - Through completion of a wildfire threat assessment of the City, the CWPP identified priority FireSmart fuel 
treatment areas. This project will advance treatment in Greenwood Park, Kealy Woods Park, Mosquito Creek 
Park, Tempe Park, and Heywood Park, all identified priority locations.  It will also advance implementation of 
the CWPP, which will reduce the risk of wildfire entering our community, as well as the impacts and losses to 
property and critical infrastructure, and prevent economic and social losses. The project will also enhance 
and develop emergency plans, emergency response, evacuation plans, bylaw development in areas of fire 
risk, communication and education programs. 

4 - 27 Play Equipment Replacement Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Derek Priestley 100,000 - 100,000 - This funding is for ongoing play equipment renewal and replacement in 19 City parks. For 2024, the primary 
focus will be Heywood Park. 

4 - 29 Wooden Bridge and Stair Replacement Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Derek Priestley 25,000 - 25,000 - This project consists of the replacement of aging wooden structures, such as stairs, bridges and boardwalks, 
throughout the City's park system.  

5 - 3 Civic Buildings - Furniture and Equipment Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

G. Askraba/
R.Howard

112,957 112,957 - Funding to enable the replacement / purchase of furniture and equipment in all civic buildings. Maintains 
suitable working conditions and ensures timely replacement of equipment as required. 

5 - 4 Gerry Brewer Furniture & Equipment Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

G. Askraba/
R.Howard

25,889 25,889 - Funding to enable the replacement / purchase of furniture and equipment in the Gerry Brewer building. 
Maintains suitable working conditions and ensures timely replacement of equipment as required. 

Attachment 1



 2024-2028 Captal Plan Appropriations

Document Number: 2518284 Version: 6 2

 Ref #  Project Name  Dept  Lead  Total 2024 
Project Amount 

 Appropriated to 
date 

 Appropriation 
Request 

 Remaining 
Balance  Description 

5 - 8 NVRC Recreation Program Equipment NVRC Howard Kiang 405,000                 315,000                   90,000                    -                         Program equipment such as weight room, sports & recreation equipment, activity room furnishings & 
equipment, theatre performance equipment for Centennial Theatre and John Braithwaite Community 
Centre. The ice resurfacer at Harry Jerome CRC is at the end of its useful life and a replacement will need to 
be ordered in time for the opening of the new centre.  A portion of fitness centre equipment at HJCRC and 
John Braithwaite CC is replaced each year to ensure safe and reliable equipment for program participation.  

6 - 15 MONOVA IT Refresh Museum & Archives Zoe Mackoff de 
Miranda

4,500                     -                           4,500                      -                         Scheduled replacement and enhancement of MONOVA IT equipment and supporting hardware to ensure 
that it is refreshed and modernized on a regular basis with technology that meets industry standards, works 
with hardware and software at all facilities and is compatible with expectations for service to the 
community. These funds are matched by DNV.

6 - 16 Library Website Renewal Library Abigail Saxton 10,000                   -                           10,000                    -                         Ongoing development of City Library's digital branch at nvcl.ca, which sees over 500,000 visits per year. 
Funding supports incorporation of new technology and critical security updates, integration of new library 
services into the digital space, and provision of a seamless and accessible user experience for library patrons 

f ll  d b l6 - 24 NVRC Desktop computer hardware refresh NVRC Preston Corrigan 21,000                   -                           21,000                    -                         Ongoing maintenance and replacement of desktop computer hardware including PC's, monitors, peripherals, 
printers etc.

9 - 2 Block Funding - M&A Museum & Archives Zoe Mackoff de 
Miranda

10,000                   -                           10,000                    -                         Annual Block funding is used by Museum & Archives for purchasing or replacing minor capital assets such as 
exhibit, collections and programs equipment, technology, or specialized storage and display components 
used in the delivery of community programs, in the management and stewardship of the museum and 
archival collections, and in the public operations of the Museum & Archives.  These funds are matched by 
DNV.

9 - 5 Block Funding - Planning & Development Planning & 
Development

Tim Ryce 20,000                   -                           20,000                    -                         Construction administration (building codes, referenced standards, required equipment, etc.) is a constantly 
evolving process, adapting to - for example - new technologies, environmental sustainability efforts, and new 
opportunities for the support of healthy, accessible built environments.  The provision of the block funding 
requested below supports the Development Services and Building Division's efforts to remain leaders in 
innovative construction administration.  

9 - 8 Block Funding - Transportation Engineering: 
Infrastructure Planning - 
Traffic

Winnie Wong 30,000                   -                           30,000                    -                         Block funding is a capital account to be used by the Transportation Division to fund small unforeseen capital 
projects which arise each year. Examples of possible projects are geometry improvements, traffic signal 
designs, minor street and signal system improvements.

9 - 11 Block Funding - Gerry Brewer Building Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

G. Askraba/ 
R.Howard

29,413                   29,413                    -                         Block funding to acquire / undertake capital items and projects under $10,000 for the Gerry Brewer Building.  
Costs are shared with DNV.

9 - 12 Block Funding - Non-City Used Buildings Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

G. Askraba/ 
R.Howard

100,000                 100,000                  -                         Block funding to acquire / undertake capital items and projects under $10,000 for Non CNV-Used properties 
(i.e. rental properties, Presentation House Theatre, holding properties, etc...). 

9 - 13 Block Funding - City Used Buildings Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

G. Askraba/ 
R.Howard

100,000                 100,000                  -                         Block funding to acquire / undertake capital items and projects under $10,000 for CNV-Used properties (i.e. 
City Hall, Fire Hall, Shipyards Office, Operations Centre). 

9 - 15 NVRC Emergency Capital Replacement Fund NVRC Howard Kiang 40,000                   30,000                     10,000                    -                         Replacement or major repairs of critical building systems due to surprise failures or unforseen 
circumstances.

10 - 06 Future Child Care Facilities Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Mark Chan 2,158,578              -                           2,158,578              -                         Provision of future child care in Cloverley school.  (See attachment#3)

10 - 15 Indigenous Relations Initiatives Office of the CAO Barbara Pearce 150,000                 -                           150,000                  -                         Development and implementation of initiatives to advance Reconciliation that will support CNV's 
relationships with Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh Nations, as well as urban Indigenous Peoples. This work will 
include training, Council to Council forums, and consulting services.



 2024-2028 Captal Plan Appropriations

Document Number: 2518284 Version: 6 3

 Ref #  Project Name  Dept  Lead  Total 2024 
Project Amount 

 Appropriated to 
date 

 Appropriation 
Request 

 Remaining 
Balance  Description 

10 - 26 Open Streets Central Lonsdale - Activation 
and Maintenance

Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces - Public 
Realm

Leah Herman 187,000                 87,000                     100,000                  -                         This project will support the year-round maintenance & activation demands of Open Streets, Central 
Lonsdale between the 1400-1800 blocks of Lonsdale Avenue.This project includes parklets, street seats, 
dedicated greenscape and decked areas. Work in 2024 will focus on refurbishing or replacing aging assets & 
accessibility improvements that unify the streetscape. Street activation will continue through placemaking, 
working with community & business to increase street vibrancy & draw visitors to the area. 



 2024-2028 Captal Plan Appropriations

Document Number: 2518284 Version: 6 4

 Ref #  Project Name  Dept  Lead  Total 2024 
Project Amount 

 Appropriated to 
date 

 Appropriation 
Request 

 Remaining 
Balance  Description 

10 - 28 City Library Wayfinding and Signage Renewal Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Justin Hall 40,000                   -                           40,000                    -                         Current signage at City Library is incomplete, out-of-date and presents multiple barriers to access. People 
have difficulty locating the library from surrounding streets and sidewalks, and on arriving at the library have 
difficulty in navigating the space and finding the resources they need. This project will assess, design and 
implement improved directional and wayfinding signage for the library facility that meets or exceeds 
standards for accessibility and creates a sense of welcome and orientation for library users of all ages and 
abilities.

10 - 36 Multicultural Festival Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Magda Kwaterska 30,000                   -                           30,000                    -                         Funding request to implement a multicultural festival in the City of North Vancouver. A multicultural task 
force was created to investigate and recommend a potential model for an annual, multi-day multicultural 
festival. CNV staff hired a cultural facilitator to help the committee with this process. The festival is to occur 
in 2025 in various locations in the City.

RP# 11 Project and Communications Support DCAO Barbara Pearce 198,000                 198,000                  -                         This project provides delivery of communications support, including marketing and promotion for the City, 
communications and engagement support, graphics, social media, and website and digital communications 
backup. 

RP# 12 Housing Needs Report Planning & 
Development

Mike Friesen 75,000                   75,000                    -                         The Province of BC has passed legislation requiring all municipalities to update their Housing Needs Report 
prior to January 1, 2025. The funds will be used to engage consultants to support the preparation of an 
updated Housing Needs Report, as well as any other contracts required to collect and analysis data 
connected with the provision of housing relative to our identified need. 

RP# 13 CNV Community Newsletter DCAO Barb Pearce 250,000                 250,000                  -                         To support the development, design, printing and mail-out of a community householder brochure that 
provides storytelling and project/service updates to all residents

Total Appropriation 2413 - General Capital Reserve 5,419,676              512,000                   4,907,676              -                         

Appropriation 2414 - Civic Amenity Reserve
3 - 1 Neighbourhood Traffic Safety and 

Infrastructure Improvements Program
Engineering: 
Infrastructure Planning - 
Traffic

Winnie Wong 100,000                 100,000                  -                         This project will address site-specific safety issues in various City neighbourhoods. It will develop a new 
approach to neighbourhood traffic safety and access to guide future improvement plans. Works may include, 
but are not limited to, the installation of new and updated traffic signs, pavement markings, intersection 
safety improvements, traffic calming elements (speed bumps, bump outs) and pedestrian beacon 
installation. This project will implement infrastructure recommended by School Travel Plans at the City's 
elementary and high schools.  

3 - 22 Casano Loutet Overpass Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces - Public 
Realm

Karyn Magnusson 800,000                 800,000                  -                         Construction of the Cassano-Loutet overpass across Highway 1 connecting pedestrians and cyclists. This 
project also includes connections to the mobility routes north and south of the overpass, design updates to 
meet Provincial standards, and addressing AIA and permiting requirements (See Attachment #4).

4 - 8 Mahon Childcare/Fieldhouse: Park 
Improvements 

Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Margaret Shipley 165,000                 165,000                  -                         Installation of new pathways, trees, and general park enhancements following the construction of the new 
childcare centre and field house. 

RP# 14 Eastview Park Improvements Engineering: Parks & 
Public Spaces

Chandra 
Lesmeister

300,000                 80,000                    220,000                This project will involve developing a plan for Eastview Park that will make a 9-hole disc golf the primary, 
recreational focus.  An overall park plan will address spaces for passive use from adjacent community 
facilities, mitigate impacts on other park users, and enhance natural areas.  

Total Appropriation 2414 - Civic Amenity  Reserve 1,365,000              -                           1,145,000              220,000                



 2024-2028 Captal Plan Appropriations

Document Number: 2518284 Version: 6 5

 Ref #  Project Name  Dept  Lead  Total 2024 
Project Amount 

 Appropriated to 
date 

 Appropriation 
Request 

 Remaining 
Balance  Description 

Appropriation 2415 - CAR HJ Reserve
2 - 14 Mickey McDougall Feasibility Study & 

Building Upgrades
Office of the Deputy 
CAO: Strategic Initiatives

Dianna Foldi 2,797,943              750,000                   2,047,943              -                         Funding to allow for owner improvements to the Mickey McDougall building. Upgrades are focused on 
energy improvement, accessibility upgrades, life-safety systems, replacement of critical building equipment 
and general building maintenance in support of tenant improvements to be undertaken by project partner. 
Project co-funded with senior gtovernment. (See Attachment #5)

Total Appropriation 2415 - CAR HJ  Reserve 2,797,943              750,000                   2,047,943              -                         

Appropriation 2416 -TSL Interest
3 - 18 Pavement Management: Streets & Lanes Engineering: 

Infrastructure Planning - 
Streets

Bruce Bowman 1,180,000              1,180,000              -                         Cracksealing, patching, resurfacing and reconstructing pavements in streets and lanes to preserve or extend 
useful life and may also include replacing sections of curbs, curb and gutter, and/or sidewalks.  Will also 
include periodic pavement condition data collection. (See Attachment #6).

10 - 06 Future Child Care Facilities Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Mark Chan 1,341,422              1,341,422              -                         Provision of future child care in Cloverley school. (See attachment#3)

Total Appropriation 2416 - TSL Interest 2,521,422              -                           2,521,422              -                         

Appropriation 2417 -  Infrastructure Reserve
3 - 18 Pavement Management: Streets & Lanes Engineering: 

Infrastructure Planning - 
Streets

Bruce Bowman 320,000                 320,000                  -                         Cracksealing, patching, resurfacing and reconstructing pavements in streets and lanes to preserve or extend 
useful life and may also include replacing sections of curbs, curb and gutter, and/or sidewalks.  Will also 
include periodic pavement condition data collection. (See Attachment #6).

Total Appropriation 2417 -  Infrastructure Reserve 320,000                 -                           320,000                 -                         

Appropriation 2418 - Heritage Reserve
10 - 03 Heritage Reserve Fund Real Estate, Facilities & 

Economic Development
Mark Chan 89,559                   80,000                    9,559                     Funding for possible heritage projects will directly maintain or promote the heritage characteristics of the 

City. 

Total Appropriation 2418 -   Heritage Reserve 89,559                   -                           80,000                    9,559                     

Appropriation 2419 -  Engineering Reserve
7 - 1 Engineering, Parks and Environment 

Operations Vehicle/Equipment Replacement 
Program

Engineering: Equipment Bruce Bowman 935,000                 935,000                  -                         Funding for the ongoing replacement of vehicles and equipment to ensure Engineering, Parks and 
Environment Operations has reliable vehicles and equipment to meet operational needs. In 2024, vehicles 
and equipment to be replaced include one 1/2 ton pickup and one 3/4 ton flat-bed trucks, three rubber tire 
backhoes, and one medium weight rubber tire tractor. (See Attachment #2)

Total Appropriation 2419 -  Engineering Reserve 935,000                 -                           935,000                 -                         

Appropriation 2420 -  Justice Building Reserve
2 - 2 Maintenance, Repair & Replacement - Gerry 

Brewer Building
Real Estate, Facilities & 
Economic Development

Richard Howard 3,952                     3,952                      -                         Funding for maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment and building component of the Gerry 
Brewer Building

Total Appropriation 2420 -  Justice Building Reserve 3,952                     -                           3,952                      -                         

Appropriation 2421 -  General Equipment Reserve
5 - 3 Civic Buildings - Furniture and Equipment Real Estate, Facilities & 

Economic Development
G. Askraba/ 
R.Howard

43                           43                           -                         Funding to enable the replacement / purchase of furniture and equipment in all civic buildings. Maintains 
suitable working conditions and ensures timely replacement of equipment as required. 

Total Appropriation 2421 -  General Equipment Reserve 43                           -                           43                           -                         



 2024-2028 Captal Plan Appropriations

Document Number: 2518284 Version: 6 6

 Ref #  Project Name  Dept  Lead  Total 2024 
Project Amount 

 Appropriated to 
date 

 Appropriation 
Request 

 Remaining 
Balance  Description 

Grand Total 13,452,595           1,262,000               11,961,036            229,559                



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

ATTACHMENT #2 

~ & 
o'epartment Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

INFORMATION REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Mike Friesen, Manager, Planning and Development 

2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN - PROJECTS OVER $500,000: HOUSING 
ACCELERATOR FUND INITIATIVES PROJECT (RP# 1) 

June 6, 2024 File No: 05-1 705-30-0002/2024 

SUMMARY 

2024 2025 2026 2027 Total 
Citv Contributions $3 675 000 $ - $ - $ - $ -
External Contrib. $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Total $3,675 000 $ - $- $ - $3,675 000 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide rationale for the appropriation of $3,675,000 for 
the 9 Housing Initiatives CNV has committed to. This appropriation will allow staff to 
proceed with the delivery on the CNV's Housing Accelerator Fund (HAF) initiatives that 
are required as a part of the Federal government's HAF grants. Due to the number of 
projects and the aggressive timelines and reporting requirements, the initiatives wi ll 
require support from external and specialist consultants, as well as integration of new 
hardware and software into our processes. The nine initiatives include: (1) Multi-plex 
Housing; (2) Prezoning R5; (3) Parking; (4) Affordable Housing Reserve: (5) Mid-Market 
Rental Policy: (6) Alternative Housing Construction; (7) Zoning Bylaw: (8) lnclusionary 
Housing Policy; (9) Development Approvals Process. The initial $550K of funding 
needed to begin to deliver these initiatives has already been appropriated. 

DISCUSSION 

On March 1, 2024, The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver (CNV) was awarded 
an $18.6 million grant from the Federal Housing Accelerator Fund (HAF) Initiative. The 

Document Number: 2535888 Vl 



NFORMATION REPORT: 2024-2028 Capital Plan - Projects over $500,000: Housing Accelerator Fund 
Initiatives Project 
Date: June 6, 2024 

funds will be provided to the City in four $4.65M tranches, contingent on successful 
completion of the initiatives. CNV's application to the Canada Mortgage and Housing 
Corporation (CMHC) Housing Accelerator Fund was focused on the goals of expanding 
the supply and improving the quality, diversity, and affordability of housing in the City. 
To achieve these goals, CNV developed nine initiatives to build more homes faster. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The financial implication of the $3,675,000 appropriation will allow staff to deliver on the 
Housing Accelerator Fund (HAF) initiatives that were included in CNV's HAF grant 
application that are currently unfunded. Due to the number of projects and the 
aggressive timelines and reporting requirements, the projects will require support from 
external and specialist consultants, as well as integration of new hardware and software 
into CNV's processes. The remainder of the $18.6M of HAF funding can be allocated at 
Council's discretion in future budgeting processes. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report has been developed in consultation with the Finance Department. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The report has been prepared to support the delivery of Council's 2022-2026 Strategic 
Plan. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Mike F1esen 
Manager, Planning and Development 

Document Number: 2535888 Vl Page 2 of 2 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

City 
Contributions 

PURPOSE 

ATTACHMENT #3 

------- 9=- (;AA 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
REAL ESTATE, FACILITIES AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Brian Lightfoot, Manager Real Estate 

2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN - PROJECTS OVER $500,000: FUNDING 
APPROPRIATION - CNV FUNDING CONTRIBUTION FOR NEW 
CL OVERLEY CHILDCARE (10-06) 

June 12, 2024 File No: 10-4750-01-0001/2024 

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
$3,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500,000 

This report provides supporting information for an appropriation report presented by 
CNV's Finance Department for the 2024-2028 Capital Plan. This appropriation is 
required to implement CNV's previous commitment for a $3.5 million capital contribution 
towards the new Cloverley Elementary School childcare to be constructed by the North 
Vancouver School District (NVSD). 

BACKGROUND 

In 2021, CNV and the NVSD entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 
which identified the replacement of the Cloverley Elementary school as a priority. Also 
in 2021, the Ministry of Education formally confirmed their support for the new Cloverley 
Elementary school on the site of the existing but shuttered Cloverley school. The 
development of a new elementary school provided an opportunity to include 
construction of a new childcare. 

In April 2022, City Council endorsed a report by the Director, Planning & Development 
supporting a grant application by NVSD to the Ministry of Children and Family 
Development's New Spaces Fund (Ministry), which referenced a $3.5 million capital 
contribution from CNV for a new childcare facility to be integrated within the new 
Cloverley Elementary school. The Ministry has committed to funding this project. 

Document Number: 2526981 Page 1 of 2 



CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION REPORT: 2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN- PROJECTS OVER $500,000: FUNDING 
APPROPRIATION - CNV FUNDING CONTRIBUTION FOR NEW CLOVERLEY CHILDCARE 
Date: May 29, 2024 

The NVSD proposes an elementary school with an enrolment capacity of 60 
kindergarten students and 525 elementary students, which will also include a childcare, 
which is the subject of this report. 

DISCUSSION 

With design of the project underway, the NVSD is beginning to incur expenses. 
Appropriation of the $3.5 million now will allow the City to release funds once a funding 
agreement for the entire $3.5 million contribution has been agreed between CNV and 
NVSD. The funding agreement is being negotiated now with NVSD staff. Funding is 
anticipated to be required shortly after execution of the funding agreement, hence the 
need for this appropriation request. City staff will report back to Council to seek formal 
authorization for the funding agreement, prior to releasing any of the $3.5 million to the 
NVSD. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

As noted above, CNV has agreed to provide $3.5 million towards the provision of the 
childcare facilities on the site. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Real Estate staff have been working with CNV's Finance Department, Planning & 
Development Department and NVSD staff on this initiative. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

This initiative is in line with the City's Child Care Action Plan which has a goal of 
improving the accessibility, affordability, and quality of child care in the City of North 
Vancouver by collaborating with partners, creating new spaces, and advocating for the 
Community's needs. This initiative will make a significant contribution to the City's 
childcare space targets. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Brian Lightfoot, Manager Real Estate 

Page 2 of 2 

Document Number: 2526981 



ATTACHMENT#4 

~ ~ lNl 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
ENGINEERING, PARKS AND ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

From: Justin Hall, Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

SUBJECT: 2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN - PROJECTS OVER $500,000: CASANO
LOUTET OVERPASS - FUNDING APPROPRIATION (PROJECT 03-22) 

Date: June 3, 2024 File No: 11-5240-01 -0001 /2024 

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total 
City $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800,000 
Contributions 
External 

$4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000 
Contrib. 
Total $4,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,800,000 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to present the rationale for appropriating $800,000 of funding 
for the Casano-Loutet Overpass. 

DISCUSSION 

The Casano-Loutet Overpass is a planned pedestrian and cycling overpass over Highway 
1 linking Loutet Park and the Cedar Village neighbourhood. The new overpass will provide 
a safe transportation route for pedestrians and cyclists, including a safe route to school for 
many local students. 

The project is proceeding toward tender in 2024 and construction in Q1 2025. The project 
team is working closely with Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure staff to obtain the 
necessary permit to begin construction. The permit is contingent on two components: 

• An approved Archeological Shovel Testing Final Report; and, 
• An approved Project Package, including the bridge design, traffic management plan, 

and operations and maintenance agreement. 

Progress is being made on both of these components and staff anticipate receiving the 
construction permit in September 2024. Should the permit be received more quickly, the 

2530511-vl 



INFORMATION REPORT: 2024-2028 Capital Plan-Projects over $500,000: Casano-Loutet Overpass - Funding 
Appropriation (Project 03-22) 
Date: June 3, 2024 

requested funding appropriation of $800,000 will enable staff to tender as soon as possible. 
Once underway, the overpass will take 12 months to complete. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The total estimated cost for project management support, engagement, design and 
construction of the overpass is $10.7 million. 

Source Description Value 
Project FundinQ 

Province May 2024 contribution $4,000,000 
toward construction 

Translink Allocated and competitive $2,499,000 
active transportation 
project ~rants 

CNV 2016, 2018, 2019, 2020, & $4,261 ,109 
2024 Capital Plans 
Total Funding $10,760,109 

Project Costs 

External Engineering Concept design, ($739,611) 
Services geotechnical evaluation, 

Detailed design, permit 
support 

Internal Project Costs Costs incurred by the ($125,004) 
Project including staffing 
and right-of-way 
acquisition 
Project Costs to Date ($864,615) 

Total Available Funds $9,895,494 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

Highway 1 has for many decades been a significant barrier to communities and people 
connecting across North Vancouver, a barrier that this project will overcome. The project 
direction supports Council's Connected City priority and provides active and sustainable 
ways for people to move to, from and within the City safely and efficiently. Additionally this 
project increases the number of kilometres of protected mobility lanes within the City to 
support increased active mobility mode share. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
Justin flall 
Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

Page 2 of 2 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

SUMMARY 

ATTACHMENT #5 

((2 ~ ~ 
Department 

Director CAO 

Manaoer 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

INFORMATION REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Cory Bernard, Project Manager, Civic development 

2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN - PROJECTS OVER $500,000: MICKEY 
MCDOUGALL BUILDING UPGRADES PROJECT (02-14) 

June 6, 2024 File No: 02-0800-30-0013/1 

The below table represents the required funding amount as shown in the 2024-2028 
Capital Plan, needed to continue with the project construction: 

M. k M D II IC ey C ouga : 
2024 Early 2024 2025 2026 2027 Total 

Aooropriation 
City Contribution $750,000 $2,047,943 $0 $0 $0 $2,797,943 

External Contribution GICBP* $0 $713,500 $1,426,869 $112,651 $0 $2,253,020 

Total $0 $3,511,443 $1,426,869 $112651 $0 $5,050,963 
* Green and Inclusive Community Buildings Program 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide rationale for the appropriation of $2,047,943 for 
the Mickey McDougall Upgrades Project. This appropriation will allow staff to proceed 
with construction tendering of the Project, expected to remain within the overall $5.05M 
budget as per the 2024-2028 Capital Plan . The Mickey McDougall Building Upgrades 
Project includes energy reductions, accessibility and building code improvements in 
anticipation of leasing the building to the non-profit society, Flicka Gymnastics Club 
(Flicka) by way of a Community Facilities Lease. 

Document Number: 2525204 V2 Page 1 of 2 



INFORMATION REPORT: 2024-2028 Capital Plan - Projects over $500,000: Mickey McDougall Building 
Upgrades Project 
Date: June 6, 2024 

DISCUSSION 

An early appropriation of $750,000 was approved in January 2024, which allowed staff 
to continue with design development and contract document preparation. Contract 
documents are scheduled to be complete and ready for tendering of construction 
scopes by August 2024. In order for staff to proceed with construction tendering, further 
appropriation of the remaining $2,047,943 is necessary. This will appropriate all 
remaining CNV funds as included in the 2024-2028 Capital Plan. 

The funding is being requested at this time as part of the next stage of project delivery 
in order to complete the construction by end of 2025. The total project funding includes 
a significant contribution from GICB (Green and Inclusive Community Buildings) 
Program. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The financial implication of the $2,047,943 appropriation will allow staff to tender and 
engage a general contractor to deliver the Mickey McDougall Building Upgrades 
Project, including energy reductions, accessibility and building code improvements. 
There are specific interior renovations required to accommodate the club's program 
needs however these improvements will be fully funded by the gymnastic club. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report has been developed in consultation with the Finance Department. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

With this project, CNV will be significantly improving the energy efficiency, climate 
resilience and accessibility of this recreational facility, as well as contributing to the 
overall health and wellness within our community by providing the opportunity for 
recreational and high performance gymnastics training. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Cory Bernard 
Project Manager, Civic Development 

Document Number: 2525204 V2 Page 2 of 2 



To: 

ATTACHMENT#6 

:A!{_ ~ ()A 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
ENGINEERING, PARKS & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

From: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Counci l 

Bruce Bowman, Section Manager, Streets and Fleet 

Subject: 2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN - PROJECTS OVER $500,000: PAVEMENT 
MANAGEMENT: STREETS AND LANES (03-18) 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 11-5240-01 -0001/2024 

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029-2033 Total 
City Including $1 ,500,000 $1,500,000 $1 ,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $7,500,000 $15,000,000 
Reserves 
External Contrib. $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total $1,500,000 $1,500 000 $1,500,000 $1,500 000 $1,500 000 $7,500,000 $15,000 000 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with background on the Pavement 
Management Program for Streets and Lanes and justification for appropriating the 2024 
funding. 

BACKGROUND 

The Pavement Management Program can be broken into two components: 

1) Repairs/rehabilitation - work that maintains a portion of a road where surface 
damage like cracking or trench repairs have occurred. This work can consist of 
activities such as crack sealing, slot grinding, thin lift overlay and other alternate 
methods, and are designed to ensure the useable lifespan of a road is maintained. 

2) Complete resurfacing/reconstruction - addresses the condition of roadways that 
are nearing their end of serviceable lifespan. This work includes the removal and 
replacement of the top layer of asphalt and new pavement markings. When a road 
has passed the end of its serviceable life, more intensive repair of the sub-surface 
may also be required. 

Document Number: 2535052 



INFORMATION REPORT: 2022-2031 Capital Plan - Project Over $500,000: Pavement Management - Streets 
and Lanes 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Resurfacing our roadways prior to a fully deteriorated state is an important process for 
maintaining CNV's assets and avoiding more costly and disruptive complete 
reconstruction of roads. Staff have developed a prioritization process to focus the 
program's attention that considers factors like roadway classification, pavement 
condition, and consideration for the City's mobility lane network; however, priorities can 
shift as pavement conditions change year to year. The program also often follows larger 
projects such as utility upgrades where there are multiple cuts through the road surface 
or active transportation projects like the Green Necklace to complete the entire corridor 
upgrade. 

2024 PAVEMENT PROGRAM 

The 2024, pavement program will continue to maintain the City's roadways and address 
spot improvements. Two corridors prioritized for resurfacing in 2024 are as follows: 

1) West 16th Street: Fell Avenue to Hamilton Avenue. 
2) Fell Avenue/Edgemont Boulevard: West 16th Street to West 23rd Street. 

Additionally, resurfacing is planned for East 29th Street between Lonsdale Avenue and 
Somerset St. Funding has already been appropriated for this project, which was originally 
planned for 2022 and is now scheduled for construction in summer 2024. 

Finally, East 3rd Street between St. Davids Avenue and Queensbury Avenue requires a 
top lift of paving. This paving will follow development delivered off site works and is 
scheduled to be completed in 2024. 

In addition to resurfacing projects, in the summer of 2024, a consultant will complete 
another iteration of condition assessment of the City's road network. The last iteration 
was completed in 2021. This work is undertaken every three years to help plan the 
program work and to see trends in deterioration. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Funding must be appropriated in order to procure contractor resources for the 2024 
program. 

Staff are continuing to complete the City's Asset Management Plan to help inform future 
decisions regard ing the appropriate level of funding required to achieve the community's 
expected level of service for different types of roadways. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Bruce Bowman 
Section Manager, Streets and Fleet 

Page 2 of 2 



ATTACHMENT #7 

:Ni_ ~ [M, 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
ENGINEERING, PARKS & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Bruce Bowman, Section Manager, Streets and Fleet 

2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN - PROJECTS OVER $500,000: EPE 
OPERATIONS VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 
(07-01) 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 11-5240-01 -0001/2024 

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029-2033 Total 
City Including $935,000 $964,000 $820,000 $1,383,000 $803,000 $4,905,000 $9,810,000 
Reserves 
External Contrib. $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total $935 000 $964,000 $820,000 $1 ,383,000 $803 000 $4 905,000 $9,810,000 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with background on the EPE Operations 
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Program and justification for appropriating the 2024 
funding. 

BACKGROUND 

The EPE Operations Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Program funds the planned 
replacement of vehicles and equipment to ensure Engineering , Parks and Environment 
Operations has reliable vehicles and equipment to meet operational needs. Each piece 
of equipment or vehicle is monitored through its life cycle to ensure replacement at the 
appropriate time to reach a lowest total cost of ownership. When replacing, greener 
technologies are explored for performance, cost and GHG reduction opportunities. 

2024 Operations Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Program 

The 2024 program comprises replacement of two pickup trucks and three rubber-tired 
backhoes, which are all at the end of their normal 10 year replacement cycle. 

Document Number: 2535219 



INFORMATION REPORT: 2024-2028 CAPITAL PLAN- PROJECT OVER $500,000: EPE OPERATIONS 
VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 
Date: June 12, 2024 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Funds for the 2024 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Program are available in the 
Engineering Equipment Reserve which is a dedicated reserve to replace existing vehicles 
and equipment. Individual equipment and vehicles are charged out to jobs and those 
funds replenish the reserve. Funding must be appropriated before staff can begin the 
procurement process. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Bruce Bowman 
Section Manager, Streets and Fleet 

Page 2 of 2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

REPORT 

Subject: TEMPORARY LOAN AUTHORIZATION BYLAW, 2024, NO. 9032 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 05-1760-01-0001/2024 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled "Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032": 

THAT "Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032" be considered. 

AND THAT the Chief Financial Officer and City Solicitor be authorized to execute 
all loan documentation required to establish a Temporary Borrowing facility with 
the Municipal Finance Authority of B.C. as contemplated in Bylaw No.9032. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. "Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032" (CityDocs #2514214) 

SUMMARY 

The "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9006" adopted by Council on May 6, 2024, authorized the borrowing of 
$55 ,700,000 for the purpose of the design and construction of a new North Shore 
Neighbourhood House and two City Parks, being the Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 
Eastern Park. 

This Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw allows the CNV to draw funds from the 
Municipal Finance Authority ("MFA") only as required during the construction phase of 

Document Number: 2514212 V2 



REPORT: Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032 
Date: June 12, 2024 

the above 3 projects rather than all up front, therefore keeping interest costs to a 
minimum. 

BACKGROUND 

At the Regular Council meeting of February 12, 2024, Council gave three readings to 
"North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, 
No. 9006" (the "Loan Authorization Bylaw"). Staff subsequently obtained statutory 
approval for the Loan Authorization Bylaw from the Inspector of Municipalities and 
returned to Council on March 11, 2024, for direction to undertake an Alternative 
Approval Process to obtain elector approval of the Loan Authorization Bylaw. 

On April 22, 2024, the Alternative Approval Process concluded, with less than 10% of 
electors (1 .35%) submitting forms opposing the Loan Authorization Bylaw, so approval 
of the electors was received . Council then adopted the Loan Authorization Bylaw on 
May 6, 2024, starting a mandatory 1 month quashing period, which concluded on June 
7. On June 10, the Corporate Officer completed its certification of the Loan 
Authorization Bylaw and submitted a request to the Inspector of Municipalities for its 
final Certificate of Approval. 

DISCUSSION 

The Loan Authorization Bylaw is for long-term MFA borrowing. The MFA also provides 
municipalities with the opportunity to obtain a Temporary Loan facility so that debt does 
not have to be all drawn down at the beginning of a project, causing the municipality to 
be liable for interest costs on the entire debt facility, and instead enables the 
municipality to just drawn down debt during the construction period as needed, keeping 
interest costs to a minimum. The purpose of the Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw 
that is the subject of this report is to allow CNV to secure a Temporary Loan facility from 
the MFA during construction. 

Interest costs on the MFA's Temporary Loan facilities are at daily floating rates and are 
currently 5.45% (as at June 8, 2024). On June 5, 2024, the Bank of Canada reduced its 
short term policy interest rate by 0.25%, which may signal the beginning of a new cycle 
of easing monetary policy. Private sector economists are forecasting short term interest 
rates to continue to reduce over the next few years and , if that is the case, the daily 
floating rates applicable to the MFA's Temporary Loan facilities will also reduce over 
time. 

Following completion of North Shore Neighborhood House and CNV's Park project 
construction, the short-term debt drawn can be converted to a long term debt facility 
with MFA. The MFA's long-term interest rates, depending on the term selected, are 
currently (as at June 8, 2024) between 3.9 - 4.6%. Borrowing as needed by way of a 
temporary facility during construction is expected to reduce the CNV's total interest 
costs versus the option of going directly to a long-term MFA debt facility for total 
expected project costs. 

Page 2 of 4 



REPORT: Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032 
Date: June 12, 2024 

Should Council adopt the proposed Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, following 
would be the next steps needed to secure committed financing for the three projects: 

Action Performed Completion 
bv Date 

Three Readings of Temporary Loan Council June 24 
Authorization Bylaw 

Certificate of Approval Issued for Loan Inspector of July 1* 
Authorization Bylaw Municipalities 

Adoption of Temporary Loan Authorization Council July 8 
Bylaw 

Temporary Loan Application submitted to MFA City Staff July 9 

Review of Loan Application and preparation of MFA July 16 
Agreement 

Loan agreement executed and closing City Staff July 31 

* Estimated date only, based on typical loM processing time of 2-4 weeks from 
Submission of Bylaw 9006 by Corporate Officer. Other dates in the table are also 
dependent on this estimated completion date. 

Should the City receive its anticipated Certificate of Approval, the City will complete the 
Municipal Finance Authority's ("MFA") application for temporary borrowing. The MFA 
will then draft loan documents for execution. These agreements are standard MFA 
documents used for all borrowing facilities provided to municipalities in BC. It is 
recommended that authority to execute all required MFA loan documents be delegated 
to the Chief Financial Officer and the City Solicitor. This delegation will enable 
expedient document execution and enable the facility to be secured as soon as 
possible, maintaining project schedule. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The CNV has the financial capacity to service the new debt. The Province typically 
permits municipalities in British Columbia to take on additional borrowing so long as 
annual debt servicing costs (principal and interest) do not exceed 25% of municipal 
revenue. Assuming all of the CNV's credit facilities are fully drawn, the CNV's debt 
servicing costs would be approximately 10% of revenues, well within prescribed limits. 
This will reduce to 3% in 2026, following the forecasted disposition of the remaining 
Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands to repay debt financing used for the construction of 
the new Harry Jerome Recreation Centre, as per the HJCRC Financial Strategy 
endorsed by Council on January 31, 2022. 

The related temporary debt and debt servicing costs are included in the CNV's 2024-
2028 Financial Plan, under the assumption that the temporary debt is converted to long 
term debt and repaid over time. Staff expect to explore other options with Council in 
2024 during the development of the 2025-2029 Financial Plan . 

Page 3 of 4 



REPORT: Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032 
Date: June 12, 2024 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw has been reviewed by the Corporate Officer 
and the City Solicitor. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The securing of debt financing enables the advancement of the NSNH Phase 2 project 
that supports the "A City for People" priority included in Council's 2022-2026 Strategic 
Plan, including initiatives to "Advance to explore innovative housing policy that includes 
protection and expansion of rental housing stock" and "Continue to build partnerships 
with other levels of government and housing providers to deliver more housing diversity 
and affordability" and to generally improve community well-being. 

The recommended debt financing will also enable the advancement of two parks that 
support Council's priorities for "A Vibrant City" and "A Resilient City", and specifically the 
initiatives to "Activate Public Spaces - parks, streets, plazas, outdoor areas - for 
residents to gather together, interact and engage in activities" and "Implement the Kings 
Mill Walk Park Master Plan". 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 4 of 4 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032 Document: 2514214-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9032 

A Bylaw to authorise temporary borrowing for the purpose of the design and 
construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks 

WHEREAS it is provided by S. 181 of the Community Charter that the Council may, where it has 
adopted a loan authorization bylaw, without further assents or approvals, borrow temporarily 
under the conditions therein set out; 
 
WHEREAS the Council has adopted “North Shore Neighborhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”, authorizing borrowing for the purpose of the construction 
of a new North Shore Neighborhood House and two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 
1600 Eastern Park, in the amount of Fifty Five million Seven Hundred thousand dollars 
($55,700,000); 
 
AND WHEREAS the sale of debentures have been temporarily deferred; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Temporary Loan Authorization 

Bylaw, 2024, No. 9032”. 
 
2. The Council is hereby authorized and empowered to borrow an amount or amounts not 

exceeding the sum of Fifty Five million Seven Hundred thousand dollars ($55,700,000), as 
the same may be required. 

 
3. The form of obligation to be given as acknowledgement of the liability shall be a promissory 

note or notes bearing the corporate seal and signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer. 
 
4. The money so borrowed shall be used solely for the purposes set out in “North Shore 

Neighborhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”. 
 
5. The proceeds from the sale of debentures or so much thereof as may be necessary shall 

be used to repay the money so borrowed. 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



-
Department 
Manager 

CAO 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

HOUSING ACCELERATOR RESERVE FUND 

REPORT 

Date: June 12, 2024 File No: 05-1705-01-0001/2024 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated June 12, 2024, 
entitled "Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund": 

THAT "Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061" be 
considered. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061 (CityDocs 2538680) 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to recommend creation of a segregated reserve fund to 
receive and assist in the management of the $18,599,100 grant awarded to The 
Corporation of the City of North Vancouver (CNV) by Canada Mortgage and Housing 
Corporation (CMHC) as part of the Federal Housing Accelerator Fund (HAF) Initiative. 

BACKGROUND 

On March 1, 2024, CNV was awarded an $18.6 million grant as part of the Federal 
HAF Initiative. CNV's application to CMHC was focused on the goals of expanding the 
supply and improving the quality, diversity, and affordability of housing in the City. 

Document Number : 2538723 Vl 



REPORT: HOUSING ACCELERATOR RESERVE FUND 
Date: June 12, 2024 

The first installment ($4,649,775) of CNV's $18.6 million grant, announced on March 1, 
2024, has been received, and the remaining three installments of equal amounts are 
expected annually thereafter. 

DISCUSSION 

The HAF is about driving transformational change and creating the conditions for more 
housing supply over the short and longer term. 

Permitted uses of HAF funding : 

• Investments in Housing Accelerator Fund Action Plans 
o any initiative included in the proponent's action plan and approved by 

Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC). 
• Investments in Affordable Housing 

o construction of affordable housing 
o repair or modernization of affordable housing 
o land or building acquisition for affordable housing 

• Investments in Housing-related Infrastructure: 
o drinking water infrastructure that supports housing 
o wastewater infrastructure that supports housing 
o solid waste management that supports housing 
o public transit that supports housing 
o community energy systems that support housing 
o disaster mitigation that supports housing 
o brownfield redevelopment that supports housing 
o broadband and connectivity that supports housing 
o capacity building that supports housing 
o site preparation for housing developments 

• Investments in Community-related Infrastructure that supports housing : 
o local roads and bridges that supports housing 
o sidewalks, lighting, bicycle lanes that supports housing 
o firehalls that support housing 
o landscaping and green space that supports housing 

CNV's HAF agreement with CMHC has specific reporting requirements, and controlling 
the HAF funds in a dedicated reserve will assist CNV to meet the reporting 
requirements in the agreement. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Any request for appropriation of funds held in the reserve will require Council approval. 

Page 2 of 3 



REPORT: HOUSING ACCELERATOR RESERVE FUND 
Date: June 12, 2024 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

Use of reserve funds will need to be to be alignment with CNV's Financial Plans. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 3 of 3 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061 Document: 2538680-v2 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9061 

A Bylaw to establish a reserve fund for the capital and planning purposes 
of the Housing Accelerator Fund. 

WHEREAS Section 188 of the Community Charter allows the establishment by Council of a 
Reserve Fund for a specified purpose; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Accelerator Reserve 

Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061”. 
 
2. Monies received from the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, as a part of the 

Housing Accelerator Fund, shall be contributed to the Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund. 
 
3. Monies in this Reserve Fund shall only be used for: 
 

A. Investments in Housing Accelerator Fund Action Plans: 
 

(1) Any initiative included in the action plan and approved by Canada Mortgage and 
Housing Corporation; 

 
B. Investments in Affordable Housing: 

 
(1) Construction of affordable housing; 
(2) Repair or modernization of affordable housing; 
(3) Land or building acquisition for affordable housing; 

 
C. Investments in Housing-Related Infrastructure: 

 
(1) Drinking water infrastructure that supports housing; 
(2) Wastewater infrastructure that supports housing; 
(3) Solid waste management that supports housing; 
(4) Public transit that supports housing; 
(5) Community energy systems that supports housing; 
(6) Disaster mitigation that supports housing; 
(7) Brownfield redevelopment that supports housing; 
(8) Broadband and connectivity that supports housing; 
(9) Capacity building that supports housing; 
(10) Site preparation for housing developments; 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9061 Document: 2538680-v2 

D. Investments in Community-Related Infrastructure that Supports Housing: 
 

(1) Local roads and bridges that supports housing; 
(2) Sidewalks, lighting, bicycle lanes that supports housing; 
(3) Fire halls that support housing; 
(4) Landscaping and green space that supports housing. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 


	1 Agenda�
	2 Minutes�
	*3 Bylaw 9024
	*4 Report Required under Local Government Green Communities Statutes Amendment Act 2008
	*5 2023 Statement of Financial Information
	5-1 2023 Statement of Financial Information�

	PM - 2023 Annual Muncipal Report
	6 2023 Annual Municipal Report�
	6-1 Annual Municipal Report�

	7 North Shore Youth Civic Forum
	7 Delegation
	7 Correspondence

	Presentation - Community Wellbeing Strategy�
	8 CNV Community Wellbeing Strategy�
	8-1 Community Wellbeing Strategy�
	8-2 Phase 1 What We Heard Report 2021�
	8-3 Phase 2 What We Heard Report 2023�

	9 CNV Accessibility Plan�
	9-1 Resolution Jun 7 2021

	10 457 West 14 St
	10-1 Context Map�
	10-2 Public Consultation Summary�

	11 Bylaw 9033�
	12 1612 St Georges Ave
	12-1 Map
	12-2 Architectural Plans�
	12-3 Landscape Plans�
	12-4 Overview for Zoning Variances�
	12-5 ADP Resolution Mar 24 2023�
	12-6 Consultation
	12-7 Tenant Relocation Plan�

	13 Bylaw 9055�
	14 Bylaw 9056�
	15 2024 Round One Community Grant Recommendations�
	15-1 Guidelines
	15-2 Applications Matrix

	16 Statutory Right of Way at 1866 Rufus Dr
	17 2024 Appropriations #2�
	17-1 2024-2028 Capital Plan Appropriations
	17-2 IR Jun 6 2024 - HAF
	17-3 IR Jun 12 2024 - Cloverley Childcare
	17-4 IR Jun 3 2024 - Casano-Loutet Overpass
	17-5 IR Jun 6 2024 - Mickey McDougall
	17-6 IR Jun 12 2024 - Pavement Mgmt
	17-7 IR Jun 12 2024 - Vehicle/Equipment

	18 Temporary Loan Authorization Bylaw
	19 Bylaw 9032�
	20 Housing Accelerator Reserve Fund�
	21 Bylaw 9061�



